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About us

Secure Trust Bank (‘STB’) is an award-winning UK retail
bank, providing savings accounts and lending services
to over a million customers.

Born in 1952 in the West Midlands, we've had plenty
of time to hone our craft.

Safety. Security.
Peace of mind.
A bank you

can trust.
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We like to keep it simple. We are a
well-funded and capitalised UK retail
bank, with a track record of successful
performance across a diverse

lending portfolio.

We use our market awareness and
strong risk management discipline
to remain agile, aligning our product
mix to meet demand from our

retail and business customers in
attractive markets.

Profit before tax

£3 8 m
2018: £34.7 million
Total assets

£2,682.8m

2018: £2,444 3 million

Pages 2 to 61 form the Strategic Report. It indudes our business model, economic
and regulatory environment, strateqy, finandial review and a business review for each
of the lines of business. Pages 106 to 108 form the Directors’ Report.
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s statement

Lord Forsyth
Chairman
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GG

We are well placed to tackle
the exceptional challenges arising
from COVID-19.”

Another
successful
year for
the Group
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Despite some headwinds, 2019 has been
another successful year for the Group.

Statutory profit before tax grew by 11.5%
to £38.7 million, basic earnings per share
by 9.9% and lending balances exceeded
£2.4 billion at the end of the year.

By the end of the year we had more than
1.5 million custemers, deposits of
£2,020.3 million and the cost of risk had
falten from 1.8% in 2018 to 1.4% (see page
190 for definition).

COVID-19 will cause substantial

damage to the UK and global economy.
The Group has plans in place which seek
to mitigate business disruption, protect the
welfare of our employees and continue
supporting customers and business
partners during this unsettling period.

The strong start to 2020 would ordinarily
see the Board recommend an increased
dividend. We have now entered a period
of extreme uncertainty driven by the
COVID-19 outhreak, however, and in these
exceptional circumstances the Board
considers that it is prudent to preserve
capital and is not recommending a final
dividend for approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting.

I accordance with the current UK
Government guidance on social
distancing, prohibition on non-essential
travel and public gatherings, the Board
regrets that it will not be possible for
shareholders to attend this year's AGM in
person. We would encourage all
shareholders ta vote on the resolutions
proposed at the AGM however, and
further details are set outin the Notice
of AGM.

The Group Employee Coundil established
last year is working well and the Group was
ranked as the 29th best large company to
work for by Great Place to Work® in 2019,
We have made changes to benefits and to
flexible working to help encourage
diversity in our workforce. Our matched
giving scheme has been extended to
support the impressive charitable work
undertaken by our employees.




As a responsible business, we are
determined to make a positive contribution
to the communities in which we operate,
the impact of climate change features on
our agenda and you can see the impressive
activities conducted by our employees sat
out on page 55.

As a Board we are committed to good
governance and will continue to strive to
ensure our committess, our Directors’
Remuneration Policy and our actions
maintain compliance with best practice.

At the yearend we announced changes
to the composition of the Board and its
Committees arising from the appointment
of David McCreadie as 2 Non-Executive
Director, the resignation of Neeraj Kapur
as Chief Financial Officer and the
prospective retirement of Paul Marrow at
the 2020 AGM. Paul is deemad to be no
longer independent under the Corporate
Governance Code after nine years’ service.
He will be much missed and has made an
outstanding contribution to our business.

| should also ke to wish Neeraj well in his
new role at Provident Financial.  am
espedially grateful to Ann Berresford,

Paul Myers, Victoria Stewart, Lucy Neville-
Roffe and David McCreadie for taking on
additional Board responsibilities.

Finally, | woutd like to thank all my
colleagues for another year of
achievement and for their continued
dedication and commitment and
espedially our Chief Executive Paul Lynam
who has delivered double-digit growth in
profits before tax for the second year in
succession. | am gratefu! too for the
resilience my colleagues at STB have
shown as we navigated the troubled
waters of COVID-19 to continue to serve
our customers and support our

wider workforce.

Given the resources at our disposal,

the talents of our people, the flexibility of
our business model and our clear strategy,
we are well placed to tackle the
exceptional challenges arising from
COVID-19.

Lord Forsyth
Chairman

& May 2020

Financial highlights

CHART REMOVED

! From conlinuing operations.
Operational highlights

We have more than

1.5m

customers

The cost of risk has fallen to

1.4%

CHART REMOVED

Deposits of

£2,020.3m

FEEFO customer satisfaction ratings

4.7 stars
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Strategic Repoit

Our business model

How Secure Trust Bank does what it does

We lend to business and

personal customers, funded
primarily by customer deposits.

8 offices across the UK
1 Sofibull

2 Cardiff

3 Manchester
4 Birmingham
5 Rotherham
bieeds

7 London

8 Reading

GRAPHIC REMOVED

Our divisions

| sw=x< | Business Finance

O Read mare on pages 26 to 29

Secured lending to businesses, relatively lower yield and lower risk.

Lending decisions are made on an individual transaction basis, using expert judgement
and assessment against criteria set out in Jending polices.

Real estate
Support to SMEs in providing finance

principally for rasidential devalopment and

rasidential invastment,

Asset

Funding to support SME businasses in
acgjuiring cotnmercial assets, such as

building equipment, commaercial vehicles

and manufacturing equipment.

Assel Finsnce is currently dosed to new business

Commercial

A full range of involee financing solutions
to UK businesses including invoice
discounting and factoring.

| e | Consumer Finance

© Raad more on pages 30 to 35

Secured and unsecured lending, ranging from low to higher yield and risk.

Underwriting technology is used to make lending decisions quickly, resulting in high
customer satisfaction scores whils Lsing strong risk management to minimise bad debt.

Retail

Lending products for in-store and online
retailers to enable consumer purchases.

Debt management

Collection of debt on behalf of a range of
clients as well as for Group compantes.

Motor

Fixed rate, fixed term hire purchase
arrangements, pradominantly on
usad cars,

Mortgages

Lending to individuals who wish to
purchase a property or remortgage their
current property.

Consumer Mortgages Is cutrently closed to new business

Savings

O Read more on pages 36 to 39

Savings

Customer deposits, from personal and
businass customers, available online and
serviced using intemet banking.

Deposit accounts are promoted to meet
funding needs and to broadly match the
maturity profiles of lending.

Depasits range from instant access to
seven-year bonds, including Cash ISAs.
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What STB needs
to operate

How STB
connects with
customers

Our people

The Group had 1,017 employees

{fulHtime equivalent} at 31 December 2019,
{31 December 2018: 886) most of whom
are based at the head office in Sotihull,
West Midlands.

© Raad more about our peopla on pages 55 to 57

EWF_] Capital and
REMOVED | liquidlity

We need to ensure we have sufficient
levels of capital and liquidity resources
to support our growth and satisfy
ragulatory requirenmants.

© Raad mara on pages 24 and 25

@Pbon&

UK-based customer support is
avatlable for our lending and
savings customers,

mar
REMOVC | management

Risk management is key to our success.

As well as strong management of credit
risk and of capital and liquidity resources,
wa closely manage market risk, operational
risk, conduct risk and regulatory risk.

© Read mare on pages 40 to 49

GRAPHIC
revaved| Internet

Cur savings products are
applied for and serviced
through a highly commended
onfine banking service.

Marke

REMOYD | awareness

We have built 8 management team with
significant experience in our chosen markets
a3 wall as the wider macro-economic and

regulatory environmant.
© Raad more an pages 84 (o 86

@ Business
REMOVED] partners

Motor lending is provided via
UK motor dealers, brokers and
internet introducers.

Real Estate and Commercial
Finance business is saurced
and supported both directly
and via intraducers.

Flexible

MO business model

We have grawn our lending portfolio across
a diverse range of sectors, allowing us to

be flexible and focus growth in the most
attractive areas, Through carefully targeted
fending products, the absance of large fixed
overheads In the form of a branch network
and a policy of not crass-subsidising loss-
making products with profitable cnes, we can
offer competitive deposit interest rates and
have baen successful in attracting deposits
from a wide range of customers.

O Resd mors on pages 04 end 05

GRAPHIC
REMOVED| Reatailers

We cperate an online e~commerce
service to ratailers, providing
finance to customers of those
retallers through the V12 Retall
Finance brand.

The value we
create for our
stakeholders

crarric| OUT

RewovEDl shareholders

We deliver retums to shareholders

by:

+ Eaming interest, fee and
commission income from qur
lending businesses

= Maintaining efficient funding
and aperational cast levels

+ Controlling loan impairment

levels thraugh robust credit
risk management

@ Read more In our Flnenclal Reviaw
on pages 20 to 25

erarnic]  Business

REMOVED]  and retail

We make available a range

of lending options ta meet

the demands of UK business,
particularly from businesses
needing working capital, house
butlders and motor dealers.

Our Retall Finance products enable

retailery to offer credit fadilities
both in-store and online.

Private
REMOVED} consumers
Across all products, wa aim

to deliver high levels of
customer satisfaction,

Lending products aro designed

to meet the needs of the consumer,
be affordable and easy to apply for.
The savings range offers
eompestitive, simple products
covered by the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme up to

the specified limits.

GRAPHIC Wider

REMOVED
stakeholders
The Group operales es a

responsible business that benefits k

a wide range of stakeholders.
Further details sre provided In
the Section 172 Statement.

© Reod more on pages 5% ta &1
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Strategic Report

Economic and regulatory environment

ontext for

growth

The success of our products and services in 2019 was impacted
by macro-economic and regulatory developments creating
both challenges and opportunities for each of our divisions.

UK GDP annual growth rate 2019

1.4%

Offica of National Statisties - +1 Fabrusry 2020

UK unemployment rate Q4 2019

3.8%

Office of National Statigtics — 21 January 2020

UK general inflation rate 2019

<2%

Bank of England - 30 Januay 2020

UK Residential Market National Enquiries

+23%

RICS UK Residantal Markat Survey — 13 February 2020
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Macro-economic

N %

Recent developments

To give context to the Group’s
performance in 2019, the following section
sets out developments in the macro-
economic environment, and particularly
the UK economy, in that year. it therefore
does not cover the more recent COVID-19
outbreak, which is addressed elsewhere in
the Strategic Report.

In 2019, the UK economy was

characterised by relatively weak and
somewhat volatile growth. The year was
significantly impacted by political instability
and uncertainties associated with the UK’
exit from the EU. Notwithstanding these
uncertainties, the economy moved forward
in 2019 and the Office of National Statistics
reported estimated UK GDP growth of
1.4% in 2019.

The labour market remained robust with
the unemployment rate at 3,8% in the
three months to October, the lowest since
the mid-1970s, and job vacancies at
near-record levels. Real wage growth was
positive in 2019, underpinning consumer
corfidence and household consumption.
Hemebuying activity rose as shown by UK
Residential Market National Enquiries.
The general inflation rate remained below
the Bank of England's 2% target and the
housing market was subdued.

This resulted in limited pressures on the
Monetary Policy Committes to raise
interest rates.




The decisive UK General Election result
removed the immediate uncertainty
surrounding Brexit and preliminary reports
indicated a positive response in economic
activity. Both business and investor
optimism appeared to have lifted with
some evidences of a reboundin the
housing market.

Nonetheless, the year dosed with a
continuing level of uncertainty over the
course of 2020 as the UK enters trade
negotiations. Consequently, policymakers
adopted a cautionary stance and the
Bank of England's forecasts for 2020 saw
the UK economy growing at a weaker rate
compared with 2019 of 0.75%.

Outlook

We continue to monitor the macro-
economic environment closely, particularly
given the COVID-19 outbreak. Itis dear
that the emerging pandemic will
significantly impact on the UK and global
economy with the full scale of the impact
not being certain for some time.

The Group has the flexibility and business
model to be able to respond rapidly to
such challenges and, as set out elsewhere
in the Strategic Repott, has taken steps to
maintain operational continuity and
ongaing support for customers, business
partners and employees,

Regulation

%

Recent developments

A number of key requlatory announcements
have been made over 2019 which are likely
ta impact the Group. As always, we seek to
respond to such announcements promptly
and comply with all applicabsle regulation.

One particular focus area is operational
resilience. As set out in its response to the
van Steenis review on the Future of
Finance, one of the five priority areas for
action by the Bank of England is to
facilitate firms' use of technology to
increase their operational resilience and

to protect the wider financial sector and
the UK economy from the impact of
operational disruption. In December 2019,
the PRA and FCA published three
consultation papers outlining their
expectations of firms in their achievernent
of operational resilience, with a policy
staternent expected in Q2, 2020. The need
for operational resilience has been
demonstrated as the COVID-19 outbreak
has progressed.

Reflecting wider concemns in society, there
is also an increased supervisory focus on
climate change. In April 2019, the PRA
published a supervisory statement focused
on enhancing firms’ approaches to
managing the financial risks from climate
change and we would expect
environmental regulation to remain an
ongoing theme. For example, the Bank of
England has announced that future stress
testing processes will aim to assess the
finandial risks posed by climate change.

Further details on the Group's pasition in
respect of operational resilience and
climate change are set out in the Principal
risks and uncertainties section on page 40.

As expected there is a continuing focus
on treating customers fairly. In June the
UK Government announced that a new
80-day breathing space scheme will be
introduced by early 2021 to protect
individuals with problem debt. Alsq,

in October the FCA published a consultation
which proposes to ban commission models
that give Motor Finance brokers/dealers an
incentive to raise customers’ interest rates.
The direct impact of this consultation on the
Group is not expected to be material given
that the Group does not engage in this type
of pricing activity.

The Bank of England is alsa consulting on
the use of regulatory data over the next
decade to both enhance insights into

the financial system and assess ways to
decrease the regulatory reporting burden
on the industry. The Bank has also indicated
that it wili consult on the appropriate level
of access to its payments infrastructure and
balance sheet.

As noted in the Chief Executive's
statement, other aspects of emerging
regulation have limited impact on the
Group but affect competitors, These include
ringfencing requirements affecting large
banks and the transition from LIBOR,

Qutlook

We continue to prepare for the final

Basel Il reforms which will now apply from
1 January 2023, which we anticipate will
Ggo some way to levelling the playing field
between IRB institutions and those on the
Standardised Approach. We will also
continue to monitor developments arising
from the UK’s exit from the European
Union, particutarly any movement towards
a more proportionate approach to the
regulation of smaler banks, and any
regulatory developments arising from

the COMID-19 ocutbreak.
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive's statement

Paul Lynam
Chief Executive
Officer

IMAGE REMOVED

GG

We continue to focus on
consistently delivering good
outcomes for customers.”

Evolving
the business
for the future
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| am delighted to report a
strong year's performance for
2019 when viewed across a
broad range of customer,

staff and financial metrics.

I would like to thank the entire
ST8 team for their commitment
and professionalism last year
and for the way they have
continued delivering good
outcomes for our customers.

As expected, the sirategic repositioning
of the business madel, initiated in 2017
towards lower risk lending, and ongoing
growth in both Business Finance and
Coensumer Finance, have continued to
deliver benefits. Customer numbers,
lending balances and income have grown
whilst the cost of risk (see page 190 for
definition) has continued to fall.

These factors have driven strong growth
in reported and adjusted earnings.

The financial results for 2019 show the
Group statutory profit before tax increasing
by 11.5% to £38.7 miillion compared to the
£34.7 million of profit before tox generatad
during 2018, Adjusted profit before tax on
the same basis has increased by 12.0% to
£41.1 million. Adfusted eamings per share
increased by 10.4% over the same period
with basic earnings per share increasing

by 9.9%.

Itis noteworthy that the profit growth
above was achieved after accommodating
a significant fall in used car values in the
summer of 2019, which impacted
impairment provisions, and a very marked
slowdown in UK economic activity last
autumn ahead of the planned Brexit date
of 31 October and then the

General Election.

The Group entered 2020 aspiring to
deliver double digit profit before tax
growth for the third successive year.

After the first quarter performance was in
line with management expectations, with
strong profit performance despite
increased impairment provisioning to
recoghise the threat of COVID-19.
However in recent weeks the UK and
global econoemies have become exposed
to unprecedented levels of uncertainty
with recessions fooking inevitable in many

i
i
i
i




countries. Therefore, notwithstanding

a very positive start to the year itis
currently impossible to estimate with any
dagree of accuracy how damaging this
virus will be for the UK economy.

The lockdown imposed by HM
Government in late March 2020 has
resulted in demand for the Group’s Motor
Finance products drying up completely
and our Retail Finance lending vafumes
are circa 50% of expectations. Demand for
new Invoice Finance and Real Estate
Finance has largely evaporated.

The consequence of the material fatls in
new lending business being written means
that the Group’s customer lending
balances have started to contract for the
first time in many years. This contraction is
likely to persist and will be influenced by
any revival in economic activity and our
credit risk appetites which will remain
cautious. In light of the rapidly evolving
situation the Group has undertaken
significant additional stress testing to
assess the potential impact of the crisis on
capital and liquidity positions which remain
healthy. Assassments to date indicate that
the short duration of loan books helps to
maintain capital and fiquidity levels above
regulatory requirements throughout a very
severe recession. Given the extrerne
uncertainty we are not providing forward
guidance for 2020 at this time.

The Group's immediate focus is on
supporting colleagues, customers and
business partners and arange of plans is in
place to seek to mitigate the operational
and economic impact of COVID-19.

The Group expects that once through the
worst of the outbreak, and assuming a
trade deal is agreed with the EU, the UK
economic outlook will improve strongly
which the Group will seek to leverage as it
continues to execute its clearly defined
growth strategy. We are well placed to
support an increase in demand for working
capital funding from businesses and
residential development finance from
house builders. The latter is aided by

a regulatory capital efficient Enable
Guarantee we have agreed with the
British Business Bank. We are progressing
significant investment in our Motor
Finance business which will see this
portfolio grow considerably over the next
five years via the provision of dealer
stocking finance (now live) and a prime
matar proposition for consumers.

Ongoing growth in customer
base with satisfaction levels
remaining very positive

Acrass our consumer and SME business
products we are serving well over

1.5 million customers. Tota! customer
numbers are a record 1,598,256 customers
which is an increase of 24.9% on the total
customer base of 1,279,783 as at

31 December 2018.

We continue ta focus on consistently
delivering good outcomes for customers
and enswring that the design of our
products is appropriate for their needs.
From a conduct and behaviour
perspective, we do not cross-subsidise
{osses ar fow profits on some products
with super profits on others. Nor do we
diseriminate between customers by, for
example, paying very low deposit interest
rates 1o existing loyal customers whilst
offering much higher rates to new ones.
We believe that our approach is the
appropriate way to interact with our
customers for the long-term benefit of
all parties.

Customer satisfaction is measured in a
number of ways. It is reassuring that 201%
has once again seen us consistently
achieve customer satisfaction ratings in
excess of %0% across all of our products
as measured by Feefo, We also use

Net Promoter Scores to assess our
customer service and thase scores exhibit
similar positive trends to those derived
from Feefo,

t am delighted to confirm that for the
seventh year running we have retained

the Customer Service Excellence standard.
This indicates our customer service has been
judged to mest Government standards of
excellence which are benchmarked against
high-performing organisations.

Whilst being pleased with external
accolades and angoing high customer
satisfaction scores we are in no way
complacent. We are focused on improving
our existing service and products and
diversifying our customer proposition via
targeted investment in people, systems,
processes and products.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

Highlights of 2019

» Statutory profit before tax increased
by 11.5% to £38.7 million

¢ Adjusted profit before tax increased
by 12.0% to £41.1 million

+ Customer numbers now over
1.5 millien

* Customer satisfaction scores continue
to be consistantly over $0%

* Launch of new Cash ISA products in
Apdl 2019

* V12 Vehide Finance brand launched and
initial phases of Motor Transformation
Programme implemeanted

* Customer Service Excelience standard
retained for the seventh year running

» New freehold premises, Yorke
House, acquired

IMAGE REMOVED

Growth in customer numbers

up 25%

(1,598,254)
2018: 1,279,783

GRAPHIC REMOVED

Feefo customer satisfaction ratings

Q0%+

2018: 90%+
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive's statement

continued

GG

The majority of
customers with
maturing medium-term
savings bonds continue
to reinvest their funds
into deposit products
with us.”

GRAPHIC REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

(G

2019 was a busy
year for our Motor
business which
was successfully
rebranded V12
Vehicle Finance.”

10

Operational progress

Operational resilience remains a key
matter for regulatory scrutiny and we
have adopted a proactive approach.
Having carefully considered the various
discussion and consultation papers
published by the requlators we have
updated our operational risk plans in
relation to the identification, 2ssessment
and management of risks. This extends to
managing the third party risks that arise
when outsourcing activities. | am pleased
to note that the Group received Cyber
Essentials Plus accreditation in the second
half of 2019, which is a good reflection on
our continued cyber security focus.

Given the continuing growth across the
Group and our ongoing ambitions, we
acquired new freehold premises in Solihull
very dose to the existing Head Office
building. This is now operational and,

with an eye on the future, this is geared to
accommodate more agile working
practices, including those which will reduce
our carbon footprint, These practices,

and our wefl-established business
continuity plans, will help us deal with the
impact of COVID-19,

Healthy capital position

Our ongoing priority is to safeguard the
reputation and sustainability of the Group
through conservative balance sheet
management, investment for long-term
sustainable growth and robust risk and
operational controls.

Our year-end CET1{ capital levels are
healthy with a CET1 ratio of 12.7%
compared to the 2018 year-end position of
13.8%. The Total Capital Ratio was 15.0%
{2018: 14.3%) and our laverage ratio as at
31 December 2019 was 9.8% (2018: 10.0%).
The year-on-year movement in CET1 i a
function of the investment of capital to
support the strong growth in the

loan pertfolios,

in December 2019 the Bank of England
announced an increase in the countercyclical
capital buffer from 1% of risk-weighted
assets to 2%, with effect from December
2020, and its intention to consult on
offsetting this increase via reductions in
variable Pillar 2A add-ons, to ensure the
levels of capital in the system stay broadly
unchanged. Since then, as part of the

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2012

package of measures introduced to
mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the
buffer has been reduced ta 0%.

This intervention is welcomed and we will
continue to monitor capital levels closely
thraughout the pericd affected by

the outbreak.

Prudent liquidity management

Our year-end loan to depasit ratio was
121.3% (2018: 109.8%). This ratio was
higher than normal due to the strong
conversion of new business pipeline ahead
of year-end. The ratio has reverted to
normal levels in the first part of 2020.
Customer demand for our deposit
products remains very strong, and | am
pleased to continue to note that the
majority of customers with maturing
medium-term savings bonds continue to
reinvest their funds into daposit products
with us,

The Bark has continued broadly to
match-fund its customer lending with
customer deposits, This strategy seeks to
mitigate maturity transformation and
interest basis risks. Given the growth in the
bdlance shieal s recent years, we have
continued to invest in our Treasury function
and capabilities to further mitigate interest
rate risks via the use of hedging
instruments. This is a significant step in the
development of the Group's capabilities,

We continued to leverage the benefits
from the deposit platform installed in 2017
via the launch of a new Cash ISA product
to coincide with the new tax year in Apri]
2019. Cash ISAs are the second biggest
pool of consumer depasit liquidity in the
UK and typically attract margins around
20% below non-cash ISA deposits.
Access Account products have also baen
developed and tested and are ready

for launch.

Usage of the Term Funding Scheme
('TFSY is broadly unchanged over the last
12 months, This remains a modest part of
the Bank's funding. We note the extension
to this funding in light of COMID-19 and
will be considering whether the Group will
take advantage of it.




Income grew and cost of
risk reduced

The Group's operating income graw by
2.2% to a record level of £165.5 million
compared to £151.4 million in 2018.
Operating costs rose 11.5% to

£94.2 million from £84.5 million in 2018,
reflecting continued investment in the
business. The cost-to-income ratio has
increased to 56.9% (2018: 55.7%) for
reasons explained an the following page.

In overall terms the loan portfolios have
performed as expected with the benefits
of the strategic repasitioning remaining
evident. This is reflected in a reduction in
the cost of risk to 1.4% in 2019 compared
to 1.8% for 2018. This is driven by the
improving book quality and consequent
reduction in probability of default.

This improvement would have been more
pronounced save for the UK car market
experiencing unusually severe seasonal
falls in asset values during the summer
of 2019.

During the year we have recognised

£2.1 million of improvements in credit
quality relating to cur debt collection
business as an impairment gain, whereas
in the previous year we included the
equivalent £2.0 million of improvements
in income. This makes no difference to
the profit figures but does serve to reduce
both income and the cost of risk.
Adjusting for this and for costs relating
to our freehold property purchase, on a
flike-for-like basis cornpared to 2018,

the 2019 cost incoma ratio is stable at
55.5% and the 2019 cost of risk is 1.5%,
still well below the 2018 level of 1.8%.

We hava continued to refine our credit
risk appetite and acceptance criteria over
2019. As a matter of course, we regularly
review our credit criteria and pricing to
take into account our view of the current
and future economic conditions. We have
also continued to develop our ability to
use artificial intelligence and machine
learning to further refine our

credit decisions.

Customer lending activities

Once again, double digit percentage
growth was achieved across the Group's
loan portfolio in 2019, notwithstanding the
closure of the consumer mortgage
operations in the spring. Total annual new
business lending volumes grew 12.0% to
£1,413 miilion (2018: £1,262 million) which
translated to an increase of 20.8% in overall
balance sheet customer lending assets to
£2,450 million {2018: £2,029 million).

Consumer Finance

In 2019 total consumer fending, exduding
mortgages, increased 20.9% to

£1,095.0 million {2018: £905.7 million).
Qur Consumer Finance lending strategy
during 2019 was to cease new mortgage
originations and continue to allocate
capital to support the strong engoing
growth in Retail Finance, which is shorter
term in duration and prime in nature, and
to progress the investment in Motor to
support the entry into dealer and prime
consumer finance.

The Retail Finance point of sale business
grew strongly as intended, with net
customer lending balances at

31 December 2019 increasing 15.4% to
£488 9 million (2018: £597.0 million).

Our Retail Finance business has continued
to evolve as we have grown into one of
the largest participants in this market.

The average loan duration has remained
short and provides optionality in the event
of worsening economic canditions, such
as those arising due to the COVID-19
outbreak. On the assurnption the
government negotiates a trade deal

with the EU which is not ecanomically
disruptive, clear scope exists for us to
offer Retail Finance in long duration loan
sectors that we have not heavily targeted
in the past.

CHART REMOVED

New business volumes

£1,413.0m

2018: £1,261.2 million

CHART REMOVED

Loans and advances to customers

£2,450.1m

2018; £2,028.9 million
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive's statement

continued

Key product highlights

» Growth in Consumer Finance lending
balances of 21.3%

¢ Growth in Business Finance lending
balances of 20.9%

* No material impact on earnings from
the cessation of new Consumer
Mortgage lending

* Improved Consumer Finance book
quality has reduced the cost of risk

¢ Business Finance Impairment
provisions continue to be immaterial

IMAGE REMOVED

12

2019 was @ busy year for our Motor
business which was successfully rebranded
as V12 Vehicle Finance in the summer.

The first two phases of our Motor
Transformation Programme focused on the
provision of auction and dealer stocking
finance. These were successhully
completed in 2019. The next phase is the
launch of a prime lending proposition for
consumers towards the end of 2020 with
the final phase being the re-platforming of
the existing hear prime portfolio. This will
give us a very strong dealer and consumer
proposition allowing us to compete
directly with the likes of Close, Blue and
Starttine. We will also continue to grow the
near prime book, As noted above, the very
large fall in used car prices during the
summer increased the Motor Finance
impairment charge. The improvement in
the underlying credit quality of the
customers has been such that we have
been able to accommodate this
unexpected charge and still deliver a
broadly on plan performance for Motor

in 2019.

Motor net lending balances have
increased by 17.1% to £323.7 miillion at
3 December 2019 compared to
£276.4 million in the prior year.

Debt Managers (Services) Limited (DMSY),
which is active in third party debt collection
and portfolio acquisition, continued to
perform well during 2019. DMS revenue
from external customaers increased to

£8.4 million from £7.0 million in 2018,

When announcing our decision ta cease
originating consumer mortgage lending
fast year, | noted my expectation that the
trend of increasing loan-to-value metrics
and lower new net lending margins was
likely to be sustained throughout 2619,
This has proved to be the case with net
interast margins in the sector being
squeezed despite the risk indicators
including Loan-to-Value, Loan-te-income
and average loan duration all increasing.
These market dynamics show no sign

of abating given the ambitions of the
ring-fenced banks to grow market share

in UK mortgages. 2019 was the first year
since 2009 whan the 'big 6’ lenders grew
their share of gross new mortgage lending.
Inevitably this has squeezed other lenders.
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This would seem to vindicate our decision
to deplay capital elsewhere across our
business model. The decision to cease
lending was obviously very tough on the
staff members impacted who behaved
very professionally during this difficult
period, Fulfilment of our pipeline led to
our mortgage lending balances increasing
from £84.7 million as at 31 December 2018
to £105.9 million as at 31 December 2019,
representing growth of 25.0%. This book is
performing in line with our expectations.
As expected the cessation of new lending
did not have a material impact on the
Group's eamnings in 2019

Business Finance

The Group'’s SME lending operations have
grown strongly, as targeted, and | expect
further positive progress in 2020 {subject to
the impact of COVID-19) given wa started
the year with a strong new business
pipeline. Total business customer lending
balances in 2019 increased by 20.9% to
£1,241.6 million (2018: £1,027.3 million).
Real Estate Finance lending balances
increased by 25.0% to £962.2 million as at
31 December 2019 (2018: £769.8 million).
The loan book is performing well and
remains biased in favour of modestly
leveraged residential investment lending.
This is reflected in the portfolio
compaosition, which in round terms is split
75% / 25% in favour of investment lending
versus development lending. We have
continued to adopt a cautious stance
tawards Central London house building
finance, Demand for property
development finance slowed during 2019
albeit the units we have financed have
continued to sell well with the underlying
loans being satisfactorily repaid. We had
seen an increase in enquires about
housing development finance since the
general election and expected this to
transiate into increased lending here in
2020. The economic shock arising from
COVID-19 has seen this demand fall away
and the extent and speed at which this
returns remains to be seen. The average
TV across the whole Real Estate Finance
portfalio remains less than 60% which
means we are vary well placed to support
customers disrupted by COVID-19 without
materially increasing our risk profile.




The asset finance market continued

to see very aggressive risk appetites and
pricing during 2019. We have allocated
capital to our ather products in 2019 and
allowed Asset Finance lending balances
to contract rapidly to £27.7 miliion as

at 31 December 2019 compared to
£462.8 million a year ago. At these
trajectories these balances will be de
minimis by the end of 2020, We will revisit
our appetite for recommencing new
lending, possibly via inarganic routes,

in light of developments in this market
post COVID-19.

Secure Trust Bank Commercial Finance,
the invoice finance division of the Bank,
had another excellent year and has now
funded over £3.0 billion of customers’
invoices since launch. Exduding the high
street banks, based on customer lending
balances we are now the Sth largest
operator in the invoice finance rmarket
but given the fragmented nature

of the market we have substantial
opportunities to continue to grow very
strongly in this sector. This is evidenced
by net customer lending balances,

which grew 29.3% to £251.7 million at

31 Decamber 2019 {2018: £194.7 million).
This growth would have been more
pronounced but for the insolvencies of two
large steel businesses where we avoided
any credit losses despite lending facilities
of circa £60 million. These are goad
examples of why | believe we have one

of the most capable teams of invoice
financiers in the UK, supported by a
scalable modem {T platiorm. This, coupled
with Group management's experience in
SME and corporate lending, gives STB a
distinct advantage when it comes to
structuring transactions and responding
rapidly to opportunities. Impairment levels
here have been immaterial reflecting very
robust credit managernent disciplines.

Fee-based accounts

As expected, the legacy OneBill product,
which dosed for new business in 2009,
continues to see customer numbers
decline over time, Customer numbers fell
to 17,024 by 31 December 2019 compared
to 18,032 a yaer earlier,

Evolving regulatory and
competitive environment

It has been a very busy year from a
Prudential Regulation and Conduct
Regutation perspective. Regulatory
expectations have continued to become
more demanding in respect of issues such
as operational resilience, financial crime,
regulatory reporting and cyber security.
The Group is continuing to invest and
evolve to ensure it meets these

changing expectations.

The UK's exit from the EU could have far
reaching consequences for the Finance
industry in this country. As a UK-only firm,
we do not expect to be directly impacted
by any trade deal reached but will remain
very alert to developments.

Another significant challange facing the
industry in the next year or so is the
transition from LIBOR to SONIA, which
will be very dernanding for many firms.
Given our very short duration balance
sheet, we have been able to manage our
exposure to LIBOR such that the move to
SONIA is not an issue for us.

The large banks were required to
implement ring-fencing of most of their
UK operations with effect from 1 January
2019. These firms can no longer move
surplus capital and funding around their
operations overseas to maximise marginal
retums. Instead, surplus capital and
funding is effectively trapped in the UK.
The introduction of the ring-fencing has
usefully highlighted the sheer scale of the
advantages enjoyed by these firms in
terms of capital requirements and funding
costs. As a result these firms are able to
offer extremely low priced mortgages to
new custamers in order 1o gain market
share. As I've noted above, 2019 saw the
*hig &' lenders grow their share of the new
mortgage lending market for the first
time since 2009. These firms are clearly
interested in growing in the scale lending
markats in the UK and it seems likely
returns for lenders in martgages will
rerain under prassura.

Total customers

1,998,256

2018: 1,279,783

Employees (Full-time equivalent)

1,017

2018: 886

IMAGE REMOVED

STB employees participating in Wolf Run
to raise funds for charity.

(G

| believe we have one of
the most capable teams
of invoice financiers in
the UK.”

Secure Trust Bark PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 1 3

woday sbBaeag




Strategic Report

Chief Executive's statement

continued

GG

Despite a slowing
economy... we have
been able to continue
to increase customer
lending balances and
profit before tax.”

IMAGE REMOVED

In the short term from a consumer
perspective ever-cheaper mortgages will
be seen as a good thing. However, it is not
difficukt to see how continued competitive
aggression by the largest firms, with the
lowest capital requirements and cheapest
funding costs, will see them continuing to
gain market share at the expense of
smaller firms. So, dbsent of steps to create
a genuinely level playing field, it is not
difficult to envisage a future where UK
banking becomes extremely polarised with
systemic firms on one side holding the vast
rnajotity of the market in the scale lending
sectors, smal! specialist lenders, like the
Group, operating in niches that are
sub-scale for the large firms on the other
side with no medium-sized firms in the
middle ground.

The very tight concentration of UK banking
market share in the hands of a small
number of ‘toc big to fail’ banks was a

key factor in the severity and duration

of the last UK recession. it is therefore
encouraging to note that the regulators
and the new Government recognise that
more needs to be done to safeguard and
promote competitien in UK banking
without making the system weaker.

As | have noted before, post-Brexit the
Government could choose to adopt a
much more proportionate approach to the
regulation of smaller non-intemationally
active banks than is possible today.

Cne option could be for the UK to adopt a
similar approach to that in the US where
there are five tiers of regulation rather than
the largely “one size fits ali’ Capital
Requirements Regulation implementing
the Capital Requirements Directive IV,

in the UK at present.

In summary, whilst the situations above
remain somewhat fluid, | am increasingly
optimistic that key stakeholders will take
the opportunity arising from the UK exit
from the EU to take action to help improve
the competitive positioning of smaller
banks in the UK. | expect the need for a
level competitive playing field will become
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very obvious as the UK navigates the
economic effects of COVID-19. Clearly any
changes in the regulatory regimes that
enable non-systemic banks to offer more
choice to consumers and SMEs to support
economic growth will be a positive
development for the UK and for the
smaller firms.

Strategic priorities

The Group's medium-term strategy
remains unchanged, albeit for obvious
reasons our number one priority is to
support colleagues, customers and
business partners as we navigate the
challenges arising from the COVID-19 virus
outbreak. The benefits of a diversified
business model have been evident over the
last two years. Despite a slowing economy
and a fierce price war in mortgages, the
largest lending market in the UK, we have
been able to continue to increase customer
lending balances and profit before tax by
taking market share in our chosen market
segments, without compromising our
targeted risk parameters.

Once the virus has passed we plan to

refocus the Group on the strategic

priorities of:

1. Organic growth in responsible lending
across a diverse portfolio of
attractive segments

2. Continued investment in broadening our
product offerings to customers

3. Pursuing M&A activity in line with
our strategy

4, Optimising our capital and
liquidity strategies

5. Continuing to target delivery of profit
growth in the medium term to create
sharehoider value

We have been active across all five of
these areas during 2019 and will remain
disciplined and focused here in

the year ahead and beyond.




Current trading and outlook

Notwithstanding the slowing in UK
economic activity in the second half of 2019,
we delivered a strong set of results for the
year. 2020 started well with trading being in
line with management expectations.

Management and the Board are very
carefully menitoring the ongoing trade
negotiations between the UK and EU.
Whilst { believe these parties will agree at
least a limited agreement before the
transitional period expires at the end of
the year, there is the potential for an
economic shock should this not be the
case. We have a range of early warning
indicators {EWIs") and contingency plans
in place in the event that the absence of a
robust trading agreement with the EU
leads to an econcmic downturn,

As noted earlier in this statement, it is
difficult to predict the economic impact

of the COVID-19 outbresk, though it will
clearly be significant. The imposition of the
UK lockdown has materially reduced our
new tending volumes. As a result our short
duration lending portfolio has started to
contract. This contraction s likely to persist
and will be influenced by any revival in
economic activity and our credit risk
appetites which will remain cautious.

In light of the rapidly evolving situation

the Group has undertaken significant
additional stress testing to assess the
potential impact of the erisis on capital

and liquidity positions which remain
healthy. Assessments to date indicate

that short duration of loan books help to
maintain capital and liquidity levels above
regulatory requirements throughout a very
severe recession. Plans are in place which
seek 1o limit the operational and economic
impact of COVID-19 but, given the highly
fluid situation, at this stage it is impossible
to quantify potential impacts with certainty.

In summary, the Group's lending portfolio
is appropriately positioned for the current
conditions and the short duration nature
of the asset portfolio means the Group
can react quickly to both oppartunities
and threats.

The Group entered 2020 on the back of
successful years in 2018 and 2019.

With sufficient capital and liquidity
positions, we are how extremnely focused
on supporting customers, colleagues and
business partners as we navigate the
COVID-19 induced economic challenges,
and are prioritising the safeguard of capital
and liquidity resources over balance sheet
growth at this time. Once the COVID-19
storm has passed we will look to refocus
on the pursuit of our strategic priorities.

Paul Lynam
Chief Executive Officer

6 May 2020
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Strategic Report

Strategy

The Group's strategy is based on three strategic themes. Over 2019, the strategy has developed
as we focus on our near to mid-term cbjectives.

Grow

To maximise shareholder value
through strong lending growth
by delivering great customer
outcomes in both our existing
and new markets.

Sustain

To protect the reputation,
integrity and sustainability

of the Bank for all of our
customers and stakeholders
via prudent balance sheet
management, investment for
growth and robust risk and
operational control. Controlled
growth is one of the top

strategic priorities for the Bank.

Love

To ensure that the fair
treatment of customers is
central to corporate culture
and that the Bank is a highly
rewarding environment for all
staff and one where they can
enjoy progressive careers.

Objactives

& Organic growth in responsible
lending across a diverse portfolio
of attractive segments

s Continued investment in broadening
aur product offerings to customers

* Pursuing M&A activity in line with
our strategy

* Continuing to target delivery of profit
growth in the medium term to create
shareholder value

Objectives
* Optimising our capital and
liquidity strategies

* Delivery of derivatives capability
= Cantrolled growth within risk appetite

* Improving operational resifience

Objectives
» Deliver high levels of
customer satisfaction

s Maintain high levels of
employee satisfaction

* Operate as a responsible business
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Progress made in 2019

New business levels grew for all core
products compared with 2018, resulting
in strong and profitable lending balance
growth, We launched our Fixed Rate ISA
in 2019, increasing the inflow of customer
deposits to fund this lending.

Following the launch of the V12 Mator
Finance dealer stocking product in the first
half of the year, the Motor Transformation
Programme has brought further product
offerings close to fruition.

Progress made in 2019

The balance sheet continued to
strengthen, with improving impairment
performance leading to a significantly
reduced cost of risk.

We put in place a hedging programme
towards the end of the year, using swaps
to manage interest rate exposures and
thereby allowing greater flexibility in
halance sheet growth.

Progress made in 2019

We won a number of awards in 2019 that
show our commitment to customer service,
particularly in respect of Savings as set out
on page 39. The Group has also been
awarded Feefo Gold Trusted Service
Award, their highest accolade, for three
years running and the Customer Service
Excellence award for seven years running.

Based on employee feedback and extemnal
assessment, we were recognised as a UK
Best Workplace™ in May 2019, at the
Great Place to Work® annual awards.




Lending balances

+20.7%

Profit before tax

+11.5%

Compsrisom re to tha 31 Decernber 2018 results

Cost of risk

Reduced from

8% to 1.4%

CET1 ratio

12.7%

{2018: 13.8%}

Comparisons are to the 31 Dacernber 2018 rasults

Feefa ratings

4.7 stars

2018 47 stars)
Employse survey score

79%

Comparisons are to the 31 Decambar 2018 rasuhs

Focus for the year ahead

The onset of the COVID-19 crisis in 2020
has seen a significartt fall in demand as
we entar the second quarter,

While focusing on our existing customers,
we are preparing for continued growth in
our core products once the crisis fifts.

The Motor Transformation Programme
continues and will result in the launch of
additional products, both to consumers
and motor dealers, once market
conditions improve.

Focus for the year ahead

Given the economic conditions
associated with the outbreak, much of our
focus has moved from new business to
managing our existing portfolio, and to
maintaining operational resilience.
Support is being offered to customers by
way of payment holidays and other
governmant initiatives.

Activity continues to widen the funding
base and the digital services available to
Savings customers.

Focus for the year ahead

Throughout the crisis, our main focus wilt
be on supporting colteagues, customers
and business partners. Working practices
have adapted significantly and, in this
new environment, we will continue to
focus an employee engagement,
recognition and well-being.

We continue to invest in our Responsible
Business Strategy, working with Business
in the Community.

See page 54 for further details.
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GRAPHIC REMOVED

Performance measures

The key performance measures, shown
on the following page, in relating to this
theme, show the growth of the lending
book and the margin that we earn on
this lending.

GRAPHIC REMOVED

Performance measures

Measures in respect of the Sustain theme
focus on the control of operational costs,
funding costs and impairment losses.

In addition, funding ratios are measured
to ensure we are holding sufficient
liquidity in relation to our loan books.
Regulatory capital metrics demanstrate
our capacity to continue to grow while
remaining well above reguiatory fimits.

GRAPHIC REMOVED

Performance measures

Our non-financial KPis assess customer
and employee satisfaction, as well as
impacts on the environment.
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Strategic Report

Key performance indicators

The following key performance  The Remuneration Report, starting on
indicators are the primary page B2, sets out how executive pay is

linked to the assessment of key financtal
measures used by management

and non-financial performance metrics.
to assess the performance of Cartain KPls represent alternative
the Group:

performance measures that are not
defined or specified under IFRS.
Definitions of the financial KPls, their
caleulation and an explanation of the

reasons for their use can be found in the
Appendix to the Annual Report on page

189. In the narrative of this financial

review, KPis are identified by being in
bold font. Further explanation of the

non-financial KPls is provided in the
Managing our business responsibly
section on page 52.

Margin ratios

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

Why we maasure this

Shows the overall nat margin earned on
the Group’s loan books, including fees
and commissions

Why we measure this

Shows the interest margin earned on the
Graup’s loan baoks, net of funding casts

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Shows the yield of the Group's loan books,
including fee and commission income

Cost ratios

CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures how efliciently the Group utilises
its cost base to produce incema

Why we measure this

Measures the cost of the Group's customar
deposits and other funding sources

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures how effectively the Group manages

impairmant losses

Jide

A4

Buuaa)

Loans

CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures the adequacy of liquidity by comparing
loan balances to customer deposits

Why we measure this

Shows the growth in the Group's lending
balances, which generate income

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures the adequacy of liquidity by
comparing all funding held by the Group
to loan balances
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Adjusted profit

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Adjusts profit to improve comparability of
information between reporting periods

CHART REMCVED

Why we measure this

Adjusts profit to improve comparability of
information betwean reporting periods

EPS

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Demonstrates the earnings attributable to
each shareholder

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Demonstrates the earnings attributable to each
shareholder, adjusted to imprave comparabtiity
af information batween reporting periods

Return ratios

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures the Group's ability to generate profit
fram the equity availabla to #

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Demonstirates how profitable the Group's assats
are: in generating revenue

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Relates profitability to the capita that the
Group is required to hold

Non-financial KPls

CHART REMOVED

{mark out of 5 based on star rating from
1,754 reviews. 2018: 1,175 reviews)
Why we measure this

Indicator of customer satisfaction with the
Group's products and services

CHART REMOVED

({based on 2019 all staff survey)

Why we measure this

Indicator of emnployee engagement and
satisfaction

CHART REMOVED

(tonnes of carbon dioxide per £1 million
Group intome)

Why we measure this
Indicator of the Group's impact on the
environment.

Please see page 58 for an explanation of the
movernent in this indicator, which is due to 2
change in measurement methodology
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Strategic Report

Financial review

Continuing to deliver
strong profit growth

Adjusted profit reconciliation 20:::.;::: mé.an};o‘:

Interest, fae and commission income 2123 188.6

Interest, fee and commission expense (46.8) (37.0)
Operating income 1655 151.6

Impairment losses (32.8) (32.9)
Operating expenses (94.2) (84.5)
Profit befora tax 38.7 34.7

Adjustments to profit before tax (see below) 24 20

Adjustad profit before tax 411 36.7

Adjusted tax (8.1} {6.8)
Adjusted profit after tax 330 29

Adjusted basic earnings per share (pence) 178.6 1618

Statutory results

Profit before tax 38.7 347

Tax {7.4) 5.4)
Profit after tax 311 283

Basic earnings per share {pence) 168.3 153.2

Adjustments to profit before tax

Fair value amortisation 0.2 03

Transformation costs 1.0 04

Bonus payments 0.1 13

Revaluation deficit . 1.1 -

Adjustments to profit before tax 24 20
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Profit and earnings

We have continued to deliver strong profit
growth, despite the slowing of ecanomic
growth in the second half of the year.
Statutory profit before tax rose to

£38.7 million (2018: £34.7 million) and
adjusted profit before tax rose to

£41.1 million (2018: £36.7 million).

This represents increases of 11.5% and
12.0% respectively.

Consequently, earnings per share rose
from 153.2p per share to 168.3p per share.
On an adjusted earnings per share basis,
the increase was from 161.8p per share to
178.6 per share. Detailed disclosures of
earnings per ordinary share are ghown in
Note 9.

Return measures

We measure adjusted returns on
average assets, average equity and
required equity as set outin the KPIs
table on page 18.

The increase in profit year-on-year led to
an increase in the adjusted retumn on
average equity. The small decrease in the
adjusted retumn on average assets was
primarily due to the significant growth in
assats over 2018 (29.2%). In 2019, the
growth in profit was slighty higher than
the growth of assets over the year (9.2%),
As expanded upon below, the increase in
loans and advances to customers was
greater than the increase in profit, which
led ta a fall in the adjusted return on
required equity.

The components of our profit are analysed
in the following sections.

Interest, fee and
commission income

Imterest, fee and commission income is
made up of interest income, which is
predominantly earned on loans and
advances to customers, and fee and
commission income, which consists
principally of fees from the OneBill,
Commercial Finance, Retail Finance
and Mator Finance products and
commissions earned on debt collection
activities in DMS,

Interest incorne was £191.4 million for 2019,
increasing by 13.1% (2018: £169.2 million),
which was driven by the growth of our

loan books over the year. Loans and
advances to customars increased from
£2,028.9 million to £2,450.1 million over

the year, a 20.8% increase.

Fee and commission income increased by
7.7% to £20.9 million (2018: £19.4 million},

The gross revenus margin reduced from
10.4% to 9.4%. This reflects two factors:
the continued shift of our Consumer
fFinance business to lower risk lower
return lending, the impact of which on
impairments is noted below, and the
change in the overall mix of lending during
the year, While growth in higher margin
Motor Finance and Retail Finance lending
balances exceeded 15% year-on-year,

this was lower than the more significant
growth in the lower risk Business

Finance portfolios.

Interest, fee and
commission expense

Interest, fee and commission expenses
is made up of interest expense, which is
incurred in respect of deposits from
customers, subordinated liabilities,

TFS and index long-term repa {'ILTR’)
borrowings, and fee and commission
expense, comprising mainly fees and
commissions on the Motor product and
commissions paid on debt collection
activities in DMS,

Interest expense was £46.0 million

{2018: £35.5 million for 2018}, an increase
of 29.6%. The cost of funds remained
stable at 2.0% (2018: 2.0%). The increase
in interest expense arises due to the Bank
of England base rate rise during 2018
applying throughout 2019, and interest
on the Tier 2 capital issued in 2018 also
applying throughout the year.

Fee and commission expense was
£0.8 million (2018: £1.5 miillion}). The main
reductions were in DMS and OneBill.

The Group's net interest margin reduced
from 7.4% in 2018 to 6.5%% in 2019,
primarily due to the continued shift to
lower risk lending and the mix of business
referred to above.

Operating income

Operating income increased by 9.2% to
£165.5 million (2018: £151.4 million).

The net revenua margin for 2019 was
7.3% compared with 8.3% for 2018.
The reduction in this margin is due to
the factors referred to abave.

Impairment losses

Impairment losses during the year were
£32.6 million (2018: £32.4 miillion). The very
modest increase in impaimment losses,
given the 20.8% increase in loans and
advances to customers over the year,
demonstrates the continued improvement
of the quality of the loan book. The cost of
visk reduced significantly from 1.8% in
2018 to 1.4%.

This improverment has arisen despite the
fall in used vehicles valuations, noted in the
2019 Interim Report, which had increased
credit loss provisions in respect of the
Motor Firance portfolio. The impairment
charge in respect of Motor Finance
increased by 23.9% from £11.3 million

to £13.8 million, driven in part by these
valuations, on a book which arew by
17.1%. The credit quality of Motor Finance
borrowers continued to improve over
2019. The accelerated recognition of
lassas brought about by the requirements
of IFRS 9, partiaularly for growing books,
has also been offset by the improvement
in performance.

As in previous years, our impaimment
losses are facused almost entirely on the
Consumer Finance businesses, with
negligible losses incurrad in the Business
Finance portfolio.

The provision charge includes the impact
of applying expert credit judgement,
resulting in overlays being added to
provision levels estimated using the
Group's models. A breakdown of the
charge by praduct is shown in Note 3.
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Further analysis of the Group's loan book
and its credit risk exposures is provided in
Notes 12,13,14 and 34.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by 11.5%
to £94.2 million (2018: £84.5 million).

This growth is proportionately lower than
the increase in our lending balances as
efiiciencies have been derived from
increasing scale. Investrnent in lending
businesses to support growth and in the
Savings team to widen the product and
digital offering have continued. We have
also continued to invest in our compliance
and risk functions, particularly in respect of
the prevention of financial crime, and in

IT infrastructure.

The Group’s cost to income ratio
increased from 55.7% in 2018 to 56.9%.
Hawever, the ratio for 2019 is impacted
by two factors: one-off costs of £1.1 million
in respect of the purchase of our Yorke
House property in the year; and a change
in accounting treatment for DMS which
has dassified £2.1 million of improvement
in credit quality as an impairment gain,
whereas in 2018 the equivalent
improvement was treated as income.
Without these two factors, the cost to
income ratio would have improved
slightly to 55.5%, with the cost of risk
moving to 1.5%.

Derivatives and
hedge accounting

Over 2019 we developed interest rate
hedging capability and entered into a
portfolia of derivativas, in crder to manage
intevest rate risk. We adopted hedge
accounting in order to mitigate the
potential profit and loss volatility arising
from mavements in the fair value of
derivatives. The Group's hedge accounting
policy is described in Note 1,

Interest income and interest expense
arising from the derivatives are disdosed
in Note 4.

Taxation
The effective adjusted tax rate rase to 19.7%, which is higher than the currently enacted
rate of 19%:
2019 2019 2018 2018
Effactive Effectiva Effective Effactive
adjustad statutory adjusted statutory
TAX rate tax rate tax rate tazrate
£emiition £million £mitkon £million
Tax 8.1 7.6 48 64
Profit before tax 41.1 38.7 387 34.7
Effective rate (%} 19.7% 19.6% 18.5% 184%

The tax charga reflects Sank Corparation Tax Surchrge of 8% on laxable profits of Securs Trust Bank PLC in extess of £25.0 million.
The effactiva rata in the yeer was also increasad by a deferred tax debit of £0.2m arking from a reessessment of tha rates that tha
deferred tax asset on the IFRS # wansition adjustmant will reverse out at ovar the next eight years. Future effective tax rates for the
Group will ba sensitive to the level of prajected profit In the Bank and in other Graup companies as well as the lovel of comparatan
1ax, The tax charge reflacts the enacied reduction in the corporation tax rate to 17% on 1 April 200, The announcement in the
Budgat to reverse this mduction will cause the deferred tax saset 10 intrense by £0.7 million, Cunent forecasts show the effective tax
1ate it expectad to inereaze by up 1a 5%, given the reveasal of the comoration tax rate reduction, avar the forecast period as the

afled of the banking surcharge becames move significant.

Distributions to shareholders

Given the uncertainty in UK and global
markets arising from the COVID-19
outbreak, the Directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for 2019,
An interim dividend of 20 pence per share
was paid on 27 September 2019. The total
dividend {or 2018 was 83 pence per share.
The Group's dividend policy is set out on
page 106.

Summarised balance sheet

Balance sheet

Our assets increased by 9.8% to
£2,682.8 million, This was driven by the
20.8% growth in our loan portfolios,
with levels of cash and debt securities
tower than at the end of 2018.

Liabilities increased by 10.0% to

£2,428.7 million. Deposits from customers
e aaed by 2.3% and other funding by
17.1%, the latter primarily due to the

2019 2018
E£milion Emilion
Assets

Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7
Debt securities 25.0 149.7
Loans and advances to banks 48.4 448
Loans and advances 1o customers 2,450.1 20289
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 -
Other assets 52.6 51.2
2,682.8 24443

Liabilities
Due to banks 308.5 2635
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 1,.847.7
Tier 2 subordinated liabilities 50.6 50.4
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 -
COther liabitities 48.7 456
2,428.7 2,207.2

22 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019




raising of ILTR borrowings towards the
end of 201%. Further details are provided
in respect of this funding in the

sections below.

Loans and advances
to customers

Loans and advarnces to customers include
secured and unsecured loans and finance
lease receivables. The compoasition of the
loan book remains broadly consistent with
2018, with the Consumer Finance book
being approximately 49% of total lending
{2018: 49% including Consumer
Mortgages), and the Business Finance
book being approximately 51%

(2018: 51%).

Loan originations in the year, being the
total of new loans and advances to
customers entered into during the year,
increased by 12.0% to £1,413.0 million
{2018: £1,261.9 miflion). As in 2018,

over half of the new business volume
{£716.6 million) was generated by the
Retail Finance business.

Further analysis of loans and advances to
customers, including a breakdown of the
arrears profile of our loan books, is
provided in Notes 12,14 and 34,

Debt Securities

Debt Seaurities consist solely of sterling
UK Govemnment treasury bills (T-bills").
The number of T-bilts held reduced
significantly over the year, from

£149.7 million to £25 million, the higher
level no longer being required as
collateral against TFS drawings with the
Bank of England.

Due to banks

At 31 Dacember 2018, the amount due to
banks consisted solely of drawings from
the TFS. Towards the end of 2019, we
added to this funding with £45 mitlion of
ILTR. This serves to provide the Group with
an additional inexpensive funding buffer
that can be used to fund new business.

Deposits from customers

Customer deposits include term, notice
and sight deposits, as well as the OneBill
product. A Fixed Term Cash ISA was
added to the product set in 2019.
Customer deposits grew by 9.3% during
the year to close at £2,020.3 million, to
fund increasing lending balances. As set
out in the Capital and Liquidity section on
page 24, we have managed down our
funding balances in relation to lending
balances. Deposit growth is therefore
significantly lower than the growth in
lending assets over 2019.

Tier 2 subordinated liabilities

Tier 2 subordinated liabilities represent
two £25 million tranches of 4.75% Fixed
Rate Callable Subordinated Notes,
including interest accrued. Further details
of the note issuances are provided in Note
28. The notes qualify as Tier 2 capital.

New accounting standards

IFRS 16 'Leases’ became effective for the
periad beginning on 1 January 2019 and
was adopted by the Group from that point.
The standard replaces |AS 17 'Leases’

and related interpretations, and sets

out principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract:

the lessee and lessor. Adoption of the
standard has changed how the Group
accounts for a number of its property
leases and motor vehicle leases, where the
Group is the lessee. The standard requires
such leases to be recognised on the
balance sheet as ‘the lease liability’ with
the right to use the underlying asset

(‘the right-of-use asset) also recognised.
We have elected to recognise the initial
impact of implementing IFRS 16 through
the opening batance of retained eamings
and have not restated comparatives.
Further detail is provided in Note 1.
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Capital and liquidity

2019 2018
£milllon £millian
Capital
CETY capital 268.0 2518
Total Tier 2 capital 50.0 45.7
Total capital 318.0 2975
Proposed dividend - 11.8
Total capital after proposed dividend 318.0 285.7
Total Risk Exposure 2,118.1 1,824.6
2019 2018
% %
CRD IV ratios - excluding proposed dividend
CET1 capital ratio 12.7 13.8
Total capital ratio 15.0 16.3
Leverage ratio 2.8 100
CRD IV ratios — after proposed dividend
CET1 capital ratio 12.7 132
Total capital ratio 15.0 157
Leverage ratio 9.8 2.5
Typical risk weighting
Risk weighting %
Standard on-balance sheet risk weighting
Real Estate Finance: residential investment 35
Real Estate Finance: commercial investment 100
Real Estate Finance: development* 150
Commercial Finance** 100
Retall Finance 5
Motor Finance 75
Debt Management 100
35

Consumer Mortgages {up to 80% LTV)

The CET1 capital ratio is the ratio of CET1
capital divided by the Totaf Risk Exposure.
The total capital ratio is total capital
divided by Total Risk Exposure, Figures for
2019 and 2018 comparatives are both
presented to reflect IFRS 9 transitional
rules, details of which are provided below,

The Basel i leverage ratio is defined by
the Capital Requirements Regulation as
Tier 1 capital divided by on and off balance
sheet asset exposure values, expressed as

* Tha Group has enterad into an ENABLE Guarantee with the Betish Busi Bank, wh

a percentage. The UK leverags ratio
framework sets a minimum ratio of 3.25%.
As shown in the table above, our leverage
ratio remains comfortably ahead of the
minimum requirement.

We have applied the IFRS 9 transitionat
rules. For 2019, this allows 85% (2018: 95%)
of the initial IFRS 9 transition adjustment, net
of attributable deferred tax, 10 be added
back to eligible capital, Futher information
is provided in Note 37.

by the UK G

fea, When the Guarantes is triggered it vall reduce the net risk weighting applisd to Real Estate Finance development lending.
* Alowar rlsk weighting than 100% ks spplied to Cammarcial Finance lending where the customer is » small to medium enteifrise dus 1o Mpphing an "SME factor’,
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The Group's regulatary capital is
divided into:

» CET1 which comprises shareholders’
funds, after adding back the IFRS ¢
transition adjustment and deducting
intangible assets, bath of which are net
of attributable deferred tax

Tier 2 capital, which is solely
subordinated debt net of unamortised
issue costs, capped at 25% of the
capital requirement

Capital resources increasad over 2019,
from £297.5 million to £318.0 million,

This was driven by retained earnings
growth, with the Group's subordinated
notes issued in 2018 also becoming fully
eligible as Tier 2 capital. The year-on-year
reduction in the IFRS 9 adjustment
restricted the increase in capital resources.

The Group has continued to invest capital
10 support lending growth. This investment,
plus the impact of the IFRS 9 adjustment,
results in lower CET1 and total capital
ratios at the end of 2019 compared with
the end of 2018, Ratios remain ahead of
regulatory requirements,

The Group cperates the standardised
approach to credit risk, whereby risk
weightings are applied to our on and off
balance sheet exposures. The weightings
applied are those stipulated in the Capital
Requirements Regulation.

Tha Group's Individual Capital Adequacy
Assassment Process {TCAAPY includes a
summary of the capital required to mitigate
the identified risks in its regulated entities
and the amount of capital that the Group
has available. All reguiated entities within
tha Group have complied during the year
with all of the externally imposed capital
requirements to which they are subject.

The Total Capital Requirement, set by the
PRA, indudes both the calculated
requirement derived using the
standardised approach and the additional
capital derived in conjunction with the
ICAAP. In addition, capital is held to cover
genaric buffers set at a macro-economic
leve! by the PRA. These buffers have risen
significantly in recent years, with the
raquirement at 31 December 2019 being
£74.0million.

vifl taks an & portion of the risk on a partfoho of laans to smalier Businesa in retum for a




Capital requirements

2019 20:8

£million £million

Total Capital Requirement 212.0° 182.7

Capital conservation buffer 52.9 34.2

Countercyclical capital buffer 21.1 18.2

Total 286.0 235.1
Liquid assets

2019 2018

£millicn fmiion

Aaa - Aa3 130.8 3194

Al-A3 3.8 39.7

Baa2 395 -

Unrated 5.1 5.4

Liquidity exposures 179.2 364.2

Management of capital

Our capital management policy is
focused on optimising shareholder value
over the long term. Capital is allocated
to achieve targeted risk adjusted

retums whilst ensuring appropriate
surpluses are held above the minimum
regulatory requirements.

Key factors influencing the management of
capital include:

» the level of buffers set by the PRA

* estimated credit losses calcutated using
IFRS 9 methodology, and the applicable
transitional rules

* new business volumes
* the product mix of new business

Thesa last two factors are actively
managed by the Group in order to balance
growth, profitability and conservation of
capital, The variation in the risk weightings
applied to our key lending assets, and our
willingness and ability to adapt our lending
volumes and mix, provide significant
flexibility in our management of capital.
The recent announcements from the PRA,
tegarding the level of the countercyclical
capital buffer have been factored into

our plans,

Liquidity

We continued to hold significant surplus
liquidity over the minimum requirements
throughaut 2019. High Quality Liquid Assets
{HQLA) are held in the Bank of England
Reserve Account and UK Treasury Bills.
Levels of HQLA reduced over the year,

as we introduced more sophisticated
analysis of liquidity requirements for new and
existing products, allowing funding levels

to be set on a more efficient basis. As a
consequence, total liquid resources reduced
from £354.2 million to £179.2 million.

The Group uses a number of measures to
manage liquidity. These include:

* the Overall Liquidity Adequacy
Requirement ({OLAR'), which is the
Board's view of the Group's liquidity
needs as set out in the Board approved
intemal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
Process (ILAAPY)

* the Liquidity Coverage Ratio {1CR?,
which is a regulatory measure that
assesses net 30-day cash outflows as a
proportion of HQLA

+ total funding ratio, as defined in the
Appendix to the annual report

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

* for LCR purposes the HQLA excludes UK
Treasury Bills which are encumbered to
provide collateral as part of the Group’s
Term Funding Scheme with the Bank of
England. On this basis, the HOLA at
31 December 2019 was £946.4 million
{31 December 2018; £240.8 million)

We continue to manage liquidity on a
conservative basis by holding HQLA and
utilising predominantly retail funding from
customer deposits. Details of how our
savings product set and digital proposition
have developed are provided in the
Savings section of the Strategic Report

on page 36.

Secure Trust Bank is a participant in the
Bank of England’s Sterling Money Market
Operations under the Sterling Monetary
Framework and has drawn £263.0 million
under the TFS, this level being unchanged
from that reported at 31 December 2018,
Tawards the end of 2019 we added

£45 million of ILTR.

We have no liquid asset exposures outside
of the United Kingdom and nc amounts
that are either past due or impaired.
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Business
Finance

Real Estate Finance
Supports SMEs in providing finance principally for
residential development and residential investment.

Commercial Finance
Provision of invoice discounting and factoring to
UK businesses.

Asset Finance
Funding to purchase commercial assets, currently
closed to new business.

‘ 2019 Performance

! Strong growth, focused on Real Estate Finance and
Commercial Finance, has continued to generate increasing
revenues with very low impairment losses.

2019 Total Business Finance Lending

- £1,241.6m

2018: £1,027.3 rnﬂhon

‘ Increase in Business Finance Lending

20.9%

2018:24.7%
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Your trust has enabled us to save the company,
the jobs and protect your position too.”

Garry Wilson
Managing Partner, Endless llp, Commercial Finance partnar

IMAGE REMOVED

PAPA’s
got a brand
new bank

The owners of L ondon-based PAPA
Architects have realised their ambitions
to build an investment portfolio, with a
£7million loan from Secure Trust Bank's
Real Estate Finance team.

QOur development to investment product
allowed PAPA to build and retain a 64-unit
student accomymodation scheme at
Chesnut Road, Tottenham.

Andrew Paps, Managing Director at PAPA,
said: "As architects most of our work is for
third party developers. We have a
long-hald ambition to develop out our
own schemes and build an investment
portfolio and it's great to realise this at
Chesnut Road.”

Matthew-Blaine Young, Relationship
Director at STB REF, said:

“Cur development to investment product
is popular with developers who wish to
retain assets within their own portfolio.

This product gives borrowers term
certainty, as they don't have to find another
lender once the development is complete
and can also benefit from cost savings

on fees.”
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Real Estate Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

What we do:
Residential Development

We lend to enable the development of
new build property, commercial to
residential conversions (incdluding those
with permitted development rights) and
refurbishment projects.

Residential Investment

We lend on portfolios of residential
property where the rental income will
repay the underlying berrowing over a
fixed term periad. This excdudes the
regulated buy-to-let mortgage sector.

Other lending

We have limited appetite for ather
commercial lending (either development
or investrment} and have limited exposure
to mixed development schemes.

How we do it

Financing s typically provided over a
term of up to five years with conservative
loan-to-value criteria, with a 60% Loan to
Gross Development Value to residential
house builders, More restrictive policies
are implemented from time-to-time as
required. Our Loan ta Gross Development
Value/Loan to Value ratios continue to
average below 60% across all lending
areas. We have no significant exposure to
any one property scheme or developer.

The Real Estate Finance team is staffed by
experienced bankers with proven property
lending expertise. The team provides full
support to customers and introducers over
the life of the products.

2019 performance

We have continued to grow our Real
Estate Finance business, with balances up
25% in 2019, generating a 19% increase
in revenue. The rate of growth slowed in
2019 due to an increase in repayments in
the year, coupled with the impact of

the change in mix of the book, with
development lending reducing to 25%

of the book during 2019.

The credit quality of the book has however
remained strong, with no crystallised
impairments. In addition, we have been
able to successfully manage two cases
with full repayment. The overall LTV of

the portfolio has also remained stable,
reflecting the cautious approach taken by
the business in 2019 due to the uncertain
market conditions, The effect of the above
has been to see no increase in impairment
provisions in the year,

Looking forward

The business remains focused on effective
risk management, and ensuring that we
continue to support our customers,

Qur experienced team remains able to
manage opportunities and threats in a
timely manner. We will manage our
appetite in respect of growth opportunities
1o reflect market conditions.
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Commercial Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

(G

Secure Trust Bank took the
time to understand our
business mode! and was
able to take a flexible and
common sense approach to
the lending criteria.”

David Robinson
CFO, The Lakes Distillery

What we do

Commercial Finance specialises in
providing a full range of invoice financing
solutions 1o UK businesses induding
invoice discounting and factoring.

invoice discounting services provide
access to funding and release typically up
to 90% of the value of qualifying invoices,
in confidence and allowing dlients to stay
in control of sales ledger management.




Factoring services, where the sales ledger
management is passed on to the Group,
may also provide access to funding of
typically up to $0% of the value of
qualifying invoices and often results

in the Group managing credit control,
cash allocation, statement and reminder
letter distribution.

Other assets can also be funded either long
or short term and for a range of loan-to-
value ratios alongside these facilities.

How we do it

Commerdal Finance complements the
broader SME lending proposition which
has been developed by the Group.

The business also provides SME
commercial owner occupiers with finance
to buy the propenty they trade from in
conjunction with other financing fadfities.

We have built 2 strong team of proven
business development, credit and
operational professionals who have
delivered a robust and compliant
operational model.

2019 performance

We have continued to grow the
Cornmercial Finance business, with
lending balances again increasing
significantly by 29% in 2019, generating

a 25% increase in revenue. The close
management and prudent approach to
credit risk has ensured that where client
administrations have occurred the related
collect out fees have far exceeded any
actual impairment losses, which are much
lower than industry average, well below
0.1% of lending balances.

Whilst the cost base is proporticnally very
low, the regional presence of the business
was extended in the year with key recruits
across its Manchester, Leeds, Birmingham
and London offices.

Looking forward

The success of the implementation of the
regional model seen in tha year will be
built on in 2020. Whilst we plan to expand
the product base to further penetrate the
existing market we operate in, the
immediate focus is on the impact of
COVID-19, The close management of our
existing dient base will be key and we are
already supporting businesses via
Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan
Scheme lending.

2019 performance

Following the dedision to cease new
business in 2018, the portfolio has
continued to run off with iending balances
continuing to reduce in 2019, down by
56% against 2018, and 36% in H2 2019,
This reduction in balances has then led

to the drop-off of income seen in 2019
with income being 52% lower in 2019.
The overall contribution from the business
has however been aided by lower
impairment levels, with the charge
reduding by £1.5 million (68%) in 2019,
reducing the cost of risk by 55 bps.

This reflects the continued robustness of
the portfolio and the close management

Asset Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

of collections,
CHART REMOVED Looking forward
We ceased originating Asset Finance
business in 2018. We expeact the book
to continue to reduce in 2020,
CHART REMOVED
What we do

The Asset Finance business provides
funding to support SME businesses in
acquiring commercial assets, such as
building equipment, commercial vehides
and manufacturing equipment.

How we do it

The Asset Finance business is aperated
via a joint venture with Haydock, a well-
established asset finance company
operating across the UK, Following the
change in ownership of Haydock in
January 2018, we have ceased writing
new business through the joint venture,
although Haydodk continues to provide a
full business process outsourcing service
to the Group in relation to the portfolio
we fund.

The current portfalio reflects hire purchase
and finance lease arrangements with terms
of up to five years,
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Consumer
Finance

Retail Finance
Retail Finance includes lending products for in-store
and online retailers to enable consumer purchases.

Motor Finance

Finance is arranged through motor dealerships, brokers and
internet intraducers and involves fixed rate,

fixed term hire purchase arrangements on used cars.

Debt Managers (Services) Limited
Debt collection for the Group and external clients.

Consumer Mortgages
Lending te individuals to purchase a property or remortgage
their current property, currently closed to new business.

2019 Performance

Continued growth, driving revenue with well controlled
impairments, as the Motor Transformation Programme
starts to deliver benefits.

2019 Total Consumer Finance Lending

£1,200.9m

2018: £590.4 rnillion

Increase in Consumer Finance Lending

21.3%

2018: 30.5% .
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Customer
Testimonial

*Owerall the V12 dealer funding platform
has substantially helped me grow my
business, with a 25% increase in revenue
within the last 6 months of having the
facility actioned. During the COVID-19
lockdown, | was quite wortied on how V12
as a funding pariner would help me
through this uneven economic disaster,
however they came out great, all capital
repayments were placed on hold until
further notice with only interest
repayments due. In all fairness without the
support from V12 and their care package
in place, 1 would have found it very difficult,
but they were great. Qur account manager
was on hand and only a phone call away to
help with any issues.

1 look forward to continuing to grow my
business with V12 once the COVID-19
lockdown has finally come to an end.”

Umare Malik
Managing Director, Auto Motion
Peterborough Ltd




IMAGE REMOVED

(G

A very fast and very smooth service.
| would recommend V12 and | would
definitely use them again.”

Customer feedback from Feefo on V12 Retzil Finance, 2019
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Retail Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMQVED

CHART REMOVED

(343

Always brilliant to deal with.
Quick and reliable, been
using V12 for a few years.

5 stars all day.”

Customer feedback from Trustpilot
on V12 Retail Finance, 2019

What we do

The Retail Finance business, branded as
V12, provides unsecured, prime lending
products to the UK customers of its retal
partners to fadlitate the purchase of a wide
range of consumer products across
in-store, mail order and online channels.
This business is driven by V12 Retail
Finance, which was acquiredin 2013 and
has provided finance in cooperation with
its retail partners for more than 20 years.
The V12 point of sale system is used by the
Group's retail partners and Retail Finance is
administered from the V12 offices in Cardiff.

Retail Finance products are unsecured,
fixed rate and fixed term loans, to UK
residents with a good credit history, of up

to 84 months in duration with a standard
maximum loan size of £25,000, The average
new loan is for £1,100 over a 24-month term.

The finance products are either interest
bearing or have promotional credit
subsidised by retailers, allowing custorners
to spread the cost of purchases into more
affordable monthly payments,

How we do it

We operate an onfine e-commerce service
to retailers, providing finance to customners
of those retailers. The online processing
system allows customers to digitally sign
their credit agreements, thereby speeding
up the pay-out process, and removing the
need to handle and copy sensitive
personal documents through electronic
identity verification.

Retail Finance serves retailers across a
broad range of sectors including cycle,
music, fumniture, outdoor/leisure,
electronics, dental, jewellery, horne
improvements and football season tickets.

We provide finance to customers of a
large number of retailers induding
household names such as Beaverbrooks,
Watches of Switzeriand, DFS, Sofology
and Watchfinder.

2019 performance

Growth across each of the three largest
sub-matkets for the Retail Finance business
{sports and leisure, fumiture and jewellery)
has resulted in new gross lending volumes
increasing to £716.6 million, an increase of
10% on the previous year. This has driven a
further significant increase in lending assets,
which during the year rose to £688.9 million
{December 2018: £597 0 miilion). Overall
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growth has been achieved through a
combination of gaining increased market
share and sector growth.

A cornbination of continued investment in
technology, focus on customer experience
and retailer needs has led to us increasing
market share from 6.8% in 2018 to 8.0%%
in 2019 {based on Finance & Leasing
Association new business values within
retail store and online credit).

Despite margin pressures from new
entrants to the market, the growth in
lending assets has increased revenue by
19% 1o £74.7 mitlion (2018: £62.8 million).

Improverments in credit quality have limited
impairment losses to £19.8 million

(2018: £19.3 miillion) despite the significant
loan bock growth.

Customer feedback, measured by Feefo,
provided the business with a consistent
score of 4.8 out of 5 for the year, based on
1,000 reviews (2018: 4.8 based on 400
reviews). Customer feedback, measured by
Trustpilot, provided the business with a five
star rating based on 1,200 reviews.

Looking forward

During 2020 we envisage reduced

volumes across the majority of retail sectors
impacted by COMID-19 due to socdial
distancing rules which have led to the
dosure of shops and placed restrictions on
some warehouse and manufacturing
facilities. Our online e-comrmerce service to
retailers mitigates the impact of COVID-19
in many sectors, espedially cyde, outdoor/
leisure and electronics.

We will continue to invest in initiatives to
further enhance systems capabilities,

to ensure that quality of senvice to both
retailers and customers is maintained or
improved as well as generating operational
efficiencies. This includes the rollout of
improved telephony systems across
customer facing staff and enhancements
to the customer application process.

This will provide a slicker custamer joumey
by recognising returning customers of

V12 Retail Finance in order to reduce
customer time inputting their details.

V12 has been awarded the Feefo Platinum
Award in the Feefo 2020 Annual Trusted
Service Awards. The platinum award
recognises businesses that have achieved
three consecutive years of Gold Trusted
Service ratings of 4.5 or higher.




Motor Finance

Lending performance
V prior years
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Quick, easy, smooth transaction
with excellent customer service
and communication. Highly
recommend.”

Customer feedback from Trustpilot
on V12 Motor Finance, 2019

What we do

Our Motaor Finance business began
lending in 2008 under the Moneyway
brand and provides hire purchase lending
products to a wide range of customers
including those who might otherwise be
declined by other finance companies.

This helps our customers to gain the
freedom and flexibility that motoring gives
to their lives as well as helping intraducers
to sell more cars.

In 2019 the Motor Finance business
launched a new brand, V12 Vehide
Finance, and a new Used Vehicle Stocking
product in partnership with Aston Barclay
Auctions. The product allows dealers to
finance vehicles on their forecourt which
have been purchased through Aston
Barclay Auctions.

Motor Finance agreements are secured
against the vehicle being financed.

We ceased writing new business in the
subprime market and predominantly lend
to finance the purchase of volume
franchise used cars in the near-

prime market.

How we do it

We distribute our Motor Finance products
via UK mator dealers, brokers and internet
introducers. New dealer relationships are
established and managed by our UK-wide
Motor Finance sales team with all
introducers subject to a strict vetting
policy, which is reviewed on a regular basis.

The technology platform used allows us to:
receive applications online from
introducers; provide an automated
decision; facilitate document production
through to pay-out to dealer; and manage
in-life loan accounts.

Motor lending is administered in Solihull,
however the UK motor dealers and brokers
are UK-wide.

2019 performance

Our business has continued to focus on
natrowed credit parameters in order to
reduce potential future impairment losses.
New business volumes in 2019 reflect
lower margins but higher credit quality.
New business volumes from consumers
increased from £141.3 million in 2018 to
£178.2 miillion for 2019, Revenue increased
slightly, by 2.5%, refiecting the reduction in
margin for higher credit quality business.

The impairment charge for the period has
increased from £11.3 million in 2018 to
£13.8 million in 2019. The level of charge
was impacted by the reduction in used
vehicle prices seen in 2019. Overall credit
quality has improved 2s noted above,
and the probability of default of the
portfolio has reduced significantly since
the implementation of IFRS 9 at tha
beginning of 2018.

Following the launch of the new Used
Vehicle Stocking product in July 2019,
there were £1.5 million of lending balances
in respect of this product at the end

of 2019.

Looking forward

Restrictions impaosed during the COVID-19
lockdown have resulted in used vehicle
sales, and as a result new used vehicdle
finance, largely halting. The Motor Finance
business has therefore taken the dedsion
1o cease funding new agreements during
this period and to focus on senvicing
existing customaers.

lLooking forward we retain the view that a
dear opportunity exists to deliver ptime
and near-prime products and services in
the Motor lending market for an innovative
and technology-led funding provider.

Our Motor Finance business will re-enter
the near prime credit market and will also
be expanding into the prime credit market.
A programme of work is underway to
deliver a new platform and business
transformation through 2019/2020 with
£4.5 million already invested since the
programme started in 2018, As part of this
programme we are enhancing system
capabilities to deliver a broader range of
products. Planned product development
includes launch of a PCP and Prime Hire
Purchase product and technology
integrations with a panel of auction
partners. We have also integrated with a
leading dealer management system
provider in the independeant dealer space,
to make dealing with our Motor Finance
business an easy process. Overall, these
invastments are expected to improve the
credit quality of the portfolio, drive
business growth and deliver stable
earnings. Alongside these initiatives, we
will continue to foeus on the nearprime
market sector through our existing
introducer channels.
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Business review

Consumer Finance continued

Debt Managers (Services)
Limited

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMQVED

(3G

Made me feel completely at
ease and feel like a huge weight
was lifted.”

Customer feadback from DMS
customer, 2019

What we do

DMS is the Group's debt collection
business. DMS collects debt on behalf of
a range of clients as well as for Group
companies. It also selectively invests in
purchased debt portfolios from fellow
subsidiary undertakings and external
third parties. :

How we do it

Debt Managers {Services) offers three
senvices across credit management and in
order to meet the needs of its clients:

 Business process outsourcing allows

DMS to assist in the performance of

early arrears accounts on behalf

of dients

Contingent collection allows a dient to

place accounts for DMS to manage

those accounts in its own name

* Debt purchase allows DMS to acquire
accounts and choose how to liquidate
those accounts over a period of 10 years

We aim to provide all customers with the
best possible customer service by
recognising every customer is different.

All customer facing staff receive training
on how to effectively use industry
recognised techniques such as TEXAS and
IDEA to help identify signs of vulnerability
and on how to use tailored signposting
relevant to customers’ circurmnstances.
Customers that need additional support
are managed by a specialist Customer
Care Team. We work dosely with debt
charities such as StepChange, Payplan and
Christians Against Poverty and a range of
other third parties including the
Samaritans, MIND and Marie Curie to
ensure that customers recaive an
appropriate service.
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2019 performance

2019 saw significant levels of growth for
DMS due to the entering of new target
markets assisted by leveraging its
commitment to customer service and new
technologies., Lending balances maore than
doubled which delivered strong revenue
and profit growth in 2019.

In the year, performance of externally
purchased portfolios continued to be very
strong, with actual collections far exceeding
those forecast at the pricing stage.
Consequently an impairment credit of

£2.1 million was taken, recognising

that outperformance.

Looking forward

The start of 2020 was very positive as a
result of the high lending balance brought
forward, This, together with excellent client
and custorner feedback, will help us to
continue to develop the businass and
support our custorners throughout the
challenging period ahead.




Consumer Mortgages

Revenue and lending
petrformance vs prior years

CHART REMOVEDA’

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

Consumer mortgages represants fixed
rate mortgages provided to individuals,
to purchase a property or remortgage
their current property. We ceased
originating new consumer mortgages in
the first quarter of 2019. The pipeline of
new business was fulfilled in the first half
of the year and balances at the end of
year were £105.9 miltion (31 December
2018: £84.7 million),
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GRAPHIC REMOVED

Savings

The Group continues to attract funding primarily via
retail savings, offering competitive, simple products
available online and serviced through a highly
commended internet banking service.

Savings includes personal and business customers
depositing in access, notice, fixed term bond and
fixed term ISA products with associated balances
of around £2 billion.

2019 Performance

Strong customer and balance growth within a controlled
risk appetite, introducing new products to move to lower
long-term cost of funds.

2019 Total customer deposits

£2,020.3m

2018; £1,847.7 million

Increase in total customer deposits

9.3%

2018: 24.6%
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IMAGE REMOVED

(33

Offered an excellent service, top
rate for my money and keep me
regularly infformed of my investment.

15

Customer feedback from Feefo on Deposits, 2019

IMAGE REMOVED

Savings
customer

balances top
£2 billion

The Group achieved £2 billion deposited

in Savings balances in 2019, a substantial
achievement post the launch of its new

IT platiorm only three years ago to
introduce new digital services and enhance
operational efficiency and controls.

The achievernent comes alongside the
launch of new products, induding shorter
dated notice accounts, Fixed Rate Cash
ISAs and soon, Access Accounts.

This ensures the Group has access to some
of the largest liquidity pools in the UK and
significantly diversifies its addressable UK
savings market.

Director of Barking and Marketing, James
Paterson, said: *Savings deposited with
our organisation reached an all-time high
this year. This is a significant milestone for
STB Group because the growth of cur
Savings business is also a reflection on the
success of our lending businesses.

“The news follows the launch of our new
products, including Fixed Rate Cash |SAs,
as well as numerous customer award wins,
so this is continued evidence that the
efforts of the savings team are reaping
success. These are achievements the

whole team can be proud oft*
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Business review

Savings continued

Savings balances vs prior years What we do

We offer a range of savings, including
simple and straightforward Notice and
Fixed Bond accounts. We extended our
product offering in 2019, faunching our
first Fixed Term Cash iSA in Aprif and
developing an Access Account for launch
in 2020. These products are all available to
UK-based individuals saving with 2
minimum deposit of £1,000. We have ako
historically offered business accounts
priced to reflect the associated costs

and risks,

CHART REMOVED

All products offered by the Group are
covered under the UK Finandal Services
CHART REMOVED Compensation Scheme, up to the
specified limit of £85,000. The full suite of
accounts are made consistently available
and are priced in line with our ongoing
funding needs, allowing individuals to hold
a maximum balance of £1 million, and

£2 million for joint and business accounts.

In addition to savings, we continue to
CHART REMOVED service OnaBill for existing customers;

this has been closed 1o new customers
since 2009. This service is designed to help
customers with household budgeting.

For a monthly fee, details of annual bills
are aggregated and calculated into a fixed
weekly or monthly schedule. This enables
customers to spread the cost of their bills
thraughout the year, accessing direct debit
discounts as weli as support in liaising

CHART REMOVED with providers.

How we do it

The continued approach of not cross-

subsidising loss-making products with

G G profitable ones, maintaining a stable
funding base and utilising an operational
mode! based on digital self-service rather

Easy to set up, excellent rates than a branch “em;‘;k- enabl;'s Uhs t°|°ffef

. . " competitive rates and attract high volumes
and website easy to navigate. of deposits quickly, from a broad range
of customers.

Customer feedback from Feefo on
Daposits, 2019
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We aim to maintain a full suite of savings
praducts at all imes, covering Access,
14 tc 180 day Natice, 1 to 7 year Fixed
Bonds and Fixed Rate ISAs. This enables
us to access most of the UK personal
savings market and compete for significant
liquidity pools, achieving a lower marginal
cost with the volume, mix and the rates
offered optimised to the demand of aur
funding needs.

Product terms and rates broadly match the
term and tenor of customer savings to the
desired maturity profiles of the Group,
which are primarily determined by the
interest rates and terms offered on loans
and advances to customers, This strategy
aims to help mitigate maturity
transformation and interest rate risks.

All of the above provides us with a funding
profile which gives additional finandial
security, diversification and flexibility to
the Group.

As well 25 attracting and retaining
customers with competitive rates of
interest, custorners choose us based on
our finandal standing, independent
customer review scores and award-winning
digital services and UK-based operation
with high standards of cyber and
operational security.

2019 performance

Following the implementation of the core
banking platform in late 2017, and positive
results in 2018, 100% of our new customers
now apply for a savings product online and
all ragister for Internet Banking as part of
the process, demonstrating an important
shift in operational efficiency. Indeed, over
38,000 customers are now registered for
Intemet Banking, representing 81% of the
total custorner base.




Savings batances are growing at a strong
pace. In 2019, we grew our retail savings
by £172.6 million, an increase of 9% -
equivalent to nearly £5.50 every second.
Over 58% of our customers chose to
reinvest their savings into Secure Trust
Bank retention product offerings, equating
to almost £280 million. At year-end, the
total balance of savings customer deposits
was over £2 billion, £540 million of which
was received during the year across aver
40,000 deposit transactions.

Following the launch of short-dated Notice
Accounts in 2018, balances increased
throughout 2019 whilst we also launched
our Fixed Term Cash ISA and developed
our Access Account. The [SA contributed
to the largest monthly inflow of newfunds
on record, with over £122 million
deposited in Savings accounts during

June 2019,

We once again won a number of
independent awards, including Best
Savings Provider, Best Fixed Rate Bond
Provider and Best Notice Account Provider
from Savings Champion, as well as Best
Notice Account Provider from Moneyfacts.

Customer experience is of great
importance, which is why the Savings team
was delighted to have achieved a rating of
4.5 outof 5 on Feefo and 4.3 out of 5 on
Trustpilot, making the Group one of the
best providers amangst savings brands.

Looking forward

In 2020, we are focused on continuing to
improve all aspects of our digital servicas
for both new and existing Savings
customers, Key areas of focus wilt be
strearnlining the application journey for
both new and existing customers, making
it easier for customers to stay with us when
their bond matures, and introducing new
functionality for customers servicing their
accounts online,

This move, as well as the digitisation of
large scale customer communicatians,
should continue to improve customer
experience leading to cost efficency.

Qur recently developed Access Account is
now ready to offer to both existing and
new custamaers and we plan to continue to
investigate how to help more peaple
access our products and broaden aur
product range to support those customers
who want to drawdown their savings in
retirement. These offerings will help to
deliver our aim of increasing product

holdings to improve the stability of funds '

through deeper customer relationships.

Secure Trust Bank has already been
recognised by customers through its
strong levels of online review scoras as well
as in the Savings Champion Awards 2020,
winning the Best Notice Account Provider
category and also being highly
commanded in the Bast Savings Provider
category. We look to continue this
recognition through the ongoing delivery
of simple, competitive products and great
customer experience throughout 2020.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk overview

On an ongoing basis, the Directors carry out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity. The following were considered to be the principal risks facing the Group in 2019:

N . M t
Principal Risk 2019
Credit Risk 4\

The risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

Liquidity and Funding Risk
The risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as thay fall due ar can only do so at excessive cast.

Operational Risk
The risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes assaciated with the Group's processes, personnel,
technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than the risks identified above.

Capital Risk
The risk that the Group will have insufficient capital resources 16 support the business.

Market Risk
The risk that the value of, or revenue generated from, the Group's assets and liabiities is impacted as a result of market
movements, predominantly interest rates.

>SIv v >

Conduct Risk
The potential for customers (and the business) to suffer financia! loss or other detriment through the actions and decisions "9
made by the business and its staff,

Regulatory Risk .}
The risk that the Group fails to be compliant with all relevant reguiatory requirements.

Nates 34 to 37 to the finandial statements provide further analysis of certain finandial risks.

Further details of the principal risks, the changes in risk profile during the 2019 financial year and the Group’ risk management framawork are set out
in the following section. There is also analysis of the key strateglc and emerging risks which Impact the Group. As for the pravious year, these risks also
indude the UK's withdrawal from the European Unlon, the direct impacdts of which are considered to be limited given the Group's UK operation and
focus. Consideration is also given to risks arsing from dimate change. Emerging risks include the Impact of COVID-19, which as a matter emerging

2o

post year-end, is not reflected in the risk status ts shown above,

Key to symbols

4\ Improved
_> Stable
\‘/ Worsened
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Credit Risk - IMPROVED

™

Description

Credit Risk is the risk that a caunterparty will be unzble to satisfy their debt servicing commitments when due. Counterparties include the consumers
to whom we lend on a secured and unsecured basis and the SMEs to whom we lend on a secured basis as well as the market counterparties with

whom we deal.

Mitigation

We manage Credit Risk through internal
controls and through a three fines of defence
model The first line is the business operation
team with the Credit Risk Tearn being the
second line and Internal Audit being the third
line. The Consumer Credit Risk Committee
and SME Credit Committees, which are the
manitoring committees for credit risk, report to
tha Board Risk Comeitiee. The Board Risk
Committee also approves lending authorities
in respect of SME {ending. Eath consumer
lending product has a monthly portfolio review
which analyses business performance from
new application metrics through to loss
performance by business type and introducer.
Policy and scorecard changes are spproved at
the Consumer Credit Risk Committee.

For Real Estate Finance and Commercial
Finance, lending dedsions are made on an

individual transaction basis, using expert
judgement and assessment against criteria set
out in the lending policies. Asset Finance
lending is managed via a joint venture with
Haydodk, who operate in line with the Group’s
credit policies and risk appetite. Since the
change in ownership of Haydodk in January
2018, wa have sllowed the Asset Finance
portfolio to reduce in line with contractual
repayments from customers.

Exposure to Credit Risk is also managed in part
by obtaining security. Motor Finance loans are
secured against motor vehicles. Montgages are
secured against land/property and Real Estate
Finance and Asset Finance loans are securad
against property and tangible assets
respectively. Cornmercial Finance advances are
secured against a debtor book, inventory or
property if 8 commercial mortgage is provided.

Management monitors the ratings of the
counterparties in relation to the Group's loans
and advances to banks. There is no direct
exposure to the Eurozone and peripheral
Eurozone countries,

Forbearance

Throughout 2019, our policy was nat te
routinely reschedlule contractual arrangements
where customers defaulted on their
repayments. In cases where customers were
offered the option to reduce or defer
paymenis for a short period, the loan retained
the normal contractual payment due dates
and would be treated the same as any other
defaulting cases for impairment purposes.
Forbearance arrangements in respect of
Consumer Mortgages customers are
described in Note 34.2,

Change

Consumer Finance Cradit Risk

Application trends, arrears and loss trends for
the Retail Finance Portfolio are monitered
monthly by the Cradit Risk Team. The portfolic
quality has been improving throughout 2019,
leading to a reduction in cost of risk from 1.8%
to 1.4%, and we impfemented a new artificdial
intelligence scorecard in the third quarter of
2019 which is expected to reduce impaimments
even further. Recent changas to the mix of
ratadl market segments sarved by Retail
Finance are expeacted to improve portfolio
quality aver tirne.

Qur Motor Finance business has continued

to grow despite a very competitive landscape.
We have continued our atrateqy of
repositioning the Motor Finance business
away from those customers that are most
susceptible to an economic dewntum.

We have expanded the Motor Finance product
ranga te indude a unit stocking product, to
provide short-term finance to motor dealers so
that they can buy stock. In 2020, the Group
expects to launch a prime Hire Purchase ('HP")

and Personal Contract Purchase ("PCP?)
product offering, The PCP offering will
introduce a new risk for the Group, with
potential for losses should the residual value of
the vehidles at the end of the agreement be
less than expected at incaption of the contract.
We have recruitad specialists, introduced
additional govarnance over acceptance criteria
and spacified appropiiate levals of buffer
within residual valua calculations, to mitigate
this risk.

In the first quarter of 2019 due to the difficult
economic dimate, increased compatition and
continued uncertainties we announced the
decision to cease new mortgage ariginations
until market conditions improve,

Business Finance Credit Risk

{ending batancas in both the Real Estate
Finance and Commercdial Finance portiolios
have continued to grow, with both portfolios
rernaining well within all key risk appetite
maeasures. The ongoing focus on high quality,
secured lending has continued to serve the
Group well,

Following the change in ownership of
Haydock, in January 2018, the Asset Finance
portfolio has continued to run-off over the
course of tha year in line with expactations.
We continue to assess its options with regards
to fulure opportunities within the Asset
Finance market,

We have not relaxed any of cur key risk
appetite parameters during the year and
thanks te the continued adherence to our
robust lending polides, alongside the
significant experience within the lending
teams, impairments within the Business
Finance portfolios have remained minimal in
the period. Managemant continues to monitor
each of the portfolios dlosely and regularly
reviews the external events and changes to the
wider environment that could have a material
impact on any of them.

Concentration Risk

Management assesses the potential
concentration risk from geographic, product
and individual loan concentration, Due to the
wall diversified nature of its lending operations,
we do not consider there 1o be a material
exposure arising from concentration risk,
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Liquidity and Funding Risk - IMPROVED

N

Description

Licuuidity and Funding Risk is the risk that the Group is unable 10 meet its obligations as they fall due or can only do so at excessive cost.
We maintain adequate liquidity resources and a prudent stable funding profile at all times to cover liabifities as they fall due in normal and

stressed conditions.

We manage our liquidity in line with internal and regulatory requirements, and at least annually assess the robustness of the liquidity requirements
a3 part of the Group's Intermal Liguidity Adequacy Assessment Process (L AAPT].

Mitigation

Risk tolerance

In line with the PRA self-sufficiency rule (the
Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule ({OLAR) we

seek to at all times maintain kquidity resources

which are adequate, both as to amount and

quality, to ansure that thare is no significant risk

that our liabilities cannot be met as they fall
due under stressad conditions. We define
liquidity adequacy as the:

Structure and responsibilities for Liquidity
Risk management

The Group has a forma! governance structure
in place to manage and mitigate Liquidity and
Funding Risk on a day-to-day basis, The Board
sets and approves the Group’s liquidity and
funding risk appetites. The Assets and Liabilities
Committee {ALCOY, comprising senior
management and executives of the Group,
raets monthly to review liquidity and funding

Communication of Liquidity Risk strategy,
palicies and practices across business lines
and with the Board

The Group's ALCQ is responsible for
implementing and controlling the Liquidity
and Funding Risk appetite established by the
Board. ALCO monitors compliance with the
Group's policies and oversees the overall
strategy, guidetines and limits sa that the
Group's future plans and strategy can be

‘ :Lr;,i?‘(;i:gnagb'j:?“;gi;;:i o :d:‘t:“tjh.e and risk against set thresholds and risk indicators achieved within risk appetite.
" L~ y including early warning indicators. These metrics i
other means of withdrawal : Liquidity and Funding Risk
are managed on a day-to-day basis by the nagement § vk

s ability to fund asset growth

« capacity to otherwise maet contractual
obligations through unconstrained access
to funding at reasonable market rates

To meet our liquidity requirernents we
maintain a buffer of unencumbered High
Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA).

Groups Treasury function. The Risk function is
responsible for ensuring that appropriate risk
management processes and controls are in
place, and that they are sufficiently robust, so as
1o ensure that key risks are identified, assessed,
monftored and mitigated.

tnternal liquidity reporting
Liquidity and funding metrics are monitored

We maintain a comprehensive intemal
reporting framewark which seeks to mitigate
Liquidity and Funding Risk:

Risk Identification: activities are embedded
truugh integration with key business
processes to ensure the Group:

— Considers how existing activities may

The Group's Liquidity Risk Appetite and daily through liquidity reporting and on an impact the current and future Liquidity
Funding Risk Appetite are approved by engoling basis through manthly ALCO and Funding Risk profite
the Board: meetings. Metrics are also included in the i o
Monthly Financial Information pack tabled at ~ Considers the implications of
+ Liquidity Risk Appetite: to maintain a the Group’s Executive Committee, Board Risk hew products

sufficient pool of high quality liquid Committee and the Board. ~ Has an awareness of how external
resources at all times to survive a combined o . influences may affect the
stress avent for a minimum survival horizon The Liquidity Working Group {LWG?), Y

of at feast 90 days, including any peak
requirernent over the 90-day stress period;
and meet the higher of the internal stress
test {OLAR) and the regulatory requirement
{LCR) plus any applicable Pillar 2 add-ons

Funding Risk Appetite: $TBs Funding Risk
Appetita is to ensura that the Group has
access to stable funding markets and is not
reliant on any single source of funding.
ST18 places no material reliance on
wholesale funding markets. The Group’s
primary sourca of funding is retail deposits
from individuals and SMEs

We assess and formally demonstrate the
adequacy of our liquidity through the ILAAP.
As part of the |LAAP, we conduct regular and
comprehensiva liquidity stress testing to
ensure compliance with intarnal and
regulatory requiraments.

a working group of ALCO, embeds the
identification, monitoring, measurement and
management of Liquidity and Funding Risks in
the day-to-day activities of the Bank.

The aim is not to measure liquidity and funding
with a single metric but rather a range of
principles and metrics which, when taken
together, helps ensure that our Liquidity and
Fundling Risk is maintained at an

acceptable level,

The primary measure used by management to
assess the adequacy of liquidity is the OLAR
which, in line with the PRA’ self-sufficiency rule
described above, is the Board's own view of
the Group liquidity needs as set out in the
Board approved ILAAP.

-

lquidity position.
Risk Management: focuses on the
application of tools, techniques and
processes to quantify risks in order to
effectively measure the Group’s Liquidity
and Funding Risk

Risk Monitoring: Board and senior
management ara provided with timely
identification of the Group's liquidity and
funding position, current emerging risks,
material threats and opportunities to enable
appropriate management actions

Risk Reporting: the Board, relevant
Committees, and senior management are
informed of any changes in the Group's
Liquidity and Funding Risk profile or
position and necessary actions via regular
lquidity reporting. ¥ addition, ad hoc
reporting to address any specific concerns
affecting Liquidity and Funding Risk
management or strategies is available.
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Liquidity and Funding Risk continued

Stress testing

A comprehensive stress testing framework is
used to supparnt Liquidity and Funding Risk
measurement and takes into account all known
sources of liquidity and funding risks as
documnented within the ILAAP {and as updated
upon changes in materiaf risks). The stress
testing covers Idiosyncratic, Marketwide and
Combined stress scenarios, with additional
stress scenarias including reverse strasses,
tailored to our business model and

oparating environment.

Stress testing is conducted to identify sources
of potential liquidity strain and to ansure that
the Group's liquidity position remains within
the Board Risk Appetite and prudentizt
regulatory requirements and timits.

Stress testing and sensitivity analyses are
perfarmed on a reqular basis to assess the key
business winerahilities.

We use various short- and medium-term
forecasts to monitor future liquidity
requirernents and these include stress testing
assumptions to identify the required levels of
liquidity. Stress testing is performed on a daily
basis and leveis of liquidity under stress are
forecast regularly and monitored by ALCO
and management.

Contingency funding plans

If, for reasons which may be beyond the
business’s control, the Group was to encounter
a significant and sustained outfiow of deposits
or other stress on liquidity resource, the
Recovery Plan incorporates the Group's plans
to ensure that it remains sufficiently liquid to
remain a visble independent financial
institution during a severe liquidity stress
event. Recovery Plan Early Waming Indicators
and Invocation Trigger Points {1TP) are
regularly monitored and reported against.

The Recovery Plan is applied consistently with
the Group's ILAAP as part of the overall
liquidity risk management framework dealing
with contingent funding requirements as they
arise. The Group alsa retains access to the
Bank of England liquidity schemes, including
the Discount Window Facility.

Change

We have maintained our iquidity ratios in
excess of ragulatory requirements throughout
the year and continue to hold significant levels
of HOLA,

We made 2 number of enhancernents to the
liquidity and funding risk governance
framework In 2019, These include approval of a
revised policy framework by the Board and
additional analysis of liquidity requirements for
new and existing products.

The stress tests performed as part of the ILAAP
confirmed that the Group has sufficient funds
to satisfy the OLAR requirement and there

is no significant risk that iabilities cannot be
met as they {2k due. Our LCR at 31 December
2019 was significantly higher than the

requlatory requirement.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Operational Risk - STABLE

.9

Description

Operationat Risk is the risk that the Group may be exposed to direct or indirect loss arising from inadequate or failed intarnal processes, personnel and
succession, technology/infrastructure, or from external factors.

The scope of Operational Risk is broad and includes Business process, Business Continuity, Third party, Finandal Crime, Change, Human Resources,
Information Security and [T risk, including Cyber Risk.

Mitigation

We have adopted an Operstional Risk Policy
and Framework designed in accordance with
the ‘Principles for the Sound Management of
Ogperational Risk’ issued by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision.

The approach ensures appropriate governance
is in place to provide adequate and effective
oversight of the Group’s Operational Risk.

The governance framework inchudes the

Board Risk Committee and Group

Operational Risk Committea.

We have a defined set of qualitative and
quantitative Operational Risk appetite
measures. Quantitative measures cover
operational losses, complaints, key operational
risks, systems availability and information
security. The appetite measures ara reparted
and monitored on a monthly basis.

Change

in 20118 the Group successfully transitioned to
The Standardised Approach’ for assessing its
Operational Risk capital, in recognition of the
enhancements made to its framework and
embedding this across the Group. In 2019 we
have continued to enhance these standards
and have introduced a number of
improvements to the control frameworks in
place across our principal operational risks.

Key risk themes of Operational Risk focus in
201% includa:

+ Supplier Management - The Group uses a
number of third parties to support its IT and
operational proocesses. We recognise that it
is important to effectively manage these
suppliers and have embedded a suite of
standard controls for all cur material
suppliers to reduce the risk of operational
impacts on these critical services.

Further tools have heen developed, and are
being rofled out, to help understand the
quality of the resifience controls in operation
at our critical suppliers. We have also
enhanced our assurance capability with the
recruitment of a dedicated resource in this
area. This will continue to be an area of
focus for 2020

s Operational and IT Reslliance -~ Many
elaments of the Operationat Risk Framework
suppont the ongoing resifience of our
operational and {T services, induding
Business Continuity Managemant, Disaster
Racovery, Incident Management, Pracess
Management and the Cyber Strategy.

We have defined a formal plan to respond
to the new requirements of the Consultation
Papers issued on this subject by the FCA
and PRA. Compliance with these
requirements and continuing to enhance the
resilience of our services will be a key priority
irn 2020

Information Sacurity and Cyber Risk -

We have paid considerable attention to
ensuring the effective management of risks
anising from a failure or breach of our
information technology systems that could
result in customer exposure, business
disruption, financial losses, or

reputationat damage

* Change Management - The effective
delivery of Change Management
pragrammaes plays an important role in
meeting our regulatory requirements,
improving services and implementing
strategic decisions, Ineffective change
management processes could fead to poor
customer outcomes, business disruption,
financial Yoss and regulatory breaches.
Change Management processas and
governance are defined and embedded
within the Group, Significant changes are
planned in 2020, including delivery of deater
stacking and the prime proposition as part
of the Motor Finance transformation, and
thesa will be a key area of focus to ensure
we maintain our customer and operational
service standards and daliver our
stratagic objectives
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Capital Risk — STABLE

->

Description

Capitaf Risk is the risk that the Group will have insufficient capital resources to meet minimum regulatory requirements and to support the business.
We adopt a conservative approach to managing capital and at feast annually assess the robustnass of the capital requirements as part of the Group’s
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).

Mitigation

Capital Management is defined as the
operational and governance processes by
which capital requirements are established and
capital resources maintained and allocated,
such that regulatary requirements are met
while maximising returns. These processes
and associated roles and responsibilities are
set out in the Group's Capital Management
Palicy, which is approved by the Risk
Committee. The Board regularly reviews the
current and forecast capital position to ensure
capital resources are suffiGent to suppart
planned levels of growth,

In accordance with the EU's Capital
Requirements Directive IV {'CRD IV) and the
required paramaters set out in the EU's Capital
Requirement Regulation, the Group maintains
an ICAAP which is updated atleast annually.

The ICAAP is a procass that brings together
the management framework (i.e. the policies,
procedures, strategies and systerns that the
Group has implemented to identify, manage
and mitigate its risks) and the financial
disciplines of business planning and

capital management.

Not all material risks can be mitigated by
capital, but where capital is appropriate the
Board has adopted an approach to determine
the level of capital we need to hold.

This method takes tha Fillar 1 capital formula
calkulations {standardised approach for credi,
matket and operational risk} as a starting point,
and then considers whether sach of the
calculations delivers a suffident capital sum
adequate to cover management's assessment
of anticipated risks, Where it is considered that
the Pillar 1 calculations da not reflect the risk,
an additional capital add-on in Pillar 2is
applied, a5 per the Total Capital Requirernent
issued by the PRA.

A complete assessment of the Group's capital
requirernent is contained in its Pillar 3
disclosures, Pillar 3 disclosuras for the Group
for the year ended 31 Decamber 2019 are
published as 2 separate document on

our website,

Change

We maintained our capital ratios in excess of
regulatory requirements throughout the year.
At 31 December 2019, the CET1 ratio was
12.7% {2018: 13.8%), the total capital ratio was
15.0% (2018 16.3%) and the leverage ratio was
9.8% {2018: 10.0%) on a Group consolidated
basis. We have continuad to invest capital to
support lending growth.

Capital resources increased during the year to
£318.0 million as at 31 December 2019

{31 Decernber 2018: £297.5 million} on a Group
consalidated basis. The increase was due to
retained eamings.

We have confinued to explore options
available to raise alternative forms of capital as
and when such is required. The recent
announcements from the PRA regarding the
countercydical capital buffer, which has now
been reduced to 0% as part of the COVID-19
response, have been considered and factored
into our plans.

The 2019 ICAAP demonstrated the Group's
continued ability to meet its minimum capital
requirements, even in severe stress scenarios.
Qur {orecasting copahility covers a five-year
time horizon, with modeiling of capital

resources and requirements provided over that
period. The relatively short duration of our
lending portfolios allows us to flex balance
sheet growth if required in times of stress,
thereby conserving capital.

We adopted transitional provisions in respect of
the implementation of IFRS 9, as set out by the
European Banking Autherity. These provisions
allow the capital impact of the standard 1o be
phased in aver a five-year period. Further details
are provided in Note 37.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Market Risk - IMPROVED

™

Description

movements in interest rates.

to Sterling.

For the Group, Market Risk is primarily limited ta interest rate risk. Jnterest rate risk refers to the exposura of the Bank’s financial position to adverse

When interest rates change, the present value and timing of future cash flows can change. This in turn changes the underlying vakie of the Group's
assets, liabilitias and off-balance sheet instrumants and hence its aconomic vakie. Changes in interest rates also affect our eamings by altering
intarest-sensitive incoma and expenses, affacting our net interest income.

The principal currency in which the Group operates is Sterling, afthough a small number of transactions are completed in US Dollars, Euros and
other currendies in the Commaercial Finance business, Wa have no significant exposures to foreign aurrencies and hedge any residual currency risks

Mitigation

We maintain a comprehensive intemal
reporting framework which seeks to mitigate
interest rate risk:

+ Risk identification: activities are smbedded
through integration with key business
processes to ensure the Group:

- Considers how existing activities may
impact the current and future intarest
rate risk profile

- Considers the implications of
new products

— Has an awareness of how external
influences may affect the market
risk position
= Risk Management: focuses on the
application of tools, techniques and
processes to quantify risks in order to
effectively manage the Group's interest
rate risk

Risk Monitoring: the Board and senior
management are provided with timely
identification of the Group's interest rate risk
position, current emerging risks, material
threats and opportunitias to enable
appropriate management actions

Risk Reporting: the Board, Committees, and
senior managemant arg informed of any
changes in the Group' interest rate risk
profile or position and necessary actions via
regular reporting, In addition, ad hoc
reporting to address any specific concerns
affecting interest rate risk management or
strategies must be available

Market Risk is managed by the Group's
Treasury function and is overseen by the
ALCO. We do not take significant unmatched
positions and do not operate a trading book.

Owr risk management frameworl, policies and
procedures are regulardy raviewed and
updated to ensure that they accurately identify

the risks that we face ih our business activities
and are appropriate for the nature, scale and
complexity of our business.

The Group uses an Interest Rate Sensitivity
Gap analysis to identily mismatched interest
rate risk positions that require hedging.

The Group reports the interest rate mismatch
to ALCO and the Board on a monthly basfs in
the form of a Market Value Sensitivity and
Econornic Value of Equity to a parallel 200
basis point rise and falt in the yield curve.
Risk appetite for Market Value Sensitivity is
calibrated against the amount of capital
resource available to the Group. The Group's
Earnings at Risk is also calculated monthly
against a 100 basis point parallel siress and
reported to ALCO and the Board,

All such exposures are maintained within the
tisk appetite set by the Board and are
monitored by ALCO. The Group also monitors
its exposure to optionality and basis risk.

Change

The Group’s exposure to Market Risk
continues to be imited primarily to intarest
rate risk, with only modest exposures o
foreign exchanga risk. The Group remained
within risk appatite in respect of interest rate
fisk throughout the year.

The increasing size of our balance sheet
increases the inharent lavel of interest rate risk,
and we have responded by enhancing our
Treasury capabilities and risk framework.

The Group has develaped its capability to use
interest rate swaps to further mitigate interest
rate risk in 2019,

The Group is embedding new regulatory
guiidance on Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Book, as prescribed by the Europaan
Banking Authority.

We consider the enhanced framework, and
particularly the introduction of dervatives
capability, to have led to a neduction in the
Group's matrket risk position.
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Conduct Risk — STABLE

.9

Description

We define Conduct Risk as the risk that the Group's products and services, and the way they are delivered, result in poor outcomes for customers,
or harm to the Graup. This could be as a direct result of poor or inappropriate execution of the Group's business activities or staff behaviour.

Mitigation

We take a principles-based approach and
include retail and commercial customers in our
definition of ‘customer’, which covers all
business units and both regulated and
unregulated activities.

Across the Group, Conduct Risk exposure is
managed via monthly review of key risk
indicators {KRis’) at business units’ executive
committee meetings and aggregated
reporting to the Group Executive Committee,
Oversight is provided by the Customer Focus
Committee, which considers complaints,
Feefo and Customer Service Excellence as
well as Condhuct Risk.

The KRis vary across the business units to
reflect the relevant conduct risks; the business
units’ key risk indicators are aggregated for
measurement against our risk appetite, which
Is also reported to the Risk Committee and
the Board.

Change ~ STABLE

Review of Conduct Risk and controls within the
business units is managed through the regular
cycle of risk and control self-assessments,

in fine with other operational risk categories.

Members of the Custermer Focus Committee
review key risk indicators across all business
units, and meet on a quarterly basis for
oversight and challenge of the first ine
activities 10 assure senior management that
the first line is identifying conduct risks when
they arisa and taking appropriate actions to
mitigate them.

Trairing on Conduct Risk continuas to be
delivered 1o new starters, with an elLearing
madule completad by all staff during the year,

Regulatory Risk — STABLE

9

Description

Regulatory Risk is the risk that the Group falls to be compliant with all relevant regulatory requirements. This could occur if the Group failed to
interpret, implement and embed processes and systems to address regulatory requirements, emerging risks, key focus areas and initiatives or deal

properly with new laws and regulations.

Mitigation

We seek to manage regulatory risks through
the Group-wide risk managemaent framework.
The Group Compliance and Regulatary Risk
Committee is rasponsible for reviewing and
monitoring regulatory changes, and ensuring

that appropriate actions are taken, and also
raviewing and approving the Compliance
universe and risk management framework.

Further details can be found on the
Group's website:

www.securetristbank.com/our-corporate-
information/risk-management

Change

In the year ended 31 Decamber 2019, we have
dalivered changes to address new and revised
regulations and feglslation that have come inta
force including extending the Senior Managers
and Certification Regime to the Group’s
regulated subsidiaries; European Banking
Authority guidelines on security measures for

operational and security risks and fraud
reporting under PSD2; Buy Now Pay Later and
Financial Promotions changes in consumer
credit; widening access to the Financial
Ombudsman for small businesses; supporting
the Group through the management of the PP}
deadline in August 2019,

Projects and initiatives are in place for changes
required in 2020 including disdosures of
commission models in consumer credit,
breathing space, regulatory retums, the FCA
directary and operational resilience.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Strategic and emerging risks

In addition to the principal risks disdosed
above, the Board considers strategic and
emerging risks, including key factors,
trends and uncertainties which can
influence our results. These risks include
the following:

COVID-19

The impact of the outbresk on the
econory and on tha Group's operations is
subject to dose monitoring by the Groups
Crisis Management Team {CMT") and
Group and business unit Executive
Committees. Contingency plans have
been established for each business unit
and are overseen by the CMT.

Where process changes have been
required in order to maintain services,
these have been subject to formal risk
review with the CEQ, under authority
delegated from the Board, accountzble for
risk acceptance,

It is now clear that the COVID-19 outbreak
will have a significant impact on economic
activity. The main impacts on the Group
are expected to be in relation to reduced
demand for new business, particularly for
Consumer Finance products, and to
increase impaimment losses, Stress testing
has been undertaken to assess the
potential impact of future economic
conditions, brought about by COVID-19,
on the Group's financial performance and
position, including consideration of capital
and liquidity. Details of the stress testing
and condlusions drawn are set out in the
Viability and Gaing Concern Statement on

page 50.
From an operational perspective, the
Group has focused on the following
potential impacts arising from COVID-19;
» Supply chain failure
* Restricted distribution channels
* Restricted ability to operate due
to pubtic policy changes and
requirement to respond to regulatory
and government measures

* Geographical impacts on markets
and key operating locations

» Employee absence or home working

The restricted distribution channels refers
1o introducers and intermediaries used by
the Group to source new business, as well
as retailers and motor dealers which are
integral to the Consumer Finance
business. The resultant reduction in new
business activity is considered in the stress
testing referred to above, and has allowed
business areas to redeploy resource to
support existing customers and
collactions activity.

In respect of the other items fisted above,
the CMT has assessed the actions
undertaken both centrally and in individual
business areas and considers them to be
working well in mitigating the operational
risks brought by COVID-19, These actions
include: the rollout of technology solutions
which have enabled a significant number
of employees to work from home;
introduction of sodial distancing policies
for employees who are currently required
to work fram an STB office; review of key
supplier business continuity arrangements
and identification of alternative suppliars;
and implementation of payment

haliday processas,

The Board has considered these potential
impacts and the actions undertaken in
response and has taken them into account
when making its assessment of Viahility
and Going Concern. Frequent reports
have been provided to the Board on the
operational impacts of COVID-19 and the
Group's responses ta mitigate. In addition
the CEQ provides regular updates on
progress to Board members.

Macroeconomic environment
and market conditions

Political and econamic uncertainty
continued throughout 2019. UK economic
fundamentals demonstrably weakened in
the second half of the year, as businesses
and consumers became mare cautious
and less active whilst they awaited the
impact of the planned Brexit date af

31 October, and when this did nat happen,
the outcome of the General Election.
Growth of GDP flatdined in the autumn
and turned negative in Novemnber which
dampened demand for consurner and
house building finance. Some degree of
recovery followed the decisive result of
the election.
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UK withdrawal from
European Union

Following the passing of the UK
Withdrawal Agreement and the withdrawal
itself on 31 January 2020, the UK remains in
a transitional arrangement with the
European Union. Uncertainty remains as to
whether a new trade deal between the UK
and the European Union can be struck
before the transitional arrangement ends
on 31 December 2020, The UK
Government has indicated that it will not
extend the deadline, and indeed passed
legislation to that effect. The risk of leaving
without a robust new trade deal with the
EU therefore remains,

Our core business planning assumption is
that the transitional arrangement will
conclude in an orderly basis and that the
direct impact of a disorderly scenario is
limited. All continuing trade is within the
UK and the lending sectors that the Group
operates in are not significantly reliant on
aass border arrangements. The indirect
impact however could be material.

Details of the indirect consequences of a
no deal scenario were set out in the
Principal risks and uncertainties section

of the 2018 Annual Report. Our view of
these indiract impacts has not materially
changed, and the potential impact on our
most significant business units is set out on
page 49.

We consider the most significant potential
impact of a failure to agree a robust
trading agreement to be that on credit risk.
The Principal risks and uncertainties
section of the 2018 Annual Report sets out
details of how the Group worked with
external consuitants to assess the likely
impact of a no deal scenario on its
Consurner Finance portfolios. The stress
test modelling undertaken showed higher
impairment provisions than those set out
in our central plan, but not at a level that
was considered to compromise the
Group's viability. It was concluded at that
time that the Group did not need to
change strategy in the anticipation of 2
potential no deal exit from the EU.

This continues to be the case, and our view
of the impact of a disorderly scenario
remains unchanged from that set cut in
the 2018 analysis.




Additional eary warning indicators, that
could indicate the need to change
strategy, ware set up following the work
undertaken in 2018 and these have been
monitored throughout 2019,

Continuing stress test modetling, including
that undertaken in respect of our ICAAP,
has continued 1o demonstrate that the
Group can withstand significant
macroeconomic shocks, induding those
significantly mare adverse than that
expected to arise from a disorderly exit
from the European Union. The short
duration of our balance sheet provides
significant flexibility, should we need to
reduce our lending activity in the event of
such a stress.

Model risk and the impact
of IFRS 9

We enhanced our controls around Model
Risk and Model Governance in 2019.
Improvernents have baen made in all
aspacts of Model Governance including
the Model Governance Policy through to
Madel Standards and Model Inventories.
Material or high risk models are reviewed
by the Model Governance Committee on
an annual basis. The Group Chief Risk

Officer chairs the Model Governance
Committee, with the Committee reporting
to the Risk Committee.

We continue to derive the probability of
default {PD), loss given dafault (LGD")
and exposure at default (EAD") of the
Group's lending portfolios, and therefore
impairment provisions, through a suite of
IFRS @ models. The models have been
monitored throughout the year and
found to be working effectively.

Minor enhancements have been made
where appropriate. The Group uses a
weighted view comprising a number of
macro-economic scenarios including
benign, base, stress and ICAAP cases to
provide the aggregated impairment
provision each month.

Climate change

Climate change presents financial risks for
the banking industry and whilst it is difficult
to assess how climate change wilf unfold,
we are assessing our risk exposure in
relation to both the potential ‘Physical’
effects and the Transition’ risks from tha
adjustment towards a carbon

neutral aconomy.

The risk assessment process has been
integrated into existing Risk Frameworks
and will be governed through existing risk
governance structures, including reporting
to the Board Risk Committee.

in accordance with the requirements of the
PRA!s Supervisory Statement 'Enhancing
banks’ and insurers’ approaches to
managing the financial risks from dimate
change’, we have allocated responsibility
for identifying and managing the risks from
climate change to tha relavant existing
Senior Management Function. In addition,
we are evaluating the requirements of the
Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures’ and will continue to enhance
our reporting and disclosures in line with
thase standards.

Risk management

Details of the Group’s risk management
framework, including risk appetite,
governance arrangements and key
committees, can be found on the

Group's website:
www.sacuretrustbank.corn/our-
corporate-information/risk-management

Business unit

Potential indirect impact of no deal exit, assessed in 2018

Real Estate Finance

Direct consequences on the procechures for the transfer, renting and mortgaging of property are
consldered unlikely.

If there is a reduction in UK financa providers, then contraction of supply could affect the choice and tarms of
funding available for investment or development projects. The timing ar cost of davelopment projects could be
affacted by price increases and/or shipping delays. Developears on some, particularly larger projects may be more
cautious about committing to dates and costs without scope for adjustment for the effect of a no deal
withdrawal, An increase in the cost of borrowing and weaker demand could push UK property prices lower,
These factors could reduce demand for tha Group's products whilst increasing credit risk.

Commercial Finance

No direct consequence is expected due to this divisions UK customer base. Invoice financing has some
countercyclical characteristics, though its medium-term performance is directly linked to macroeconamic
conditions, given lending batances are secured against the customer’s sales ledger.

Retail Finance

The key market sectors funded by Retail Finance could be impacted by rising raw material or finished goods
input prices. Ratailars would need to decide whether to pass on costs or absorb them inte margins.

Rising consumer prices woutd likely lead to reduced consumer confidence and demand and reduced retafler

margins would likely lead to retailers halting or slowing UK expansion. These factors could reduce demand for
the Group's products,
Consumer affordability issues could also impact on the Group's profitability through increased
impairment provisions.

Motor Finance

This division serves the UK used car market, which unlike the supply of new vehicles (often originating from other
EU markets and attracting increased tariffs), is largely self contained. However, subdued economic conditions
and lower consumer confidence or spending power may have a potential adverse impact on used car demand,
and associated demand for tha Group's finanding.

Affordability issues may alsa adversely impact the Group's profitability through increased bad debts.
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Strataegic Report

Viability and going concern year-end 2019

Going concern

In assessing the Group as a
going concern, the Directors
have given consideration to
the factors likely to affect

its future performance and
development, the Group's
financial position and the
principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, as set out
in the Strategic Report.

The Group uses various short-
and medium-term forecasts
to monitor future capital and
liquidity requirements and
these include stress testing
assumptions to identify the
headroom on regulatory
compliance measures. As set
out in the assessment of
business viability, for the
2019 Annual Report and
Accounts the stress testing
assumptions have included
specific scenarios relating to
the COVID-19 outbreak.

The Directors are satisfied that
the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to
continue to operate for the
foreseeable future as going
concerns. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing
these financial statements.

Business viability

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Directors
confirm that there is a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the
Group will be able to continue in operation
and meet their liabilities as they fall due,
for the pericd up to 31 December 2022.
The assessment of ongoing viability covers
this period as it falls within the Group’s
five-year planning horizon and the period
covered by the Group's stress testing.

Given the Group's continuing long-term
growth potential, further improvements in
credit quality over 2019 and the Group's
flexible business model, the directors are
confident of the Group's viability

over the longer term. However, the
continuing uncertainties regarding the
economic, regulatory and market
environment that the Group operates in,
particularly those related to COVID-19,
may compromise the reliability of longer
range forecasts, The Board has therefore
decided to continue 1o use a three-year
period for its assessment of viability rather
than extending this over the full

planning horizon.

The Directors have based the
assessment on:

* the latest annual budget (approved
before the outbreak started), which
contains information on the expected
financial position and performance for
the period to 31 Dacember 2024 and by
considering the potential impact of the
principal risks facing the Group, as set
outon pages 40tc 49

the analysis of key sensitivities,
undlertaken as part of the budget
process, which could impact on
profitability over the period covered by
the budget. Assumptions made to
calculate risk weighted assets and
capital requirements are dearly stated
and additiona! scenarios are modelled
to demonstrate the potential impact of
risks and uncertainties on capital
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+ the Group's ILAAP, which uses stress
scenarios to assess the adequacy of
liquidity resources. The resulis of this
scenario analysis are used to set the
Group's OLAR and are also the basis
of the liquidity requirements set by the
PRA. The Group has maintained liquidity
levels in excess of regulatory
requirements throughout the year and is
forecast to continue to do so

the Group’s ICAAF, which considers
macroeconomic stress and severe shock
scenarios in order to assess the
adequacy of capital resources.

The results of the scenario analysis are
used to set the Group's internal and
regulatory capital requirements.

The Group has maintained capital levels
in excess of requlatory requirements
throughout the year and is forecast to
continue to do so. The macroeconomic
stress scenarios were based on the ‘rates
up' and 'rates down’ scenarios set out in
the H1 2019 Bark of England stress test
scenaric, with the severe shock scenario
assuming key economic variables to be
either warsened or accelerated
compared to the rates up scenario

consideration of the other principal risks
as set out on pages 40 to 49, to identify
any other severe but plausible scenarios
that could threaten the Groups business
model, future performance, salvency

or liquidity

analysis of further scenarios related to
the UK’s withdrawal from the European
Union. Further details of this analysis are
provided on page 48

analysis of the operational impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak on the Group.
Further details are provided on page 48

consideration of the potential impact of
COVID-19 on future earnings, capital
and liquidity requiraments.

!
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COVID-19 stress testing

Although the Group regularly undertakes
capital and liquidity stress testing,
particulary to inform the ICAAP and ILAAP,
the nature of the economic impact of
COVID-19 is likely to be different to the
scenarios that are normally considered.
Most commentators are suggesting a
sharp and deep dedline in economic
activity, brought about by Government
measures to restrict movement and hence
reduce contagion, followed by recovery as
measures are lifted. in addition, unlike in
the scenarios generally considered in
stress testing, operational restrictions
introduced by those Govemment
measures also have an impact on the
Group's performance and position.

The Group has therefore undertaken
bespoke stress testing, covering capital
and liquidity, to consider such scenarios.

A range of market and idiosyncratic
variables were used as scenario Inputs,
with unemployment levels being the
variable to which the Group's impairment
losses are most sensitive. Two plausible but
severe core scenarios were considered:

* medium stress, whereby unemplaoyment
rises to mare than 7%, new business
{evels decrease significantly due to
falling demand, collection performance
is degraded, and the value of the
Group's security against bad debt losses
reduces due to house and used car
prices falling

» hard stress, whereby unemployment
rises to more than 10%, accompanied by
more severe falls in demand, collection
performance and asset values.

Given the uncertainty over the true impact
of the outbreak, a range of sensitivities was
then applied, to provide comfort that the
Group could withstand even more adverse
conditions than those set out in the Hard
stress scenario. These incdluded raising the
unemployraent rate to even higher levels,
further degrading collection performance,
changing the assessment of the
effectiveness of Government interventions
on impairment rates, and prolonging the
period of unemployment. The sensitivities
also served as a reverse stress test,

to identify the circurnstances that could
cause the Group to fail.

Analysis of the stress testing results showed
that the Group did not breach capital or
ligyuidiity requirermnents, or need to utilise
buffers, in either the Medium or Hard stress
scenario. Strategic management actions
such as format cost reduction programmes
were also not required. The liquidity
pasition remained robust, indicating the
Group's ability to withstand contagion
should another financial institution fail.

The most extreme sensitivities applied
would either require the Group to
implement strategic management actions
or to temporarily utilise capital buffers.
The PRA has notified financial institutions
that it expects them to utilise buffers if
required, in order to continue lending, and
so this is not considered to compromise
the Group's Viability or Going Concern
status. The Board considers that the
circumstances required to cause the Group
to fail, as demonstrated by the reverse
stress testing, are considered

sufficiently remote.

In undertaking this stress testing analysis
the Group has made use of models.
Models are imperfect representations of
reality, reliant on historical data, model
inputs and assumptions. These model
risks are exacerbated when dealing with
unprecedented scenarlos, such as the
COVID-19 pandemic, due to the lack of
credible, reliable historical datatouse as a
reference point. The Group has sought to
reduce this risk by comparing different
mode! methodologies, applying expert
judgement and senior

fmanagement review.

In making this statement, the Board has
sought input from the Audit Committee
and the Risk Committee.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 51

Hoday siBaeng




Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
Engaging with our stakeholders

Straightforward transparent banking

A4

v

Our customers
REMOVED

and consumers

Why it's important

We exist to serve our customers,

We therefore seek customer insight and
feedback to better understand how to help
customers and make it easy for them to do
business with us.

How we engage

« Our independent review partners, Feefo and Trustpilot,
seek customer feedback, providing valuable insight into
our customer relationships

* Independent customer insight modelling helps make our
products and senvices more effactive for customers

* We undertake direct customer engagement through
customer surveys, consumer panels and forums

* Formal horizon scanning is used to gather, analyse and
disseminate information to support decision making

What's important and how we have responded

* We seek to enhance our product offering to customers —
for example, in 2019, we expanded our notice account
offering and introduced new ISA savings accounts

* We strive to improve the quality and timeliness of our
customer services and, for example, have recently
enhanced our online application processes, extended
apening hours and improved call routing

* We aim to improve the accuracy, utility and clatity of the
information that we hold to help customers, providing
further training to improve customer communication

oy
employees

Why it's important

Our employees are our primary asset.
They deliver services to our customers,
are the source of innovation and their
actions strive to keep the Group safe
and resilient.

How we engage

* Employee Councils, consisting of department
representatives elected by their colleagues

« Annual survey conducted by the Great Place to Work®
(GPTW®') Institute

s Participation in Learning at Work week

+ Partnership with the Employer Network for Equality
and Inciusion

* Employae induction programme for new employees

* Nominated Non-Executive Director for
workplace engagement

What's important and how we have responded

+ We have established a two-way process of
communication between employees and senior
managers, enabling colleagues to provide insight,
feedback and suggestions to make the Group a great
place to work

* We have a strong level of trust and employee satisfaction

+ We continue to fund a wide range of employee
development opportunities, including specialist
professional qualifications

* Increased focus on mental health and well-being
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] Regulators and
=21 government

Why it's important

In collaboration with our regulators,

we act at all times to keep our Group safe
and secure, maintaining strong capital and
funding positions, building operational
resilience and treating customers fairly.

How we engage

* We engage directly and maintain good relations with
regulators and the government through our Board and
senior management

* We monitor regulatory developments and liaise with
reguiatory experts to gauge opinion

* We participate directly and indirectly in regulatory
consultation exercises and regulatory workshops

* We are mernbers of UK Finance, the leading industry
body for financial services in the UK and our CEO is
Chair of UK Finance’s Challenger Bank panel

What's important and how we have responded

* We always act responsibly by complying with the wide
range of laws and regulations which are applied to
financial services in the UK

s We proactively respond to changes in regulations and
make the necessary investments to meet information
requests in an efficient manner

* We are open and honest in our interactions with our
regulatory supervisors and always strive to meet their
requests in a timely fashion

communities

Why it's important

We have long pursued an ethos to

act responsibly in the interests of all
stakeholders and the environment in
which they operate; this is reflected in our
products, processes, systems and culture.

How we engage

* We are members of Business in the Community (BITC)

* A series of established community focused schemes are in
place with a particular focus on mentoring of young
people and developing local skills

* QOur charity committees continue to empower colleagues
to drive forward charitable activities

« A govemance framework and range of policies are in

place to ensure we meet our responsibilities in sodiety and
adhere to the highest professional and ethical standards

What's important and how we have responded

* In 2019 we have worked with BITC to develop a Group-
wide Responsible Business Strategy

s In 2019 we supported 262 charities, initiated a pilot
mentoring scheme with a local academy and through our
Employability Skills programme delivered employment
training via a number of community partners

s The STBG Volunteers Scheme, which entitles all
colleagues to use one paid day to make a difference in
their local area, resulted in nearly 700 work hours donated
1o help create positive change in local communities
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

Behaving
responsibly

for all

stakeholders

Our strategic commitment is to “make this a great Bank for
customers and colleagues” by pursuing our promise of delivering
straightforward and transparent banking. This is underpinned by
our core values which drive behaviours central to developing a

responsible business.

Responsible business strategy

Acting responsibly in the interests of all our
stakeholders is an ethos that we have long
followed. it is reflected in our products,
processes and systems and is reinforced
through our culture. in 2019, we continued
the process of building on existing activity
and bringing greater focus to the issues
that are really important to our
stakeholders by working on a Group-wide
Responsible Business Strategy. In order to
facilitate the process of developing the
strateqy, we became members of Business
in the Community {'BiTC"), the Responsible
Business Network set up by HRH The
Prince of Wales. BiTC exists to create
healthy communities with responsible
businesses at their heart and through BiTC,
we are able to ensure that our strategy is
aligned with industry best practice.

We have been commended by BiTC for
the swift progress that we are making in
this area and the commitrent shown to
creating a robust strategy and framework,
aligned to the BiTC Responsible Business
Framework. As part of the Responsible
Business Strategy development process,
we have undertaken, in partnership with
BiTC, an audit of existing responsible

business activities and initiatives,
identifying more than 40 active initiatives.
We are continuing to invest in and build on
these activities as the strategy continues to
take shape.

Acting responsibly to
out customers

We are committed to acting responsibly to
our customers and treating our customers
fairly, The strategy is designed to focus
continually on achieving good customer
outcomes, whilst making sure that
products and services are sustainable
whilst safeguarding and maintaining a
profitable business.

There are rigorous pelicies and
procedures in place which define the
underwriting approach to ensure that our
lending is respansible, fair and appropriate
to the customer’ circumstances, thereby
ensuring that customers have the ability to
make informed borrowing decisions.

We approve lending only when we have
established and adequately verified the
customer’s creditworthiness and capability
10 meet repaymants, in line with
regulatory obligations.
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Qur internal culture is also centred on
custamers. For example, the Group's
customer charter sets out the values that
we strive for in customer interactions:

"We have a strong set of values that we
aim to live every day. These valuss along
with our Grow, Sustain and Love strategy
continue to help us in building a great
business for aur Customers, Colleagues
and Shareholders, We are passionate
about being fair, friendly, polite and helpful
in every interaction we make.”

All staff are required to be able to describe
their own responsibilities to deliver value
to customers and the customer focusad
value is integrated into the annuat
performance management process to
ensure continuing attention from all
management and staff,

We take great pride in putting customers
at the heart of what we do. The customer
is considered at evety point in the design
process for products and services.

We regularly seek customer opinion on
new initiatives before promoting these to
the wider population and the customer
design approval process makeas eura that
we can provide strong evidence that
customer needs have been considered
before a new product is faunched.

Customers are also at the heart of the
Group's daily interactions. The Lean Six
Sigma methodology is used to support
continuous improvement activities,

to advance the skills of colieagues so that
they are better at listening to custorners
and to improve processes following
customer feedback, During 2019, mare
than 20% of the workforce received
training and development in this area.

Customer feedback

Listening to our customers is paramount.
We continue to use Feefo as an
independent source of customer
feedback, providing valuable insight
into our customer relationships.

in 2019 Trustpilot was introduced as an
additional independent platform for
customers to share their views. As Peter
Holten Milhlmann, founder and CEO of
Trustpilot, says, “More than just a rating,
Trustpilot stars signify that a company
has nothing to hide, loves its customers
and shares our mission to create ever-
improving experiences for everyone.”




Qur average Feefo rating for 2019,
based on 1,754 reviews was 4.7 out of 5.
The average Trustpilot rating for 2019,
based on 2011 reviews was 4.6 out of 5.
When poor feedback is received we treat
each case individually and attempt to
resolve the issue with the customer.
This feedback is monitored alongside
complaints data and where emerging
trends are noted we seek to design and
implement solutions to fix the problem.

Customer service awards

Once again the Group has been acaedited
with the Government backed Customer
Service Excellence quality mark. This is the
seventh year in a row that we have retained
the standard and it follows an in-depth
external assessment against criteria which
research has indicated are a priority for
customers, with particular facus on delivery,
timelinass, information, professionalism
and staff attitude. The standard puts an
emphasis on developing customer insight,
understanding the user's experience and
robust measurement of service satisfaction
and is designed to offer organisations a
practical tool for driving customer-

focused change.

The final written report was very positive as
demonstrated by this short excerpt:

"STB remains the only bank in the UK to
achieve the Customer Senvice Excellence
Standard {"CSE'). STB continues to
demonstrate a high level of cammitment
to staff development, staff insight is used
to develop new produds to a cutting edge
standard and this was confirmed by staff
who met with the assessor. Customer
satisfaction is measured reqularly with
industry-recognised methods such as
Feefo and Trustpilot feedback and surveys.
Targets for customer satisfaction are very
high and satisfaction is continuing to
increase, Ongoing certification to the CSE
Standard continues to be fully justified and
well-deserved.”

Feefo Trusted Awards

For the fourth year running we have been
recognised through the Feefo Trusted
Awards. In February it was announced that
the Group had won the following awards
from Feefo:

+ STB Savings — Gold Trusted Award
* Moneyway — Platinum Award
* V12 Retail Finance - Platinum Award

This independent seal of excellence
recognises that our businesses are
delivering exceptional experiences, rated
by real customers. As Steph Heasman,
Director of Customer Success at Feefo,
says, "The Trusted Service award has
always been about recognising companies
that truly excel.”

Employees

Employee voice

We are wholly committed to our strategic
objective of making Secure Trust Bank a
great bank for both customers and
colleagues. We firmly believe that effective
two-way communication contributes
towards innovation and the achievement of
crganisational goals resulting in increased
job satisfaction, greater influence and better
opportunities for the development of teams
and individuals.

We continue to operate Employee
Councils in each of cur businesses,
consisting of department representatives
elected by their colleagues. The Councils
meet on a regular basis and encourage a
two-way process of communication
between employees and senior managers.
In 2018 we introduced a Group Employee
Coundil that meets with the Chief
Executive Officer, HR Director and a Board
nominated independent Non-Exeautive
Director; and this has been continued in
2019. The aim of the Employee Councils is
to promote further employee engagement
and provide a structured forum for teams
to share their views, enabling colleagues to
provide insight, feedbadk and suggestions
to make Secure Trust Bank Group a great
place to work.
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Feefo rating

4.7 stars

Average Feefo rating for 2019
2018: 4.7 stars

Feefo ratings and comments can be found
on our websites:

www.securetrustbank.comn
www.moheyway.co.uk

www.vi2retailfinance.com

IAMGE REMOVED

Customer Service Excellence

7th year
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

IAMGE REMOVED

Trust Index score

79%

From 2019 afl staff survey
2018: 77%

GRAPHIC REMOVED

29th in the UK Best Workplaces
Large Category

GRAPHIC REMOVED

14th in the UK Best Workblaces for
Women Category

In 2013 we became an accredited Investors
in Peaple Emplayer, progressing to the
highly coveted Gold Standard in
Novermber 2016, Whilst being incredibly
proud of this achievement, feedback
through the Employee Councils suggested
that the Group should consider an
altemnative accreditation that is more
reflective of its strategy and one that is
completed on an annual basis alongside
the annual employee opinion survey.

To deliver this, for the first time at the end
of 2018 the Group completed the survey
conducted by the Great Place to Work®
{'GPTW®} institute. This comprehensive
survey explored the levels of trust and
employee engagement across the Group,
As a spedialist in workplace culture,
partnaring with over 10,000 organisations
annually, GPTW® enabled benchmarking
of Secure Trust Bank’s employee
experience against many of the most
progressive workplaces in the UK.

In November 2019 the Group completed
the survey for the second time and we
were extremely proud to achieve an
increase in the Trust Index from 77% in
2018 to 79%. This was based on a response
rate of 85%, with 82% of respondents
stating that ‘Secure Trust Bank is a

Great Place to Work' compared to 77%
previously. The Trust Index is the average
of the core survey statements and used as
the Group’s key performance indicator in
respect of employee satisfaction.

We were delighted to be recognised at
the Best Workplace awards in May 2019,
being ranked 25th in the UK Best
Workplaces Large category and 14th in the
UK Best Workplaces for Women category.

As part of our commitment to continuous
improvement, we had previously focused
on three specific areas which we considered
would further enhance employees’
workplace experience at Secure Trust Bank.
We were therefore pleased that two of
these focus areas, Wellbeing and Reward,
were amongst the most improved areas
within the survey.

_As part of the ongoing focus on Reward,

in October 2018 we launched a transparent
pay and grading framework, working in
partnership with independent consultants,
the remuneration practice of Aon pic, and
throughout 2019 we have continued to
develop and embad this into the
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organisation. In addition, it was announced
that all employees could take an additional
day's holiday on their birthday and we have
further enhanced our family friendly
policies that had already gane significantly
beyond statutory requirements.

Employee development

Employee development remains a priority
and we have a comprehensive induction
programme for new employees that
achieves consistently high satisfaction
scores from attendees.

In addition, we continua to fund a wide
range of speciaiist professional
qualifications and provide all employees
with the opportunity to study towards an
external Banking Qualification as part of
their career development. The Banking
Qualifications are delivered by the London
Institute of Banking & Finance.

In addition to these professional
qualifications, we offer numerous other
development opportunities, These include
a comprehensive four level leadership
academy and ‘Connect and Learn’ that
enables colleagues 1o spend time in other
parts of the business and learn more about
their roles.

n 2019 we once again tock part in
National Learning at Work week to provide
& fotused platform to further engage
colleagues in their personal development.
During the week & wide variety of
development tools were available and
interactive sessions were delivered both by
the internal training team and alsc by
employees on both business related and
wider topics.

An area of increased focus during 2019 has
been the mental health and well-being of
employees. During the year we [aunched
our Mental Health First Aider Programme
and were delighted that more than 10%

of the warkforce volunteered for this
pragramme with more than 5% of the
workforce accredited. In addition, all line
managers completed mandatory training
on this subject to ensure that they are able
to spat early waming signs of stress in their
teams and have increased capability to
provide support,




Employee engagement
and recognition

Research has consistently shown a dear link
between enhanced levels of performance
and teams that are fully engaged and share
the values of the organisation that they work
for. The positive performance of Secure Trust
Bank Group is 2 result of the efforts of
employees, and to ensure that colleagues
are recognised for this contribution, there are
a number of schemes in place to celebrate
exceptional performance and behaviours.

These schernes together with our annual
incentive programme continue to help
embed excellence within the aulture,

These schemes inchide:

e thank you cards and Be valued awards:
colleagues can nominate their peers
whenever and as often as they like and,

in 2019, over 2,500 e cards were sent.
Where the behaviour has been exceptional,
iine managers have the opportunity to
reward team members with a Be Valued
award whidh includes a gift and certificate.

Customer Service Excelience Awards:
colleagues who go the extra mile when it
comes to exceptional intemal and extemnal
customer service are recognised at monthly
Customer Service Excellence Awards.

Qutstanding achievers: these are given to
colleagues who stand out for their fantastic
contribution to the business. Winners are
nominated by their peers and then
selected by a panel of judges. In 2019,

30 colleagues were recognised with an
incentive trip hosted by members of the
Group Executive Committee,

Incentive programme: our incentive
scheme links tangible performance targets,
which are based on our strategy and
values, to the outcomes of the scheme.

Long service awards: to recognise loyalty
and commitment to the Group, long
service is awarded at key milestones from
five years of service, with a range of
awards provided.

Gender diversity

In 2019, we published our second Gender
Pay Report and supportting commentary.
We are committed to diversity in the
workplace at all levels and the actions
outfined in the report will continue to
develop this further, particularly to improve
the position at senior manager lavel.

We cortinue to work dlosely with
Everywoman in progressing our Indusion
Agenda with the CEO being an
Everyworman Advocate and the HR
Director and Commercial Director V12
having been previously appointed as
Everywoman Ambassadors. In 2019,

the Sales Diractor in the Vehicle Finance
Division was also appointed as an
additional Ambassador.

To further inform the Diversity and
inclusion steering group we have entered
into a new partnership with the Employer
Network for Equality and Inclusion (ENET).
This has bean pivotal in progressing plans
through the completion of its TIDE
diversity benchmarking too! to identify
areas of focus, In addition, ENEI has
independently facilitated focus groups to
gain feedback on potential barriers to
fernale progression at STBG. The outputs
are being used to inform existing and
future development programmes as well
as the Group's wider strategy.

We have deplayed technology to remove
any potential bias in the language used
in job adverts and role profiles.
Furthermore, we continua to train all
recruiting managers to ensure that all
hiring adheres to equality and inclusion
principles and that al} 1alented individuals
have the chance to progress within the
organisation, We have also delivered
mandatory unconscious bias training for
all line managers.

Given the diverse nature of the Group,
which includes a high number of unique
rcles with spedialist skills, the Board was
delighted that 84 employees secured a
new role within the Group in 2019 with
52% being filled by fernale employees.

To further support its teams we have also
introduced an updated warkwise policy
with 2 more progressive approach o
flexible and agile working.

At the year-end, the split by gender of the
Group’s employees was as follows:

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMQVED

CHART REMOVED
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

Responsibility to
the environment

We recognise the importance of acting
responsibly in relation to the environment
and our Responsible Business Strategy will
include a new policy, an assessment of our
impact on the environment and set goals
and abjectives for managing this. Steps are
already being taken in this regard,

for example:

e All major office refurbishments include
the installation of energy

efficient lighting

Yorke House, the building in Solihuil
that we acquired in 2019 has been
designed around flexible/agile working
practices. The design principles included
targets to improve space use efficiency,
ta be met by deploying tactics such as
reducing hookable meeting rooms
and replacing with collaborative areas
and allocating areas to teams rather
than fixed desks to individuals.

Early indications are peositive

measured by occupancy rates and
feedback from colieagues

Greenhouse gas emissions

¢ The flexible working policy has been
revised in line with evolving workplace
design princples

¢ Following a successful 'Go Green’
initiative in the Retail Finance business,
this is being emulated in other areas of
the Group

As a financial services provider, our
operations do not have a significant direct
impact on the environment. The Group's
report on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2004
{Strategic Report and Directors’ Report}
Regulation 2013 s set out below. We now
consistently report information under the
Regulation and only emission sources
where accurate and consistent data is
available for the complete reporting
period have been included.

Scope 1 emissions resulting from the
combustion of natural gas for heating
buildings and fuel for business mileage,
and Scope 2 and 3 emissions assodiated
with the consumption of purchased
electricity are included within the GHG
repart. Scope 1 emissions resulting from

the private use of company owned/leased
vehicles have been induded for the first
time in 2019, as the data is now available.
This inclusion has led to an increase in the
overall environmental intensity indicator;
excluding these emissions would leave the
indicator unchanged at 3.5. All Scape 3
sources, except for purchased electricity
transmission, distribution emissions and
grey fleet have been excluded from this
report. We set 2017 25 the GHG baselina
year and subsaquent reports show
emissions for the current year and for
each subsequent year following the
baseline year.

In compiling this GHG report, we have
used the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard
frevised edition) and energy supplier
invoice data. Greenhouse gas emissions
are reported as a single total, by
converting them to the equivalent amount
of CO;, using emission factors from the UK
Government’s GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting 2017,

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are
shown below.

2019 Carbon 2018 Carbion

dioxide {tonnas)  dicwide RKonnias)

Scape 1 — direct emissions from combustion of fuel 223.7 259
Scope 2 - indirect emissions from electricity purchased 4215 4039
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions from purchased electricity transmission and distribution 1245 135.2
Total scope 1 to 3 emissions 769.7 565.0
Environmental intensity indicator (tonnes carbon dioxide per £1 million Group income) 4.7 35

Scope 1 epiuskans for 2019 includw tha private use of company vahicies, whersss this dats was pot svailabla in 2018. On & lcsfor-Jike basls, the envvonmental intensity indicator for 2019 would b 35,
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Social responsibility

We are very mindful of our need to act
responsibly in society. in part we meet
these requirements by complying with the
wide range of laws and regulations which
are applied to financial services companies
in the UK. The Group has a governance
framewark and range of policies which are
designed to ensure that we meet these
responsibilities and adhere to the highest
professional and ethical standards when
dealing with customers, suppliers,
employees, local communities and other
stakeholders, The scope of our Group-
wide policies and regulations include:

« Anti-bribery and corruption

* Anti-money laundering

* Employment Health and Safety
*» Whistleblowing

* Human rights and tackling
madern slavery

All staff are required to complete the
relevant regulatory training on an annual
basis with further training offerad

when required.

We also strive to go well beyond our
legal and regulatory commitments

when it comes to social responsibility.
We believe that our customer centric
culture helps to drive a positive approach
to sacial and community issues and we
already have a range of responsible
initiatives incorporated within business
as usual activities which impact positively
on local communities.

A series of established community focused
schemes are in place and our charity
committees continue to empower
colleagues from different business areas to
drive forward charitable activities. In 2019,
we supported 262 charities and the
enthusiasm of colleagues helped to
generate over £568,000 for good causes.

In addition, the STBG Volunteers Scheme,
which entitles all colleagues to use one
paid day to make a differenca in their local
area, resulted in over 700 wark hours being
donated to help create positive change in
the Group's local communities.

We also initiated a pilot mentoring scheme
with a local academy that supports young
people exduded from mainstream schoaol
with a view to rolling it out acrass the entire
Group. Our Employability Skills programme
also delivered employment training via a
rumber of community partners, including St
Basifs which supports young people at risk
of homelessness.

We are proud of the work done to date in
this area and we fully anticipate that our
ongoing partnership with Business in the
Community will allow us to identify and
positively address additional social

issues that are of high importance to

our stakeholders.

Non-financial
information statement

The Group complies with the non-financial
information reporting requirements
contained in sections 414CA and 414C8
of the Companies Act 2006, with the
exception of the requirement to have an
environmental policy. This is intended to
help stakeholders understand the Group’s
position on key non-financial information.
An environmental policy will be developead
in 2020

Information regarding environmental
matters, employees, social matters,
respect for human rights and anti-
corruption and anti-bribery matters are
included in this Managing our business
responsibly section.

The location of the other information
required is set out in the table below:

Reporting Requiremant Sactlon Page
Policy embedding, due diligence and outcomes Principal risks and uncertainties 40
Description of principal risks and impact of business activity  Principal risks and uncertainties 40
Desaiption of the business model Our business madel 4
Non-finandial key performance indicators Key performance indicators 18
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Stratagic Report

Managing our business responsibly
Our Section 172 Statement continued

Qur Section 172 Statement
This section of the Strategic Report describes how the Directors perform their duty under $172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in a

way that they consider would be most fikely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, having

regard to a range of stakehalders. in performing this duty the Directors must have regard to spetified matters and this section of the

Strategic Report describes ways in which this is done. The Board discharges this duty thraugh its decdsion making at meetings and by

other means detailed in the table below. Further details of how the Directors’ duties are discharged are included in the Governance

section on pages 62 to 119,

Long-term

The Board approves a long-term strategic plan and considers consequences of decisions in the long-term as set out in aur Viability
Staternent on page 50. investment decisions are made on the basis of establishing a fong-term sustainable business.

Our key stakeholders

Consideration is given by the Board and by management acting under authority delegated from the Baard ta impadis on our customers,

workforce, wider society and the environment. In many ways the requirements of our regulators also support the need to address the
matters required to be taken into account in performing the $172 duty, for example the way in which the requirements of the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime support the maintenance of high standards of business conduct.

The table below identifies key stakehalders and how we engage with them. That engagement may be shaped by the Board and s
taken into account by the Board in the performance of its role.

family of individuals wheo are
engaged in their roles is
essential ta bringing the
STB vision of straightforward
transparent banking to life
and fundamental to the
long-term success of the
Group. Itis crudial that our

people apply STB's values
and reflect our values in tha

way they operate.

workforce engagement and Chairman of the Group Employee Coundil. His role, supportad
by the CEQ), is to ensure that the emplayes voice is heard by the Board, Paul has attended
and chaired gach of the meetings of the Group Employee Coundil since inception and his
reports to the Board following these meetings are now a standing Board agenda item.

Folleowing his retirerent as a Director this role will be undertaken be Lucy Neville-Rolfe who
will continue to act as a conduit between the Group Employse Coundl and the Board.

Paul Marrow is also appointed as the Whistleblowers’ Champion and any issues raised
through the whistleblowing disclosure facility were highlighted by him and considered by
the Risk Cornmittae in 2019, This responsibility will be adopted by Ann Berresford following
his departure.

Each year the Group conducts a Your Voice staff opinion survey with Great Place to Work®,
The Board welcomes the result of the Group being ranked 29th best place to work in the
Large Company category and 14th best place to work for Wornen,

Following feadback raceived from our pecple, we have implemented and provided access
to a wide range of training, relevant to developing individuals both as STB employses and
to ensure they are satisfied with their development as people. Al staff are able 1o undertake
an externally recagnised qualification offered by the London Institute of Banking and
Finance Banking Certification. In 2019 we have provided additional facilities following the
purchase of new offices in Solihull which incorporates a more agile working environment.
The Board receives regular briefings from the CEQ on employee engagement and tha
Remunaration Committee conducts an annual review of workforce benefits

and remuneration.

Who? How? Where?
Customers We seek engagement from customers via the Feefo scoring system. The CEO reportstothe  Further details in
i Board on tha results and the performance of the Group in termss of Feefo scoresforms pat respect of Feefo

d
:Ie;:; t: ::‘ :rymlu:::;; Ey of the CEO's chjectives. The Risk Committea receives updates regarding compilaints scoring are set out
the Boarc‘l put throughout monitoring on behalf of the Board. This feedback helps shape and inform our products on pages 54 to 55,
the Group, our custornars and services. ]
are at the heart of We have a culture of ensuring the right outcomes are obtained for customers. The right Further information
everything we do, We focus  outcome for customers is more important than simple adherence to policy and pracess. is set out on
on undarstanding how our This is an example where our regulatory obligations further support our approach to this. page 54,
products and services can Particular attantion Is given to vulnerable customers. The Board receives reports on the
meet their needs and are treatment of vulnerable customers, including in our debt collection businass.
deliveredin a
straightforward and
transparent way.
Our peop|e The Group Employea Council was set up in 2018, augmenting and enhancing the existing Further information
Having a talented, diverse wark coundils by providing a more formalised reporting mechanism to the Non-Executive on employee

3 y Directors. Paul Marrow was appointed as the Non-Executive Director designated for engagement can be

on pages 55 to 56

Further information
on this can be found
in the Employee
Oevelopment
disdosure on
page 56.
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we use in our business.

questions at the AGM. The Executive Directors additionally provide investor presentations
following the interim and full year results.

Who? How? Where?
e Board interacts with the regulator through meetings with Directors an e Boa 5

Regulators The Board ith the regulator through gs with Di d The Board give

We have a duty to ensure senior management. regular consideration

that we engage vansparently  Engagement is also conducted through thematic reviews in which the Group participates. o mm"@

and proactivehy with and publications

our regulators. from the regulatory
sphere. Engagement
is often conducted
through UK Finance,
the relevant
trade body.

Shareholders The Chairman and CEO engage with our principal shareholders in order to understand theit  Further information

The views of the funds views. The Committee chairmen seek views of shareholders on significant matters relatedto  on shareholder

and individuals that back us their areas of responsibility, for example in relation to the Directars’ Remuneration Policy. engagement can

areimportanttaus asthey  The Chalrnen of each Committes, as well as the Senior Independent Director, are avaifable  De found‘or’v page

provide the capital which to meet with shareholders on request and both seek engagement and are available for 67 and within the
Committee reports

on pages 70to 105,

Wider Society

We adknowladge the need
to set 2 good example by
the way in which

wa operate.

We give due consideration
to the effect we have in
the communities in which
we operate.

Presentations to the Board are encouraged to address wider impacts of the proposal,
including stakeholder considerations.

We seek to engage with the communities in which we work and live and the Board receives
regular updates on that interadtion, ranging from mentoting children in local schools to
raising money for charity.

Further information
on this subject can
be found on

page 59,

Environment

Acting as a good corporate
citizen and reducing the
impact of our actions on the
environment is necessary
1o ensure the long-term
sustainable future of

the business.

Given the nature of the business of the Group, we have imited environmental impact through
emissions. Wa monitor the emissions we do aeste. With a view to heading towards carbon
neutrality, the Group has implemented technological solutions to minimise requirements to
travel and to facilitate inter-office engagement. Additionally, flexible working induding remote
working are encouraged throughout the arganisation resulting in reduced trave! and
consequential environmental impacts.

Further information
on this subject can
be found on

page 58.

Principal decisions/case study

Pension changes

In advance of the proposed changes arising from auto enrolment pension contributions, the CEQ and HR Director submitted a proposal to the
Rernuneration Committee to address the impact of the changes on the lowest paid staff. The proposal was to increase the employer’s contribution -
by an additional 1% to match the employees’ contribution of 4%. The alternative would have been to feave the employee to find a further 2% to
meet the required contribution or to opt out of the pension arangemaents entirely. The Remuneration Committee agreed that requiring the
employee to meet the additional cost entirely would encourage individuals to opt out of the auto enrolment scheme and might cause the individual
to be disadvantaged in the future. The Committes, having regard to the employee population, shareholders views and the wider implications,
agread with the proposal to increase the pension payment to a matched 4% for staff in grades 1-4.

Mergers and acquisition

Consdous that for any acquisition ta be successiul, it would nead to be in the interests of our stakeholders as a whole, the Board considered 2
strategic acquisition during tha course of 2019.
When reviewing the potential target the Board gave consideration not only to the financial impact but aiso the impact on shareholders and wider
stakeholders including the views of regulators, our people and customers.
Having conducted the review of the target, taking in to consideration all the elements and impacts on stakeholders, the Board concluded that it
vould not,lae sppropriate to proceed with the acquisition &t this ime,

& May 2020

the Board and signed on its behalf.
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Board leadership
Chairman’s introduction

Lord Forsyth
Chairman

IMAGE REMOVED

UK Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code’)
Statement of Compliance

The Code sets out principles relating to good govemance of
companies with a premium listing. The Coda is available at
www.frc.org.uk.

Throughout the period under review, the Company was subject
to the Code.

The Board confirms that from 1 January 2019 to the date of this
report the Group has complied with the principles of the Code.

The following sections of this report describe how the Board has
applied the principles of the Code and desaibes the Group'’s
governance arrangements.

Applying

the principles

of good
governance

62 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

On behalf of the Board | am pleasad to
introduce our report on Corporate
Governance. This explains the Group’s
governance arrangements, how the Group
has applied the principles of the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Code’)
during 2019 and adapted to the
introduction of the new Code.

2019 saw further changes and
davelopments in the Corporate
Governance of the Group as the Group
has continued to grow and to meet
evolving expectations.

Particular developments during
2019 include:

* Compeosition of Board: There have
been changes to the composition of the
Board during 2019 including the
recruitment of an additional
independant Non-Executive Director
and changes to the composition of
Board Committees. In 2020 we face the
retirement of Paul Marrow as a Non-
Executive Director, Chairman of the Risk
Committee and Senior Independent
Director. Paul’s experience has been
greatly valued and | am most grateful for
the role that he has performed at the
Group over the past nine years. it is a
matter of regtet that the Code is dear
that Paul would be unable ta perform his
current roles following the expiry of nine
years from his appointment. | welcome
David McCreadie as an independent
Non-Executive Director who brings
considerable banking experience and
who will be a great addition to the
Board. At the end of 2019 Neeraj Kapur,
our Chief Financial Officer, notified the
Group that he intended to take up a
new position. | would like to thank




Neaeraj for his contribution during his
tirne at the Group and wish him every
success in his new role. The Board has
embarked on the search for a
replacement, further details of which can
be found in the Nomination Committee
report. The Board continues to keep its
composition under review so that there
is an appropriate and diverse mix of
skifls and experience. There is a Board
Diversity Policy, information about which
can be found in the Nomination
Committee report

Culture: Our strategy is supported by
our culture, We are delighted to have
been ranked 2%th Best Place to Work in
the Great Place to Work® Large
Company category and 14th Best Place
1o Work for Women. This recognition is
welcome but does not detract from the
need to do better including in our
Gender Pay Gap. | am pleased that Lucy
Neville-Rolife has agreed to take over
from Paul Marrow as Chairman of our
Group Employee Council and as the
nominated Mon-Executive Director who
engagas with the workforce. In the
course of the year the Board approved a
statemnent of culture. The Board agreed
that the Group's cufture should be one
where there is a caring environment for
all colleagues and customers; diversity,
integrity, personal development and
team working are central to the way in
which the Group operates; doing the
right thing outweighs short-term profit
goals; change is openly embraced; and
individuals share in the success of

the Group

Strategy: Further changes were made
to the approach to the strategy of the
Group. The strategy was approved at
the Board Strategy Away Days in
September 2019

Remunaration: Remuneration-related
arrangements have continued to be the
subject of considerable focus building
on the work carried out in 2018,

Once again | am most grateful for the
work performed by the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and the other
members of the Remuneration
Committee in 2019

Ovarsight: We have reviewed and
adapted the oversight exercised by the
Board including in relation to the
information provided to the Board and
its Commitiees. The Risk Committee has
continued to spend a considerable
amount of time on oversight of
management actions involving
Information Security {including Cyber
Security) and Operational Resilience
which has been an area of focus of our
regulator and the Group.
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Board of Directors

trong leaders

IMAGE REMOVED

The Rt Hon Lord Forsyth
of Drumlean PC Kt

Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed to the Board on 1 March 2014 as an
independent Non-Executive Director and
appointed Chairman of the Company on

19 October 2016. Member of the Remuneration
and Mominatian Conimittees.

Skills and experience

Lord Forsyth is a former Chalrman of Hyperion
Insurance Group, and former Peputy Chairman
of JP Morgan UK and Evercore Partners
Intemational. He was appointed to the Privy
Councif in 1995, knighted in 1997 and joined the
House of Lords in 1999. He was a member of the
Haouse of Commons for 14 years and served in
Govemnment for 10 years, latterly as a Cabinet
Minister. His background in the public and
private sectors has given Lord Forsyth a broad
experience of matters relevant 10 the business
of the Group inciuding strateqgy, govemance,
operstians, marketing, risk and human capital,

Other appointments Include:

Lord Forsyth is a director of J&.} Denholm
Limited and Denholm Logistics Group Limited
and Chairman of the House of Lards Economic
Affairs Committee.

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Lynam ACIB, AMCT, Fifs
Chief Executive Officer

Appaointed to the Board on 13 September
2010. Chairman of the Assets and
Liabilities Committee.

Skills and experiance

Paul Lynam joined Secure Trust Bank as Chief
Executive Officar, having spent 22 years working
for NatWest and RBS. Prior to leaving R8S, Paul
was the Managing Director, Banking, for RBS/
NatWest's SME banking business across the UK,
Befora that Paul spant four years as the
Managing Director of Lombard North Centrat
PLC. During his career Paul has undertaken roles
in branch banking, business banking, corporate
and commerdal banking, asset finance, invaice
finance, strategy. performance management,
lending and central head office functions. Paul is
a non-execttive diractor of UK Finance, the
recognised trade body for the finance industry,
leading on Specislist Banks snd SME customar
interests. He also chairs the Specialist Bank
Strategic Advisory Committee. He is a Feliow of
the IFS University College and an Assodate of
the Chartered Institute of Bankers and the
Association of Corporate Teeasurers.

Other appointments include:

Paul is 2 non-executive director of UK Finance,
aswell as a member of the faculty of the Schoo!
for CEQs.
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Mr David McCreadie FCBI

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 17 December 2019
and appointed as a member of the Risk
Committee on 1 January 2020 and Nomination
Committee on 22 January 2020,

Skills and experience

David McCreadie has many years of banking
experience and is a Fallow of the Charterad
Banking Institute. He spant 22 years at RBS
Group holding leadership roles in a number of
RBS Group's retail banking businasses as well as
spending time in the retail branch netweork and
central head office functions. From 2004 to 2008
David was appointed the Chief Fxecutive Officer
of Krager Parsonal Financa based in Cincinnati,
USA, David joined Tesco Bank in 2008 and
became Managing Direcior with responsibility
for the banking and insurance businesses and
was also appointed to the Board as an
exacutive director,

His experience indudes banking, risk
management, govermance, consumerfadng
businesses and retaiiing.




IMAGE REMOVED

Ann Berresford ACA

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 22 November 2016
and appointed Chairman of the Audit
Committee on 23 Septembar 2017. Member of
the Risk and Nomination Committees.

Ann will be appointed as the Senior
independent Director and Whistleblowers'
Champion following the closa of the 2020
Annual General Meating.

Skills and exparience

Ann Berresford is a Chartered Accountant with a
background in the financial services and energy
sectors. She has held positions at Bath Building
Sodiety, the Pensions Regulator, Hyperion
Insuranca Group, Triodos Renewables plc, the
Pension Protection Fund, Bank of Ireland Group,
Clyde Petroleumn plc and Grant Thomton,

Her career has given Ann experiences in
martgages, pensions, operations, accounting,
finance and risk.

Other appointments indude:
Ann is a non-executive directar of Albion
Venture Capital Trust PLC.

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Marrow ACIB

Independent Non-Executive Director
{Senior Independent Director)

Appointed to the Board 3 March 2011,
Appointed Chalrman of the Risk Committee and
Chairman of the Group Employee Council.
Member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Rermuneration Committee,
Non-Executive Director designated for
workforce engagement.

Skills and experience

Paul Marrow has over 40 years of banking
exparience and has, in the past, bean
respensible for the Commencial Banking and
Spedialist Corporate Banking business divisions
ol RBS Group in the UK and been the chair of
JCB Finance Limited. Paut holds banking
qualifications, gained by examination.

Othar appointments Include:

Paul is also an independent non-executive
diractor of Arbuthnot Latham & Ca. Uimited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Arbuthnot Banking
Group and providas consultancy services to
Arbuthnot Latham & Co.,, Limited.
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Victoria Stewart
Independent Nan-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 22 November 2014
Appointed Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 21 July 2017. Member ol the
Nomination Cornmittee. Victoria was appointed
1o the Audit Committee on 1 January 2020,

Skills and experience

Victoria Stewart has over 25 years of experience
in the finandal services sector and was for many
years a fund manager and investor in UK small
companies. Victoria has knowledga of corporate
structures and capital markets with particular
axperience in smaller companies listed on the
Main Market and AIM. She has held a number of
positions at Roya! London Group and Chiswell
Associstes {formerly Cantrade Investment
Management Limited and now part of Sarasin &
Partners). Her background has given Victoria
experience in ramuneration, governance,
corporate strategy, investor relations,
accourtting, finance and risk,

Other appointments include:
Member of the ICAEW

Corporate Govermnance Committee and
investment Committea.

Victoria is a non-exeautive director of Artermis
Alpha Trust PLC and JP Morgan Claverhouse
investment Trust PLC.
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IMAGE REMOVED

Baroness Lucy Neville-Rolfe
DBE CMG
independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 28 November 2018.
Member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees. Lucy will be appointed as the
Non-Executive Director designated for
workforce engagement and Chairrman of the
Group Employee Council following the 2020
Annuai General Meeting.

Skills and axperience

Baroness {Lucy) Neville-Rolfe DBE CMG has had
a distinguished career in business and in public
service. She became a member of the House of
Lords in 2013 and was a Minister in the Business
and Culture Departments and in HM Treasury
from 2014-2017. In the period 2010-14 she was
anon-executive director of [TV plc, of Metro
AG, of 2 Sisters Food Group, of PWC’s Adwsory
Board and Chairman of EuroCommerce in
Brussels. Earlier in her career she was a civil
servant in No 10 Downing Street and the
director of the Deregulation Unit in the Cabinet
Office. Lucy was an executive at Tesco plc for 15
years including serving for over six years on the
main bhoard. Her experience indudes customer
facing businesses and financial services,
communications, corporate strategy and ME&A,
economic issues, regulation and govenance
experience Bs a COMpany secretary and a
non-axecutive director and Chairman.

Other appointments include;

Lucy is cumrently a non-executive director of
Capita plc and of Health Data Research UK.
Sha is also a director and Trustee of Thomson
Reuters Founders Share Company Limited,

Lucy is the Chairman of the UK-ASEAN Business
Coundil and Chairman of Assured Food
Standards (Red Tractor),

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Myers ACIB

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 28 Navember 2018,
Membaer of the Nomination Committee.

Appointed interim Chairman of the Risk
Committee with effect from 31 March 2020.
Appointed to the Remuneration Committee on
1 January 2020.

Skills and axperlonce

Paul Myers has many years of banking experience,
gained initially in Bardays where he spent 24 years
in avariety of retail banking roles. He was part of
the small team that founded and built Aldermore
Bank, where he served as Chief Operating Officer,
Comparate Development Director and on the
baard as an executive director. Paul had a wide
range of responsibilities at Aldermore, including I7,
operations, transformation, markating and digital
as wefl as building and developing the retail and
SME savings aperations. After leaving Aldemmore,
Paul was CEQ of GKBK Limited, leading a team
that created and developed a digital banking
proposition, utilising data and Al to offer lending
solutions to under-served customers.

Other appointments includa:

Paul is now scting as an advisor to Ashman
Finance, a prospective bank SME property
lender and is due to be appointed to Ashman's
board as an independent non-executive
director. Paul is an Associate of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers.
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Neera] Kapur
Former Director

Appointed to the Board on 31 May 2011,
Resigned on é December 2019,

Skills and experiance

Neeraj Kapur has over 25 years’ financial
services experience spent in both the
accounting and banking industries. He holds

a degree in Aeronautical Engineering from
imperial College, London, is a fellow of the
Charterad Institute of Bankers in Scotland,

a feflow of the Institute of Directors, a fellow
and a member of the Cound! of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
{'lCAEW?), and Chair of the ICAEW Financial
Services Faculty. Neeraj quelified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1993 at Arthur Andersen and
spent 11 years working in professional practice,
He joined Royal Bank of Scotland {RBS7) in 2001
where he performed a nurmber of roles which
included Chief Financial Officer of Lombard
Morth Central PLC. His background has given
Neera] experience in accounting, finance,
professicnal services, govermance, operations,
marketing and risk.

Other appeintments include:
Meamber of the Council of the ICAEW,




Corporate Governance Report

Board leadership and
Company purpose

The corporate purpose, values and
strategy of Secure Trust Bank have been
developed and adopted by the Board.
The Board recognises the importance of
our people, at every level, embodying
STB' values and ensuring that this Is
reflected in our culture and therefore the
way in which we operate. All of our people
are set objectives aligned to our ‘Grow,
Sustain, Love’ framework ta further our
cammon aims, from the CEQ through the
remainder of the organisation. The Board
is satisfied that the purpose, values and
strategy are aligned with our culture.

In addition, each year, STB conducts an all
employee staff opinion survey to measure
our culture and to understand our
workforce’s cultural alignment to our
purpose, values and strategy.

Following the receipt of the condlusions
of the survey, conducted by Great Place to
Work®in 2019, togethar with ather routine
assessments on culture, the Board is
confident that the practices and policies
in place to promote the culture in the
organisation are aligned with the STB
purpose, values and strategy.

The Board acknowledges the importance
of our employees and the wider workforce
to be able to raise concerns in confidence
and, if they wish, anonymously.

Further detail on our Whistieblowing
arrangements and how our Group
Employee Council operates can be found
on page 81 and 55 respectively.

The Company, through the Chairman, SID,
the Non-Executive Director designated for
workforce engagement and each of the
Committee Chairmen ensure that there

is regular interaction with our key
stakeholders, designed to ensure that
stakeholder impact is fully embedded as

a cornerstone of Board discussions on
propasals. Further information on this can
be found in our Section 172 Statement on
page &0 and elsewhere in this report.

The Chairman of the Board and CEO
regularly meet with investors to

understand their views on strategy and
comporate governance and this is reported
back to the Board. The Committee
chairmen each seek engagement with
shareholders on significant matters relating
to their areas of responsibility.

Further detail on this can be found in
each of the Commiittee reports and in
our 5172 Statement.

The Beard has delegated authority to
executive management to run the business
and to implement the strategy set by

the Board. A brief description of the
responsibilities of the Executive
Committee and a desaription of the
governance framework can be found on
the Company’s website. Until 6 December
2019, two members of executive
management, the CEO and the CFO,
were members of the Board. The CFO,

Mr Neeraj Kapur resigned from the Board
on & December 2019. The search for a new
CFO is underway. Further detail regarding
the search can be found in the Nomination
Committee report on page 70.

The setting of a risk appetite and the
oversight of risk management practices is
an important part of the role of the Board
and the Board seeks regular confirmation
that the necessary resources are in place
for the Company to meet its objectives
and measure performance against them,

The Board meets regularly and, both as
a Board and through its commiittees,
provides oversight of and direction to
management, providing constructive
challenge, strategic quidance and
specialist advice.

Division of responsibilities

The Board is led by the Chairman who
leads the Board and is responsible for its
overall effectiveness and who encourages
a culture of openness and debate.

The Beard provides strategic leadership
to the Group, sets the Group's longterm
strategic objectives and exercises
oversight aver the implementation of the
strategy and the activities of management.
The Board is responsible to shareholders,
for whorn the Company generates value,
for promoting the long-term sustainable
suceess of the Group and enabling the
Bank’s continued contribution to the wider
society in which we operate.

The 2018 Code recommends that the
Board should appoint one of the
independant Non-Executive Diractors as
Senior Independent Director. The Senior
Independent Director should be available
to sharehalders if they have concerns
which contact through the normal channels
of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or

other Executive Directors has failed to
resalve or for which such contact is
inappropriate, During 2018, Paul Marrow
was appointed as the Senior Independent
Director. Paul Marrow is proposing to step
down from his roles at the Secure Trust
Bank Board at the 2020 AGM, induding
as Senjor Independent Director. Itis
proposed that Ann Berresford will be
appointed as the Seniar Independent
Director, in line with the succession plan,
following Paul’s retirement,

The responsibilities of the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Senior
Independent Director are outlined in
writing and a brief summary of their roles
can be found on the Compary'’s website.
The Board has delegated specific
authorities to its committees, as set out in
each committee’s terms of reference,
which are each available on the
Company’s website. There is a schedule of
matters reserved for consideration by the
Board. Matters reserved for exclusive
determination by the Board include the
determination of dividends, material
acquisitions or disposals and the issue of
new shares. The Board exercises oversight
of the work of its committees and receives
updates on the work of each committee at
Board meetings. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between the leadership of
the Board and the Executive leadership of
the Company.

intemal processes are in place to enable
the Board to have access to necessary
information and resources to function
effectively, including the maintenance of
online portals of up to date company
policies, timely dissemination of
information and access to independent
professional advice at the expense of the
Company. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary’s advice and services.
During the COVID-19 crisis, contingency
plans have been put in place to allow all
Directors to continue to have access to the
necessary information and resources to be
able to continue to effectively discharge
their responsibilities.

The Company Secretary pravides support
and acts as a first point of contact for the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors.
The Company Secretary is also responsible
for the induction of new independent
Non-Executive Directors,
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Corporate Governance Report

continued

Board membership
and meetings

Composition as at 31 December 2019

CHART REMOVED
Board attendance
Number of schaduled
meetings during 2019 10
Lord Forsyth {Chairman) 10/10
Baroness Neville-Rolfe 10/10
Ann Berresford 10/10
Neeraj Kapur! 9710
Paul Lynam 10/10
Paut Marrow
(Senior Independent Diractor? %/10
David McCreadie® 010
Paul Myers 10/10
Victoria Stewart 10710
' Resigned & Dacember 2019,

1 MrMarow was unable 1o attend tha mesting held in July 2019

due to finess,
1 Appointed 18 Decomber 2019.

Composition, succession and evaluation
Information on Board and Committee Succession Planning can be found within the

reports of the Nomination Committee.

CHART REMOVED

The length of service for each Non-
Executive Director is outlined above.
The Nomination Committee gave
consideration to the membership and
tenure of the Board as a whole and
considered proposals for refreshing
membership when evaluating the Board
composition. Further information about
the role of the Nomination Committee is
available on pages 70to 72.

Audit, Risk and
Internal Control

Information on our Audit, Risk and Internal
Control practices and how we have
complied with the Code can be found in
the reports of the Audit Committee and
Risk Committae on pages 73 (audit} and
78 (risk).

Conflicts of interest

All Directors are required to disclose to the
Board any outside interests which may
pose a conflict with their duties to the
Group. The Board is required to approve
any actual or potential conflicts of interest.
On appointment new Directors are
required to disdose their other interests.
Conflicts of interest are also governed by
the Articles of Association of the Company
and company law. Directors are under a
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continuing obligation to disdose extemal
appointments and to confirm that they
continue to have sufficient time to
discharge their duties to the Group.

An intemnal schedule of conflicts

is maintained.

Financial reporting

A description of the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the preparation of
the Annnal Report and Aceounts is set out

on page 109.

The approach taken by the Board to
ensuring that the Annual Report and
Accounts are fair, balanced and
understandable is set out on page 108
and the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance is set out in the
Strategic Report starting on page 02.

An explanation of the business model and
the strategy for delivering the objectives of
the Company are set out on pages 04 and
16 respectively.

A staternent of the responsibility of the

external auditors in relation to the report
and accounts is set out on page 114.

The basis on which the Board reached its
decision to adopt the going concemn basis
of accounting is described on page 50.




Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the
Group’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system
is designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk of faflure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance
against the risk of material misstatement or
loss. The systems of intemal control were
in place throughout the year in review and
up to the date of the approval of the
Annual Report and Accounts.

The Board, through the Risk Commiittee,
cortfirms that in reviewing the annual report
it has complated a robust asssssment of the
Group's emerging and principal risks and
has included a description of its principal
risks as set out on pages 40 to 49.

The Board has adopted a Group risk
appetite statement which sets out the
Board’s attitude to risk and internal control.
Key risks identified by the Directors are
formally reviewed and assessed at least
ance a year by the Board and are also
reviewed by the Risk Commitiee at its
meaetings. Key business risks are also
identified, evaluated and managad on an
ongoing basis by management. The Board
and the Risk Committee also receive
regular reports oh any materiaf risk
matters. Significant risks identified in
connection with the developmaent of new
activities are considered by the Board and
the Risk Committee in conjunction with the
approval of any such new activity.

The effectiveness of the internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board
and the Audit Committee, which also
receives reports of reviews undertaken
by the intemal audit function, The Audit
Committee also receives reports from
the external auditors, Deloitte LLP, which
indude details of internal control matters
that they have identified, Certain aspects
of the system of internal control are also
subject to regulatory supervision, the
resufts of which are monitered dosaly by
the Board and its Committees.

Key elements of the Group’s system of
interal control indude regular meetings
of the executive and business unit risk
committees, together with annual
budgeting, monthly financiat and
operational reporting for all businesses
within the Group. Conduct and compliance
are monitored by management, the Risk
team, Internal Audit and Compliance and,
to the extent necessary to support its audit
repatt, the extermnal auditor. Oversight is
also exerdsed by the Board and the Audit
and Risk Cormnmittees,

The Board reguiarly reviews actual and
forecast performance compared with
annual plans as well as other key
performance indicators as described
on page 18,

The Group's policies and procedures
are reviewed and regularly updated and
a training programme applhies in relation
to the roliout of policies.

Remuneration

Information on aur remuneration practices
and how we have complied with the Code
can be found in the report of the
Remuneration Committee.
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Statement by the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

Lord Forsyth
Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

GG

The Board has
concluded it is both
performing well and
is effective.”

I am pleased to present the report of the
Nomination Committee in respect of
2019 in what has been a busy year for
the Committee.

In February 2019 the Committee assessed
the effectiveness and compasition of the
Board and its Committees and the balance
between independent Non-Exacutive
Directors and Executive Directors in line
with the 2018 UK Corporate Gavernance
Code. The Committee recommended to
the Board that it consider a search for a
further independent Non -Executive
Director, culminating in the appointment
of David McCreadie in December 2019
and his appointment to the Nomination
and Risk Committees in January 2020.
David's appointment will further enhance
the collective skill and experience of the
Board and | look forward to working with
David in 2020. David has recsived 2
thorough induction to his role and has had
the opportunity to meet senior members
of the leadership team, the Board and
other employees. His induction will
continue throughout the first half of 2020
and It is expected to have completed by
the AGM in 2020, Having been appointed
to the Board in 2018, both Lucy Neville-
Rolfe and Paul Myers are now emhedded
into their roles on the Board and the
Committees to which they are appointed
following successfu! completion of

their induction.

With the antidpated and regretted
departure of the Senior Independent
Director at the 2020 AGM, following nine
years of servioe on the Board, the
Committee has led the implamentation of
the succession plan. Ann Berresford is
assuming the additional role of Senior
Independent Director as well as absarbing
the Whistleblowers’ Champion
responsibilities into her remit as Chair of
the Audit Committee, and Paul Myers will
be succeading Paul Marrow as Chairman
of the Risk Committee, both subject to
regulatory approval at the date of

this report.
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In December 2019, following the
resignation of Neeraj Kapur, the
Committee, with the assistance of the
Company Secretary, led 2 competitive
search tender to appoint an extemal
search consultancy to handle the external
recruitmant search for a new Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer to be
run in parallel with open advertising.
Following a tendering process, Ridgeway
Partners were selected to assist in the
search. None of the Directors or the
Comypany had an existing relationship with
Ridgeway Partners,

The Committee worked with Ridgeway
Partners towards the end of 2019 to
determine the search criteria for the
recruitment process, having regard to both
the Board's Diversity Policy, the Board and
Committee effectiveness evaluations
conducted in 2019 and the skills and
experience of the Board, The search

is ongoing.

The Board underwent a questionnaire
based perfarmance evalustion in October
2019 which was conducted by the
Company Secretary under my direction.

in addition, | have conducted individual
evaluations with each of the Non-Executive
Directors; and Paul Marrow, as Senior
Independent Director, has undertaken an
evaluation of me as Chainnan, seeking
feedback from both the Executive and
Norm-Executive Directors.

The outcomes of those various evaluations
are consistent with a Board continuing to
evolve a new dynamic. | am pleased to
report, however, that the Board has
conduded it is bath performing well and is
effective. Further information on the
evaluations can be found on page 71,
together with information on the activities
of the Committee throughout 2019.

Lord Forsyth
Chairman of the Nomination Committee




Nomination Committee report

Nomination Committee
membership and meetings
Composition

I:CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Namination Eligible to

Committes sttand
Number of meaetings
during 2019 5 5
Lord Forsyth 5 5
Ann Barresford 5 5
Paul Marrow 5 5
Paul Myars 5 5
Baroness Nevilie-Ro¥e 5 5
Victoria Stewart 5 5
David McCreadie' 0 0

' Appoirged 18 December 2019,

As at 31 December 2019 the Nomination
Committee comprised six members and
was compliant with the Code provision
regarding the composition of the
Nomination Committee throughout 2019.
The Chairman of the Committee is

Lard Farsyth.

The Nomination Committee meets as
frequently as its Chairman may require and
also at regular intervals to deal with routine
matters and in any event not less than
twice in each financial year. The Committee
held three routine meetings during 2019
and two ad hoc meetings.

The attending Directors are shown in the
table to the left.

The Company Secretary or their altemate
acts as Secretary to the Nomination
Committee. Other individuals attend at the
request of the Nomination Committee
Chairman. When appropriate during the
year the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer attended meetings.

The Chairman of the Nomination
Committes reports to the Board on the
outcome of Committee meetings and
any recommendations made by

the Committee.

Role and activities of the
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee assists the
Board in discharging its responasibilities
relating to the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst
other matters, evaluating the balance of
diversity, skills, knowledge, independence
and experience of the Board, and makes
recommendations to the Board on such
matters, The Nomination Committee also
leads the process for appointments,
checking that plans are in place for orderly
succession and considers succession
planning, both for the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors, taking into
account the skills and expertise that will be
needed on the Board in tha future and
how this can support developing diverse
talent within the Company.

Board effectiveness and Non-
Executive Director evaluation

During 2019 the Board conducted an
internally facilitated review of the
effectiveness of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors using 2
combination of questionnaires and face-to-
face meetings. The Committee reviewed
the results of the effectiveness reviews and
the individual Directors’ performance
evaluations when assessing the
composition of the Board Commiittees and
the contribution made by the individual
Directors. The Committee noted that the
conclusion to the Board effectiveness
review was that the Board was performing
well and exercising the right level of
judgement with due regard to the duties
placed on Directors under company faw,
including section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006. The Committee noted that the
Directors had been mingfuf of the
provisions of the Code and their
responsibilities as Directors and, where
applicable, as senior managers under the
Senior Managers Regime when reaching
their assessment of Board effectiveness
and individual Director contributions.

The 2019 Board effectiveness review
highlighted that there could be
improvement in the quality, and a
reduction of the quantity, of information
provided to the Board and its Committees
which would assist the Board in effectively
overseeing the performance of the
business and in assisting and advising
executive managerment in driving
performance forwards. The Board further
acknowledged that demarcation between
Executive and Board responsibifity should
be further articulated and steps have been
taken to address this.

The Committee reviewed the
independence of each Non-Executive
Director. The Committee, following a
rigorous review and evaluation, considers
that Paul Marrow remains independent in
both character and judgement, and his
judgement unaffected by his tenure at
Secure Trust Bank or appointments at other
companies. The Cormmittee admowledged
that the Code outlines that a tenure of nine
years from first appointment could impair

a non-executive director’s independence
and note that Paul has decided not to
stand for re-election at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting.
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The Board, upon the recommendation of
the Committee, is satisfied that all of the
Non-Executive Directors are independent
Non-Executive Directors within the
meaning of the Code and that Lord
Forsyth, on his appointment as Chairman,
met the independence criteria set out in
the Code.

Board training
and development

The Board receives detailed reports from
execttive management on the
performance of the Group at its meetings.
Updates are provided on relevant legal,
corporate governance and financial
reporting developments. In addition,

the Board, upon the recommendation of
the Committee, adopted 2 training
programme during 2019 and received
formal training from both interal and
extemnal experts on topics including
corporate governance, information security
risk, anti-money laundering and counter
terrorist firancing, opportunities in
harnessing FinTech and on ‘culture

and values’,

Directors ara also encouraged to attend
extemal seminars on aress of relevance to
their role and to keep a record of their
extamal training. A training plan for 2020
has been developad with a focus on
strategic, regulatory and technology
matters, with a sessicn on Finandial Crime
and the responsibilities of the Board
delivered in January 2020.

Succession planning
and recruitment

The Momination Committee has
considered the Company’s succession
plans and focused on Board {executive
and non-executive} and Senior Manager
succession, Consideration has been given
1o potential internal candidates, short-term
solutions in the event of unanticipated
changes in circumstances and external
recruitment as well as realiocating
responsibilities on a short-term ot longer
basis. The need for regulatory approval of
the persons performing Senior Manager
functions under the Senior Managers
Regime is incorporated into the
suggestions of proposed individuals
outlined in the succession plan.

The Committee, when considering the
written succession plan for the Board and
Senior Management, reviews the
contingency (immediate) medium (1-2
years) and longer-term (2-3 years)
proposals and gives consideration to
developing internal talent and capability in
the medium to long term and external
hires, as well as intemal candidates, in a
contingency scenario. The Committee also
receives updates on the mentoring
pragrammes and maore information on
developing a diverse talent pipeline can
be found on page 60.

The recruitment process which eulminated in
the appointment of David McCreadie was
conducted with the assistance of an extemal
recruitment consultant, Kom Ferry LLP.

None of the Directors or the Company had
an existing refationship with Kom Ferry LLP
The selection of candidates for interview was
made in accordance with the Boards policy
on diversity as set out befow and against
chjective criteria. The Commiittee had also
reviewed the Board’s effectivenass and skills,
having regard to the strategy of the Group
and the tenure of the remaining Board, and
used the resulting analysis to help determine
a candidate profile.

With the upcoming retirement of Paul
Marrow, the Committee reviewed the
composition of each of the Risk and Audit
Committees and noted that the
opportunity could be taken to increase the
diversity of the Audit Committee.

The appointment of Victoria Stewart was
subsequently recommended to the Board
and her appointment confirmed with
effect from 1 January 2020. Additionally,
following his appointment to the Board in
December 2019, David McCreadie was
recommended to join the Risk Committee
and the Nemination Committee.
Following these appointments, the
Nomination Committee believes that the
composition of the Committees will be
appropriate with each committes having
the right balance of skills and experience
and, in the case of the Audit Commitiee,
with improved diversity.

The succession plan for Paul Marrow is
being implemented with Paul Myers
proposed to succeed him as Chairman of
tha Risk Committee and Ann Berresford
stepping into the role of Senior
Independent Director, subject to
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regulatory confirmation, Both individuals
have significant relevant experience for
their new roles and were considered
natural candidates to succeed

Paul Marrow.

Following the resignation of Neeraj Kapur,
the succession plan for his role is being
implemented with internal individuals
fulfitfing some aspects of his role to
provide continuity in anticipation of his
departure at the end of March 2020,
Ridgeway Partners have simultaneously
assisted, at the Committee’s behest, in
developing the role description to ensure
that a diverse range of candidates are
encouraged to apply and to ensure that
the rnost suitable short list of candidates is
able to be considered.

Board policy on diversity

The Board appointrment process and
composition of the Board is overseen by the
Nemination Committee. The Nomination
Committee conducted the annual review of
the Board Policy on Diversity, which outlines
the Group' commitment to providing equal
opportunities and the Board’s bslief that
dwaersity indludes gender, race, ethnicity, age,
disability, religious belief, sexual orientation,
marital status, gender reassignment and
pregnancy {together ‘Diversity’).

Any appointments made to the Board are
made on merit, against objective criteria
and with due regard for the benefits of
Diversity on the Board, Appointments to
the Board are made having regard to the
balance of knowledge, skills, Diversity and
experience of the Board at the time of the
appointment and having regard to
long-term planning in relation to Board
comnposition and strategy. The Board

has not, however, set any measurable
targets for Diversity on the Board.

Further information on the gender balance
of those in senior management and their
direct reports is found on page 57.

Afuli copy of the terms of reference for
the Nomination Committee can be
obtained by request to the Company
Secretary or via the Group’s website at
www.securetrustbank.com




Statement by the Chairman
of the Audit Committee

FMAGE REMOVED

Ann Berresfard,
Chairman of the Audit Committee

(43

The review enabled
the Committee to
recommend to the
Board that it approves
the going concern and
viability statements.”

| am pleased to present the report of the
Audit Committee for the finandial year
ended 31 December X019, As well as
routine ‘business as usual items’, we have
reviewed and monitored the adoption of a
hedging strategy and the subsequent
technical accounting relating to the
derivatives programme, received a series
of internal audit reviews in respect of the
ongoing Motor Transformation
Programme (MTP), which continues into
2020, and have reviewed our going
concern and viability statements in detail
following the letter issued by the FCA on
21 March 2020 to all companies scheduled
to report in March 2020,

In response to guidance from the FCA and
FRC in late March 2020, the Committee
has conducted a further review of the
going concern and viability statements
prior to the defayed publication of the
Annual Report and Accounts for 2019.

This review considered specific stress
testing, details of which are provided in the
statements on page 50, which assisted the
Committee in understanding the
implications of severe but plausible
scenarios on the Group's performance
and paositfon.

The review enabled the Committee to
recommend to the Board that it approves
the going concem and viability statements,

In response to enhancing the Group's risk
managament capabilities in interest rate
risk {'IRR’) the Group implemented an
interest rate hedging strategy using
bi-lateral derivative trades ("swaps’),
which was subject to a review by Internal
Audit before derivatives activity fully
commenced. We reviewed hath the
internal audit on the related risk
management and infrastructure and the
technical accounting arising from the use
of swaps before the first series of swaps
was contracted and then once again after
the first series of swaps had commenced.
More detailed information on swaps is
cantained in Note 5 an page 142, We were
satisfied that the correct approach had
been taken in this area, supported by
appropriate management controls and
infrastructure, and that the accounting for
the swaps was being recorded correctly.

The MTP was launched towards the end of
2018 and, given the significance of the
project to STB, we asked Internal Audit to
design and execute an ongoing assurance
programme with the objective of assessing
whether the MT was delivering against
programime objectives and risk metrics,
This work was co-sourced and conducted
with support from an independent firm
expert in programme delivery and the
output frorm the reviews is addressed
within the MTP. The assurance took place
throughout 2019 and will continue into
2020 as the MTP continues.

{ met with the Chief Internal Auditor every
month to discuss past and planned internal
audit activity and | have also met regularly
with the Chief Risk Officer. Internal audit
activity continues to address all categories
of risk across the business.

) have also met regularly with the external
audit partner to discuss the ongoing audit
work and the Committee will be camrying
out a formal assessment of the
effectiveness of the external audit process
in Q2 2020, Based on progress to date we
have recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Deloitte as auditors for
2020 at the 2020 AGM.

We welcomed Victoria Stewart as a
member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 1 January 2020 and Victoria
brings a wealth of business experience and
analytical capability which will corplement
the existing skilis of members, Paul Marrow
wilt be retiring at the 2020 AGM, and |
would like to thank Paul, on behalf of the
Committee and myself, for his sage
counsel during his tenure as a member of
the Commitiee.

Looking to the future we will monitor the
outcomes of the Kingman and Brydon
reports and the recommendations arising,
and their likely impact on the Group.

Further information on the activities of the
Audit Committee is provided in the
following report.

Ann Berresford
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Audit Committee membership
and meetings
Composition

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Audit  Eligible 1o

Committee sttend
Number of meetings
during 2019 4 4
Ann Berresford 4 4
Paul Marrow! 2 4
Baroness Naville-Rolfe 4 4

! Paul Marrow was unatdla to attand the Meeting on 31 July
2019 a3 ha wat unweil.

As at 31 December 2019 the Audit
Committee comprised three members
with Ann Berresford as the Chairman of the
Committee. Ann is considered by the
Board to have recent and relevant financial
experience and the Audit Committee as &
whole has competence relevant to the
sector in which the Group operates.

The Code provides that for smaller
companies, such as the Company, the
Board should establish an Audit
Committee of at least two independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of
the Company may not be a member of the
Committee. Lord Forsyth retired from the
Cornmittee on 30 January 2019 and
Baroness Neville-Roife joined the
Committee with effect from the same date,
prior to the first meating of the Committee
being held in 2019. The Company
considers that it has complied with this
provision throughout 2012,

The Audit Committee meets formally at
least four times a year and otherwise as
required, The number of planned
meetings held during 2019 and the
attending members are shown in the table
to the left.

The Company Secretary or their alternate
acts as Secretary to the Audit Cornmittee.
Other individuals attend at the request of
the Audit Committee Chairman and
during the year the external auditor fead
partner, Chief Exacutive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Internal
Auditor and a number of senior members
of the Finance department attended
meetings to report to the Audit
Committee. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee reports to the Board an the
outcome of Committee meetings and
any recommendations arising from

the Committee.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in,
amongst other matters, discharging its
responsibilitias with regard to regulatory
reporting, financial reporting, including
monitoring and reviewing the integrity of
the Company’s annual financial statements,
reviewing and monitoring the extent of the
non-audit work undertaken by external
auditors, advising on the appointment,
reappointment, removal and
independeance of external auditors and
reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit activities, internal

74 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

controls and risk management systems,
The ultimate responsibility for reviewing
and approving the Annual Report and
Accounts and the half-yearly report
remains with the Board. The Board ensures
the Annual Report, taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
position, performance, business model
and strategy. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in reaching those condusions,
induding reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements and assessing that
the narrative reporting in the front of the
Annual Report accurately reflects the
financial statemenits in the back. The Audit
Committee is supported in this assessment
by an effective external audit, the
assessment of intemal controls by internal
audit and by challenging management on
the integrity of finandial and

narrative statements,

A full copy of the terms of reference for
the Audit Committee can be obtained
by request to the Company Secretary or
via the Group's website at
httpsi/fwww.securetrustbank.com/
investors/corporate-information

Matters discussed at Audit
Committee meetings since
1 January 2019

The Audit Committee has a schedule of
meetings with standing agenda items.
Meetings are planned to coincide with key
dates in the Group's finandial reporting
cycle, enabling the Committee to deal with
matters on a timely basis over the course
of the year. In addition to standing agenda
itemns the Committee also deals with other
matters as they arise including, in 2019,
reviawing the technical accourting arising
from the hedging strategy adopted by the
Boatd in 2019, and significant judgements
required following the adopting of the
hedging strategy and the application of
IFRS 14

The Audit Committee reviewed and
approved its Terms of Reference, the
schedule of standing agenda items, the
Internal Audit Charter and the
engagement contract with the external
auditors. Other principal matters
considered are set out overleaf,




Financial reporting

The Audit Committee has reviewed the following matters in connection with the annual and interim financial statements and considers

that the Company has adopted appropriate accounting policies and made appropriate estimates and judgements:

Sublect area

Matters considered

Accounting policies, key judgements and
assumptions used in preparing interim and
annual financlal statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the key accounting judgements made by management in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2019, and the press releases and investor
presentations that were prepared when the financial statements were released.

In particular the Committee considerad at its meeting in March 2019 a papar on the key
accounting judgements relating to the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts. These induded
effective interest rate accounting, impairments and expected value of share option schemes.

In relatian to impairment provisions the Committee considered the adequacy of provision cover
for differant products, facters relevant to the probability of default and loss given default
assumptions used for Consurnar Finance products, and the lavel of overlay to the modelled
impairment prowvision.

The Committee considered key accounting judgements in respect of the 2019 Interim Report at
its maeting in July 2019. In particular, it considered the accounting treatment adopted following
IFRS 16 becoming effective and confirmed the reatment approved by the Comsmittee in
Novemnber 2018, The Committee reviewed and challenged key assumptions used in the
calculation of provisions under IFRS 9, including in respect of a fall in used car values, which had
the impact of increasing provisions in respect of the Mator portfolio for the first half of the year.
The Committee aiso considarad the accaunting policy in respect of the hedging strategy,
following on from a technical training session delivered 1o the Committee and wider Board in
June 2019. The policy is contained in Note 1.10 on page 135.

In its meeting in November 2019, the Committee considered the key judgements and assumptions
that were expected to be applied in respect of the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts, This focused
on loan loss provisions including an update to the assurnptions used in the IFRS 9 provision
modelling. It also considerad the treatment of a spedific VAT reclaim in respect of hire purchase
casts following discussions and comrespondence with HMRC and a worked example of the
treatment of hedge accounting. Income recognition and the assumptions usad in effective interast
rate calculations were also considered. Following discussion with management and taking account
of feedback from the extemnal auditor in respect of thess items, the Committea approved the key

jdgemants and assumptions.
The Committee considered updates to these judgements and assumptions at its mesting in
March 2020,

in making its recommendations to the Board to approve the annual and interim finandial
statements the Committee has taken into account matters raised by the external auditor on

matters of judgement.

Use of the gaing concern basis in preparing
the financial statements and long-term
viability of the Group

The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Group and Company are each a
going concem. The Audit Committee has reviewed management’s explanations as to the
appropriateness of tha going concern basis in preparing the Group and Company finandial
statements and has not identified any material uncartainties as to the Company’s abliity to
continue as a going concem for the period of 12 months from the approval of the accounts.

The finandal statements for 2019 also incdude statements that provide shareholders with the
Board's views on the long-term viability of the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewad and
challenged the basis for assessing long-term viability, induding the period by refarence to which
viability 5 assessed, the principa! risks to long-term viabifity and actions 1aken or planned to
manage those risks. This induded consideration of spedific stress tests related to the

COVID-19 outbreak.

Presentation of a ‘fair, balanced and
understandeble’ Annual Report and Accounts

The Audit Committee, having reviewed the content of the Annual Report and considering
relevant matters including the presentation of material sensitive items, the representation of
significant issues, the consistancy of the narrative disdosures in the *front half' with the financial
statements, the overall structure of the Annual Report and the steps taken to ensure the
completeness and accuracy of the matters inciuded, has advised the Board that the 2019 Annwal
Report and Accounts indude a fa, balanced and understandable'’ assessment of the Group and

Company's businesses.

The tablo above s not a complets kst of matters considered by the Comsnittes bua highlights the most significant mattars for the period in the opinian of the Audit Comemittes.
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External audit

The Committee reviewed and approved
the external audit terms of engagement,
the scope of the external audit, timetable,
materiality, audit strategy and fees.

The Committee maintains a close dialogue
with the external auditor and meets with
them without management at every
Cammittee meeting.

The Audit Committee reviews written
reports prepared by the external auditors
sefting out their audit approach and
conclusions on matters of judgement
impacting the financial statements, any
internal control findings identified during
the course of the external audit and

their independence.

The Audit Committee has monitored
Deloitte in their approach to their audit of
the Group and has considered the
effectiveness of the work of the external
auditors, the quality of the team, the scope
of the work and communications and fees
following the completion of the Interim
Review. The Committee also met with
management, including without Deloitte
present, to hear their views on the
effectiveness of the external auditors.

The Committee will conduct a formal
assessment of the 2019 audit completed
by Delaitte during 2020 and has so far
informally canduded that the external
auditors are performing well.

The Audit Committee was satisfied that
the level of audit fees payable in respect of
the audit services provided, being
£355,000 (2018: £270,000) was appropriate
and that an effective audit could be
conducted for such a fee. The existing
authority for the Audit Committee to
determine the current remuneration of the
external auditors is derived from
shareholder approval granted at the AGM
held in May 2019.

Independence of the
external auditor

Deloitte has also confirmed to the Audit
Committee that it has policies and
procedures in place to satisfy the required
standards of objectivity, independance and
integrity and that these comply with the
Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

The Group has agreed a policy on the
provision of non-audit services by its
external auditor. The policy ensures that
the engagement of the external auditor for
such services requires pre-approval by
appropriate levels of management or the
Audit Committee and does not impair the
independence of the external auditor, and
that such engagements are reported to
the Audit Committee on a ragular basis.
The external auditor will only be selected
for such services when they are best suited
to undertake the work and there is no
conflict of interest.

The provision of any non-audit services
provided by the external auditors requires
prior approval, as set out in the

table below.

The total of audit and non-audit fees paid
to Deloitte during the period is set out in
Note 6 on page 144. The non-audit
services fee of £69,000 (2018; £235,000) was
in respect of, but not limited to, the review
of the half-year accounts and other ad hoc
advice. In the case of each engagement,
management considered it appropriate to
engage Deloitte for the work because of
their existing knowledge and experience
or the arganisation, Non-audit fees were
192.4% of audit fees in 2019,

The Audit Committee has also considered
matters that might impair the
independence of the external auditor,
including the non-audit fees paid to the
external auditor, and has confirmed that it
was satisfied as to the independence of
the external audit firm Deloitte.

Deloitte were appointed as auditors at
the AGM held in May 2018, following a
competitive tender conducted during
2017. Information on the tender and the
appointment process can be found in the
218 Annual Report and Accounts.

Matthew Perkins is the audit partner from
Deloitte and can continue in this role until
the completion of the 2022 audit at

the latest.

Internal audit

The Group has an independent Internal
Audit function led by the Chief Internal
Auditor. The Chief Internal Auditor reports
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and they meet each month.

The Audit Committee reviewed and
approved the interal audit pian for the
year and monitored the activity of the
Internal Audit function throughout the
year. It also:

« reviewed other matters which are not
currently contemplated in the audit plan
but which may be appropriate for
indusion in the future

reviewed the frequency and coverage of
audits contained in the audit plan,
aligning these with the wider control
environment and the (emerging) risks

to the Group

* considered the risk and control matters
identified in internal audit reports issued
since the previous meeting along with
management’s responses to those
points and progress in taking action

to resolve control weaknesses

approved the Internal Audit budget
and resource plan for the year

* reviewed and approved the Intemal
Audit Charter

reviewed the annual assessment of the
overal! effectiveness of the governance
and risk and control framework provided
by the Intemal Audit function

L d

Approval required
Services not previously pre-approved regardiess of fee Audit Committee
Any engagement > £100,000 Audit Committee
CEO or CFO

Pre-approved services < £100,000
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* reviewed the outputs and management
respanse to Internal Audit’s ongoing
assurance activity on the Motor
Transformation Programme

reviewed the outputs of internal audit
reviews on aspects of regulatory
reporting, which continues as an
important focus area in 2020

* reviewed Intemal Audit’s conclusions on
staff behaviours in the context to the
Group's framework of values and culture

In addition, the Audit Committee assesses
the effectiveness and independence of the
Internal Audit function each year.

During 2019 the Committee reviewed the
performance of the Intemal Audit function
taking into account an updated
assessment catried out by the Chief
Interna! Auditor and the progress made
addressing areas for enhancement
identified in the 2016 external review, and
was satisfied as to the effectiveness,
quality, experience, expertise and
independence of the Intemal Audit
function. The next extemal effectiveness
review is scheduled for 2021 and the
Cornmittee will be reviewing
recommendations for this review during
the course of 2020.

The Committee was satisfied that intemal
Audit has the appropriate resources to
deliver the 2020 and 2021 internal audit
plan. In addition to the internal resource it
is also able to draw on a panel of external
subject matter experts.

Internal controls and
risk management

The Audit Committee monitors the
effectiveness of the Group's governance,
risk and control framework. A statement

approved by the Committee regarding the

operation of the risk and control
framework is set out on page 69.

During 2019 the Committee reviewed the
procedures for detecting fraud affecting
financial reporting, and a report from the
Chief Compliance Cfficer on the systems
and controls for the prevention of bribery.

Whistleblowing

The Chairman of the Risk Committee is the
Whistleblowers’ Champion for the Group.
Reporting on the effectiveness of
whistleblowing arrangements in place
within the Group, and adherence to the
Financial Conduct Authority Rules on
Whistleblowing, is presented to the Board,
forming part of the wider reporting of
concemns raised by the workforce,

The Chairman of the Audit Committee will
become the Whistlablowers’ Champion for
the Group upon the conclusion of the

2020 AGM,

Audit Committee effectiveness

During the year the Committee considered
and evaluated its perfarmance. It did this
by means of a questionnaire which
members of the Committee completed
and by taking soundings from other
attendess, induding the external auditor
and intemal auditor. The Chairman of the
Committee then collected the responses
and produced a report to the Committee,
The result of the evaluation was that the
Committee considered that it was
performing effectively.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

77

uedsy asueuiason ajeiodion




Corporate Governance Report

Statement by the outgoing Chairman
of the Risk Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

Pau) Marrow
Chairman of the Risk Committee

GG

| am pleased to present
the report of the Risk
Committee for the
financial year ended

31 December 2019.
This will be my final
report as Secure Trust
Bank'’s Risk Committee
Chairman as | stand
down from my roles

at the 2020 AGM."

| would like to thank Paul Lynam, Kevin
Hayes our CRO and all the Risk team for
their support during my tenure, As we
implement the succession plan in place,

| wish Paul Myers well as he takes up the
mantle of the Cornmittee Chairmanship
and, having worked with him on the Risk
Committee for the last year, have every
confidence in the Committee’s continued
success under his leadership.

I would like to welcome David McCreadie
as a new member of the Risk Committee.
David was appointed to the Board in
December 2019 and joined the Risk
Committee on 1 January 2020.

With significant experience in banking
including risk management and
governance, David is expected tobe &
valued contributor to the Risk Committee
and his appointment enhances the
collective experience and skill of

the Committee.

The Group has had separate Audit and
Risk Committees since 2011 and both
Committees have continued to oversee
the development and evolution of the risk
management and internal control
frameworks in 2019 as they have done
since 2011 and to date.

Managemant of risk is a key part of what
the Group does, As a Committee, we have
been involved both with assessing the
principal risks that impact the Group at a
macro-ecenomic and strategic level; and
also in assessing risk at a business level
when the Group seeks to develop new
business opportunities or products. As a
Committee, we had a continued focus on
the Motor Transformation Programme
throughout 2019 as various aspects

wete launched.

Throughout 2019 we have also considered
the risks and opportunitias arising from
Brexit and the actions the Group may
choose to take and have taken, noting the
limited direct impact Brexit wilt have on a
largely UK focused business. We have
continued 1o review and monitor the risk to
the Group as the UK progresses through
the transition period and will continue to
do so once more detail is known.

As a Committee we have monitored both
the impact COVID-19 has had on our
operational resilience and business
continuity plans, and the risks arising from
the pandemic evolving inta an economic
crisis. We have discussed the impact on
capital and the assumptions in our

rodels to enable the Board, upon the
recommendation of the Audit Cornmittee,
to assess the going concern and viability
statements and to agree the principal risks
to our business.

After becoming standing agenda items in
2018, we have continued our close scrutiny
of operational resilience, including cyber
and information data security. STB continues
to proactively evolve its practices and
protections in these areas as well as building
on lessons leamed both internally and from
the external market. The position continues
to be deveioped, building on the progress
already made to improve the pasition
through 2018, The Committee continies to
review STB5 current practices and polides
to ensure that we are abreast of challenges
in a radically changing threat landscape,
serutinising publicised external indidents to
ensure that the Group is protected against
simifar threats and ensure that potential
weaknesses are exposed and addnessed.
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As well as receiving updates from the
Committee, the Board participated in
specific Information Security Risk training
as well as a FinTech and Disruptive
Technologies Update during the course of
2019, building upen their focus on these
areas in 2018 and ensuring attention
continues to be focused on this key and
rapidly evolving area of risk and opportunity.

During the year we also reviewed
significant changes to our now separate
Recovery Plan as required under the new
regulation. Assumptions in our Recovery
Plan were also reviewed for correlation
with our ICAAP and ILAAP documents,
ensuring that the scenarios aligned both
for the modelled 'event’ and the expected
outcome. The [CAAP continued to be a
key focus for the Committea in 2019,
{ollowing close scrutiny in 2018.

We also reviewed the Group's risk
management capabilities in interest rate
risk (IRR) as the Group implemented an
interest rate hedging strategy using
bi-lateral derivative trades (‘swaps’).

The Committee received a training session
on the hedging strategy which was
attended by other members of the Board
and reviewed the impact that the changes
in IRR management will bring to the
operations of the Company and in turn to
our regulatory submissions. More detailed
information on IRR and our swaps is
contained in Note 5 on page 142.

The Risk and Compliance teams continue
to meet the challenge of developing
regulation and have provided the
Cammittee with effective oversight of the
risk landscape within the Group. We have
also considered regulatory updates
through regular reporting which includes
the outputs of the Compliance monitoring
programme and emerging regulatory
requirements, and in early 200 received a
training and update session on Anti-
Money Laundering and counter-

terrorist financing.

Further information on the activities of the
Committee during the year is provided in
the following report and further
information about risk-related matters can
be found in the sections of the report and
accounts on pages 40 to 49,

Paul Marrow
Chairman of the Risk Committee




Risk Committee report

Risk Committee membership
and meetings

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Risk Efglble
Committes  to attend

Numbar of mestings

during 2019 4 4
Paul Marrow 4 4
Ann Berresford 4 4

4 4

Paul Myers

Composition

The Risk Committee comprises three
members and Paul Marrow is the Chairman
of the Committee. Paul Marrow was
succeeded by Paul Myers as Chairman of
the Committee from 31 March 2020.

The Code provides that where a company
has a separate risk committee it shouid be
comprised of independent non-executive
directors, Paul Lynam retired from the
Committee on 30 January 2019 and Paut
Myers joined the Committee with effect
from the same date, prior to the first
meeting of the Commiittee being held in
2019. The Company considers that it has
complied with this provision during 2019.

The Risk Committee meets formally at
least four times a year and otherwise as
required. The number of plannad
meetings held during 219 and the
attending Directors are shown in the table
to the left. The Committee met a further
two times on an ad hoc basis.

The Company Secretary or their alternate
acts as Secretary to the Risk Commiittee.
QOther individuals attend at the request of
the Risk Committee Chairman and during
the year the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Risk Officer, Chief internat Auditor, Chief
Compliance Officer, Group Head of
Operational Risk, Chief Information
Security Officer, Group Treasurer and other
senior managers attended meetings to
report to the Committee.

The Chairman of the Risk Commiittee reports
to the Board on the outcome of Committee
meetings and any recommendations arising
from the Committee.

Role of the Risk Commiittee

The Risk Committee reviews the design
and implementation of risk management
policies and systems as well as risk-related
strategies and the procedures for
monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness
of this process; considers the Group’'s risk
appetite in relation to the current and
future strategy of the Group; oversees the
Group's ICAAP and ILAAP and outputs
from these; and exercises oversight of the
risk exposures of the Group,
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The Commilttee exercises its internal
control and risk management role through
the reports it receives from the ALCO, the
Model Governance Committee, the Chief
Risk Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Finandal
Officer and other members of
management and its engagement with
executive management, internal and
external auditors and consultants.

Other matters within the remit of the
Committee are the risk profile of the
Group, risk appetite, frameworks and
limits, the risk management operating
modal, risk architecture, the technology
infrastructure supporting the risk
management framework, operational risk,
conduct risk, credit risk, financial risk and
regulatory and compliance matters.

Matters discussed at Risk
Committee meetings since
1 January 2019

The Risk Committee has a schedule of
meetings with standing agenda items so
that all relevart matters are dealt with over
the course of the year. The standing
agenda is reqularly reviewed and updated
to include issues pertinent to Secure Trust
Bank in a rapidly evolving landscape.

Iterns included on the 2019 standing
agenda include Operational Resilience
and the Motor Transformation Programme,
In addition to standing agenda items the
Committee also deals with other matters
that arise during the year. In 2019 this
included, for axample, oversight of a
related party transaction, key regulatory
developments such as the extension of the
Senior Manager Regime, the oversight of
the risks arising from the implementation
and execution of the Motor Transformation
Programme and the appropriateness of
adjusting proposed remuneration for 2020

During the year the Risk Committee
reviewed its Terms of Reference, the
ICAAP and ILAAP and approved the
schedule of standing agenda items, the
Compliance maonitoring plan for 2020, the
business continuity plan, including the
business's response to a pandemic, and
the operational risk management policy.
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Risk Committee report

continued

The principal matters discussed during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Subjact sren

Matters considered

Group risk appetite statemant and key
risk indicators

The Group’s key risk appetite metrics, which are reviewed and approved on an annual basis.
The Committee reviews exceptions to the last quarter’s performance by reference to the key risk
indicatar metrics provided to each meeting.

Strategic risks

Strategic risks {those srising from the intemal environment and the external environmant that could
have an effect on management’s abifity to deliver on the Group strategic plan) are discussed and
challenged on an annual basis as well as in each meeting as they pertain to the items raised on

the agenda.

COVID-19

Review and approval of the assumptions and methodology adopted in specific stress testing.
This has enabled the Board, on the recommandation of tha Audit Committee, to assess and
conclude on the going concern and viahility statements in the fight of the virus outbreak.

Credit risk

Credit risk performance for all businesses and ‘deep dive’ reviews on status and plans for individual
account balances or porifolios that warrant spedific focus.

The Committee has a mandate to apprave some Graup-wide mandates and policies including
single counterparty limits and credit risk policies set for individual business areas.

Operational Resilience and risk, induding
Cyber, Information Sacurity Resilience risk and
Business Continuity

Oversight of the operational risk policy including matrics and KPi reporting and business unit
management risk and control self-assessment. Complaints data, gavernance, induding review of
the Group Govemance Manual.

Owersight of the business continuity plan, including the Company’s response to a pandemic,
flooding and other naturaf events, and other operational resilience reporting/KPs.

Oversight of the annual Operational Risk and Control Assessments,

The strategies undertaken within the Group to understand, identify, monitor and respond to oyber
threats induding the current state and plannied activily.

Devslopment of the reporting profile for risks undar the Motor Transformation Programme.
Year one of the pragramme has now been completed and dose menitaring will be maintained over
future phases,

Development of the Operational Resilience Plan and frameworks.

Capital and lquldity risk

The Committee has primary responsibility for reviewing and making a recommendation to the
Board on the Group's ICAAP and ILAAP and the Resolution and Recovery Plans. Specific matters
such as the Pillar 2A and Pillar 2B capital requiremnent, Pillar 3 disdosures and the results of stress
testing were reviewed and debated.

Regulatory and conduct risk

The Committee receives regular reports on the key risk indicators for regulatory, reputationat and
conduct risk. The Committee reviews the ragulatory risk assessment on an annual basis and
approves the annual compliance monitoring pregramme.

Whistleblowing

The Chair of the Committee had the role of Whistleblowers’ Champlon during 201%; this will be
transferred to the Chair of the Audit Committee in 2020. During 2019, the Commiittee has validated
through aversight and regular reporting that the amangements for whistleblowing remain eflective.

This tabla tanot 2 complete ket of mattars considered by the Camimities b kighlights the mast significam mattess for the pesicd in the opinfon of e Risk Committas.
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Regulatory, compliance and
conduct risk monitoring

The Committee oversees the management
of regulatory risk for the Group. The Chief
Compliance Officer presents an Annual
Compliance Report to the Committee and
responds to any challenge from the
Committee on the effectiveness of the
Compliance function.

The Committee receives regular reports on
key risk indicators for regulatory,
reputational and conduct risk, regulatory
incidents and key advisory activity of note,
horizon scanning and actions to implement
new and revised regulations or legistation,
and the outputs of the compliance
maonitoring programme. Tha Committee
reviews the Regulatory Risk Assessment on
an annual basis, and approves the annuat
compliance monitoring programme.

In addition, the Committee receives a
detailed review of financial crime focused
on Anti-Money Laundering in the Money
Laundering Reporting Officer’s {MLRO')
Annual Report, which is then presented to
the Board.

The Group has an extemally managed
whistleblowing 'hotline’ and quarterly
reports were provided to the Committee
and the Whistleblowers' Champion.

Tests have been completed validating the
adequacy of the framework, service
provider and internal procedures.
Responsibility for whistieblowing will be
transferred to the Audit Committee in 2020
with the Whistleblowers' Champion role
being absorbed into the remit of the Audit
Committee Chairman and reports
provided to the Board.

During 2019, regulatory changes have
included improvements o the
management information provided to the
Committee, in response to feedback from
the FCA in relation to bereavement
services, and implementation of the
extension of the Senior Managars and
Certification Regime to the regulated
subsidiaries (Debt Managers {Services) Ltd,
V12 Retail Finance 11d and STB

Leasing Ltd).

Conduct risk and culture remain a key
focus within the Group and are managed
through the Customer Focus Committee
which reports to the Board through the
Executive Committae.

Strategic and operational risk

The Committee oversees the management
of strategic and operational risk acoss the
Group. The Group Head of Operational
Risk presents annually an Operational Risk
Management Policy to the Committee and
responds to any challenge from the
Committee on the effectiveness of risk
management and risk governance
throughout the Group.

To assist in understanding how the risk
framework has embedded within the
Group and to challenge the effectiveness
of the risk management function, the
Committee receives a quartetly review of
material operational risk events/flosses,
performance against the key Operational
Risk Appetite Metrics, together with the
key findings from annual Risk and Control
Self Assessments. This indudes a key focus
on the effectiveness of the Operational
Resilience control framework and plan.

The Committee conducts an annual review
of the Group risk appetite statement and
the suppaorting metrics and recommends
the Group risk appetite statement to the
Board for approval.

In assessing strategic risk the Committee
has regard to the identified strategic risks,
which the Committee reviews annually.
When reviewing the strategic and
operational risks the Committee also gives
consideration to emerging risks, including
the likelihood and impact upon the Group.
Where appropriate these emarging risks
are identified through our Operational Risk
Management Framework and our Risk and
Controls Self Assessment and reported to
the Committee. More information on this
process can be found on page 48 and in
the Internal Control section on page &9.

In assessing strategic risks, the Committee
has due regard to the existing process and
intemal controls in operation and reviews
the recommendations from the Risk and
Cornpliance functions on how to adapt the
controls to mitigate those risks.

Credit risk

The Committee receives reports on key
risk indicators for credit risk, together with
quarterly assessments of each portfolios
credit profile including impairments, bad
debts, watch-lists, and any policy
exceptions, These assessments are
underpinned by the associated credit risk
policies which, together with the
Responsible Lending policy, set out the
credit risk framework which is reviewed by
the Committee at least annually.

Risk committee effectiveness

During the year the Committee
considered and evaluated its own
performance. It did this by means of a
questionnaire which members of the
Committee completed, The Chairman of
the Committee then collated the
responses and produced a report to the
Committee. The result of the evaluation
was that the Committee considered that it
was performing effectively.

Adull copy of the terms of reference for the
Risk Committee can be obtained by
request to the Company Secretary or via
the Group's website at:
www,securatrustbank.com

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 81

yoday aurweneD Biesodicy




Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Remuneration Report
Statement by the Chairman of the Remunera-

tion Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

(G

We have given
consideration to wider
workforce remuneration
and employee benefits
at most Committee
meetings held
throughout the year.”

On behalf of the Comimittee | am pleased
to present the Remuneration Committes
repont, including the Directors’
Remuneration Report, for the 2019
financial year.

This has been a busy year for the
Committee in which we have continued to
strengthen our oversight of remuneration
practice across the Group in 2 number of
argas. As set out on page 85, the
Committee has engaged in a number of
activities which encompass bath executive
and wider workforce remuneration.

Executive remuneration

During the last months of 2018 the
Committee, with the assistance of the
Cornpany Secretary, worked through the
timetable and key milestones to be
completed in order to draft, agree and
consult on a new Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which will be put to sharehalders for
approval at the 2020 AGM. This involved
the appointment of a Remuneration
Consultant, discussions with the Executive
Directors and a period of consultation with
the top 15 shareholders of the Company,
who own approximately 21% of the shares
in issue, Following a successful
consultation and discussions with the CEQ,
the Committee is pleased to present the
2020-2022 Directors' Remuneration Policy
{"2020 DRP’) which is set on pages 96 to
105 of this report.

In designing the 2020 DRP, we listened
carefully to feedback we have received
from shareholders, considered the
recommendations with regard to Executive
Remunaration in the latest Corporate
Governance Code and sought input from
our Remuneration Consultants.

Feedback was not sought from the Group
Employee Coundil, but the rernuneration
of tha Executive Directors has bsen
discussed inthat forum.

Remuneration proposals

The proposals are designed to achieve
the following:

* Close alignment with shareholders
through the introduction of a post-
employment Minimum Shareholding
Requirement policy

= Abetter balance between fixed and
variable pay by reducing fixed pay and
increasing the emphasis on long-term
performance through variable pay
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+ Strengthening the existing malus and
clawbrack provisions

The main changes proposed to the paolicy
and the CEO package, with further detail
in the 2020 DRP, are as follows:

1. Base salary

The Cornmittee is mindful that the current
CEQ’s base salary was above market
norms and places too much emphasis on
fixed pay. The Chairman, on behalf of the
Committee, engaged in discussions with
the CEO regarding his base salary and if
the 2020 DRP is approved by shareholders,
the CEO has agreed to a 25% reduction in
his current salary of £1.2 million to £300,000
effective from 1 April 2020, We are
undertaking a process to search for a new
CFOQ. The 2020 DRP includes a statement
that for any new executive appointed
going forward, base salery will be set ata
level appropriate to the role and the
axperience of the Executive Director being
appointed. Historic Executive Director
salaries wil not act as a reference point.

2. Pension

No change has been proposed since
employer pension contributions at 5% of
base salary are low in relation to market
norms for Executive Directors and are
aligned to the rate for the Company’s
employees who receive between 4-8% of
base salary depending upon grade and
pre-existing arrangements,

3. Variable pay

There are no changes proposed to the
current Policy maxima, as set out on pages
97 and 98 and which allow for an Annual
Bonus of up to 100% of salary and up to a
further 100% of salary in exceptional
circumnstances; and a TP of up to 100%
of salary.

However, the Committee proposes a
change 1o the LTIP grant level for the
CEO for 2020 compared to 2019

Undar the Policy the Remuneration
Committee may grant up to 100% of satary
under the {TIP. In 2019 the CEO was
granted an LTIP award of 50% of base
salary. Recognising that the CEO has
agreed to a substantial reduction in base
salary and to rebalance his fixed pay in
relation to variable pay, the Committee
proposes an LTIP grant of 100% of base
salary for 2020, which is within the existing
Policy fimit.




This represents a shift from fixed pay
toward long-term variable pay and will
further demanstrate the link between
CEQ remuneration and the delivery of
shareholder value.

4. Minimum Shareholding
Requirement {'MSR’) policy

In addition to an in-post MSR of 100% of
base salary built up over five years from
appointment from vested share awards,
the Committee proposes to introduce a
post-cessation MSR policy. Leavers will
have a requirement to hold the in-office
MSR or, if lower, 100% of their pre-
cessation shareholding for 12 months from
ceasing to be an officer or employee.

Any period of garden leave will reduce the
post-employment holding period.

Itis also important to note that good
leavers are permitted to retain LTIP
{pro-rated) which vests at the normal
vesting date and is then subject to a
further two-year post-vesting holding
period delivering sharehalder alignment
for up to five years. Similarly, where a good
teaver is permitted to retain deferred
bonus this vests at the normal vesting
dates rather than being accelerated.

In setting the MSR, post-cessation MSR
levels and the holding period we took into
consideration a number of factors,
induding the salary level for current
incumbents and historic and potential
variable pay opportunities and outcomes.
The Committee conduded that, at this
time, the proposed levels are appropriate
both in the current circumstances and for a
cormpany of Secure Trust Bank’s size,

The in-post level is a minimum
requirement and executives are
encouraged to build up a holding in
excess of this level. The Committee will
keep this under review.

5. CEO notice period

As part of the transition from the current to
the new base salary the Committee
proposes that if notice is served before the
end of 2020, base salary for the purposes
of determining the CEO's notice payment
shall remain at the pre 1 April 2020 level for
2020. Given the substantial reduction in
base salary this is an important part of the
transition in the Cormmittee’s view.

6. Discretions, clawback and
malus review

The 2020 DRP updates Remuneration
Committee discretions to include a
discretion to override annual bonus and
LT{P formulaic outcomes. We have also
strengthened the triggers of our malus and
clawback policy to include broader
provisions on corporate failure, failure of
risk management, regulatory non-
compliance and other events resulting in
substantial reputational damage for which
the Executive Director made a material
contribution. Further details can be found
on page 99.

Owr existing Directors’ Remunaration
Policy was approved overwhelmingly by
our shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting in 2017, with 96% of votes in
favour. We hope that shareholders will be
as supportive of this updated 2020 DRP.
We encourage an active interest from our
investors in our Remuneration Policy and
practices, we welcome dialogue with
shareholders on remuneration, and seek to
engage regularly with shareholders on this
impaortant subject.

Performance and variable pay
outcomes for the year ended
31 December 2019

For the financial year ended 31 December
2019, Executive Directors were eligible for
an annual bonus award of up to 100% of
salary, subject to stretching pedformance
metrics based on a balanced business
scorecard of finandal, risk, strategic,
customer, operational and staff metrics.

The Board agreed the 2019 financial year
budget at its meeting in November 2018,
which induded targets relating to the
Financial KPls set out i the Strategic Report
on page 18, The performance objectives set
for the Executive Directors for the 2019
financial year reflected elaments of those
KPls. Additional strategic targets were set,
specifically relating to the non-financial
performance metrics, for each of the
Executive Directors. Performance against
thase objectives is set out on page 89.

With this in mind, and taking into account
performance in the year against the annual
bonus performance metrics, the CEO will
recaive a bonus of £540,000 {2018: £500,000)
equivalent to 45% of his maximum
opportunity. Half of the bonus is deferred
into shares over a three-year period.

Upon his resignation on 9 December 2019
the CFO was no longer entitled to a bonus
in respect of the 2019 finandial year and his
unwested share awards lapsed.

The 2017 LFIP award, assessed over the
financial years ending 31 December 2017,
2018 and 2019 becomes eligible to vest in
April 2020 and further details on the
assessment of the award can be found on
page 90.

We are satisfied that the variable
remuneration for the 2019 financial year for
the Executive Directors is in line with
business performance.

Wider workforce remuneration

In addition to the 'deep dive’ on employee
remuneration and the other reviews set out
on page 85, we have given consideration
to wider workforce remuneration and
employee benefits at most Committee
meetings held throughout the year.

This had ranged from a review of benefits
which would enable diversity in the
workplace, including enhanced mateamity
and paternity leave, through to the review
of employee pensions, whichissetout as a
case study in our 5172 Statement on page
40, and reviewing the pay and grading
structure which was implemented in 2018
and which provides staff with darity for
their future career path,

As set out in Nomination Committee
report and the Chairman's Statement,
Paul Marrow will be stepping down from
his role on the Committee at the 2020
AGM. | would like to thank Paut for his
advice and counsel to the Committee
during his tenure. Paul Myers joined the
Committee on 1 January 2020 and | look
forward to working with Paul as the '
remuneration practices of STB continue
to evolve.

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the
Rermuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Remuneration Committee
membership and meetings
Composition

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Rermansration

Committee
Number of meetings
during 2019 5
Victoria Stewart 5/5
Lord Forsyth 5/5
Paul Marrow' 4/5

! Paul Martow was unable to attend the Meating on 30 July
2019 a1 he was umvell

As at 31 December 2019 the Remuneration
Committee comprised three members and
was compliant with the Code provision
regarding the composition of the
Remuneration Committee throughout
2019. The Code contemplates that, in
relation to the Company, the Board should
establish a Remuneration Committee of at
least two independent Non-Executive
Directars. The Company Chairman may
also be 2 member of the Committee
where, as is the case with STB, he was
considered independent on appointment
as Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee meets at
least twice and ordinarily four times a year
and when required to address non-routine
matters. Tha number of planned meetings
held during 2019 and the attending
Directors are shown in the table to the left.

The Company Secretary or their alternate
acts as Secretary to the Remuneration
Committee. Other individuals attend at the
request of the Remuneration Committee
Chairman and during the year the Chief
Executive Officer, HR Director, Chief
Internal Auditor, other senior managers
and the Remuneration Consultant
attended meetings to report to or advise
the Committee,

The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee reports to the Board on the
outcome of Committee meetings and
any recommendations arising from

the Committee.

During the year the Committee reviewed
and approved its terms of reference.

A full copy of the terms of reference of the
Remunetration Committee can be obtained
by request 1o the Company Secretary or
via the Group's website at
www.sacuretrustbank.com

84 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annua! Report & Accourts 2019

Role of the
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in
relation to remuneration including,
amongst other matters, determining the
policy for individual remuneration and
benefits package of the Executive
Directors and the senior management
below Board fevel. The Commiittee reviews
workforce remuneration, related policies
and how executive and wider workforce
pay are aligned and with regard to the
cutture of STB.




Key matters considered by the Committee from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

lem

Comment

Wider workforce remunaration and policies

The Remuneration Commitiee conducted a "deep dive' on wider workforce remuneration,
which included understanding the age, gender and ethnicity profile of our workforce, how
rermuneration applied to each segment and how our policies encourage diversity within our
business. The Committee reviewed how the Group Bonus pool was determined and allocated
amongst the workforce and how that aligned with regulatory expectations and determined
behaviours. With 82% of employees viewing STB as a ‘great place to work’, the Committee
received a presentation on the tulture of STB and the policies which encourage emplayee
satisfaction, diversity and retention, ranging from parental lesve to flexible working.

All Employee Group Remuneration Policy
{Palicy?

The Committee conducted the annual review of the All Employee Group Remuneration Policy,
aligning this with the review conducted on wider workforce remuneration. The Policy was
approved for recornmendation to the Board, having received advice on the Policy from the HR
Director, the Head of Compliance, the Company Sacretary and the Remuneration Consultant,
The implarmentation of the All Employee Remuneration Palicy was also the subject of an Internal
Audit review, which was received by the Committee.

Grading structure

A new grading structure was implerented in Q3 2018. The Committee received an update on the
implementation of the grading structure within the Group, and whether the new structure allowed
individuals to map how their career could develop within the Group. The Committee received a
report on how the structure would be developed further to allow greater flexibility in assessing
roles and greater granularity when benchmarking roles intemally and externalfy.

Appointmaent of Remuneration Consultant

The Committee conducted a competitive tendar to appoint a Remuneration Consultant as set out
below and engaged with the consultant in designing the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and other
executive remuneration matters and reviewing the All Employee Group Remuneration Policy.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy (DR}
2020-2022

The Committee started the triennial review process of the existing DRP, taking into account
changes to the Code and current market practice, aulminating in the drafting of a new DRP and
discussions with the Executive Directors on their remuneration.

Executive Directors’
Remuneration arrangements

The Committee considered the bonus arangemenis for the Executive Directots for 2018 and 2019
in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the targets set as part of a balanced
business scorecard. in doing so the Remuneration Committee took into account the financial
performance of the Group and perscnal performance. The Committee reviewed the 2019 award
and performance conditions for LTIPs. Details of the 2019 bonus eamed by Directors during the
year can be found on page 88,

Material Risk Takers {'MRTs")

The Committee reviewed the processes for the classification and identification of MRTs and the
remuneration and bonus arrangements for this cohort, with tha subsequent strengthening of
reparting to tha Committee on the review process.

Diractors’ Remuneration Repdrt {'DRR"}
and other disclosures in the Annual Report
and Accounts

The Committes considered the disdosures required in the Annual Repart and Accounts.

The Committee received advice from the Company Secretary, HR Diractor and Aon when
compilfing the DRR and the additional disdasuras in tha Notes. The Committee undertook a
review of the total remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and via the Board Chairman
negotiated the proposed change to the composition of the CEOk package. For more details see

page 82,

CEQ Pay Ratic

The Committee discussed the methodology for calculating the CEO to staff pay ratio and
determined that it would follow best practice and guidance by adopting Option A.

The Committee discussed the ratio and that of peers. Further informatiaon on the CEQ pay ratio
can be found on page 93.

Gender Pay Gap Reporting ['GPG")

The Committee reviewed the GPG between staff and discussed disdosure of the figures and the
differences between Equal Pay and GPG. The Committes reviewed the action plan to encourage
and develop a diverse talent pipeline.

Annual reviaw of tarms of reference,
Committae Effectiveness Review, forward
calendar and items for 2020

The Committee reviewed its terms of reference and approved these for racormmendation to the
Board. The Committee considered and evaluated its performance by way of a questionnaire of the
Committee members and other key participants in meetings. The result of the evaluation was that
the Committee considered it was performing effectively. The Committea agreed a standing agenda
and calendar of meetings for 2020. Four meetings are planned to be held in 2020 to address
routine matters.

This table is not 8 completa list of matiers considerad by the Cammittes birt highlights the mast signikcant mattars for the pariod in the opinian of the Remuneration Committes.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Remuneration Consultant
and Committee advice

In late 2018 the Committee commenced a
competitive tender pracess ta seek to
appoint a Remuneration Consultant,
culminating in the appointment of the
Executive Compensation practice of Aon
plc {Aon’). Atender was issued to four
parties, who each provided documentation
and references in response to the tender,
of which two parties were selected to
present to the Comimitiee, ultimately
resulting in the appointment of Aan in
January 2019,

Apn has no other significant connection
with the Group or its Directors other than
the provision of advice on executive and
employee remuneration, and related
matters. Aon is a member of the
Remuneration Consultants’ Group, and
abides by its code of conduct that requires
remuneration advice 1o be given
objectively and independently. The total
fees paid to Aon for the provision of advice
to the Commiittee during the year were
£90,286 {excluding VAT). Aon has also
provided support ta the HR and Legal
teams on remuneration implementation.
The Committee is satisfied that the advice
provided by Aon on remuneration matters
is objective and independent.

The Committee received advice on
specific matters from internat advisers and
management, incuding the Group HR
Director and the Company Secretary.

The Committee is satistied that the
Committee has exercised independent
judgement when evaluating the advice
received from all its advisors.

Directors’
Remuneration Report

The information contained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report is subject to audit,
where indicated in the Report, in
accordance with The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups {Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008

(as amended).

On behalf of the Board, as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, | am
pleased to present our Directors’
Remuneration Report.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report
cantains the Annual Remuneration Report
which explains the operation of
remuneration-related arrangements for
2019. Tha Directors’ Remuneration Policy
for Executive and Non-Executive Directors
2020-2022, which is subject to shareholder
approval at the 2020 Annual Genaral
Meeting and an illustration of the
application of that Remuneration Policy in

2020 are indluded at the end of this Report.

Adull copy of the 2017-2019 Remuneration
Policy, which was approved by
shareholders at the 2017 Annual General
Meeting, can be found on the Company's
website at www.securatrustbank.com.
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How we link executive
remuneration to our strategy

The key principles behind the Group’s
Remuneration Policy are:

+ to be simple and transparent in arder to
reflect the Group's mission statement of
straightforward, transparent banking

* to promote the long-term success of the
Group, with transparent and demanding
performance conditions

* to provide alignment between executive
reward and the Group’s values, risk
appetite and shareholder returns

*+ to have a competitive mix of base safary
and short- and long-term incentives,
with an appropriate proportion of the
package linked to the delivery of
sustainable long-term growth

In developing and implementing the
Remuneration Policy we have also had
regard to regulatory requirements for
senior managers under the Senior
Manager Regime. The Group is currently a
Level 3 firm within the dlassifications
applied by the financial regulators for
regulated entities. That means that the
Group is not required to satisfy in full all
elements of the remuneration codes.
Notwithstanding this, in formulating and
applying the Remuneration Policy the
Committee has had regard to the
remuneration codes when looking at
existing and proposed remuneration.
The Committee has been compliant with
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the 2017
Annual General Meeting and Principles F,
Q and R of the Code. With the adoption of
the 2020-2022 Directors’ Remuneration
Policy at the 2020 AGM, the Committee
takes account of compliance with
remuneration provisions 32-41,




Single figure table {audited information)
The following table sets out total remuneration earmed for each Director in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
prior year.

Salary and faus Bensfits Anewsl bonus Pension Shares® Total remmuneration
2019 2018 2019 018 2019 2018 2019 018 2019 2018 2019 018
£000 £600 £000 £000 £°000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £1000 £000 £7000
Exacutive Directors
P Lynam 1,200 1,200 29 22 5404 &00* 35 35 - - 1,804 1,857
Non-Executive Directors
M Forsyth 205 200 1 1 - - - - ~ - 206 201
A Berresford G2 88 1 1 - - - - - - 93 89
P Marrow s 115 - - - - - - - - 116 115
D McCreadie? 3 - - - - - - - - - 3 -
P Myers 71 4 - - - - - - - - 71 6
L Neville-Rolfe ra| b - - - - - - - - " [
V Stewart 77 75 1 1 - - - - - - 78 74
Former Directors -
N Kapur® 425 410 29 29 - 3004 N 25 21 - 504 764
2,260 2,100 61 54 540 200 &4 60 21 - 2943 3,114
" further datails of swrarcs mads undar tha LTIP snd DBP can be found on page 0.
4 David McCraadin was zppointed 1o the Boand on 17 Decembar 2019 and a mamber of the Risk Committaa on ¥ Januzey 2020,

? Maara Kapur resigned on & Dacembar 2019,
* Tha bonus amount for Pauf Lynam and Neeraj Kapur is the total boaus earned inrespect of the year, of which 50% was deferred into shares under tha 247 Defarred Bonus Plan. Further details ars
disclosed en page 80,

The figures in the single figure tables above are derived from the following:

Salary and fees The amount of salary/fees received in the year.
The taxable value of benefits received in the year. These are principally private medical health insurance,
car allowances and the value of Sharesave Scheme options granted during the year, Sharesave Scheme
aptions are valued based on the difference between the market value of the shares at grant and the

Benefits exercise price and were granted for the first time in 2017,
The value of the bonus eamed in respect of the financial year (including the proportion of the amount
Annual bonus earned which is subject to deferral).
Pension The amount of payments in lisu of Company pension contributions received in the year.
Additional disclosures in raspect of the single figure table (audited information)
Base salary and feas
Base salaries for the Executive Directors in respect of the year ended 31 Decernber 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:
2018 base salary 2019 base salary
£000 £000
P Lynam 1,200 1,200
Former Directors
N Kapur 410 425

The Committee considered it appropriate to increase Neeraj Kapur's base salary for 2019 by 3.6% to £425,000 in line with the basic
salary increases for broader staff and to reflect the pesition of his salary compared to peers,
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Bonus arrangements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, Executive Directors were eligible for an annual bonus award of up to 100% of salary,
subject to stretching performance metrics based on a balanced business scorecard of financial, strategic, customer, operational and
staff metrics, At least 60% of the bonus was subject to financial metrics and a maximum of 100% of the benus subject to financial and
risk performance {'Financial’) metrics. Up to 25% of the bonus was subject to a mixture of strategic, customer, operational and staff
performance {Noninancial’) metrics. Details of the annual bonus outium are shown below.

Financlal Financial Nonfinancial MNonfinancisl Toual

% of salary % of calary % of salary % of salory % of alery

apportunity outturn apportunity autturn outturn £000

Paul Lynam 615 304 325 14.6 45 540
Former Directors

Neeraj Kapur 75 N/A 25 N/A N/A N/A

50% of the bonus eamed is deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan. Deferred shares will vest in equal tranches after one,
two and three years following deferral.

Set out below are the high level financial and non-financial performance metrics applied in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

Financial and risk performance maetrics
The financial and risk performance metrics were based on the delivery of Board agreed KPls in accordance with the schedule below.

ceo
Threshold On-target Stratch Banus
Chjective (0% paysbls]  (SO% payable) {100 payable) Adhleved Waight payable
Grow
Underlying Profit Before Tax £37m £41.9m f46.1m f41.1m 20% 8.1%
Adjusted Return on Average Equity 12.8% 14.2% 15.6% 13.5% 15% 3.8%
Sustain
Underlying Cost Income Ratio as
determined by the Board 63.8% 58.0% 52.2% 56.9% 10% 5.9%
Maintain strong compliance with risk
appetite to meet the strategic plan:
Cost of risk 1.7% 1.3% 0.9% 1.4%
impairment charge £35.8m £32.9m £30.0m £32.6m
7.5% 35%
Deliver other key financial objectives Range of capital required set at the minimum capital
requirement through to a level, which induded a capital
buffer, as determined by the Board. Regulatory capitat as
assessed by the Board is above the agreed target as
detailed on page 24. This objective was assessed at
between ‘On Plan' and ‘Stretch’”. 15% 21%
Total 67.5% . 304%
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Non-finandial performance metrics
The high-level objectives and targets ftogether with commentary on their achievement) for the Chief Executive Director are set out on

the following page.

CEO
Bonus
Objeclive Targets Achlevamant Waight payable
Grow
Oversight of the delivery of Measured by reference to key 2019 The Boarg was satisfied that the 10% 2%
the Motor Transformation project milestones delivered to the Programme delivered in terms of quality,
Programmse 2019 agreed timascale as reported to the vision and the final praduct.
Board in line with the strategic plan. Project milestones, whilst delivered, have
been achieved outside of the original plan
articulated to the Board.
Sustain
Maintaln strong risk culture No material negative risk issues A report from the Risk Committee has 7.5% 3.75%
within organisation, setting identified by Board, Risk or Audht concluded that no material rsk issues have
the tone from the top onrisk  Committee during the year. 100% of been identified. The Internal Audit
matters and cascading this senior stalf completing mandatory Assessment of Risk Cylture for 2019 is
through the organisation regulatary training. above the level expected. An on-target
rating of 3.75% is daemed appropriate,
Love
Stakeholder engagement, Measured by reference to the Feefo Placing the customer at the heart of what 1.5% 3.75%
including bullding and and overall customer rating for STB. we do is ane of our key metrics,
maintaining effective and Agsessed by feedback diract to Faefo scoring and customer sooring
constructive relationships with  Chainman from shareholders and the remains high; sharehalder feedbadck
customers, regulators post shareholder roadshow feedbadk provided to the Chairman has been
and shareholders provided by Stifel and Canaccord on pasitive, as has the continuing relationship
various matters induding shareholder with the PRA. An on target rating is
communication, roadshows appwopriate in the drcumstances.
and consensus.
Belng an employer Expanding plans to address staff Achieved Great Place to Wark® 7.5% 5.1%
of choice engagement at all levels induding accreditation (for the sacond consecutive
increase employee retention, decrease  yearh meaning STB is in top 3% of alf firms
employee attrition and promote surveyed, Engagement plans wers
emplayee development. delivered outside of the original plan
articulated to the Board.
An above target rating is appropriate in
the circumstances.
Total 32.5% 14.6%

Vesting of the non-financial performance element of the annual bonus was based on the Committee’s view of the relative importance
and impact of each of the objectives during the year.
Awards exercised during the financial year (audited information)

2017 Deferred Bonus Plan {{DBP')
On 24 April 2019, Neeraj Kapur exercised 1,399 Deferred Bonus Plan {{DBP’) share options at an exercise price of 40 pence. The shares

were ratained by Mr Kapur.
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Awards granted during the financial year (audited information)
2017 Long Term Incentive Plan {'LTIP")

Nominal-cost share options were granted to Exacutive Directors on 25 April 2019 in accordance with the rules of the LTIP as follows:
Numbar of Face value of

Raclpient Data of grant Basts of award shares  sward £000" Parformance perdod
Paul Lynam 25 Aptit 2019 50% of salary 38,338 800 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021
Former Directors

Neeraj Kapur 25 April 2019 61% of salary 15,974 250 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021

v Based o a share price of 15435 pence per share which was the avarage dosing share price on the priar fiva working days,

Neeraj Kapur’s LTIP options lapsed on & December 2019 following his resignation as a Director and employee. Vesting of the share
options is subject to EPS, Relative TSR and risk managemaent performance metrics, assessed over a three-year perdormance period.
The EPS and relative TSR performance targets are set out in the table below:

Vesting 0% of maxkrum) 40% of o 4% of )
0% Less than 10% per annum Below Median

25% 10% per annum Median

100% 30% per annum Upper quartile

Straight-line vesting between points

! At ot the grant date, the TSR comp isted of the follows : Acbuth king Group, Charter Court Financial Senvices Group ple, Close Brothars, OnsSavings Bank, Metra

Bank, Paragon Banking Group, Provident g::nd:l and S&4.
The remaining 20% of the award will be assessed on risk management performance objectives during the Performance Period aligned
with the Company’s risk management framework, including but not limited to:
* the number of customer complaints received
» the number and nature of material risk avents within the Group
* credit fosses compared to the Board's assessment of the Group's risk appetite
» managemant of regulatory capital limits

Vesting will be determined based on the Committee’s view of the relative importance and impact of each of the objectives over the
performance period. Awards vest to the extent that the performance metrics are achieved, and are subject to a further two-year

holding period.
2017 Deferred Bonus Plan 'DBP")
Nominal-cost share options were granted to Executive Directors on 25 April 2019 in accordance with the rules of the DBP as follows:

Number of Face valua of
Racipiant Date of grant shares Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 award £7000°
Paul Lynam 25 April 2019 19,1469 6,389 6,389 6,391 300
Former Directors
Neeraj Kapur 25 April 2019 9,606 3,202 3,202 3,202 150

! Based on a share price af 1565 penice par shara which was the average dasing share price over the prior fva working days.

Neeraj Kapur’s DBP options lapsed on 6 December 2019. Each award has been granted in the form of an option with an exerdse price
per share equal ta the nominal value of a share and, subject to the rules of the Plan, will vest on:

» 25 April 2020 as regards one third of the shares subject to it (Tranche 1)

25 April 2021 as regards one third of the shares subject to it (Tranche 2)

* 25 Aprif 2022 as regards one third of the shares subject to it (Tranche 3)

Each option once vested remains capable of exercise until 20 April 2029. The awards are subject to malus and clawback provisions as
detailed in the rules of the DBF but not subject to further performance conditions.
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Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited information)

No formal shareholding guidelines are currently in place. However, Paul Lynam has committed to building up and maintaining a
shareholding of at least 100% of base salary, over time, by retaining all awards under the LTIP that vest (net of income tax and
National Insurance).

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the Company’s ordinary shares as at 31 December 2019 were as set out
below. Any changes to a Director’s shareholding are set out in the notes below the table.

Directors’ shareholding and share interests

Opticns Unveasted,
Sharesr  granted/ not subjsct  Unvastad,
Total as st purchasad {exercised) Options Total as at 0 sbjectto
1 January during the during the  lspied during 31 Decembar Ownad  Vasted but performance parformance
Director Type 2019 yoar year the ysar 2019 outright unexercised  conditfons  conditions
P Lynam Shares 19,012 - - - 19012 19,012 - - -
2011 Share Options 141,667 - - — 141,667 — 141,667 - -
2047 LTIP? 47,321 — 38,338 - B5659 - - - 85659
2017 DBP? 10,493 - 19,169 - 20682 - 3497 26,1465 -
2017 SAYE? 1,364 - - - 1,364 - - 1,364 -
Phantom share options* 187,500 - - - 187,500 - 187,500 - -

407,357% - 57,507 464,864 19,012 332,664 27529 85,659

M Forsyth Shares 3,000 5008 - - 3,500 3,500 - - -
A Barresford  Shares - - - - - - - - —
P Marrow Shares 5450 - - - 5,440 5,440 - - -
P Myers Shares - 35007 - - 3,500 3,500 - - -
L Neville-Rolfe Shares - 1,271 - - 1,21 1,271 - - -
V Stewart Shares - - - - - - - - -

D McCreadie  Shares - - - - - - - - -
445,797 5,271 57,507 478,575 32,723 332,664 27,529 85,659

Former Directors

N Kapur Shares 1,000 1,399 - - 2,399° 2,399 — - -
2011 Share Options 35,417 - - (35417 - - - - -

217 LTP? 16,575 - 15974  (32,549)" - - - - -

2017 bBP? 4,197 - 821¢° (12407 - - - - -

2017 SAYE? 1,364 - _ {1,364)" _ _ _ _ _

Phantom share options* 31,250 - - {31,250 - - - - -

89,803 1,399 24,184 (112,987) 2,399 2,399 - - -

! On 24 Jonuesy 2020 Pl Lynam exercised 141,447 2011 share oplions at an exerclie price of 720 pence and 3,497 Deferrad Barus Plan (DBP?) share options at an exercise price of 40 pence over a total
of 145,144 ordinary sheres of 40 pence each [Orclinary Sharay’}, Ha usad 103,480 Ondmary Shares st & prce of 1,550 pance to fund the acquisition of the shares and 1o cover the tax and aational
Insuranca arising fram the exercise, with the remaining 41.484 Crdinary Shares from the exarcise being retained. Mr Lynam's shareholding in the Group increasad from 19,012 shares to 40,494 shares #s
a result of this transaction, which is consistant with his commitrnant to bulld up his shareholding in the Campany over time.

7 Awearcls were granted under LTI and DBP nyles bn 25 Apyil 2019 as 3ot ot on pages 167 and 168,

¥ Each of Paul Lynam and Neeraj Kapur participated in the 2017 SAYE scheme ta the maximum monthly saving amount and did not periicpate in the 2019 SAYE scheme.

* Each Phantom Share Option was granted on 23 March 2015 snd wis subject to the satlsfaction of a performance condition. That peri dition had been mat by the end of the perfformance
period; the option price was balow the market price, hawever, and a [nll value has been sitributed to the awvards,

b Assurring a full vesting of swards a3 disclosed in the table sbave [axcluding Phantom Share Options, ses 4 sbove) and a marked value 21 st 31 December 2019 of 1800 pence, tha value of Paul Lynams
total intarest in shares Is £4.47 enilion.

* Lond Forsyth purchased SC0 shares on 8 August 2019.

T Paul Myers purchased 3,500 shanex on 3 Aprll 2019,

* Baroness Nevills-Rolfs purchssed 1,271 shacas on 9 January 2019.

* Oin 24 Apr 2019 Nearsj Kapur axescizad 1,399 Daferred Bonus Plan { DBP') share opliona at an sxescise price of 43 pence.

© On 24 January 2020 Naeraj Kapur sold 1,000 ordirary shares of 40 pence esch [Ordinary Shares} at a price of 1,554 pence, The Corrpany was also notified by Mr Kapur that » person dosaly assoclated
1o him has sold 1,300 Ovdinary Shares at a price of 1,564.5 pence sisc on 24 January 20200 Mr K2pur's sharsholding in the Group deaeasad from 2,399 to 1,399 as a rsult of this tranaaction,

" Neers] Kapurs shate options a5 datsiled In the 1abla abova lapsad ¢n his resignation s a Director on 4 Decermbar 2019,
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Payments made to former Directors during the year (audited information)
Na payments were made in the year to any former Director of the Company.

Payments for loss of office made during the year (audited information)
No payments for loss of office were made in the year to any Director of the Company.

Performance graph and historical CEQ remuneration outcomes

Total sharsholder return

The graph above shows the total shareholder retum (TSR') performance for the Company's shares in comparison to the FTSE
SmaliCap Index {excluding investment Trusts) for the period from 2 November 2011 to 31 December 2019. For the purpases of the
graph, TSR has been calculated as the percentage change during the period in the market price of the shares, assuming that dividends
are reinvested. The graph shows the value, by 31 December 2019, of £100 invested in the Group over the period compared with £100
invested in the FTSE SmallCap Index {excluding Investment Trusts). The FTSE SmallCap index (excluding Investment Trusts) has bean
chosen as a comnparator as this is the most approprizte reference point given the capitalisation of the Company.

CHART REMOVED

The table below shows details of the total remuneration, bonus and share options vesting {as a percentage of the maximurm
opportunity) for the CEO over the last eight finandial years.

Totad Bonus a8 % of TP asa

i v % of maximum

£000 apportunity’ opporiunity®

2019 1,804 45 50

2018 1.857 50 N/A

2017 1.657 333 N/A

2016 5,542 N/A 100%

2015 1,459 N/A N/A

2014 3,611 N/A 100%

2013 1,031 N/A N/A

2012 870 N/A N/A
7 Pre Main Market Admission, b wera dh ined by tha Committes on a discrationary basis laking into account Group financial and mdividus! per: during the fi i yeac.

? Na LTI shares were eligiole ta vedt in respoct of Lhve veers 2012, 2013, 2015, 2017 and 2018,

92 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019



CEQ pay increase in relation to all employees

The table below sets out the percentage change {from the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2018) in base salary, value of taxable
benefits and bonus for the CEQ compared with the average parcentage change for all employees.

Paul Lynam earned a bonus equal to £540,000 in respect of performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2019

{2018; £600,000).

CEO Wider workforce

Parcantage change

Salary 0% 4%
Taxable benefits 28% 14%
Annual bonus {10.0%)} {1.9%)
The CEQO’% taxable benefits were £2,871 (2018: £2,241).

2019 CEO pay ratio

Qur finalised CEO pay ratio for 2019 is set out in the table below. These figures are on a Group-wide basis, as per the regulations:

Year Method  25th Percantils Pay Ratio Median Pay Ratic  75th Percentlle Pay Ratic
2019 Ogption A 96:1 4 36:1

Total UK employee pay and benefits figures used to calculate the CEQ pay ratio:

Chief Executive 25th Percentile Madian 7Sth Percantile
Salary £1.2m £18,158 £25,000 £45,000
Total pay and benefits £1.804m £19,409 £26,460 £52,886

The Company has chosen Option A methodology to prepare the CEQ pay ratio calculation as this is the most statistically robust
method and is in line with the general preference of institutional investors. The value of each employee’s total pay and benefits, as at
31 December 2019, was calculated using the single figure methodology consistent with the CEQ. No elements of pay have been
omitted. Where required, remuneration was approximately adjusted to be full-time and full-year equivalent basis based on the
employee’s average full-time equivalent hours for the year and the proportion of the year they were employed.

The Committee cansiders that the median pay ratio for 2019 that is disclosed in the above table is consistent with the pay, reward and
progression policies for the Company's UK employees taken as a whole.

Spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change {from the financial year ended 31 December 2018) in dividends and the overall
expenditure on pay {as a whole across the organisation).

2019 2018 " Change

Lailion £million %

Dividends, excluding special dividends, and share buybacks 15.5 148 47
Dividends, induding special dividends, and share buybacks 15.5 14.8 47
Overalt expenditure on pay’ 51.1 47.3 8.0

* Further informatian can be fcumd in Note & set out on pege 144,
The increase in overall expenditure on pay is driven primarily by the increased size of Group's workforce, as set out in Note 6.
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Service agreements and letters of appointment
Details of the Directors’ service agreements, letters of appointmeant and notice periods are set out below:

Name Commuencoment of curnent service ag b of appol 224 Notice perlod
P lynam 28 July 2010 12 months
M Forsyth! 4 October 2016 & months
A Berresford 22 November 2014 & months
P Marrow! 6 October 2016 6 months
D McCreadie 18 December 2019 4 months
P Myers 28 November 2018 6 months
L Neville-Rolfe 28 Navember 2018 & months
V Stewart 22 Movernber 2016 6 months
Former Directors

N Kapur 27 October 2011 12 months
' Entarad int lattars of appoi t priar to the G s Uansition from the AIM to the Main Market.

1 Each of the Non-E fve DN [atier of appok was ded In January 2019 by a side letter confimming their respectiva Commiktee membershifs and their totel fee. No other changes

were made 1o their existing letier of sppointment.
3 A Non-Executive Directors are subject 1o snnual re-election.
¢ Those Non-Execative Directors wha are bers of the R ion C ittee are 3ot out on page 84,

Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial year ending
31 December 2020

Details on how Secure Trust intends to implement the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy for the financial year ending 31 December 2020
are set out below.

Salary
Paul Lynam’s salary will reduce to £200,000 per annum with affect from 1 April 2020,
Fees
The following table sets out the Non-Executive Director fee structure effective from 1 January 2020.

2020 foe
Role £000
Chairman' 2112
Non-Executive Director (basic fee)? &9
Senior Independent Director and Committes Chairman 20
Member of Audit, Risk or Remuneration Committee 5
Designated Non-Executive Director with responsibility for warkforce engagement? 5

' Tha Chaimnan does not recefve any addtional fees for his membership of any of the Boards committess,
* With sffect from 2020 the Lizse fee paysble lo the Chatrman and the NED: increasad in ine with the average incresse of remuneration for stafl implementad within tha annual review of remuneration in
tha pravious year. The incraase tekes effect from 1 January sach year starting with 2019, For 2020 the Increase was Y.

¥ With affect from | May 2020,
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Annual bonus

The proposed maximum annuaf bonus opportunity for the year ending 31 December 2020 will be equal to 100% of salary. The bonus
will be subject to stretching performance metrics based on a balanced scorecard. 60% of the bonus will be subject to financial
performance metrics, 15% risk metrics and 25% of the bonus will be subject to a mixture of non-finandial strategic, customer,
operational and staff performance metrics. The financial metrics will indude PBT (20%), ROAE {15%), Cost Income Ratio {10%), and
capital ratios (15%). The risk measures will include risk appetite (7.5%) and risk culture {7.5%). The non-financial metrics will include
strategic programmes {10%}, stakeholder management {7.5%) and govemance (7.5%).

The Committee considers that the targets are commerdially sensitive. A desaiption of the performance targets will be disclosed in the
Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2020 or at such time when the targets are no longer considered
commercially sensitive.

Up to an additional 100% of salary may be awarded in exceptional circumstances {such as in order to recognise exceptional

performance during the year}. To the extent that any additional bonus is awarded, full details of the award and rationale will be
disdased in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2020.

50% of any bonus eamed will be deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan. Deferred shares will vest in equal tranches after
one, two and three years following deferral.

Lne

The Company proposes to grant LTIP awards to the Executive Directors in the form of nominal share options at the level of up to 100%
of the new salary for the CEQ. The LTIP awards will be subject to EPS, Relative TSR and risk management performance metrics. Due to
the uncertainty arising from the COVID-19 pandemic the Committee is reviewing the EPS performance condition and will determine
an appropriate and challenging growzh target prior to the grant of the option. Performance will be assessed over a three-year
performance period.

The proposed Relative TSR performance targets are set out below,

Relative TSR!
Yasting (% of maximum} {4er% of award)
0% Below Median
25% Median
100% Upper quartile

Straight-line vesting between points.

1 The Commities intends to use the following group of selected peers for assessing TSR padarmance: Arbuthnot Banking Group, Close Brothers, OneSavings Bank, Metro Bank, Paragon Bamking
Group, Provident Finencisl, 58U snd PCF Group ple.

20% of the award will be based on risk management performance objectives aligned with the Company’s risk management framework.

Statement of voting at AGM

The Remuneration Policy and Directors' Remuneration Report were appraved by shareholders at the AGM in 2017 and 2019
respectively; the votes cast were as detailed below.

Proxy % of proxy Proxy % of proxy
Rasolution votas for votes cast voles against votes cast
To approve the Directors” Remuneration Policy (2017) 13,454,036 96.04 554,865 394
To receiva and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (2019} 15,733,875 100 260 0

Approval
This Repart was approved by the Board on 6 May 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Vbl
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Proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy 2020-2022

This Directors’ Remuneration Policy wili be submitted to the 2020 AGM for shareholder approval.
If approved by shareholders, it will formally take effect from the date of the AGM. The Directors’
Remuneration Policy has been prepared in accordance with the regulations set out in the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended).
This policy has been developed taking into account the following principles: clarity, simplicity, risk,
predictability, proportionality and alignment to cutture.

Policy table for Executive Directors

Operation Maxdmum opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary
Purpose: To enabla the Group to recruit and retain the services of individuals of a suitable calibre.
Salaries are usually reviewad annually taking While there is no maximum salary, increases N/A
into account; will nomally be in line with the typical range of
. salary incraases awarded {in percentage of
* underlying Group performance salary} to other employees in the Group.
+ role, experience and individual performance Salary increases al this leval may be
» competitive salary levels and market forces awarded to take account of individual

) . dreumstances, such as, but not limited to:
» pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group
= where an Executive Director has had an

Far new Executive Directors, base salary will be increase in responsibility

set 2t a level appropriate to the role and the

expariance of the Executive Director being * where an Executive Director has been
appointed. Current Executive Director salaries promoted or hashad & ghange in scope

will not act as a reference point.

»

an individual's development or performance
The CEC has agreed to a voluntary reduction in in rale {e.g. to align a newly appointed
annual salary from £1,2 million to £906,000, Exacutiva Director’s salary with the markat
effective from 1 Agril 2020, over time)

where an Executive Director's salary Is no
longer market competitive {e.g. due to

an increase in size and complexity of
the business)

Increases may be implemented over such time
period as the Committee deems appropriate.

Benefits
Purpose: To provide benefits that will be valued by the redpient.

Executive Directors racefve benefits in ine with  Whilst the Commiittee has not set an absolute N/A

market practice, and these include & car maximum on the level of benefits Executive
allowance, medical insurance, life assurance Directors may receive, the value of benefits is
and disability insurance. set at a level which the Committee considers to
. be appropriately positioned taking into account
Oﬂ”rrems may be me::ed base?d ?L:i relevant market levels based on the nature and
individual circumstances. These may include, tocation of the role and individual circumstances.

for example, relocation and travel sllowances.

Any reasanable business-related expenses
finduding tax thereon if determined tobe a
taxable benefit) can be reimbursed.
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Oparstion

Maximurm opportunity

Performance metrics

Pension

Purpose: To provide an appropriate level of retirement benafit (or cash allowance equivalent).

Executiva Directors are eligible to participate in
the Group defined contribution pension plan.
in appropriate circumstances, such as where
contributions exceed the annua! or fetime
allowance, Executive Directors may be
permitted to take a cash supplernent in lieu of
contributions to a pension plan.

Employer pansion contributions are limited to

5% of base salary.

The maximum cash supplement in lieu of
pension is 5% of base salary.

N/A

Annual bonus

Purpose: Rewards performance against targets which support the strategic direction of the Group.

Awards are basaed on performance {measured
over a year) against metrics determined by
the Committee.

Pay-out levels are determined by the
Committes after the year-end based on
performance against those targets.

The Committee has discretion to amend the
pay-out should any formulalc output not reflect
the Committee’s assessment of overall
business petformance.

To further link the Exaautive Diractors' pay to
the interests of shareholders, Executive
Diractors are required to defer 50% of any
bonus eamed into shares under the Deferred
Bonus Plan (DBF). Deferred share awards vest
in equal ranches after one, two and three years
following deferral.

Deferred share awards will typically take the
form of a nil-cost/norninal-cost hare option but
may ba structured as an afternative form of
share award.

The Committee may dedde to pay the whole of
the bonus earned in cash where the amount to
be deferred s fess than £50,000 and would
therefore, in the opinion of the Committee,
meake operation of the DBP

administratively burdensome.

Clawback provisions will apply to annual bonus
awards and malus and dawback provisions will
apply to deferred share awards as detailed on

page 99.

The normat maxirnum annual bonus

opportunity is 100% of base salary.

An additional annual bonus opportunity of up
to 100% of basa salary may be awarded in
exceptional crcumstances.

Targets are set annually reflecting the
Group's strategy and aligned with key
financial, strategic and/or individua! targats.

The annual bonus will be assessed against
key financial performance metrics of the
business and non-financial strategic/personal
objectives, in such proportions as the
Committee considers appropriate.

Financial metrics

No more than 50% of the maximum
potential wilt be paid for on-target
performance and all of the maximum
potential will be paid for
autstanding performance,

Non-financial strategic or
individual metrics

Outcome for the non-financial strategic or
individual metrics will apply on a scale
between 0% and 100% based on the
Cormmittee's assessrment of the extent to
which a non-financial performance metric
has been met.

Deferred share awards are not subject to any
additional performance metrics.
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continued

Qpaeration Maximum opportunity

Performance metrics

Long Term Incentive Scheme ('LTIP’)

of key individuals,

Purpose: To provide an effective long-term incentive award to motivate, incentivise and assist In the retention of the services

cost share options, conditional shares or other of a finandial year.
such form as has the same economic effect.
Awards will be granted with vasting dependent
on the achievernent of perfermance conditions
set by the Commiittee, normally over a
threa-year performance period,

Awards will usually be subjact to a two-year
helding period following the end of the
performance period (with the exception that
sufficient shares may be sold to meet income
tax and National Insurance liabilities).

Awards may be settled in cash for granted
as a righl to a cash amount In exceptional
ciroumstances) at the election of the Committee.

Malus and dawback provisions will apply to

and personal performance during the

maximum award to be granted.

Awards will be in tha form of ni-cost/nominal- The maximum award is 100% of salary in respect

The Committee will take into account Company

preceding finandal year when determining the

Performance metrics are selected that reflect
underlying business performance.

Perfarmance metrics and their weighting
where there is more than one metric are
raviewed annually to maintain
appropriateness and relevance.

Awards will vest between 25% and 100% for
perfarmance between ‘threshold’
performance (the minimum level of
performanca that results in any level of
vesting) and ‘maximum’ performance,

In respect of awards granted in 2020 and
beyond, the Committee has the discretion to
override the formulaic out-turn of the award
if appropriate to do so to take into account
the overall financia! and operations!

a HMRC tax-gualifying all-employee Sharesave  authorities from time-to-time.
Scheme under the same terms as other
Group employees.

awards as datatted on the following page. performance of the Company.
All employee share schemes

Purpose: To create alignment with the Group and promote a sense of ownarship.

Executive Diractors are eligible to participate in -~ Participant limits are those set by the UK tax N/A

Minimum shareholding requirements and post-cessation requirements

shareholdars’ interests.

Purpose: To provide a continued focus on long-term sustainable value creation and to further align Executives’ and

Executive Directors are required to buld up a N/A
sharsholding in the Company equal to 100%
of salary.

Current Exacutive Directors are expecied to
reach the shareholding requirement by

31 December 2022, while arry new Executive
Diractor is expected to meet the requirement
within a five-year period from appointmant.

In addition, a post-cessation sharehclding
requirement vill apply to Executive Directors
who leave the Company. Leavers will have a
requirement to hold the share ownership
requirement o, if lower, 100% of their pre-
cessation actual shareholding for 12 months
from ceasing to work (the eatlier of
commencding garden leave or termination

of service).

N/A
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Application of malus
and dawback

Malus: The ability to reduce, cancel or
impose further conditions on unvested
awards, in the circumstances set

out below,

Clawback: The ability to cancel an award
that has vested but not yet been released
(in relation to an award which is subject to
a holding period) or exerdsed (in relation
to share options), or reguire the
repaymant of some or all of an award in
the circuimstances set out below,

Malus and clawback may apply in the
following circumstances:

* Discovery of 2 material misstatement
resuiting in an adjustment in the audited
consolidated accounts of the Company

¢ The assessment of any performance
target or condition in respect of an award
was based on material error or materially
inaccurate or misleading information

 The discovery that any information used
to determine the DBP and/or LTIP was
based on material error, or materially
inaccurate or misleading information

Action or conduct of an Executive
Director which, in the reasonable
opinion of the Board, amounts to fraud
or grass misconduct

* The Executive Director is subject ta
regulatory censure in respect of a
material failure in control

s The Executive Director’s service
agreement is terminated for gross
misconduct or the Executive Director
receives a formal written warning for
gross misconduct, as defined by the
Company's disciplinary policy

» The Company suffers a material loss
arising from the Exeautive Director
operating cutside of agreed risk policy
parameters, and as such the Committee
considars a material failure in risk
management has occurred

Malus and dawlrack provisions will apply over the following time periods:

Elamant

Malus

& The leve! of the award is not considered
sustainable when assessing the overall
financial viability of the Company

* The Executive Director is subject to
regulatory censure in respect of 2
material failure in control

* The Company has suffered corporate
failure such as, although not mited to,
the appointment of an administrator or
a liquidator or the Companhy entering
into an agreement with its creditors
A material failure of risk management
and/or regulatory non-compliance
resulting in damage to the Cornpany’s
business or reputation
= Any other circumstances that the Board
considers to have similar nature or effact

Clawhback

Annual bonus award

To such time as payment is made,

Up to three years following payrent.

Deferred bonus awsrd

To such time as the award vests.

Tranche of award defarred for ona year:
Up to two years following vesting.

Tranche of award deferred for two years:
Up to one year following vesting.

Tranche of sward deferred for three years:
No clawback provisions apply.

LTIP award

To such time as the award vests.

Up to two years following vesting.
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Discretions retained by the
Committee in operating the
LTIP and other variable

pay schemes

The Committee operates the Group’s
various incentive plans according to their
respective rules and (where applicable) in
accordance with relevant legistation and
HMRC guidance. In order to ensure
efficient administration of these plans,
certain operational discretions are reserved
to the Committee.

These include but are not limited to:

+ determining who may participate in

the plans

determining the timing of grants of
awards and/or payments under the plans
deterraining the quantum of any awards
and/or payments (within the limits set
out in the policy table above)

in exceptional circumstances,
determining that a share-based award
{or any dividend equivalent) shall be
settled (in full or in part) in cash
determining the performance measures
and targets applicable to an award (in
accordance with the statements made in
the palicy table below)

discretion to override formulaic outoomes

'3

* where a participant ceases to be
employed by the Company, determining
whether ‘good leaver' status shall apply
determining the extent of vesting or
payment of an award based on
assessment of the performance

Non-Executive Directors

Elemant and purposs

conditions and the overall performance
of the Company, including discretion as
to the basis on which performance is to
be measured if an award vests in
advance of normal timetable (on
cessation of employment as a ‘good
leaver’ or an the occurrence of
corporate events)

& whether, and to what extent, pro-ratio
shall apply in the event of cessation of
employment as a ‘good leaver’ or on the
occurrence of corporate events
discration to vary shareholding and
post-cessation holding requirements in
exceptional circumstances

whether malus and/or dawback shall he
applied to any award and, if so, the
extent to which they shall apply

making appropriate adjustments to
awards on account of certain events,
such as major changes in the Company's
capital structure

Explanation of performance
metrics chosen

Performance metrics are selected that are
aligned with the performance of the Group
and the interests of shareholders.
Stretching performance targets are set
each year for the ennual bonus and LTIP
awards, When setting these performance
targets, the Committee will take into
account 2 number of different reference
points, which may include the Group’s
businass plans and strategy and the
ecenomic environment. Full vesting will
only occur for what the Committee
considers to be stretching performance.

Appreach of the Company

The annual bonus performance targets
have been selected to provide an
appropriate balance between incentivising
Directors to meet financial targets for the
year and achieving strategic and/or
personal objectives.

Long-term performance metrics provide a
robust and transparent basis on which to
measure the Group's performance over the
longer term and provide further alignment
with the business strategy.

The Committee retains the ability to adjust
or set different performance metrics or
targets if events occur (such as a change in
strategy, a material acquisition and/or a
divestment of a Group business or a
change in prevailing market conditions)
which cause the Committee to determine
that the metrics are no longer appropriate
and that amendmaent is required so that
they achieve their original purpose.

Awards and options may be adjusted in
accardance with the scheme rules in the
event of a variation of share capital,
demerger, delisting, spedal dividend or
other event which may affect the
Company's share price,

Policy for the remuneration of
employees more generally
Remuneration arrangements are
determined threughout the Group based
on the same principle that reward should
be achieved for delivery of the business
strategy and should be sufficient to attract
and retain high calibre talent,

Chalrman and Non-Executive
Diractor fees

To enable the Group to recruit

and retain Non-Executive Directors
of a suitable catibre.

Fees are normnally reviewed annually,

Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for their services are approved by the Board. Fees may
indude a basic fee and additional fees for further responsibilities (for example, chairmanship and
membership of Board committees or holding the office of Sanior Independent Director). Fees are
based on the level of fees paid to Non-Executive Directors serving on the board of similar-sized UK
listed companies and the time commitment and contribution expected for the role,

Nan-Exacutive Directors cannot participate in any of the Campany’ share schames or annuaf bonus
and are not eligible to join the Company’s pension scheme.

Non-Executive Directors may be aligible to receive benefits such as private medical insurance,
the use of secretarial support, travel costs or other support that may be appropriate.

Any rassonable business-related expenses {including tax thereon if determined to be a taxable

benefit) can be reimbursed,
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lllustrations of application of
remuneration policy

The chart {right) sets out for the CEO an
illustration of the application for 2020 of
the remuneration policy set out above.
The charts show the split of remuneration
between fixed pay, annual bonus

{including amounts deferred under the
DBP} and LTIP on the basis of minimum
remuneration, remuneration receivable

CHART REMOVED

for performance in line with the Company’s
expectations, maximum remuneration

{not allowing for any share price
appreciation) and maximum remuneration
{allowing for 50% share price appreciation
oh the LTIP award). Amounts shown are in
fthousands.

Inillustrating the potential reward, the following assumptions have been made:
Scenarlo Dascription

Assumptions

Minimum performance Minimum remuneration receivable.

Fixed elements of reruneration only —salary as at
1 April 2020, benefits and pension.

No payments under incentive plans.

Remuneration receivable for achieving
performance in line with expectations.

Target performance

Fixed elements of remuneration (as above).
50% of maximum annual bonus eamed.

25% of maximum LTIP award vesting.

Rermuneration receivable for achieving
performance in excess of the maximum
performance targets.

Maxdmum performance

Fixed elements of remuneration (as above).
100% of maximum annual bonus earned.

100% of maximum LTIP award vesting.

Remuneration recetvable at maximum
performance, plus 50% share price growth
on the LTIP vesting value.

Maximum performance including
share price growth

Fixed elements of remuneration {as above).

100% of maxdmum annual bonus eamed.

100% of maximum LTIP award vesting plus 50% share

prica growth.

Recruitment remuneration

Fhe policy aims to fadilitate the
appointment of individuals of a suitable
calibre. When appointing a new Executive
Director, the Committee seeks to ensure
that arrangements are in the best interests
of the Group and not to pay more than

is appropriate.

The Committee will take into
consideration a number of relevant
factors, which may include the calibre of
the individual, the candidate’s existing
remuneration package, and the specific
circumnstances of the individual including

was recruited.

remuneration package with the
above policy.

The Committee may indude other

and the limits referred to below:

» Base satary will be set at a level
appropriate to the role and the
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the jurisdiction from which the candidate

When hiring a new Executive Director,
the Committee will typically align the

elements of pay which it considers are
appropriate, however, this discretion is
capped and is subject to the principles

experience of the Executiva Director

being appointed. This may indude
agreement on future increases up to

a market rate, in line with increased
experience and/or responsibilities,
subject to good performance, where it
is considered appropriate

« Pension and benefits will be provided in

line with the above policy

* The Committee will not offer
non-performance related incentive
payments {for example a ‘guaranteed
sign-on bonus?
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s Other elements may be induded in the
following circumstances:

o an interim appointment being made
to fill an Executive Director role an a
short-term basis

o if exceptional circumstances require
that the Chairman or 2 Non-Executive
Director takes on an executive
function on a short-term basis

o if an Exacutive Director is recruited at
a time in the year when it would be
inappropriate to provide a bonus or
long-term incentive award for that
year as there would not be suffident
time to assess perfarmance.

Subject to the limit an variable
remunération set out below, the
guantum in respect of the months
employed during the year may be
transferred to the subsequent year so
that reward is provided on 2 fair and
appropriate basis

o if the Executive Director will be
required to relocate in order to take
up the position, it is the Company’s
policy 1o allow reasonable relocation,
travel and subsistence payments,
Any such payments will be at the
discretion of the Committes

The Committee may also alter the
performance metrics, performance
period and vesting period of the annual
bonus, DBP or LTIP, if the Committee
determines that the crcumstances of
the recruitment merit such alteration,
The rationale will be dearly explained
in the following Directors’
Remuneration Report

s The maximum level of variable
remuneration which may be granted
{exdluding 'buyout’ awards as referred to
below) will be within the maximum limits
set out in the policy table

Any share awards referred to in this section
will be granted as far as passible under the
Company's existing share plans.

if necessary, and subject to the limits
referred to above, recruitment awards may
be granted outside of these plans as
permitted under the Listing Rules which
afiow for the grant of awards to facilitate,
in unusual circumstances, the recruitment
of an Executive Director.

The Committee may make payments or
awards in respect of hiring an employee to
'buy out’ remuneration arrangements
forfeited on leaving a previous employer.
In doing so the Committee will take
account of relevant factors including any
performance conditions attached to the
forfeited arrangements and the time over
which they would have vested.

The Committee will generally seek to
structure buyout awards or payments on
a like-fordike basis to the remuneration
amrangsments forfaited. Any such
payments or awards are limited to the
expected value of the forfeited awards,
Where considered appropriate, such
spedial recruitment awards will be liable
to forfeiture or ‘malus’ and/or ‘dawback’
on early departure.

Where a pasition is filled intemally, any
ongoing remuneration obligations or
outstanding variable pay elements shall be
allowed to continue according to the
original terms.
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Fees payable to a newly-appointed
Chairman or Non-Executive Director will
be in fine with the fee policy in place at the
time of appointment.

Service agreements and
letters of appointment

Executive Directors’ service agreements
are on a rolling basis and may be
terminated on 12 months’ notice by the
Company or the Executive Director.
Service agreements for new Executive
Directors will generally be limited to

12 months’ notice by the Company.

All Non-Executive Directors’ letters of
appointment are on a rolling basis and
may be terminated on six months’ notice
by the Company or the Non-Executive
Directors. All Non-Executive Directors are
subject to re-election at intervals of not
mare than three years.

Details of the Directors’ senvice
agreements, letters of appointment and
notice period are set out on page 94. It is
contemplated that Paul Lynam will enter
into a new service contract in April 2020t
reflect the amended terms of his
employment as set out in this report.




Payments for foss of office
The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are set out below:

Seanacio Description

Paymant in keu of notice Tha Company has discretion to make a payment in lieu of notice to Exeautive Directors and
Non-Executive Diractors, Such a payment would include base salary or fees for the unexpired
pericd of notice. As part of the CEO' transition from his current salary to a reduced salary,
if notice of termination is given before the end of 2020 the base salary for the notice period will
be the pre 1 April 2020 level of £1.2 million. f notice is given from on or after 1 January 2021,
salary for the notica period will be the salary prevailing at the time notice is given.

Annual bonus This will be at the discretion of the Committee on an individual basis and the decision as to
whether or not to award an annual bonus award in full or in part will be dependent on a number
of factors, induding the circumstances of the individual’s departure and their contribution to the
business during the annual bonus pericd in question. Any annual bonus award amounts paid will
normally be pro-ratad for time in service during the annual bonus period and will, subject to
performance, be paid at the usual time (although the Committee retains discretion to pay the
annual bonus award earlier in appropriate circurmstances).

Any annual bonus eamad for the year of departure and, if relevant, for the prior year may be
paid wholly in cash at the discretion of the Committee,

Deferred Bonus Plan The extent to which any unvested award will vest will be determined in accordance with the rules
of the DBP.

Unvested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment, However, if a participant
leaves due ta death, ill-haalth, injury, disability, the sale of his employer or any other reason at the
discretian of the Cornmittee, the Committee shall determine whether the award will vest at
cassation or at the normal vesting data. In either case, the extent of vesting will be determined
by the Committee, taking into account, unless the Committee determines otherwise, the period
of time elapsed from the date of grant to the date of cessation relative to the deferral period,
Awards in the form of nil-cost or nominal-cost share options may then be exerdised during such
period as the Committee determines.

Awards in the form of nil-cost or nominal-cost share options which have vested but remain
unexercised at the date of cessation may ba exerdised if a partidpant leaves due to death,
il-health, injury, disability, the sale of his employer or any other reason at the discretion of the
Committee. Awards may then be exercised for such period as the Committee deterrines.

P The extent ta which any urwested award will vest will be determined in accordance with the rules
of the LTIR.

Unvested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment. However, if a participant leaves
due to death, ill-health, injury, disability, the sale of his employer or any other reason at the
discretion of the Committee, the Committee shall determine whether the award will vest at
cessation or at the normal vesting date. in either case, the extent of vesting will be determined by
the Committee taking into account the extent to which the performance condition is satisfied and,
unless the Committea determines otherwise, the period of time elapsad from the date of grant to
the date of cessation relative to the performancs period. Awards in the form of nil-cost or nominal-
cost share options may then be exercised during such period as the Committee determines.

If a participart leaves for any reason [other than summary dismissal) after an award has vested but
before it has been released (i.e. during a *holding period*), his award will ardinarily continue until tha
normal release date when it will be released. The Committee retains the discretion to release
awards whan the participant leavas.

Awards in the form of nil-cost or nominal-cost share options which have vested and been released
but remain unexercised at the date of cessation may be exercised if a panticipant leaves for any
reason (other than summary dismissal). Awards may then be exercised for such period as the
Committee determines.
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Scenario

Daseription

Phantom Share Optian Plan {'PSOSY)

The extent to which any unvested award will vest will be determined in accardance with the rules of
tha PSQOS.

Unvested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment. However, if a participant leaves
due to death, ill-health, injury, disabifity, redundancy, the sale of his employer or any other reasan at
the discretion of the Committee, the award may be exercised for up to six months following the
date of cessation or such period as the Committee determines. The extent of axercise will be
Getermined by the Committee taking inta account the extent to which the performance metric is
satisfied and the period of time elapsed from the date of grant to the date of cessation relative to
the performance period, unless the Committee determines otherwise.

Change of controf

The extent to which unvested awards under the DBP, LTIP and PSOS will vest will be determined in
accordance with the rules of the relevant plan,

Awiards under the DBP may vast in full in the event of a takecver, merges or other relevant corporate
event unless the Board determines the award will be subject to roll-over.

Awards under the LTIP may vest early on 2 takaover, merger or other relevant corporate event unless
the Board determines the award will be subject to rolf-over. The Committee will detemine the level
of vesting taking into account the extent to which the performance condition is satisfied and,

unless the Committee determines otherwise, the period of time elapsed from the date of grant to
tha date of the relevant comporate event relative to the performance period.

In the event of a takeover, merger or other relevant corporate event, awards under the PSOS may
be exercised within six months of the relevant corporate event or such pericd as the Committee
determines. The Committee will determine the level of vesting taking into account the extent to
which the performance metric is satisfied and the period of time elapsed from the date of grant to
the date of tha relevant corporate event relative to the performance periad, unless the Committee
determines otharwise.

Mitigation

Termination paymanta may be reduced where the Executive Director commences alternative
smployment during the notica period.

Other payments

Payments may be made either in the event of 2 lass of office or 2 change of contrel under the
Sharesave Scheme, which is govermned by its rules and the legislation relating to such tax-qualifying
plans. There is no discretionary treatment for leavers or on a change of controf undaer thesa plans.

In appropriate drcumstances, payments may also ba made in respect of accrued holiday,
outplacement and legal fees.

Where a buy-out award is made under the Listing Rules then the leaver provisions would be determined at the time of the award.

The Committes reserves the right to make additional exit payments where such payments are made in good faith in the discharge of
an existing legal abligation (or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation) or by way of setiement or comprornise of any
claim arising in connection with the termination of a Director’s office or employment.

Where the Committee retains discretion it will be used to provide flexibility in certain situations, taking into account the particuiar
circumstances of the Director's departure and performance,

There is no entittement to any compensation in the event of Non-Executive Directors’ fixed-term agreements not being renewed or
the agreement terminating earlier with the exception of a payment in lieu of notice as detailed in the table on the previous page.
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Consideration of employment
conditions elsewhere in
the Company

The Committee considers the general
basic salary increase, remuneration
arrangements and employment conditions
for the broader employee population
when determining remuneration policy

for the Executive Directors.

Shareholder views

The Committea is commitied to an
angoing dialogue with shareholders and
welcomes feedback on Executive and
Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration.
Should any significant changes be
proposed to the policy going forward,
the Company will engage with its
shareholders to seek their views,

Existing
contractual arrangements

The Committee retains the discretion to

make any remuneration payment or

payment for loss of office outside the

palicy in this report:

» where the terms of the payment were
agreed before the policy came
into effect

 where the terms of the payment were
agreed at a time when the relevant
individual was not a Director of the
Company, and in the opinion of the
Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individual
becoming a Director of the Company

* 1o satisfy contractual arrangements
under legacy remuneration
arrangements, including any
arrangements in place prior
to Admission

For these purposes, ‘payment’ includes
the satisfaction of awards of variable
rermuneration, and in relation to an award
involving shares the tenns of the payment
are agreed at the time the award is granted.

The Committee may satisfy any Phantom
Share Option granted under the PSOS and
may adjust the terms of any such Phantom
Share Option to take account of any
variation of share capital, demerger,
delisting, spedial dividend or other event
which may affect the Company’s

share price.

The Committee ray make minor
changes to this policy which do not have
a material advantage to Directors, to aid
in its operation or implementation,
taking into account the interests of
shareholders but without the need to
seek shareholder approval.
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Corporate Govemance Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their
report, the related Strategic
Report and Corporate
Governance Report, and the
audited financial statements
of Secure Trust Bank PLC
and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group’) for the year ended
31 December 2019,

Report and
financial statements

The Strategic Report is set out beginning
on page 02. This Directors’ Report also
indudes additional disclosures required by
the UKLA% Disclosure and Transparency
Rules and Listing Rules. Some of the
matters normally induded in the Directors’
Report are included by reference as
indicated below.

Principal activities and review
The prindpal activity of the Group is banking
induding deposit taking and secured and
unsecured lending. The business review and
information about future developments, key
performance indicators and principal risks
are contained in the Strategic Report.

Corporate governance

The Corporate Governance Report, on
pages 62 to 119, contains information
about the Group's corporate governance
arrangements, including the Group's
compliance with the Code. A statement
relating to the Group’s compliance with
the Code throughout the year ending

31 Decernber 2019 is set out on page 62,

Results

The results for the year are shown on page
120. The Group made a profit for the
period of £31.1 miillion {2018: £28.3 million).
The recondiliation of statutory results to
adjusted results is set out in the Financial
review in the Strategic Report.

For the purposes of DTR 4.15R2 and DTR
4.1.8 this Directors’ Report and the
Strategic Report on pages 02 to 41
comprise the management report.

Dividends

The Directors did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year.

An interim dividend of 20 pence per share
was paid on 27 September 2019, The total
dividend for 2018 was 83 pence per share.

Dividend Policy

The Directars reviewed the dividend policy
of the Company and have adopted a
progressive dividend policy which takes
into account the Company's capital
requirements, earnings and cash flow in
the long term.

The Directors will hava regard ta current
and projected capital, liquidity, eamings
and market expectations in determining
the amount of the dividend. On occasion,
the Company may dedare and pay a
special dividend resulting from spedial
circumstances, however no such special
dividend is currently envisaged.

Share capital

The: share capital of the Company
comprises one class of ordinary shares with
a nominal value of 40 pence each, As at

31 December 2019 the Company had
18,477,500 ordinary shares in issua.

Each ordinary share entitles the holder to
one vote.

An additional 2,271 ordinary shares of 40
pence each were issued during 2019 (2018:
nif). Since 1 January 2020 and until the date
of the report, a further 145,144 ordinary
shares of 40 pence each were issued in the
Company. All the ordinary shares are fully
paid and rank equally in all respects and
there are no special rights to dividends or
in relation to control of the Company.

Detaiis of the Company's share capital and
movements in the Company's issued share
capital during the year are provided in
Note 30 of the conselidated

finandial statements.

The Company operates a Long Term
Incentive Plan, Sharesave Plan and a
Deferred Bonus Share Plan as set outin
the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to
95. Upon exercise, shares awarded under
these plans have the same rights and rank
pari passu with existing ordinary shares.

The powers of the Directors, including in
relation to the issue or buyback of the
Company's shares are set out in the
Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s
Articles of Assadiation. Shareholders wilt
be asked to grant authority to the
Directors to issue and allot shares at the
2020 Annual General Meating.
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Under section 551 of the Companies Act
2006, the Directors may allot equity
securities only with the express
authorisation of shareholders which may
be given in General Meeting, but which
cannot last more than five years.

Under section 561 of the Companies Act
2006, the Board may alsa not allot shares
for cash {otherwise than pursuant to an
employee share scheme) without first
making an offer to existing shareholders to
allot such shares to thern on the same or
more favourable terms in proportion to
their raspective shareholdings, unless this
requirement is waived by spedal resolution
of the shareholders.

Resolutions permitting such actions will be
proposed at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting. Details of the resolutions for such
authority are included in the Notice of the
2020 Annual General Meeting and in the
related explanatory notes.

Significant shareholders

The Notice of the 2020 Annual General
Meeting also includes resolutions
specifically relating to the issue of shares
assodiated with an issue of Additional Tier
1 Securities. These resolutions are in 2
similar form to the resolutions proposed
and passed at the 2019 AGM.

Under section 701 of the Companies Act
2006 a company rmay make a market
purchase of its own shares if the purchase
has first been authorised by a resolution of
the company.

The Company did not repurchase any of
the issued ordinary shares during the year
or up to the date of this report, although it
was granted authority to do so by
shareholders at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting on 15 May 2019. That authority
expires on 15 August 2020 or, if earlier, the
conclusion of the 2020 Annual

General Meeting.

At the 2020 Anrwal General Meeting a
spedial resolution will be proposed
authorising the Company to make market
purchases of ordinary shares within the
limits set out in the resolution.

The resolution is in a similar form to that
proposed at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting. The Directors have no present
intention of exercising the authority
granted by the resolution, but regard it as
2 useful tool to have available,




On a show of hands, each member has the
right to one vote at General Meetings of
the Company. On a poll, each member is
entitled to one vote for every share held.
The shares carry no rights to fixed income,
No person has any special rights of control
over the Company’s share capital and all
issued shares are fully paid. Voting at the
2020 AGM will be conducted on a poli.

There are no specific restrictions on the
transfer of the shares in the Company
which are governed hy the general
provisions of the Articles of Assodiation
and prevailing legislation.

Substantial shareholders

In accordance with Disclosure and
Transparency Rules DTRS, the Company
as at 24 April 2020 (being the latest
practicable date before publication of this
report), has been notified of disclosable
interests in its issued ordinary shares as set
out in the table below.

Directors

A full list of Directors who served on the
Board throughout the financial y2ar,
including their biographical information,

is shown on pages &4 to 66. Mr Kapur
tendered his resignation as a Director on
6 December 2019, All the Directors will be
retiring and standing for either election or
re-election at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 13 May 2020,

Directors’ interests

The Directors’ interests {and those of any
persons connected with them) in the share
capital of the Company as at 31 December
2019 are set out on page A in the
Directors” Remuneration Report.

Substantial shareholders

Powers of Directors

The Directors’ powers are conferred on
them by UK legislation and by the
Company's Artides of Assodiation.
Changes to the Company's Articles of
Assaciation must be approved by
shareholders by way of a spedal resolution
and must comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2005 and the Financial
Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules.

Appointment and retirement
of Directors

The appointment and retirement of the
Directors is governed by the Company's
Articles of Assodiation, the UK Comporate
Governance Code and the Companies Act
2006. Further details can be found in the
explanatory notes induded in the Notice
of 2020 Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company’s Artides of Association
provide that, subject to the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, the Company
may indemnify any Director or former
Director of the Company or any associated
company against any liability and may
purchase and maintain for any Director or
former Director of the Company or any
associated company insurance against

any liability.

The Group has maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout 2019,

The letters of appointment of the Non-
Exeautive Directors incorporate by
reference the provisions of the Articles of
Association in relation to the indemnity of

Directors into the contract established by
the letter of appointment between the
MNon-Executive Director and the Company.

Disclosure of information
under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

Additional information, where not already
contained in the Directors’ Report, where
applicable to the Company, can be found
in the following sections of the annual
report as set out in the table at the foot of
page 108.

Related party transactions and
conflicts of interest

Details of refated party transactions are set
out in Note 40 to the financial statements.
Directors are invited to declare new
conflicts of interest at each Board meeting
and where an actual or potential conflict of
interest has been identified appropriate
steps are taken to deal with the conflict.

A separate register of Directors’ conflicts of
interest is maintained by the Company.

Significant contracts

There are no contracts of significance in
which a Director is interested.

There are no agreermaents between any
Group company and any of its employees
or any Director of any Group company
which provide for compensation to be
paid to an emplayee or a Director for
termination of employment or for loss of
office as a consequence of a takeover of
the Company.

There are no significant agreements to
which the Company is party that take
effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control following a takeover bid for
the Company.

No. of

erdinary sheras %

Invesco 3,348,965 17.98
Columbia Threadneedle Investments 3,246,103 17.43
Arbuthnot Banking Group plc 1,819,538 Q77
Wellington Mgt Company 1,626,327 873
Mr Steven A Cohen 1,510,412 B.1%
Unicorn Asset Mat 1,504,000 8.08
Tellworth Investments 1,036,787 557
Ruffer 672,247 .61
Ennismore Fund Mgt 606,180 323
Premier Miton Investors 580,520 312

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 1 07

Hoday sovewasony aleiodion




Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report
continued

Employment policies and
equal opportunities

The Group is an indusive and equal
opportunities employer and opposes afl
forms of discrimination, Applications from
people with disabilities will ba considered
fairly and f existing employees become
disabled, every effort is made to retain
them within the workforce wherever
reasonable and practicable. The Group
also endeavours to provide equal
opportunities in the training, promotion
and general career development of
disabled employees.

Group polides seek to create a workplace
that has an open atmosphere of trust,
honesty and respect. Harassment or
discrimination of any kind is not tolerated.
This principfe applies to all aspects of
employment from recruitment and
promotion, through to termination and all
other terms and conditions of employment.

The Group has processes in place for
communicating with its employges.
Employea communications incdude
information about the performance of
the Group, on major matters affecting
their work, emplayment or workplace
and to encourage employees to get
involved in social or community

events. These communications alm to
achieve a common awareness for all
employees of the finandal and economic
factors affecting the performance of the
Group. Further information on how the
Group communicates with its employees
is sat out in the Managing our business
responsibly section starting on page 52.

Research and development

The Group does not undertake research
and development activities.

Political donations
and expenditure

The Group made no political donations
and incurred no palitical expenditure
during the year {2018: £nil}.

Post balance sheet events

There have been no significant events
between 31 December 2019 and the date
of approval of the finandial statements
which would require change to the
financial staternents. Note 43 provides
information in respect of the COVID-19
outbreak, which will impact the Group's
results for 2020.

Disclosure of information
to auditor

Each Director in office at the date of this
Directors’ report confirms that so far as the
Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware and each Director has
taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director to make thernselves
aware of any refevant audit inforrmation
and to establish that the Company's
auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern and viability
The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
Further information about this and the
Group's ongoing viability, including the
potential impact of COMID-19, is to be
found on page 50.

Fair, balanced

and understandable

The Directors are satisfied that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable,
and provide the information necessary for
meambers and other stakeholders to assass
the Group's position and performance,
strategy and business madel.

Future developments and
financial risk management
objectives and policies
Information about future developments,

internal contrel and financial risk
management systems in relation to

Disclosure of information under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

financial reporting and finandial risk
management objectives and policies in
relation to the use of finandal instruments
can be found in the following sections of
the annual report which are incorporated
into this report by reference:

Future developments ~ see Strategic
Report on pages 02 to 61.

Internal control and financial risk
management systems in relation to
financial reporting - see Corporate
Govemnance Report on pages 62 to 119,
Financial risk management objectives and
policies in relation to the use of financiat
instruments can be found on the Group's
website: www.securetrusthank.com/
our-corporate-information/risk-
management and Note 1.10to the
financial staternents.

Greenhouse gas emissions
from our operations

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions,
required under the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
Reguftation 2013), are detailed on page 58.

Auditor ‘
Deloitte LLP was appointed as auditor at ]
the Annual General Meeting held in 2019, ;
As detailed on page 73 in the Audit
Committee report, the Board is
recommending the reappointment of
Delpitte LLP as auditor at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The 2020 Annual General Meeting will
be held at 10am on 24 June 2020 at
{Upper) Ground Floor, Abbey Gardens,
Reading RG1 3BA.

By order of the Boayd.

M P D Stevens
Secretary

6 May 2020

ftem Page referenca
Details of any long term incentive schemes Note 31, Page 166
Allotments of cash or equity securities otherwise than to shareholders in praportion to their hoidings Note 30, Page 165

!
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible
for preparing the Annual
Report and the Group and
parent company financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the
Directors to prepare Group
and parent company financial
statements for each financial
year. As required by the Listing
Rules, they are required to
prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected
to prepare the parent company
financial statements on the
same basis,

Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent company and of their profit or
loss for that period. In preparing each of
the Group and parent company financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

¢ select suitable acoounting policies and
then apply them consistently

make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

presant information, induding
accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information

» state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU

* provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Group and parent
company's financial pasition and
financial performance

* assess the Group and parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concem,
disclosing, as applicable, matters refated
to going concem

use the gaing concemn basis of
accounting unless they either intend to
liguidate the Group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic altemative but to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group
and parent company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that
its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible
for such internal controi as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of
finandial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general
responsibility to safequard the assets of
the Group and parent company and for
taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to prevent and detect fraud and
other iregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations,
the Directors are also responsible for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remunieration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement
that complies with that law and

those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information induded on the
Company’s website. Legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

We confirm that to the best of
our knowledge:

* the finandal statements, prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and parent
cormpany and the undertakings induded
in the consolidation taken as a whole

¢ the Strategic Reportindudes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group
and parent company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the
prineipal risks and uncertainties that

they face

the annual report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group and
parent company's performance, business
model and strategy

This respensibility statement was approved
by the Board of Directors on 6 May 2020
and is signed on their behalf by:

Lord Forsyth “
Chairman §

Paul Lynam
Chief Executiv icer
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
to the members of Secure Trust Bank plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In our opinion:
» the financial statements of Secure Trust Bank PLC {the ‘Company? and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group? give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended

+ the Group finandial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union

« the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

+ the consolidated and company statement of financial position

s the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity
¢ the consolidated and company statements of cash flows; and

= the related notes 1 to 43.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards the Company financal statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibitities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

section of our report,

We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the ethical requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the
financial staternents in the UK, including the Finandal Reporting Council’s {the 'FRC'’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilfed our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services
provided to the Group and Company for the vear are disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements. We confirm that the non-audit
services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach
Key sudit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

* Going Concam assessment and related disclosures;

* Revenue recognition; and

* Impairmant of recevables.

Within this report, key audit mattets are identified as follows:
€2 Simftar level of risk

€ Newly identified

Materiality The matetiality used for the Group finandial statements and Company financial statements was £1.9 miffion (2018: £1.7 million) and
£1.4 million 2018: £1.3 million) respectively, which was determined using 5% of profit before tax.
We have performed a full scope audit on all entities within the Group which is consistent with the prior year, All full scope audits

were performed directly by the Group audit team and exeauted at lavels of materiality applicable to each individual entity.
Audit testing to respond to the risks of material misstatement was performed directly by the Group audit engagement team.

Secoping
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Significant changes Given the rapid spread of COVID-19 and the ongoing uncertainty surrounding its impact, we have focused a greater degree of
In our approach  audht effort on the Directors’ judgements. This was both in determining the Company's and Group's ability to continue to adopt
the going concarn basis over a period of at Ie_ast 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements, and over the

disclosure of post balance sheet events.

In accondance with this greater level of audit effort, we have identified a new key audit matter in the period ralating to the going

concemn assessment and post balance sheat event disclosures.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

4.1. Going concern

Wae have reviewed the directars’ statement in note 1.2 to the finandal statements and sirategic
report about whather they considerad it appropriata to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's

and Company's ability to continue 1o do so over a period of at least twelve maonths from the date of

approval of the financial statements.

We considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the Group, its business model and
related risks including where relevant the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and Brexit, the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework and the system of intemal control.
We evaluated the directors’ assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
including challenging the underlying data and key assumptions used to make the assessment,
and evaluated the directors’ plana for future actions in relation to their going concern assessment.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation
to that staterment required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) and report if the staterment is matesially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Our challenge of the directors’ going concarn went and related disclosures have been
identified as a Key Audit Matter, which is further discussed below in Section 5.1.

Going concarn is the basis of preparation of
the financial staternents that assumes an
entity will remain in operation for a paricd of
at laast 12 months from the date of approval
of the financial statemants,

We confirm that we have nothing material to
report, add or draw attention to in respect of
these matters.

4.2, Princlpal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ statements and considering whether they were consistent
with the knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, Induding the knowledge obtainedin
the evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, we are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw
attention to in relation to:

* the disclosures on pages 40 to 49 that describe the principal risks, procedures to identify emerging
risks, and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated

= the directors’ confirmation on page 48 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal and emerging risks facing the Group, inckuding those that would threaten its business
maodel, future performance, solvency or liquidity; or

* the directors’ explanation on page 50 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and
their staternent as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and mest its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment,
including any related disciosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications .
or assumptions

We are also required to report whether the directors’ statement relating to the prospects of the

Group required by Listing Rule 9.8.4R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in

the audit.

Viability means the abillity of the Group to
continue over the time horizon considered
appropriate by the directors.

We confirm that we have nothing material to
report, add or draw attention to in respect of
these matters,
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Caorporate Govemanca Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the finandial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaterment (whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the finandial staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Going concern assessment and ralated disclosures

Key audit
matter
description

The rapid spread and ongoing uncartainty surraunding the impact of COVID-19 has increased complexity associated with the
Directors’ assessment of the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going concem aver a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the finandal statements. In addition, there is an increased risk associated with the adequacy of
disclasures over the going concern assessment and events after the reporting date.

In making their assessment, the Directors consider that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate and that there is nho
material uncertainty related to going concern. The Directors have disclosed their explanations and condlusions on the geing
concern basis and the key matters considered, including judgements in relation to () the engeing confidence in the Company's
and Group's capital and liquidity positions, particularly in light of remodeliing the potential level of expected wedit losses as a
rasuit of COVID-19, as well as {i)) the capability of the operational resilience framework in place over the assessment period.

Managernent’s associated consideration of the impact of COVID-19 an the Company’s and Group’s abifity to continue as a going
concern is detailed on pages 50 to 51 within the Directors’ Report and note 1. Detail of the impact of events after the reporting
date are presented in note 43,

How the scope
of our audit
respondad

to the key
audit matter

In response to the significant economic disruption associated with the COVID-19 pandemic we increased audit effort to challenge
whather there was a material uncertainty over the Company’s and Group’s ability to continue as a going concem over a period of
at least twetva months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements.

Capltal, liquldity and stross testing
We reviewed and challenged, with the support of cur prudential experts where appropriate:

* with specific reference to the Group’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process, the interplay between IFRS ¢ provisions
and capita! in stress taking account of Bank of England guidance, induding the guidance issued on 26 March 2020, as well as
forecast assumptions of the Company and Group’s capital plan, given current market conditions;

with spedcific referenca to the Group’s Intemal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Pracess, the forecast changes to the Company
and Group's liquidity and funding plan, which is required to be produced for all regulatad banks, with reference to the Group's
internal risk appetite and ragufatory minimum requirements, given current market conditions;

L 2

the preparation and internal governance process followed by Management in order to prepare scenarios and model the
potentiat impact of COVID-19. This inchuded attending the Assumptions Committee where the scenarios and key assumptions
were discussed and agreed by Management;

* the scenarios adopted by Management to capture potential downside risks, including the associated macro-
aeconomic assumptions;

the subsequent stress testing output, with a particular focus on the capital and liquidity headroom available against minimum
regulatory requirements; and :

the regulatorss issued guidance in relation to temporary use of regulatory buffers where appropriate.
Operational Resillence
We reviewed and assessed Management's:

*» business continuity plans arxl subsequent changes to those plans as 2 consequence of a prolonged impact from the
COVID-19 pandemic;

* internal monitoring process recently introduced by Management in order to monitor the oparational impact of COMID-19 on a
recpdar basis; and

* oversight of service providers' operational and financial resilience, or where necessary, the contingency plans in place where a
supplier has been deemed at risk.

1 12 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Repart & Accounts 2019




How the scope
of our audit
responded

to the key
audit matter
(continued)

Events after the reporting date
In order to assess whether the post balance sheet event disclosures in note 43 were appropriate we have:
* reviewed the mast recent Board minutes and regulatory correspondence to identify items of interest;

* gvaluated Management’s assessment of the impact of the significant business developments that occurmed after the year end,
induding the spread of COVID-19 and the resulting actions taken by the UK Government; and

+ challenged Management’s assessment of the impact of recent avents on the carrying value of the Group's assets and liabilities.
Disclosures

We have reviewad the disclosuras made by Management in relation to events after the reporting date and geing concem, to
assess whather they adequately reflect the deterioration in ecanomic outiook since 31 December 2019 and the impact on the
Group, and checked the consistency of the disdosures with our knowledge of the Group besed on our audit,

observations

Basad on the work performed, having taken accourt of the assumptions and other matters disclosed in the going concermn
statemnent made by the Directors and elsewhere in the financial staterents, we concurred with the Directors' conclusion that the
significant economic disruption associated with the COVID-19 pandemic does not give rise to a material uncertainty over the
Company's and Group's ability to continue as a going concern over a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. We also concluded that the disclosures in relation to gaing concem and events after the reporting date

are appropriate.

5.2. Revenue Recognition &=

Key audit
matter
description

The Group recognised interest income of £191.4 million 2018: £169.2 million) against loans and advances to customers during
the year.

The Group holds loans and advances to customers which meet the criteria of finandial assets measured at amortised cost under
IFRS 9. The recognition of interest income on leans and advances maasured at amortised cost requires the use of the effective
interest rate ('EIR"} methad.

Judgement is appliad by management to determine key assumptions refated to the expected lives, with our specific focus placed
on the Motor and Retall Finance portfolios, being the principal income streams for the Group. Any changes to such assumptions
during the life of the loan can have a significant impact on the amount of interest income recognised during the year,

Given the degree of judgement and estimation invohed in determining the expected life, we also identified that there is a
potential for frand through possible manipulation of this balance.

interest income is induded in nate 4.1 to the accounts, with management’s assodiated accounting polides detailed on in note 1.5.
The correspanding area in the Audit Committee report is on page 75.

How the scope
of our audit
resportded

to the key
audit matter

We obtained an understanding of management’s process and relevant control around recogpition of interest income through
discussions and walkthroughs.

Specifically, we assessed the operation of the Assumptions Committee, which is used as a forum for senior management ta
present analysis, discuss and challenge key assumptions, such as the estimate of expected lives adopted for the Motor and Retail
Finance portfolios.

We engaged our intemal data analytics spedalists ta independently rebuild the behavioural lives based on historical redemption
data. As part of this we tested the accuracy and completeness of the historical redemption data.

Using our data analytics specialists we performed a fukl review of the scripts within the Group’s IR model and] recalculated the EIR
output based on these scripts and the input data within the model. We also tested the acauracy and completeness of model input
data on a sample basis.

As part of our wider assessment of revenue recognition we also reviewed the treatment of fees and charges arising on loans and
advances to custorners and the appropriateness of thelr indusion or exclusion in the Group's EIR model.

Key
chservations

We conclude revenue recognition and the expected lives adapted by management to be appropriate.

We consider the underlying methodofogy used for the calculation of EIR for the Motor and Retail Finance portfolias to be
compliant with the Group's accounting policies and the requirements of IFRS 9 in all material respects.
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Carporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor's report
continued

5.3. Impairment of receivables &>

Kay audit
matter description

The Group held allowances for impairment of loans and advances to customers of £60.6 million (2018: £67.1 million) against loans
and advances to customers of £2,510.7 million {2018; £2,094.0 milflon),

For financial assets measurad at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires the carrying value to be assessed for impairment using unbiased
forward-looking information, The measuremant of expected aedit losses is complex and involves a number of judgemants and
estimates relating 1o customer default rates, exposure at default, lass given default, assessing significant increases in credit risk and
macroaconomic soenarie modeliing.

These assumptions are informed using historical behaviour and management's experience. They are also affected by
managemants consideration of the future economic envirorwnent.

In ordler to determine the key assumptions within the model, we performed sensitivity analysis and considered the impact each
assumption had on the level of recorded provision.

The most significant assumptions and judgements applied in the impairment model are;
¢ The determination of the loss given default {LGD*) on the Motor Finance portfolio, in particular the vehicle recavery rate

* The valuation of the provision for Real Estate Finance; loans specifically focusing on tha staging criteria and collateral valuations
of loans in Stages 2 and 3; and

* The completeness and accuracy of post-model overlays made by managemant

Given the degree of judgement involved in detenmining key assumptions, we also identified that there s a potential for fraud
thiough possible manipulation of this balance.

Impairment of receivables is included in nole 14 of the accounts. Management's associated accounting policies are detailad within
note 1,9 on pages 132 to 135. The corresponding area in the Audit Committae report is on page 75,

How the scope
of aur audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We identified and understood relevant controls, inchuding the review of management’s key judgements paper by the Audit
Committee, the management review of credit gradings for the Real Estate Finance business and the operation of the Assumptions
Comrmittee, which considers key assumptions induding any required management overlays.

For the Motor Finance LGD we assessed and tested both the historical and foracast data used to suppart tha vehicle racewery rate,
whilst also re-performing the calculation to assess its mechanica accuracy.

For Real Estate Finance loans, we challenged the staging applied to cases which demonstrated indicators of a significant increase
in credit risk and engaged our intetnat valuation specialists to challenge the collateral valuations utilised by the Group for all Stage
2 and 3 cases with refarence to most recent third party valuation reports.

We reviewed the accuracy of managament’s overlay provisions by reference to the supporting calculations and challenged their
completeness through our understanding of madel enhancements, peer benchmarking and industry changes and macro-
economic changes such as the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the Furopean Union and depreciation in car values.

As part of our wider assessment of impairment of receivables we worked with credit risk and modelling speciafists to assess
compliance of the modelfing approach and soripts utilised with the requirements of the standard and whether the documented
modelled approach was implemented in practice,

Wa recondled the allowances for impairment models to the general ledger and substantively tested a sample of loans to assess
whether the data used in the provision calculation were complete and accurate.

Finally we assessed the completeness of the Real Estate Finance allowance for impairment by reviewing 8 sample of the remainder
of the Real Estate Finance portfolio to identify whether there are any custorners who may be experiencing signs of
financial distress.

Key
observations

Based on the evidence obtained, we {ound that the significant assumnptions identified in our key audit matter which underpin the
allowarices for impalrment models were detarmined and applied sppropriately.

We consider the underlying methodology used for impairment to ba compliant with the requirements of IFRS % in all material
raspacts and the recognised provision to be appropriately stated,
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6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financia! statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced, We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the finandal statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Materiality £1.9 million (2018: £1.7 million) £1.4 million 2018: £1.3 million)
Basis for 5% of profit before tax 5% of profit before tax
determining materiality
Rationale for the We determined materiality using profit before tax as we considared this to be the most appropriate
kenchmark applied measure to assess the performance of the Group. As the majority of the Group's operations are carried out

by the Company, the same materiality basis was used for both.

CHART REMOVED

6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a leve! lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the finandial statements as a whole. Group performance materiality was set at
70% of Group materiality for the 2019 audit (2018: 70%).

We determined performance materiality with reference to factors such as our understanding of the Group and its complexity, the
quality of the control environmant and ability to rely on contrels and the level of uncomected misstatements in the current and
prior audit.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report ta the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.05 million
{2018: £0.08 million), as well as differences below that thrashold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level. Based on that assessment, our Group audit scope facused on all
entities within the Group and covered all of the material balances in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Position of the Group.

We have performed a full scopa audit on all entities within the Group which is consistent with the prior year. All full scope audits were
performed directly by the Group audit team and executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity which were lower
than Group materiality and ranged from £0.2 miflion to £1.4 million (2018: £0.7 miflion to £1.4 million). These account for 100%

{2018: 100%) of the Group’s net interest income, 100% {2018: 100%) of the Group's profit before tax and 100% (2018: 100%} of the
Group’s total assets. At the parent entity level we have also performed testing over the consolidation process of Group entities.

7.2. Qur consideration of the control environment

We identified key IT systems for the Group in respect of the financial reparting system, lending systems for Motor Finance, Real Estate
Finance, Commercial Finance, Retail Finance and the deposits system. We performed operating effectiveness testing of the general IT
controls (GITCs’) associated with these systems and relied upor IT controls across the systems identified.

We adopted a controls reliance appreach in relation to both the lending and deposits business cycles with the exception of consumer
mortgages, debt management and asset finance lending cydes, This was consistent with 2018 with the exception of Motor Finance
and Commercial Finance lending cycles for which a controls reliance approach was adopted for the first time for 2019. We tested the
relevant automated and manual controls for the business cycles where a control reliance approach was planned. No control
weaknesses were identified during our testing and therefore we adopted a controls reliance approach across the lending and deposit
cycles nated above when performing our substantive audit procedures.

8. Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information induded in the annual repont,

other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in

our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the finandial statements or aur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

(f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is 2 material

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,

we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

in this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other

information include where we condude that:

* Falr, balanced and understandable — the statement given by the directors that they consider the Annual Report and financial
statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained
in the audit; or

* Audit committee reparting - the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

= Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Govarnance Code —the parts of the directors” statemernt required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions
specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R{2) do not properly disclose a departure from a refevant
provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the finandial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessafy to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as 2
going concem, disdosing as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our chjectives are tc obtain reasonabla assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or efror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statemants,

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and then design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, induding obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for cur opinion.

11.1. identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

in identifying and assessing risks of material misstaterent in respect of irregularities, induding fraud and non-compliance with laws

and regulations, we considered the following:

* the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance induding the design of the Group's
remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets

 the Group's own assessment of the risks that imegularitias may occur either as a result of fraud or error that was approved by the
Audit Committee in September 219

resuits of our enquiries of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee about their own identification and assessment of
the risks of imegularities

any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:

— identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud

- the intemal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations

*
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued

s the matters discussad among the audit engagement team and involving relevant internal spedialists, including tax, valuations, share
based payments, data anaiytics, information technology, prudantial regulatory and credit risk spedialists regarding how and where
fraud might occur in tha finandal statements and any potential indicators of fraud

As a result of these procedures, we considerad the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and
identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition and impairment of receivables. In common with
all audits undet 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.

We also abtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The key laws and regulations we considered in this context induded the UK Companies Act, listing rules and tax legislation.

in addition, we considered provisions of cther laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
comphiance with which may be fundamental to the Group's ability to eperate or to avoid a material penalty. These induded the
regulation set by the Finandial Conduct Authority and by the Prudential Regulation Authority relating to regulatory capital and liquidity
requirements, which are fundamental to the Group's abflity to continue as a going concern.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified revenue recognition and impairment of receivables as key audit matters related to
the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in more detail and also describes the
specific pracedures we perforred in response to those key audit matters,

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
refevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements

enguiring of managemeant, the Audit Committee and in-house legal caunsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims
performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement
due to fraud

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC, Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Regulatary Authority; and

in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of contrals, testing the apprapriateness of journal entries and aother
adjustrents; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business

Woe also cornmunicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to alt engagement team members induding
internal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
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Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2004,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the finandal year for which the finandat statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

13. Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country
Reporting) Regulations 2013

in our opinion the information given in note 42 to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 has
been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the Capital Requirernents {Country-by Country Reporting)
Regutlations 2013,

14. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

* the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Wodey esurwianct) eleiodion

14.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have
not been made or the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15. Other matters

15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by tha Board of Diractors on 16 May 2018 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and subsequent financial periads. The period of total uninterupted
engagement incduding previcus renewals and reappointrments of the firm is two years covering the years ending 31 December 2018
to 31 Dacember 2019,

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with
ISAs (UK).

16. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assumne responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions wa

have formed.

AR DA

Matthew Perkins, FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Birmingham, United Kingdom
6 May 2020
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Financial Staternents

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2019 2018

Note Fmiltion £miflion
Income statement
Interest income and similar income 4.1 1914 169.2
Interest expense and similar charges 4.1 6.0 {35.5)
Net interast income 4.1 145.4 133.7
Fee and commission income 42 20.9 194
Fee and commission expense 42 0.8 (1.5
Net fee and commission income 42 201 17.9
Operating income 165.5 151.6
Net impairment losses on loans and advances to customers {32.6) (32.4)
Operating expenses 6 74.2) {84.5)
Profit befare income tax 38.7 34.7
Income tax expense 8 {7.6) 64
Profit for the year 31.1 28.3
Othar comprehensive income
ftems that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Revaluation reserve 0.2 0.3)
Taxation 6.2 0.1
Other comprehensive incoma for the yaar, net of income tax - 0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 31 281
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 311 28.3
Total comprehensive income attributabie to:
Equity holders of the Company 3.4 28.1
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holdars of the Company during
the year (pence per share)
Baslc sarnings per share 9.1 168.3 153.2
Diluted earnings per share 9.2 1466.4 150.9

All comprehensive income relates to continting operations.

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

2019 018

Note £milllion Emilion
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 11 484 448
Loans and advances to customers 12 2,450.1 20289
Debt securities 15 250 149.7
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk {09 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 -
Investment property 16 48 -
Property, plant and equipment , 17 11.3 1.0
Right-of-use assets 18 34 -
Intangible assets 19 9.0 9.9
Deferred tax assets 21 75 79
Cther assets 22 17.3 22.4
Tatal assets 2,6828 2,444.3
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilitias
Due to banks 23 308.5 2435
Deposits from customers . 24 2,020.3 1,847.7
Fair value adjustrent for portfolio hedged risk 0.2 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 -
Current tax liabilities 33 42
Lease liabilities 25 45 -
Other liabilities 26 409 40.1
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 0.7 13
Subordinated liabilities . 28 50.6 504
Total liabilitles 2,428.7 2,207.2
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 30 74 74
Share premium 81.2 812
Rewvaluation reserve 1.1 1.1
Retained earmnings 164.4 1474
Total equity 254.1 237.1
Total liabilities and equity 2,682.8 2,4443

The financial statements on pages 120 ta 187 were approved by the Board of Directors on 6 May 2020 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Lord Forsyth
Chairrnan

Paul Lynam
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 127 t4 187 are an intggral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Financial Statements

Company statement of financial position

2019 2018

Nate £millien Emiflion
ASSETS ‘
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 149.7
Loans and advances to banks 11 45.2 41.9
L.oans and advances to customers 12 2,353.6 1,980.3
Debt securities 15 250 149.7
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 09 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 -
Investment praperty 16 4.8 -~
Praperty, plant and equipment 17 6.5 6.0
Right-of-use assets 18 25 -
Intangible assets 19 7.4 8.1
Investments 20 4.1 39
Deferred tax assets 21 81 78
Other assets 22 103.8 &56
Total assets 2,666.8 2,433.0
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabiflties
Due to banks 23 308.5 2635
Depuosits from customers 24 2,020.3 1,847.7
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.0 -
Derivative financial instruments 06 -
Current tax liabilities 2.2 36
Lease liabilities 25 33 -
Other liabilities 26 420 49.1
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 07 1.3
Subordinated liabilities 28 506 50.4
Total liabilities 2,427.5 2,215.6
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 30 74 74
Share premium 81.2 81.2
Revaluation reserve 0.7 046
Retained earnings 150.0 128.2
Total equity 239.3 217.4
Total liabilities and equity 2,666.8 2,433.0

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the parent company
income statement. The profit for the parent company for the year of £35.9 million is presented in the Company statement of changes

in equity.

The finandal statements on pages 120 to 187 were approve;

Lord Forsyth A

Chairman

Registered number; 00541132

Paul Lynam
Chief Exe

e Officer

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Shere Revalustion Retained

tion " Elion niion e Eelion
Balance at 1 January 2018 7.4 81.2 1.3 1334 223.3
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2018 - - - 28.3 28.3
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - 0.3) - 0.3
Tax on revaluation reserve - - 01 - 0.1
Total ather comprehensive income - - (0.2) - {0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - (0.2} 28.3 28.1
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - (14.8) {14.8)
Share-based payments - - - 0.8 0.8
Tax on share-based payments - - - 0.3) .3)
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {14.3) (14.3)
Balance at 31 Decembar 2018 {as previously stated) 74 81.2 1.1 147.4 2371
IFRS 16 transition adjustment net of tax {see Note 1) - - - (0.1) {0.1)
Balance at 1 January 2019 {as restated) 7.4 81.2 11 147.3 237.0
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2019 - - - 31.1 311
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - 0.2 - 02
Tax on revaluation reserve - - 0.2) - 0.2
Total other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - 31.1 314
Transactions with owners, recorded directly In equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - {15.5) (15.5)
Share-based payments - - - 12 1.2
Tax on share-basad payments - - - 03 43
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - (14.0) {14.0)

Balance at 31 December 2019 7.4 81.2 1.1 164.4 254.1

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Statements

Company statement of changes in equity

Shora Shers Revahiation Retainad

Eridion Pomilion Srition b lion
Balance at 1 January 2018 7.4 81.2 0.5 121.7 210.8
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2018 - - - 208 2038
Other camprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - -~ 0.1 - 0.1
Total other comprehansive income - - 0.1 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 0.1 20.8 20.9
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - {14.8) (14.8)
Share-based payments - - - a8 08
Tax on shara-based payments - - - 0.3) (0.3}
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {14.3) {14.3)
Balance at 31 December 2018 (as previously stated) 7.4 81.2 0.6 128.2 2174
IFRS 14 transition adjustment net of tax (see Note 1) - - - {0.1) [oR})]
Balance at 1 January 2019 (as restated) 7.4 81.2 0.6 128.1 217.3
Total comprehensive Income for the period
Prafit for 2019 - - - 359 359
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - a1 - a1
Total other comprehensive income - - 0.1 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 0.1 35.9 36.0
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - (15.5) (15.5)
Share-based paymants ~ - - 1.2 1.2
Tax on shara-based payments - - - 03 03
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {14.0} {14.0)
Bafance at 31 Dacember 2019 7.4 8t.2 0.7 150.0 239.3

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated finandial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

2018
2019 Reslated
Nots £evillian Emilfion
Cash flows from oparating activities
Profit for the year 31 28.3
Adjustments for;
Income tax expense 8 7.6 6.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17 1.2 1.3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 18 09 -
Loss on disposal of computer software - 0.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 19 19 1.8
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 14 3246 324
Share-based compensation 3 12 08
Revaluation loss 17 11 -
Lease interest charged 25 01 -
Amortisation of subordinated liabilities issue costs 28 0.2 -
Cash flows from aperating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 779 7.1
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— net increase in loans and advances to customers (453.8) (494.8)
- net decrease/(increase) in other assets 4.4 {17.0)
— net increase in deposits from customers 172.6 364.5
— net increasef{decrease} in other liabilities 13 {0.5)
Income tax paid (7.8) 6.4
Net cash outflow from operating activities {205.2) {83.1)
Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of debt securities 3204 305.0
Purchase of debt securities {195.4) 449.7)
Purchase of investment property 16 (1.6) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (5.5) {1.1)
Purchase of intangible assets 19 (1.1 (1.4)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 116.5 (147.2)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in amounts due to banks 450 1500
Issue of subordinated lizbilities - 50.0
Subordinated liabilities issue costs - (0.8
Dividends paid 10 (15.5) (14.8)
Repayment of lease liabilities 25 {1.1) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 28.4 184.4
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {60.3) (45.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2145 2604
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 321 154.2 214.5

Redemption and purchase of debt securities have been grossed up and moved from operating activities to investing activities as this

better represents the nature of the underlying activity.

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 1 25

SWBWNEIS |BIDUBUIY




Financial Statements

Company statement of cash flows

2018
2019 Restated
Note Emlilion Ernillion
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 359 208
Adjustments for:
income tax expense 8 53 49
Depreciation of propeny, plant and equipment 17 0.7 Q7
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 18 05 -
Loss on disposal of computer software - 0.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 19 1.6 1.6
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 14 375 31
Share-based compensation 31 1.0 04
Revalustion deficit 17 11 -
Lease interest charged 25 0.1 -
Amortisation of subordinated liabilities issue costs 28 0.2 -
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 839 618
Changes in operating assets and hiabilities:
- net increase in loans and advances to customers {410.8) {480.3)
- pet increase in other assets {38.7) {32.4)
- net increase in deposits fram customers 1724 364.5
- net (decrease)increase in other liabilities (6.6) 6.0
Income tax paid 6.5 43
Net cash outflow from operating activities (206.1} (84.7)
Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of debt securities 3201 3050
Purchase of debt securities (195.4) (449.7)
Purchase of investment property 16 {1.8) -
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment 17 6.3 {05
Purchase of intangible assets 19 (1.0} {1.3)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 1146.8 {1.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in amounts due to banks 450 150.0
Issue of subordinated liabilities - 50.0
Subordinated liabilities issue costs - 08)
Dividends paid 10 (155 (14.8)
Repayment of lease liabilities 25 ©.8) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 28.7 184.4
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (60.6) (46.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2116 2584
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 321 151.0 211.6

Redemption and purchase of debt securities have been grossed up and moved from operating activities to investing activities as this

better represents the nature of the underlying activity.

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

The prindpal accounting polictes applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to afl the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1. Reporting entity

Secure Trust Bank PLC is a public limited company incorporated in England and Wales in the United Kingdom {referred to as ‘the
Company’} and is limited by shares. The Company is reqistered in England and Wales and has the registered number 00541132,

The registered address of the Company is One Arleston Way, Solihull, Wast Midlands, B0 4LH. The consolidated finandial statements
of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 comprise Secure Trust Bank PLC and its subsidiaries {together
referred to as 'the Group’ and individually as ‘subsidiaries’). The Group is primarily involved in banking and financial services.

1.2, Basis of presentation

The Group's consalidated financial statements and the Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Finandial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the Group and endorsed by the EU, and the Companies Act 2004
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
valuation of derivative financial instruments, investment properties and land and buildings at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional and presentational currency of the entities within the Group.
There are no IFRS that are issued but not yet effective that will have a material impact on the Group.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 2.

_The Directors have assessed, in the light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Group's ability to continue as a geing
concem. The Directors confirm they are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate rescurces to continue in business
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adapt the ‘going concern’ basis for preparing accounts, as set out in the
Going concern and viability section of the Strategic Report starting on page 2.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 May 2020.

1.3.IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, which has been issued and endorsed by the EU, is effactive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,

The new standard sets out the prindples for the recagnition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract i.e. the customer {'lessee’) and the supplier (lessor?). It replaces the previous leases standard, IAS 17 ‘Leases’,
and refated interpretations.

IFRS 16 uses a new single model that applies to all leases, thus eliminating the classification of leases as either operating leases or
finance leases for a lessee. Applying that model, on commencement of a lease, the lessee recognises a liability to make lease
payments {‘the lease liability’), an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (the right-of-use
asset’), and depreciation of right-of-use assets is shown separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement.

The lease liability is initially measured based on the net present value of the lease payments to be made over the remaining lease term,
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. After commencement of the lease, the lease liability is measured on
an amortised cost basis, with interest being calculated on an effective interest rate basis on the remaining balance of the liability, and
lease payments reducing the lease liability when paid.

The right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, being the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any
prepaid rentals less any lease incentives plus any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and dismantling or restoration costs.
Subsequently, the right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lesse. The right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 35,

In the cash flow statement, lease interest is induded in cash flow from operating activities and repayments of lease liabilities are
incuded in cash flow from financing activities.
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Finandal Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued

Transition choices

The Group has elected to recognise the cumulative effect of implementing IFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019. Accordingly, prior year comparatives shall not be restated, As a practical expedient, the Group will
apply the new standard only to contracts that had previously been identified as leases. Therefore, the new standard will not be applied
to contracts that had not previously been identified as leases.

The Group has also elected not to apply IFRS 16 to the following, as they are not material:

» Short-term leasas of 12 months or less

* Leases for which the underlying asset is of low value

This has resulted in the new standard only being applicable to a number of property leases and motor vehicle leases.

The Group has chosen to measure the initial right-of-use asset for property leases at its carrying amount as if the standard has been
applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The initial right-of-
use asset for all other leases is measured at an amount equal to the lease kiability.

The adjustments {net of tax) arising from the adaption of IFRS 14 on 1 January 2019, and their effect on the 31 December 2018 balance

sheet, were as follows:

As originally IFRS 4
NDwarniw  adjeriment  Asresiated
2018 1 Jamuary 2019 1 Jenwary 2019
Emilfion Emiilon Endllion
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 - 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 448 - 448
Loans and advances to custornars 20289 - 20289
Debt securities 149.7 - 149.7
Lease right-of-use assets - 4.5 45
Deferred 1ax assets 79 0.2 a1
Other assets 433 {0.4) 429
Total assets 2,444.3 4.3 2,448.6
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liablities
Due te banks 2635 - 263.5
Deposits from customers 18477 - 1,847.7
Lease liabilities - 55 55
Other liabilities 458 (1.1} 445
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 - 50.4
Total liabilities 2,207.2 4.4 2,211.,6
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 74 - 74
Share premium 81.2 - 81.2
Revaluation reserve 1.1 - 1.1
Retained earnings 147.4 {0.1) 147.3
Total squity 237.1 1) 2370
Total [fabllities and equity 2,444.3 4.3 2,448.6
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1. Accounting policies continued

Adjustments to other assets

These relate to the release of rent prepayments that are no fonger required now that the leases are recognised as right-of-use assets.
Adjustment to other liabilities

T?It:, re:ates to the release of a reverse lease premium, which under IAS 17 was included in accruals and was being spread over the term
of the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position on
transition at 1 January 2019 was 2.61%,

The table below presents a reconciliation from aperating lease commitments disclosed at Decernber 2018 to lease liabilities
recognised at 1 January 2019;

Emillion

Operating lease commitment disclosed under [AS 17 at December 2018 7.4
Effect of discounting 1.9
5.5

In terms of the income statement impact, the application of IFRS 16 resulted in a decrease in other operating expenses and an
increase in depreciation and interest expense compared to IAS 17. During the year, in relation to leases under IFRS 14 the Group
recognised the following amounts in the consolidated income statement:

£milion

Depreciation 09
Interest expense 0.1
1.0

Lessor accounting
Lessor accounting, which comprises Motor Finance, Asset Finance and the RentSmart business, remains unchanged from IAS 17,

1.4, Consolidation
Subsidiarfes
Subsidiaries are alt investees controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee.,
Subsidiaries are fully consalidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent {iabilities assumedin a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition, excluding directly attributable costs, over the fair value of the Group’ share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

The parent company’s investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less, where appropriate, provision for impairment.
At the year-end, there was no indication that investments in subsidiaries wers impaired, so impairment testing was not performed.

inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

The parent company’s expected credit loss on amounts due from related companies, calculated by applying probability of default and
lass given default the amount outstanding at the year-end, was not material at 31 December 2019,

Aceounting polidies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Discontinued operations
Subsidiaries are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. Discontinued operations are a compaonent of an entity that has
been disposed of, and rapresents a major line of business and is part of a single co-ordinated disposal plan.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued

1.5. Interest income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the effective interest rate method is used to measure the carrying value and
allocate interest income or expense. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

* the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
» the amortised cost of the financial liability

In calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments, other than assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, the
Group estimates cash flows considering ali contractual terms of the financial instrument {for exarnple, early redemption penalty
charges and broker commissions) and anticipated customer behaviour, but does not consider future credit losses. For financial assets
that were impaired on initial recognition (also referred to as purchased or originated credit-impaired assets - 'POCIY), a credit adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows, induding expected credit iosses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees received and paid that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiurns or discounts. Transaction costs indude incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial instrument.

For financial assets that are not considered to be credit-impaired (‘'stage 1° and ‘stage 2’ assets), interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross canying amount of the financial asset. For finandial assets that become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recagnition {'stage 3’ assets), from the next reporting period onwards interest income is recegnised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. The credit risk of financial assets that bacome credit-impaired are
not expected to imprave such that they are no longer considered credit-impaired, however, if this were to oceur the calculation of

interest income would revert back to the gross basis. The Group's definition of stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3 assets is set out in Note 1.9,

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition (PQOCI assets), income is calautated by applying the credit adjusted
effective interast rate to the amortised cost of the asset. For such financial assets the caleulation of interest income will never revertto a
gross basis, even {f the credit risk of the asset improves.

Further details regarding when an asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition is provided within Note 1.9.

1.6. Net fee and commission income
Fees and commission income and expenses that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument are included
in the effective interest rate and presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as interest income or expense.

Fees and cornmission income that is not considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of a finandal instrument are
recognised under IFRS 15 when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring promised senvices to customers.

1.7. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. There have not been any instances where assets have only been
partially derecognised. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire, including in the event of a substantial modffication as desaribed in Note 1.9.

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the finandial asset or financial liability is measured at
initial recognition, minus principal payments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurerent date, The fair value of assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on current bid and offer
prices respeciively. If the market for a financial instrument is not active the Group establishes a fair value by using an appropriate
valuation technique. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same for which market observable prices exist, net present value and discounted cash flow analysis.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Financial assets (with the exception of derivative financial instruments)

The Group classifies its financial assets at inception into three measurement categories; ‘amortised cost’, “fair value through other

comprehensive income' ('FVOCI) and “fair value through profit and loss’ (FVTPL). A finandial asset is measured at amortised cost if

both the following conditions are met and it has not been designated as at FVTPL:

s the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset to collect its contractual cash flows

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent payments of solely principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount

The Group's cument business model for all financial assets, with the exception of derivative financial instruments, is to hold to collect
contractual cash flows and all assets held give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the outstanding principal smaount. All the Group’s assets are therefore currently classified as amortised cost. Loans are
recognised when funds are advanced {o customers and are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The amortised cost of an instrument is the amount at which it is measured at initial recognition, less principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the Initial amount recognised and the
maturity amount, less any expected credit foss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
finandial asset befors adjusting for any expected credit loss sliowance.

A debt instrument would be measured at FVQCI only if both the below conditions are met and it has not been designated as FVTPL:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both coliecting its contractual cash flows and selling the
financial asset

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent payments of solely principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount \

The Group currently has no financial instruments dassified as FVOCI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent

changes
in fair value in OCI. This election would be made on an investment by investment basis. The Group aurrently holds no

such investments.
All other assets are classified as FVTPL. The Group currently has no finandial assets classified as FVTPL.

financial assets are not redlassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
mode! for managing financial assets. The Group has not reclassified any financial assets during the reporting period.

Deposits from customers

The Group dassifies its financizl liabilities as measured at amortised cost. Such financial Jiabilities are recognised when cash is received
from depositors and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities (with the exception of derivative financial instruments)

The subordinated liabilities comgprise of 6.75% Fixed Rate Reset Callable Subordinated Notes due 2028 (the ‘Notes’):

« The notes are redeemable for cash at their principal amount on a fixed date

= The Company has a call option to redeem the securities early in the event of a ‘tax event’ or a ‘capital disqualification event’, which is
at the full discretion of the Company

* interest payments are paid at six monthly intervals and are mandatory

» The notes give the holders rights to the principal amount on the notes, plus any unpaid interest, on liquidation, Any such daims are
subordinated to senior creditars, but rank pari passu with holders of other subordinated abligations and in priority to holders of
share capital

The above features provide the issuer with a contractual cbligation to deliver cash or anether financial asset to the holders, and
therefore the notes are classified as financial liabilities. Further information in respect of the notes is provided in Note 28.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the notes and are inaremental costs that would not have been incurred i
the notes had not been issued are deducted from the financial liability and expensed 1o the income statement on an effective interest
rate basis over the expected life of the notes.

The fair value of other liabilities repayable on demand is assumed to be the amount payable on demand at the statement of financial
position date.

The Group has not elected to measure any financial lisbilities at fair value.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policles continued

1.8. Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies are retranslated into the Company's functional currency at the rates

prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of

monetary items, are indluded in the income statement for the period.

1.9. impairment of financial assets and loan commitments

The Group recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit losses (ECLs) on all financial assets carried at amortised cost, induding lease

receivables and loan commitments.

Credit loss allowances are measured as an amount equal to fifetime ECL, except for the following assets, for which they are measured

as 12-month ECL: -

+ Financial assets determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date

» Financial assets which have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition

* Financial assets which have experienced a significant increase in eredit risk since their initial recognition but have subsequently met
the Group's cure policy, as set out below

Such assets are classified as stage 1 assets.

Assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition and have not subsequently met the
Group's
cure policy are classified as stage 2 assets. The Group’s definitions of a significant increase in credit risk and default are set cut below.

Afinancial asset is considered to have Jow credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the widely understood definition of
‘investment grade’ assets. The Group has assessed ll its debt securities, which represents UK Treasury bills, and laans held in
STB Leasing Limited, for which credit risk is retained by its partner RentSmart, to be low credit risk.

Definition of default/credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 loans)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired (stage 3}, A finandal
asset is considered to be aedit-impaired when an event or events that have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following ohservable data:

* Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings

s Notification of bereavement

* identification of loan meeting debt sale criteria

+ Initiation of repossession proceedings

In addition, a loan that is 90 days or more past due is considered credit-impaired for all portfolios. The credit risk of finandial assets that
become credit-impaired are not expected to imprave such that they are no longer considered credit-impaired.

For Commerdial Finance facilities that do not have a fixed term or repayment structure, evidence that a finanda! asset is credit-
impaired indudes:

= the dient ceasing to trade

* unpaid debtor balances that are dated at least six months past their normat recourse period

Significant increase in credit risk {Stage 2 [oans)

For Consumer Finance, the credit risk of a finandial asset is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recagnition where there has been a significant increase in the remaining lifetime probability of default of the asset. The Group
may also use its expert credit judgement and where possible relevant historical and current performance data, including bureau data,
to determine that an exposure has undergone a significantincrease in credit risk. -

For Business Finance, the credit risk of a financial asset is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk where
certain early warning indicators apply. These indicators may include notification of county court judgements or, specifically for the Real
Estate Finance portfolio, cost overruns and timing delays experienced by borrowers.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days past
due for all portfolios.

Performing assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are reclassified from stage 1,
for which loss allowances are measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, to stage 2, for which ECL is measured as lifetime ECL.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Cure policy

The credit risk of a financial asset may improve such that it is no fenger considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk if it meets the Group's cure pelicy. The Group’s cure policy for all portfolios requires sufficient payments to be made to bring an
account back within less than 30 days past due and for such payments to be maintained for six consecutive months,

The Group has determined stage 3 to be an absorbing state. Once a loan is in default it is not therefore expected to cure back ta
stage lor 2.

Calculation of expected credit loss

ECLs are probability weighted estimates of credit losses which are measured as the present value of all cash shorifalls. Specifically, this
is the difference between the contractual cash flows due and the cash flows expected to be received, discounted at the original
effective interest rate or, for portfolios purchased outside of the Group by Debt Managers {Services) Limited, the credit adjusted
effective interest rate. For undrawn loan commitments ECL is measured as the difference between the contractual cash flows due if
the commitment is drawn and the cash flows expected to be received.

Lifetime ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset.

12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial asset that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date,

ECLs are calculated by multiplying three main components: the probability of defauft (PD"), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given
default (LGD) discounted at the original effective interest rate of an asset. These variables are derived from intemally developed statistical
models and historical data, adjusted to reflect forward-looking information and are discussed in tum further below.

Management adjustments are made to modelled output to account for situations where known or expected risk factors have nat been
considered in the modelling process.

Probability of default ('PD") and credit risk grades

Credit risk grades are a primary input inte the determination of the PD for exposures. The Group allocates each expasure to a credit
risk grade at origination and at each reporting period to predict the risk of default. Credit risk grades are determined using qualitative
and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default e.g. arrears status and loan applications scores. These factors vary for
each loan portfalio. Expasures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit
risk grade. In monitoring exposures information such as payment records, request for forbearance strategies and forecast changes in
economic conditions are considered for Cansumer Finance. Additionally, for Business Finance portfolios information obtained during
periodic dlient reviews, for example audited financial statements, management accounts, budgets and projections are considered,
with particular focus on key ratios, compliance with covenants and changes in senior management teams.

Exogenous, Maturity, Vintage (EMV'} modelling is used in the production of forward-looking lifetime PDs. This method entails
modelling the effects of external {exogencus) factars against cohorts of lending and their time on the books creating a dean
relationship to best demonstrate the movement in defauli rates as macro-economic variables are changed. These models are
extrapolated ta provide PD estimates for the future, based on forecasted economic scenarios.

Exposure at default {{EAD")

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. EAD is derived from the current exposure and potential changes to
the curent amount aliowed under the terms af the contract, induding amontisation overpayments and early terminations. The EAD of
a financial asset is its gross carying amount. For Joan commitments the EAD includes the amount drawn as well as potential future
amounts that may be drawn under the terms of the contract, estimated based on historical observations and forward-looking forecasts.

For Commercial Finance facilities that have no specific term, an assumption is made that accounts dose 36 months after the reporting
date for the purposes of measuring lifetime ECL. This assumption is based on industry experience of average client life. These facilities
do not have a fixed term or repayment structure but are revolving and increase or decrease to reflect the value of the collateral

i.e. recoivables or inventory. The Group can cancel the fadilities with immediate effect, although this contractual right is not enforced in
the normal day-to-day management of the facility. Typically, demand would only be mads on the failure of a client business or in the
evant of a material event of default, such as a fraud. in the normal course of events, the Group's exposure is recovered through receipt
of remittances from the dlient’s debtors rather than from the client itself.

The ECL for such facilities is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Group expects to take to
mitigate against losses. These include a reduction In advance rate and faglity limits or application of reserves against a fadlity to
improve the likefihaod of full recovery of exposure from the debtors. Altemative recovery routes mitigating ECL would include
refinancing by another funding provider, taking security over ather asset classes or secured personal guarantees from the
client’s principals.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued

Losa given default {'LGD")

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss in the event of default. This takes into account recoveries either through curing or, where
applicable, through auction sale of repossessed collateral and debt sale of the residual shortfall amount. For loans secured by retail
property, loan-to-value ratios are key parameters in detenmining LGD. LGDs are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the
financial instrument’s origination effective interest rate as the discount factor.

Incorporation of forward-looking data

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and its measurement of expected credit loss, This is achieved by developing a number
of potential economic scenarios and modetling expected credit losses for each scenaric. To ensure material non-linear relationships
between economic factors and credit losses are reflected in the calculation of ECL a deeper stress scenario is used as one of these
scenarios. The outputs from each scenario are combined using the estimated likelihood of each scenario ccaurring to derive a
probability weighted expected credit loss. The four scenarios adopted and probability weighting applied are approved by the
Assumptions Committee and are set out in Note 2.

The Group has considered which economic variables impact credit sisk and credit losses. The key drivers of credit risk and credit fosses
included in the macro-economic scenarios for all portfolios, with the exception of Real Estate Finance, have been identified as annual
unemployment rate growth and annual house price index growth. In addition, for Asset Finance and Commercial Finance, changes to
the consumer price index are also induded in the macro-economic scenarios. For the Real Estate Finance portfolio the key drivers have
been identified as unemployment rate growth and Bank of England base rates. Base case assumptions applied for each of these
variables have baen sourced from external consensus or Bank of England forecasts. Further details of the assumpiions applied to other
scenarios are presented in Note 2.

Presentation of loss allowance

Loss aflowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows with the loss recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income:

* Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets

= Other loan commitments: generally, as a provision

For the Real Estate Finance and Commerdial Finance portfolios, where a foan facility is agreed that indudes both drawn and undrawn
elements and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment separately, a combined foss alfowance for both drawn and

undrawn components of the loan is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component, with any
excess of the loss allowance over the gross drawn amount presented as a provision.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related ECL allowance, Such loans are written off after all necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss has baen determined.

Motor voluntary termination provision

In addition to recognising allowances for ECLs, the Group holds a provision for voluntary terrinations (V1" for all Motor Finance
financial assets. VT is 2 legal right provided to customers who take out hire purchase agreements. The provision is calculated by
multiplying the probability of VT of an asset by the expected shortfali on VT discounted back at the original effective interest rate of
the asset. VT allowances are not hetd against loans in default (stage 3 loans).

The VT provision is presented in the statement of financial position as a deduction from the gross camrying amaunt of Motor Finance
assets with the loss recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Write off

Loans and advances ta customers are written off partially or in full when the Group has exhausted all viable recovery options.
The majority of write offs arise from Debt Relief Orders, insolvencies, IVAs, deceased customers where there is no estate and
vulnerable customers in certain circumstances. Ameunts subsequently recovered on assets previously written off are recognised
in impairment losses in the income statemnent.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Meadification of loans

A customer’s account may be modified to assist customers who are in or have recently overcome financial difficulties and have
demonstrated both the ability and willingness to meet the current or modified loan contractual payments. Substantial loan
modifications result in the derecognition of the existing loan, and the recognition of a new loan at the new origination effective interest
rate {'EIR’} based on the expected future cash flows at origination. Determination of the origination PD for the new loan is required,
based on the PD as at the date of the madification, which is used for the calculation of the impairment provision against the new loan.
Any deferred fees or deferred interest, and any difference between the fair value of the derecognised loan and the new loan, is written
off to the income statement on recognition of the new loan.

Where the madification is not considered to be substantial, neither the origination EIR nor the origination PD for the madified loan
changes. The net present value of changes to the future contractual cash flows adjusts the carrying amount of the original debt with
the difference immediately being recognised in profit or loss. The adjusted carrying amount is then amortised over the remaining term
of the (modified} liability using the original effective interest rate.

1.10. Derivative finandial instruments

The Group enters into derivatives to manage exposures to fluctuations in interest rates. Derivatives are not used for speculative
purposes. Derivatives are caried at fair valua with movements in fair value recognised in the income statement. Derivatives are valued
by discounted cash flow models using yield curves based on overnight indexed swap {"OIS’) rates. Alt derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The Group does not hold contracts containing embedded derivatives.

Where cash collateral is received, to mitigate the risk inherent in the amounts due to the Group, it is induded as a liability within the
due to banks line within the statemenit of financial position. Where cash collateral is given, to mitigate the risk inherent in amounts due !
from the Group, it is included as an asset in the loans and advances to banks line within the statement of financial position.

Hedge accounting

Following transition to IFRS 9, the Group has elected to apply IAS 39 for all of its hedge accounting requirements. When transactions
meet specified criteria the Group can apply two types of hedge accounting:

» Hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges)
« Hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or fiability (cash flow hedges)

The Group does not have cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments.

At inception of a hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedged items and hedging instruments, as welt :
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions, The Group afso documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of the hedged items {i.e. the fair value offset between the hedged item and hedging instrument is
within the 80% —125% range).

When the Furopean Unilon adopted tAS 39 in 2004, it removed certain hedge accounting requirements, commonly referred to as the

EU carve-out. The relaxed requirements under the carve-out allow the Group to apply the “bottom up’ method when calculating
macro-hedge ineffectiveness. This option is not allowed under full IFRS. The Group has applied the EU carve-out accordingly.

SuIwBleg [BDUBULA

Falr value hedge accounting

Fair value hedge accounting results in the canying value of the hedged item being adjusted to reflect changes in fair value attributable :
to the hedged risk, thereby offsetting the effect of the related movement in the fair value of the derivative. Changes in the fair value of :
derivatives and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement. i

In a one-to-one hedging relationship in which a single derivative hedges a single hedged item, the carrying value of the underlying
asset or liability (the hadged item) is adjusted for the hedged risk to offset the fair value movement of the related derivative. In the case
of a portfclio hedge, an adjustment is included in the fair value adjustments for portfolio hedged risk line in the statement of finandal
position to offset the fair value movements in the related derivative. The Group currently only designates portfolic hedges.

i the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is terminated, the cumulstive fair value adjustment to the
carying amount of a hedged itern is amortised to the income statement over the period to maturity of the previously designated
hedge relationship and recorded as net interest income, If the underlying item is sold or repaid, the unamortised fair value adjustment
is immediately recognised in the income statement.
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Finandial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued
1.11. Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is held at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is deemed to have an infinite life.

The Group reviews the goedwill for impairment at least annually or when events or changes in economic drcumstances indicate that
impairment may have taken place. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement i the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amounts,

{b} Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the

specific software.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred unless the

technical feasibility of the development has been demonstrated, and it is probable that the expenditure will enable the asset to
generate future economic benefits in excess of its ariginally assessed standard of performance, in which case they are capitalised.

These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expacted useful lives, which are between three to ten years,

{c} Other intangiblas

The acquisition of subsidiaries was accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’, which requires the recognition of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values. As part of this process, it was necessary to
recognise certain intangible assets which are separately identifiable and which are not included on the acquiree’s balance sheet,

which are amortised over their expected useful lives, as sat out in Note 19,

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether an intangible asset is impaired.

1.12. investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and for capital apprediation, is measured initially at cost, inchuding
transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment property are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising an derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canying amount of the asset} is induded in the income statement in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

1.13. Praperty, plant and equipment

Property is held at its revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of valuation less any subsequent accurmulated deprediation.
Revaluations are carred out annually st the reporting date, and movements are recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income, nat of
any applicable deferred tax.

Plant and equipment is stated at histarical cost less deprediatian. Historical cost indudes expenditure that is diractly attributable to the
acquisition of the iterns. Pre-installed computer software licences are capitalised as part of the computer hardware it is installed on.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
which are subject to regular review:

Land not depreciated

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of life of lease or 7 years
- Computer equipment 3to Syears

Other equipment 5 to 10 years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the
income statement,

The Group applies |AS 36 to determine whether property, plant and equipment is impaired.
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1. Accounting policies continued
1.14. Leases

{a) As a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a comasponding lease liability with respect to all lease amangernents in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined
as leases with a lease term of §2 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the jeased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
tease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. 1t is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflact interest on the lease liability {using the effective interest method) and by reduding the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made, and is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencament day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment Josses, and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease tarm and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate
line in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group applies LAS 35 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired
and accounts for ary identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Rentals made under operating leases for less than 12 months in duration, and operating leases on low value items, are recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(b) As a lessor

The present value of the lease payments on assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, with or without ultimate legal title, are recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as uneamed finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of retum.

1.15. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits, and cash
equivalents, being highly liquid investments which are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity
of three months or less at the date of acquisition, induding certain loans and advances to banks and short-term highly liquid

debt securities.

1.16. Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of diract issuance costs. Any amounts received
over nominal value are recorded in the share pramium account, net of direct issuance costs. Costs associated with the listing of shares
are expensed immediately.

1.17. Employee benefits

{a} Post-retirement obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution schemes for the benefit of certain employees. The schemes are funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds at the contribution rates agreed with individual employees.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the cantributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an
employee benefit expense when they are due. There are no post-retirement banefits other than pensions.

(b} Share-hased compansation

The fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards are calculated at grant date and recognised over the period in which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards {the vesting period). The amount is recognised as personnel expenses in
the income statemnent, with a corresponding increase in equity. Further details of the veluation methodology is set out in Note 31.

The fair value of cash settled share-based payments is recognised as persannel expenses in the income statement with a
corresponding increase in liabilities over the vesting period. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settiement date
based on the fair value of the options granted, with a corresponding adjustment to personnel expenses.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued
1.18, Taxation
Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise,

Deferred tax is provided in full an temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tex rates {and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the staterment of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and lisbilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they

relate to taxes levied by the same tax suthority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, when they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits wifl be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

1.19. Dividends
Final dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by sharehoiders. Interim dividends
on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid.

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

2.1, Judgements
The Group considers the COVID-19 outbreak to be a non-adjusting event ocaurring after the batance sheet date. Further information
in respect of this event is provided in Note 43. No other critical judgements have been identified.

2.2. Key sourcas of estimation uncertainty

Estimations which could have a material impact on the Group’s financial results and are therefore considered ta be key sources of
estimation uncertainty are outlined below. The potential impact of COVID-19 has been considered in determining reasonably possible
changes in key sources of estimatfon uncertainty which may occur in the next 12 months.

2.2.1. Impalrment losses on loans and advances to customers

As discussed in Note 1.9 ECLs are calculated by multiplying three main components: the PD, EAD and LGD. These variables are
derived from intemally developed statistical models and historical data, adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.

The determination of both the PD and LGD require estimation which is discussed further below.

2.2 2, Probability of default (PD")

As set out in Note 1.9 Exogenous, Maturity, Vintage (EMV') modelling is used in the production of forward-looking lifetime PDs in the
caleutation of ECLs. As the Group's performance data does not go back far enough to capture a fuli economic cycle, the proxy series of
the quarterly rates of write offs for UK unsecyred lending data is used to build an aconomic response model (ERMW'} to incorporate the
effects of recession.

The portfolios for which external benchmark imformation represents a significant input into the measurement of ECL are Real Estate
Finance, Asset Finance and Commercial Finance. The benchmarks used for all three portfolios are Standard & Poor’s Ratings and Bank
of England UK Possessions as proxy data for ERM.

With the exception of the Motor Finance and Retail Finance portfolios, sensitivity 1o reasonably possible changes in PDyis not
considered to result in material changes in the ECL allowance. A 10% change in the PD for Motor Finance would immediately impact
the ECL allowance by £2.0 miflion {2018: £1.8 million} and a 10% change in the PD for Retail Finance would immediately impact the ECL
allowance by £2.3 miflion (2018: £2.0 million).

The composition of the Retail Finance portfolio remains stable with minimal movement in PDs and the ECL aliowance held for the
Business Finance, Consumer Mortgages and Cther portfolios remains low. Reasonably possibla changes in the PD for these portfolios
are not considered to result in 2 material change in the ECL allowance.

2.2.3. Loss given default {'LGD")
The Group's policy for the determination of LGD is outlined in Note 1.9.

With the exception of the Motor Finance portfolio, the sensitivity of the ECL allowance to reasonably possible changes in the LGD is
not considered material. For the Motor Finance portfolio a 20% change in the LGD is considered reasonably possible due to potential
difficulties in the vehicle collection process and reduced asset values brought about by COMD-19. A 20% change in the vehicle
recovery rate assumption element of the LGD for Motor Finance would impact the ECL allowance by £2.4 million (2018; £3.2 milfion).
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

During 2019, market factors caused used car prices to fall by more than seasonal norms over the summer maonths. The fzll was
approximately 6% greater than expedtations and inceased expected credit losses for the year by £0.9 milfion,

2.2.4. Incorporation of forward-looking data

The Group incorporates forward-locking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and its measurement of expected aedit loss by developing 2 number of potential
economic scenarios and modelling expected credit losses for each scenaria. Further detail on this process is provided in Note 1.9.
Whilst not material and therefore not required by IAS 1, the Group has induded the disclosure below as it is considered useful to
readers of the Annual Report and Accounts.

The macroeconomic scenarfos and weightings applied or adoption of IFRS 9 are surmmarised below:

Scenaric Darwvation 2019 208

Base case Derived from external consensus forecasts and used in the Group’s strategic 65% 65%
planning and budgeting processes.

Benign case Assumes macroeconomic variables will move with a more positive trajectory 10% 10%
than the base case.

Stressed case Management’s assessment, based on historic data, of an adverse scenario that 20% 20%
could ocour once every 7 ta B years.

Deeper stress Based on the scenario used by the PRA for the H1 2019 ICAAP. This can be 5% 5%

found on the Bank of England’s website: www.bankofengland.co.uk

Weightings applied to the macro economic scenarios were reconfirmed at the January 2020 Assumptions Committee and remain
unchanged since December 2018,

The sensitivity of the ECL allowancae to reasonably possible changes In macra-economic scenario weighting is presented below:

incrasse in stressad casa Increase in desper strass cass

weighting by 5% oand reduction in welighting by 5% and reduction in

base case base case

2019 018 201% 28

Emillion Emilion Emiillon fmihion

Motor Finance 01 a1 0.4 0.3
Retail Finance 0.2 0.1 0.7 08

The sensitivity is immaterial for other lending products.

Were each of the macroeconomic scenarios to be applied 100%, rather than using the weightings set out above, the impact on ECL for
2019 would be as follows:

2019
Scenario mpact Emithon
Base case Decrease in provision of 23
Benign case Decreass in provision of 2.7
Stressed case Increase in provision of 4.2
Deeper stress Increase in provision of 18.6

2.2.5. Debt Management forecast collactions on 'POCI’ debt

A +/-5.0% change in Debt Management forecast collections, which the Directors consider to be a reasonable possible change,

would increase or decrease Loans and advances to customers by £4.0 million respectively, resulting in a corresponding £4.0 million
increase or decrease in profit or loss, A similar change applied to the December 2018 position would result in an increase or decrease
to Loans and advances to customers of £3.5 million respectively, resulting in a correspending £3.5 million increase or decreasae in profit
or loss,

Given the improving quality of the Group's loan books year-on-year, the Debt Management forecast collections have improved.
The year-on-year improvement resulted in an increase to Loans and advances to customers of £4.5 million, resulting in a corresponding
£4.5 million increase in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

3. Operating segments
The Group is organised into seven operating segments, which consist of the different products available, disclosed balow:

Business Finance
1) Real Estate Finance: residential and commercial investment and development loans secured by UK real estate

2) Asset Finance: loans to small and medium sized enterprises ta acquire commerdal assets
3) Commercial Finance: invoice discounting and invoica factoring

Consumer Finance
4) Motor Finance: hire purchase agreements secured against the vehicle being financed

5) Retail Finance: point of sale unsecured finance for in-store and online retailers

8) Debt Management: debt collection

7) Residential mortgages for the self-employed, contract workers, those with complex income and those with a recently restored credit

history; sold via select mortgage intermediaries

Other

The ‘Other’ segment includes other products, which are individually below the quantitative threshold for separate disclosure and fulfils

the requirement of IFRS 8.28 by reconciling operating segments to the amounts in the annual report.

Other indudes principally OneBill (the Group's consumer bill management service, which has been dosed to new customers since

2009) and RentSmart (principally the funding and operation of finance leases through a disclosed agency agreement with
RentSmart Limited).

Currently, the Debt Management and Consumer Mortgagas segments both fall below the quantitative threshold for separate

disclosure, but the Directors consider that they represent sufficiently distinct types of business to merit separate disclosure. Also since
the Group ceased new mortgage operations, the Consumer Mortgages business is now managed as part of Consumer Financa,

so the prior year figures have been restated accordingly.

Management review these segments by looking at the income, size and growth rate of the lcan books, impairments and customer

numbers, Except for these itemns no costs or balance sheet items are allocated to the segments,

Net impairment

Interast incoms Fessnd  Revenue from  losses on loans Loans and
and l::::: hwo;n- J  and adh to o to
Emiliion £militon £milflon Emiilion £million

31 December 2019
Rea! Estate Finance 47.9 1.0 48.9 04 962.2
Asset Finance 32 - 32 07 277
Commercial Finance 7.5 23 16.8 01 2517
Business Finance 58.6 10.3 68.9 09 12414
Retail Finance ‘ 714 36 747 198 688.9
Motor Finance 48.7 10 49.7 13.8 3237
Debt Management 7.3 1.1 84 {2.1) 82.4
Consurner Mortgages 36 0.1 37 0.1 1059
Consumer Finance 1307 58 1365 314 1,200.9
Other 2.1 48 &9 0.1 7.6
191.4 20.9 2123 32.6 2,450.1
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3. Operating segments continued

Net imgairment
lma:d m Fee nnd Ruvenu: fforr: ul:;se.s on loea J.-mns lr::

income incame an ph
£million, £rmillion fmillion fmillion fmilion

31 December 2018

Real Estate Finance 41.1 01 41.2 0.5 769.8
Asset Finance 6.6 - b6 2.2 42.8
Commercial Finance 55 79 134 - 194.7
Business Finance 53.2 8.0 61.2 27 1,027.3
Retail Finance 587 4.1 628 12.3 5970
Motor Finance 474 11 48.5 113 2764
Debt Management 6.1 0.9 70 - 323
Consumer Mortgages 15 - 1.5 0.2 84.7
Consumer Finance 1137 6.1 119.8 308 9904
Other 23 53 1.5 {1.1) 11.2
169.2 19.4 188.6 324 2,028.9

Funding costs and operating expenses are not aligned to operating segments for day-to-day management of the business, so they
cannot be allocated on a reliable basis. Accordingly, profit by operating segment has not been disclosed.

All of the Group's operations are conducted wholly within the United Kingdom and geographical information is therefore not presented.

4. Operating income

Al itemms below arise from finandial instruments measured at amortised cost unless otherwise stated,

4.1 Net interest income

2019 018
Emiifion Ermiten
Loans and advances to customers 189.6 167.4
Cash and batances at central banks 1.0 1.0
Debt securities 0.7 0.8
1913 169.2
Derivative financial instruments measurad at fair value through profit and loss
On financial instruments hedging assets in a qualifying hedge accounting relationship 0.1 -
Interest income and similar income 191.4 169.2
Deposits from customers (40.4) {32.8)
Due to banks 2.1} (1.5)
Subordinated liabilities (3.4 (1.2)
(45.9) (35.5)
Derlvative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Net expense on financial instruments hedging liabilities 0.1} -
Interest expense and similar charges (46.0) {35.5)
Net interast income 145.4 133.7
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

4. Operating income
4.2 Net fee and commission income

2019 2018

Emlifion fmiltion

Fee and disbursement income 175 163
Commission income 1.9 20
Other income 1.5 1.1
Fee and commission income 20.9 19.4

QOther expenses 0.8} {1.5)

Fae and commission expense {0.8) {1.5)
Net fee and commission income 201 17.9

Feas and commissions income consists principally of the following:

+ weekly and monthly fees from the OneBill product

* associated insurance commissions and commissions earmned on debt collection activities in DMS

» discaunting, service and arrangement fees in Commercial Finance
» account management and administration fees from retailers in Retail Finance

Fee and commission expenses consist primarily of recovery fees payable in raspect of Motor Finance and Debt Management.

5. Gains/losses from derivatives and hedge accounting
Group and Company

The Group holds interest rate swaps for risk mitigation purpases. For further information on the Group's risk management strategy for
market risk refer to the Principal risks and uncertainties section of the Group's Strategic Report on page 40. No comparatives are
preseated as the Group held no interest rate swaps during the prior year. Interest rate swaps are designated on initial recognition as
measured at fair value through profit and loss. The tables below provide an analysis of the notional amount and fair value of

derivatives held:
Changas in fair
vatue used for
calculating hadge
inaf{ectvanass in
Assats Lisnilities. the pes
gmilicn Emilion * Emillion
31 December 2019
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 08 0.4 -
Interest accruals on interest rate swaps 0.1 - -
0.9 0.6) ~-
Notioaal Astet Uabilifias
£million Emition Emition
31 Dacembier 2019
in not more than one year 2145 - {0.1)
In more than one ysar 773.2 0.8 {0.5)
987.7 0.9 {0.8)

The notional amount represents the amount on which payment flows are derived and does not represent amounts at risk.

In order to manage Interest rate risk arising from fixed rate finandial instruments the Group reviews interest rate swaps requirements on a
monthly basis. The exposure from the portfolio frequently changes due to the origination of new instruments, contractual repayments and
early prepayments made in each period. As a result, the Group adopts a dynamic hedging strategy (sometimes referred to as ‘macro’ or
‘porticlio’ hedge) to hedge its exposure profile by closing and entering into new swap agreements on a monthly basis. The Group
establishes the hedging ratic by matching the national of the derivatives with the principal of the portfolic being hedged.
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5. Gains/losses from derivatives and hedge accounting continued
The fallowing table sets out details of the hedged exposures covered by the Group's hedging strategies:

Accumulated amount of fair value
Carrying amount of hedged item adjustments on the hedged item
In faie
vahie of hedged
hem lor
ineffectivenass
assessment n
Assats Lizbilities Assets Lisbilities Balance Sheet fine the period
Emfiion Emdllion Ermiliion Emittion tem Emilion
31 Dacember 2019
Interest rate fair value hedges
Loans and
. . advancas ta
Fixed rate Real Estate Finance loans 2968 - (0.6) - customers -
.;vo:n: and
Fixed rate Maotor Finance loans 1001 - 0.2 - u'::-t -
'dL:ms and
Fixed rate Retail Finance loans 66.0 - 0.1 - u;?;::: -
advamm and
Fixed rate Consumer Mortgage loans 9.2 - - - comomens -
Depaontts f
Fixed rate customer deposits - 5154 - 0.6 S stamars -
Total 4721 515.4 {0.9} 0.6 -

The accumulated amount of fair value hedge adjustments remaining in the statement of financial position for hedged items that have
ceased to be adjusted for hedging gains and losses is £nil million.

Fair value gains and losses arising from derivatives and hedge accounting recognised in the Group income statement was £nil miliion.

Although the Group uses derivatives exclusively to hedge interest rate risk exposures, income staterment volatility can still arise due to
hedge accounting ineffectiveness or because hedge accounting is not achievable. This arises from the application of accounting rules
which do not reflect the economic reality of the business. Where such volatility arises it will trend back to zero over time.

All derivatives held by the Group have been highly effective in the period resulting in minimal hedge accounting ineffectiveness
recognised in the income statement. Future ineffectiveness may arise as a result of:

s differences between the expected and actual volume of prepayments, as the Group hedges to the expected repayment date taking
into account expected prepayments based on past experience

+ hedging derivatives with a non-zero fair value at the date of initial designation

» differences in the timing of cash flows for the hedged item and the hedging instrument

The foliowing table shows the impact of financial assets and financial liabilities relating to transactions where:

* there is an enforceable master netting agreement in place but the offset criteria are not otherwise satisfied, and
s financial coliateral is paid and received

Gross smaunt
reported on Mastar naiting Finandal Net amounts
batance shaet g 3 ) 1 afher oNsetting
Emillion Ervilion Emillion Ervillicer
31 Dacember 2019
Derivative financial assets 09 {0.8) {0.3) -
Derivative financial liabiities 0.8) 0.4 {0.1) .1

Master netting amangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because the
arrangement creates an agreement for a right of set-off of recognised amounts which is enforceable only following an event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or counterparties. Furthermore, the Group and its counterparties do not intend to setde on a
net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial collateral consists of cash settled, typically daily or weekly, to mitigate the credit risk on the fair value of derivatives.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

6. Operating expenses
2019 2018
£million £riflion
Staff costs, incdluding those of Directors:
Wagses and salaries 43.1 3.1
Social security costs 51 60
Pension costs 1.7 14
Share-based payment transactions 1.2 o8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) 1.2 1.3
Depreciation of lease right-of-use assets {(Note 18) 09 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 19} 1.9 1.8
Operating lease rentals o8 1.7
Other administrative expenses 383 324
Total operating expenses 94.2 845
As described in Note 3, operating expenses are not aligned to operating segments for day-to-day management of the business,
50 they cannot be allocated on a reliable basis.
Remuneration of the auditor and its associates, excluding VAT, was as follows:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 325 233
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services:
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 30 37
Audit related assurance services - -
Other assurance services 57 95
All other non-audit services 12 140
424 505

Other assurance services related te the half year review and profit cedification.

All other non-audit services related to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme reporting health check (2018: the issue of the
subordinated liahilities, recovery plan support, review of share scheme documentation and Financial Services Compensation Scheme

reporting health check).
7. Average number of employees
2019 018
Number
Directors 8 7
Management 157 g8
Administration 314 746
979 861
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8. Income tax expense

2019 ama
£million £mittion
Current taxation
Corporation tax charge — current year 7.0 7.3
Corporation tax charge — adjustments in respect of prior years {0.1) 0.3
49 7.6
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax charge — current year 0.7 {1.0)
Defesred tax charge — adjustments in respect of prior years - 0.2
07 (1.2
Income tax expense 7.6 6.4
Tax reconciliation
Profit before tax 387 347
Tax at 19.00% (2018: 19.00%) 7.4 .6
Permanent differences - -
Banking surcharge 01 03
Rate change an deferred tax assets 02 0.8)
Prior period adjustments .1 0.1
Income tax expense for the year 7.6 6.4

The Government has substantively enacted a reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 17% {effective 1 April 2020).
However, on 17 March 2020, the Government Jegislated to retain the current rate of 19%. The Group is also subject to an 8% surcharge
on the profits of banking companies in excess of £25 million that is reflected in the 2019 tax charge and reconciliation.

9. Earnings per ordinary share
9.1 Basic

Basic eamings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares as follows:

2019 2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (fmillion) 311 283
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {number} 18,476,280 18,475,229
Earnings per share {pence) 168.3 153.2
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

9. Earnings per ordinary share continued
9.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity halders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as noted above, as well as the number of dilutive share options in issue

during the year, as follows:

2019 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 18,476,280 18,475,229
Number of dilutive shares in issue at the year-end 216,943 277,234

Fully diluted weighted average number of ardinary shares

18,693,223 18,752,463

Dilutive shares being based on:

Number of options outstanding at the year-end 598,065 511,706
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 528 678
Average share price during the period (pence) 1,390 1,489
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 166.4 150.9
10. Dividends
2019 2018
£000 £000
2017 final dividend — 61 pence per share (paid May 2018) - 1.3
20118 interim dividend - 19 pence per share {paid September 2018) - 35
2018 final dividend — 64 pence per share (paid May 2019) 118 -
2019 interim dividend - 20 pence per share {paid September 2019) 3.7 -
155 14.8

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2019. An interim dividend of 20 pence per share was paid on

27 September 2019. Total dividends for 2018 were 83 pence per share.

11. Loans and advances to banks

Group Group ny
2009 2018 2019 2018
£million Ermillion EmiSiion £miflion
Placements with banks included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 32) 484 448 452 41.9

Moaody's long-term ratings are as follows:

Growp Group ny Corpary
2019 2018 2019 2018
£miilion Emillion E£mion Ermillian
Al 38 1.2 36 114
At*AZ - 2846 - 25.8
Baad 395 - 365 -
Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited — No rating 5.1 5.0 5.1 5.0
484 44.8 45,2 41,9

None of the loans and advances to banks are either past due or impaired.

Loans and advances to banks includes £9.1 million in relation to collateral held under credit support and similar agreements, with a

corresponding payable induded within other liabilities.
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12. Loans and advances to customers

Group Company Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Emibion £million £million

Gross loans and advances 25107 2096.0 24223 2,048.9
Less: allowances for impairment on loans and advances {Note 14) (60.6} {67.1) (68.7) (68.6)

2,450.1 2,028.9 2,353.6 1,980.3

The fair value of loans and advances ta customers is shown in Note 39. For a maturity profile of loans and advances to customers,
refer to Note 38.

Group and Company

At 31 December 2019 loans and advances to custorners of £433.4 million (2018: £326.5 million) were pre-positioned under the Bank of
England’s liquidity support cperations and Term Funding Scheme, and were available for use as collateral within the schames.

The following loans are secured upon reat estate:

2019 2019 2004 2018

Losn balance Loan-to-value Loan balarce Loan-to-value

£million % frmillion %

Real Estate Finznce 942.2 59% 7698 57%

Consumer Mortgages 105.9 56% 847 59%
1,068.1 8545

Under its credit policy, the Real Estate Finance business lends to a maximum loan-to-value of 70% for investment koans and é0% for
residential development loans and up to 65% for pre-let commarcial developrnant loans (based on gross development value), and the
Consumer Mortgages business lends to 2 maximum of 90%.

All property valuations at loan inception, and the majority of development stage valuations, are performed by independent Chartered
Surveyors, who perform their work in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation - Professional Standards.
Group

£2.0 million {2018: £1.9 miflion) of collateral is held from RentSmart, against loans of £7.2 million (2018: £10.8 million), which is not
recognised on the balance sheet. This is based upon the balance of customer receivables and expected new agreements during the
following month.

13. Finance lease receivables

Loans and advances to customers indude finance lease receivables as follows:

Geis - I o
£million £mibion £million Envillion
Gross investment in finance lease receivables:
— No later than 1 year 176.0- 175.3 171.6 168.7
~Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 3384 3269 3357 3220
— Later than 5 years - 0.2 - 02
514.4 5024 5073 490.9
Uneamed future finance income on finance leases {144.6) (135.8) (142.9) (132.8)
Net investment in finance leases 370.0 366.6 3644 358.1
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:
- No later than 1 year 110.2 112.0 107 0 107.6
— Later than 1 year and no later than S years 259.8 2544 2574 250.3
— Later than 5 years - 0.2 - 0.2
370.0 366.6 364.4 358.1
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances

Group
Nat creditdmpsired Cradit impairad
Staga : Stage 2: Stage 3:
W S R s SRR seseeny
Emitilon £mifion Emdfllion £mélon million %
31 Dacamber 2019
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 05 - 0.1 06 962.8 0.1%
Asset Finance - 0.1 1.7 1.8 295 51%
Commercial Finance 0.3 - 0.6 09 2526 0.4%
Consumer Finance:
Retai! Finance 10.0 141 4.4 255 114.4 3.6%
Motor Finance:
Voluntary termination pravision 6.8 - - 6.8
Other impairment 3.7 129 10.2 26.8
105 12.9 0.2 336 357.3 4%
Debt Management - - {2.1) 2.1) 80.3 {2.6%)
Consumer Mortgages 03 - - 03 106.2 0.3%
Other - - - - 14 0.0%
21.6 241 14.9 &0.6 2,510.7 2.4%
Not creditdmpaired  Credit impbired
Stage 1: Stage Stage 3t
b ECL WelmeECL  WameEli  Toulp O ecemrbion cou
Emitilon Emilkian Emilion Emilion €milkian %
31 December 2018
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.6 - - 0.4 7704 0.1%
Asset Finance 0.2 0.1 2.7 3.0 5.8 4.6%
Commercial Finance 0.2 0.2 04 08 1955 0.4%
Cansumer Finance:
Retail Finance 89 2.8 4.3 230 6200 37%
Motor Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 60 - - 60
Other impairment 42 13.8 154 334
10,2 138 15.4 394 3158 12.5%
Debt Management - - - - 323 0.0%
Consumer Mortgages 0.2 - - 0.2 84,9 0.2%
Other - - o1 0.1 113 0.9%
203 23.9 229 67.1 2,096.0 3.2%
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14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued
Total provisions ebove indude expert credit judgements as follows:

2019 013

£miffion Emilhon

Specific overlays held against credit-impaired secured assets held within the Business Finance portfolio 0.5 1.4
Planned enhancements to LGD elements of the IFRS 9 models {0.8) 0.8
Management judgement in respect of PD elements of the IFRS 9 models {0.8) 0.2)
POCI adjustment (see below) (2.1} -
Other ©1) -
Expert credit judgements over the Group's IFRS ¢ model results 3.3 20

The specific averlays have been estimated on an individual basis by assessing the recoverability and condition of the secured asset,
along with any ather recoveries that may be made.

POCI adjustmant

The Group's debt management business purchases aredit-impaired loans from the Company and other unrelated third parties.
Under IFRS 9, these are classified as Purchased and Originated Credit Impaired {POCI) toans. As a practical expedient, income on
POC! loans is initially recognised by applying the original credit-adjusted EIR to the expected future cash flows arising from the POCI
assets. The Group's accounting policy is to recognise POCI income by applying the original credit-adjusted EIR to the amortised cost
of the assets. Expected changes in cash flows since the date of purchase are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the income
statement. At December 2019, improvements in credit quality resulted in a £2.1 million impairment gain.

Provisions included in ‘Other’ are in respect of various legacy products. This segment also includes loans of £7.2 million
{2018: £10.8 million) held in STB Leasing Limited. The credit risk associated with those loans is retained by its partner, RentSmart,
Accordingly, no provision is held against the RentSmart loans,

The impairment losses disdosed in the income statement can be analysed as follows:

2019 2018

£millicn Emiion

Incurred loss individual provision: charge for impairment losses 281 304
Loans written off, net of amounts utilised ) 53 43
Recoveries of loans written off 0.8) 2.3)
32.6 32.4
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued
Reconciliations of the opening to closing impairment allowance for losses on loans and advances are presented below:

Not craditdmpaired Cradit Impalred
Stage 1: Stage 2: Stage ¥:
11-:::{;ﬂ53 rwmmsc‘t nf.sﬁﬁ& Total
£million EmBlion Emillion Embilan
At 1 January 2019 20.3 239 29 67.1
{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
~Transfer to stage 2 6.9 359 - 3o
~Transfer to stage 3 - {235) 303 48
~Transfer to stage 1 15 (3.5 - 2.0
Passage of time - {10.1) 6.8) 6.3) (23.2)
New loans originated 11.2 - - 17.2
Derecognised loans 1.9 4.7) ©.9 6.7
Changes to model methodology Q7 1.2 ©2 1.7
Changes to credit risk parameters (1.1} 0.6 (0.1) {0.6)
Other adjustments 9 - - 39
Charge to income statement 43 0.2 2346 281
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs {3.00 - (31.8 {34.6)
31 December 2019 21.6 24.1 14.9 60.6
Not credit-impaiced Credit impaired
Staga 1 Stage 2: Stage 3:
Subject to Subjact to Subjsct to
12-month £CL fatima ECL lifetime ECL Total
£rmilfion Emilion Ermillion grifion
At 1 January 2018 189 249 219 71.7
{Dacrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
— Transfer to stage 2 {4.3) 330 - 26.7
—Transfer to stage 3 0.1 {23.4) 308 7.3
— Transfer to stage 1 1.5 (3.2 - (1.7
Passage of time 6.7} (1.7} 3.9 {12.3}
New loans ariginated 174 - - 174
Derecognised loans {1.8) {4.0) - (5.8}
Changes to model methodology {1.3) {0.2) - {1.5
Changes to credit risk parameters 1.2 {1.5} 0.6 2.1
Cther adjustments 24 - - 24
Charge to income statemant 39 (1.0) 275 304
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs (2.5 - {32.5) (35.0)
31 Decamber 2018 20.3 239 229 67.1

The table above has been prepared based on monthly movements in the ECL.

Passage of time represents the impact of accounts maturing through their contractual life and the associated reduction in PDs.
For stage 3 assets it represents the unwind of the discount applied in calculating the ECL.

Changes to madel methodology represents movements that have occurred due to enhancements made to the models during
the year.
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14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Changes to credit risk parameters represents movements that have occurred due to the Group updating model inputs. This would
include the impact of, for example, updating the macro-economic scenarios applied to the models.

Other adjustments represents the movement in the Motor Finance voluntary termination provision.

Stage 1 write offs arise on Motor Finance accounts where borowers have exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements.

Interest income on foans dassified as impaired totalled £2.5 million (2018: £2.0 million).

A breakdown of the gross receivable by internal credit risk rating is shown below:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Emillian fmifRon £million f£mifion
31 December 2019
Business Finance:
Strong 2721 4. - 2762
Good 7704 4.7 101 785.2
Satisfactory 12463 235 03 1501
Woeak 102 15.1 8.1 334
1,179.0 47.4 18.5 1,244.9
Consumer Finance:
Good 3171 58.3 31 3785
Satisfactory 317.7 54.8 59 378.4
Waak 2298 713 133 3144
Consumer mortgages 105.6 0.3 0.3 106.2
Debt management - - 80.7 80.7
970.2 184.7 103.3 1,258.2
Internal credit risk rating is based on the most recent credit risk score of a custamer,
Company
Not credit-impatred Cradit impalred
Staga 1t Stage Z: Stage %
1 z-ns;:lrh'céc‘t Mmcé::?. fo:'lg:dﬁg Totsl provision Gmr.'::;:;ﬁ Provision cover
£milllon £mition £milfion fmillion £milien %
31 December 2019
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.5 - 0.1 0.6 952.8 01%
Asset Finance - 0.1 1.7 1.8 29.5 61%
Commaercial Finance 0.3 - 0.6 0.9 2516 0.4%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 10.5 1.6 45 286 7144 3.7%
Motor Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 6.8 - - 6.8
Other impairment 4.4 15.2 120 316
1.2 15.2 120 34 3573 10.7%
Consumer Mortgages 03 - - 03 106.2 0.3%
Other - - 0.1 0.1 0.5 20.0%
228 26,9 19.0 68.7 2,422.3 2.8%
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Not credit-impaired Cradit impaired
Sl Skl Sees ——
merdh ECL bt ECL Ilﬂim ECL Total provision receivobles  Proviion couer
31 December 2018
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.6 - - 0.6 7704 0.1%
Asset Finance 0.2 0.1 27 3.0 658 4.6%
Commercial Finance 0.2 02 04 c8 1914 0.4%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 9.2 98 44 234 6200 3.8%
Motor Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 60 - -~ 6.0
Other impairment 4.3 14.2 16.0 345
10.3 14.2 16.0 405 3158 12.8%
Consumer Mortgages 02 - - 0.2 B49 0.2%
Other - - 0.1 0.1 04 16.7%
20.7 24.3 23.6 68.6 2,048.9 3.3%
Total provisions abave include expert credit judgements as follows:
2019 2018
£million Emillion
Specific overlays held against credit-impaired secured assets held within the Business Finance portfolio 05 1.4
Planned enhancements to LGD elements of the IFRS 9 models {08) 0.8
Management judgement in respect of PD elements of the IFRS 9 models ©.8) 0.2
Other {0.1) -
Expert credit judgements over the Company’s IFRS 9 model results (1.2) 20

The specific ovetlays have been estimated on an indvidual basis by assessing the recoverability and condition of the secured asset,

along with any other recoveries that may be made.
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14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued
Recondiliations of the opening to closing impairment allowance for losses on loans and advances are presented below:

Not credit-impaired Cradit impairad
Stage 1: Stage 2: Stage 3:
Subjact to Subjact 10 Subject to
12-month ECL  fHatime ECL  Matime ECL Total
£mifion £mition £milllon Emillion
At 1 January 2019 2.7 24.3 23.6 686
(Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
- Transfer to stage 2 {6.2) 39.1 - 329
- Transfer to stage 3 - {(24.6) 3t7 7.1
- Transfer to stage 1 1.6 {3.8) - {2.0)
Passage of time {10.3) {5.2) 4.0 (19.5}
New loans originated 18.4 - - 18.4
Derecognised loans (1.9 4.9 0.1) 69
Changes to mode! methodology 0.7 1.2 0.2) 17
Changes to credit risk parameters 1.1 0.6 {0.n 0.6)
Other adjustments 39 - - 39
Charge to income statement 5.1 2.6 273 35.0
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs (3.0 - 319 {34.9)
31 Dacember 2019 22,8 269 19.0 68.7
Nat credit-impared Credit impaicad
Stage §: Stage 2 Staga 3
12-.15.‘;:8“‘11:‘1 T o uimmeét Total
£mition Emillion E£mMlion £million
At1 January 2018 19.0 251 282 723
{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
~Transfer to stage 2 6.5) 339 - 274
- Transfer to stage 3 0.1) (24.00 3.6 75
~ Transfer to stage 1 1.5 3.2 - an
Passage of time 6.7 (1.4) (4.6) (129
New loans originated 17.9 - - 179
Derecognised loans (1.8} {4.1) 28 (3.1
Changes to mode! methodology (1.3 (0.2) - (1.5)
Changes to credit risk parameters 1.2 {1.5) 0.6 2.3
Other adjustments 24 - - 24
Charge to income statement 4.2 0.7 304 339
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs (2.5) {0.1) {35.0) 37.6)
31 December 2018 20.7 24.3 23.6 468.6

The table above has been prepared based on monthly movemaents in the ECL. Stage 1 write offs arise on Motor accounts that have
exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements,

Passage of time represents the impact of accounts maturing through their contractual {ife and the asscciated raduction in PDs.
For stage 3 assets it represents the unwind of the discount applied in caleulating the ECL.

Changes to model methodology represents movements that have occurred due to enhancements made to the medels during
the year.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Changes to credit risk parameters represents movements that have occurred due to the Group updating model inputs. This would
include the impact of, for example, updating the maaro economic scenarios applied to the models.

Other adjustments represents the movement in the Motor voluntary termination pravision.

Stage 1 write offs arise on Motor accounts that have exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements.
Interest incomne on loans dlassified as impaired totalled £1.8 million (2018: £1.1 miffion).

15. Debt securities

Group and Company

Debt securities of £25.0 million (2018: £149.7 million) represent UK Treasury Bills. The Company's intention is to hold them to maturity
and, therefore, they are stated in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. The decrease aver the year is due to

Bills maturing.

All of the debt securities had a rating agency designation at 31 December 2019, based on Moody's long-term ratings of Aa2 (2018:
AaZ). None of the debt securities are either past due or impaired.

16. Investment property

Group and Company
2009
£méttion
Fair value
At 1 January 2018 -
Additions 1.6
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 3.2
At 31 Dacember 2019 4.8

During the year, the Group acquired Yorke House, Arleston Way, Shirley, Solihull, B90 4LH, haf of which was let te third party occupiers.

Accordingly, 50% of this property, excluding land, is dassified as an investment property at its fair value. The Directors assessed the fair
value as being 50% of the original purchase price excluding land and VAT and stamp duty.

Also during the year, the Group vacated its portion of Secure Trust House, Boston Drive, Bourme End, 5L8 5YS, and let the space to

one of its existing third party occupiers. Accordingly, this property was transferred from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties at its fair value. The Directors assessed the fair value as being the same as the valuation at December 2018 performed by

Knight Frank LLP.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at December 2019. The Directors have assessed the value of the freehald property at the
year-end through comparison to current rental yields on similar properties in the same area,
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17. Property, plant and equipment
Group

Computer

Frashotd land and other

T i ooy Fotion e
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 20 - 1.7 207
Additions - 0.1 1.0 1.1
Disposals - - {0 2.0
Revaluation (0.8} - - {0.8)
At 31 December 2018 8.2 0.1 10.7 19.0
Additions 35 - 20 5.6
Disposals - - (4.5) 4.5)
Revaluation (1.1) - - {1.1)
Transfer from intangible assets - - 0.2 02
Transfer to investment property (3.2 - - 3.2
At 31 December 2019 7.4 0.1 8.4 159
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018 - - 9.2 9.2)
Depreciation charge (0.5) - .8} (1.3
Disposals - - 20 20
Revaluation 05 - - 05
At 31 December 2018 - - (8.0) (8.0}
Depreciation charge {0.2) - {1.0} (1.2}
Disposals - - 45 45
Revaluation 02 - - 0.2
Transfer from intangible assets - - ©.1 {0.1}
At 31 Decamber 2019 - - {4.6) {4.6)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 8.2 0.1 2.7 11.0
At 31 Dacember 2019 7.4 0.1 3.8 11.3
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17. Property, plant and equipment continued

Company
Computer
e BN
Emillion Errillion £milion

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 4.6 10.1 14.7
Additions - 05 05
Disposals - {2.0) {2.0)
At 31 December 2018 4.6 8.6 13.2
Additions 35 1.8 5.3
Disposals - {4.5) 4.5)
Transfer from intangible assets - 0.2 0.2
Transfer to investment property {3.2) - {3.2)
Revaluation (1.4) - 14
At 31 December 2019 35 6.1 2.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018 - (8.6) {8.9)
Depreciation charge 0.4) @3 0.7
Disposals - 20 20
Revaluation 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2018 [0.3) (6.9) {7.2)
Depreciation charge (0.1) (0.6) 0.7
Disposals - 45 45
Transfer from intangible assets - Q.1 ©o.1n
Rewvaluation 0.4 - 0.4
At 31 December 2019 - {3.1) (3.1)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 43 1.7 6.0
At 31 December 2019 as 3.0 6.5

The Group and Company’s freehold properties comprise:

= the Registered Office of the Company, which is fully utilised for the Group's own purposes
* Yorke House, Arleston Way, Shirley B0 4LH, 50% of which is used for the Group's own purposes

* 25 and 26 Neptune Court, Vanguard Way, Cardiff CF24 5PJ, which is fully utilised for the Group’s own purposes
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17. Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold properties are stated at fair value as at December 2019. The Directors have assessed the value of the freehold property at the
yearend through comparison to current rental yields on similar properties in the same area, which resulted in the following

revaluation movements:

Geoup Group Company Campany

2019 2018 2019 2018

£milion {mitlion £millian fmillion

Revaluation surpluses recognised in other comprehensive income 0.2 03 0.1 0.1
Revaluation deficit recognised in the income statement {1.1) - - -

The revaluation deficit arose from stamp duty and irrecoverable VAT incurred on the acquisition of a freehold property during the year.

The camying value of freehold land which is included in the total carrying value of freehold fand and buildings and which is not
depredated is £1.5 million (2018: £1.9 million).

The historical cost of freehold property included at valuation is as follows:

ot ‘o “Mow o
. £rmilllon Eenillion Emilion Emillion
Cost 58 7.9 92 4.1
Depreciation (1.4) (1.8 (0.3) 0.2
Net book value 5.2 6.3 8.9 3.9
18. Leasing right-of-use assets
Group
Leasshold  Leased motor
o Toion b
Cost
On transition at 1 January 2019 4.2 03 45
At 31 December 2019 4.2 0.3 4.5
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge {0.7) 0.2 05
At 31 December 2019 {0.7} (0.2} {0.9)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 3.5 0.1 3.6
Company
Leasshold Lessed motor
property wehicles Total
fmilfon fmillion
Cost
On transition at 1 January 2019 29 0.2 3.1
At 31 Dacember 2019 2.9 0.2 3.1
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge a.s 01 06
At 31 December 2019 ' 0.5 0.1 0.6
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 2.4 0.1 25
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19. Intangible assets

Group

Gaoduwil Ceaes inlangible e Tatal

million £milion £milion Emillion

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 10 16.2 2.3 19.5
Additions - 14 - 14
Disposals - {0.6) {C.1) 0.7
At 31 December 2018 1.0 17.0 22 20.2
Additions - 1.1 - 11
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - 0.2) - 0.2)
Disposals - (1.2) - (1.2)
At 31 December 2019 1.0 16,7 2.2 19.9
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2018 - 79 {1.2) .1
Amortisation charge - (1.6) 0.2 {1.9)
Disposals - 0.6 - 0.6
At 31 December 2018 - {8.9) {1.4) {10.3)
Amortisation charge - .7 0.2 1.9
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - 0.1 - 0.1
Disposals - 1.2 - 12
At 31 Dacember 2019 - {9.3) {1.6) 10.9
Net baook amount
At 31 December 2018 1.0 8.1 0.8 9.9
At 31 December 2019 1.0 7.4 0.6 9.0

Goodwill above relates to the folfowing cash generating units, which are part of the Retail Finance operating segment:

2019 008

£miflion Emiltion

Music business 0.3 0.3
Vi2 07 0.7
Total 1.0 1.0

The recoverable amount of these cash generating units are determined on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts covering a three-year period, and a discount rate of 8% (2018; 8%), Cash flow projections during the
forecast period are based on the expected rate of hew business. A zero growth based scenario is also considered. The Directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount 1o exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.

Othar intangible assets were recognised as part of the V12 Finance Group acquisition. These were recorded at fair value, and are
being amortised on a straight-line basis as follows:

Years
[T system 5
Distribution channel 10
Brand name 5
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19. Intangible assets continued

Company
Computer
Gosdvil softvare Torsl
fmBion Emilkion £milion

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 0.3 12.3 126
Additions - i3 1.3
Disposals - 07 .7
At 31 December 2018 0.3 12.9 13.2
Additions - 10 1.0
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - 0.2) {0.2)
Disposals - {1.3) {1.3)
At 31 December 2019 0.3 12.4 12.7
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2018 - {4.1) {4.1)
Amortisation charge - {1.6) (1.6)
Disposals - 0.6 0.6
At 31 December 2018 - {5.1) (5.1}
Amoitisation charge . - (1.6) {1.6)
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - 0.1 0.t
Disposals ‘ - 1.3 1.3
At 31 December 2019 - {5.3) {5.3)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 0.3 7.8 8.1
At 31 December 2019 0.3 7.1 7.4

Goodwill above relates to the music business cash generating unit, which is part of the Retail Finance operating segment.
The recoverable amount is determined on the same basis as for the Group.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 107

SUBIBIRIG [RIDURLLY




Financlal Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

20. Investments

Company

Emiflion
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2018 37
Equity contributions to subsidiaries in respect of share options 0.2
At 31 December 2018 3.9
Equity contributions to subsidiaries in respect of share options 0.2
At 31 December 2019 4.1

Shares in subsidiary undertakings of Secure Trust Bank PLC at 31 December 2019 are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.
Al subsidiary undertakings are unlisted and none are banking institutions. All are 100% awned by the Company. The subsidiary
undertakings were all incorporated in the UK and wholly owned via ordinary shares. All subsidiary undertakings are induded in the
consolidated financial statements and have an accounting reference date of 31 December.

Details are as follows:

Prindpal activity
Owined directly
Debt Managers (Services) Limited Debt collection company
Secure Homes Services Limited Property rental
STB Leasing Limited Leasing
V12 Finance Group Limited Holding company
Owned indirectly via intermediate holding companies
V12 Persconal Finance Limited Dormant
V12 Retall Finance Limited Sourcing and servicing of unsecured loans

The registerad office of the Company, and all subsidiary undertakings, Is One Arleston Way, Shirley, Solihull, West Midlands B90 4LH,

Secure Hornes Services Limited, 5TB Leasing Lirnited and V12 Personal Finance Limited are exempt from the requirements of the
Companies Act 2004 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of $479A, and the Company has given guarantees
accordingly under s479C in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.
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21. Deferred taxation

ot A 4 g+
£milllon fmithion £milin Emillion
Deferrad tax assets:
Other short-term timing differences 75 79 8.1 7.8
Deferred tax assets 7.5 7.9 8.1 7.8
Deferred tax assets:
Prior period closing 79 0.6 7.8 0.6
Tax on IFRS 9 transition adjustment - 6.3 - b4
Tax on IFRS 14 transition adjustment 02 - 0.2 -
At 1 January 8.1 49 80 70
Income statement 0.7 1.2 {0.2 11
Other comprehensive income Q1 0.2) 0.3 0.3)
At 31 Decomber 7.5 ‘ 7.9 8.1 7.8

The Government substantively enacted a reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 1%% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020},
However, on 17 March 2020, the Government legisiated to retain the current rate of 19%. The Group is also subject to an 8% surcharge
oh the profits of banking companies in excess of £25 million that is reflected in the 2019 tax charge and recongiliation. Deferred 1ax has
been calculated based on the enacted rate of 17.5% {being an average of the rate of 19% to March 2020 and 17% thereafter) to the
extent that the related temparary differences are expected to reverse in future periods, and is recognised on the basis that future
taxable profits are in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differencas. The potential effect of the
rate remaining at 19% would be to increase deferred tax assets by £0.7 million. A deferred tax asset was racognised on the IFRS 9
transition adjustment on 1 January 2018 and the current year credit includes a reassessment of the rates at which it is projected to

reverse over the period to 31 December 2027,

22, Other assets
Graup Graup Company Company
cmhon fmfion  tmllon frtion
Other receivables 5.2 16.2 45 16.1
Amounts due from related companies - - 885 445
Cloud software development prepayment 64 - 64 -
Other prepayments and accrued income 57 6.2 44 50
17.3 22.4 103.8 65.6

Cloud software development costs of £6.4 million that do not meet the intangible asset recognition criteria are included within other
prepaymeants and accrued income. Tha costs principally relate to the Group's Motor Transformation Programme, and once the
software comes into use will be expensed to the income statement over the useful economic life of the software.
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23. Due to banks

Gt T A oo
£million £miflicn Emillion £milllon
Amounts due to other eredit institutions . 308.0 2630 308.0 2630
Accued interest 0.5 05 05 05
308.5 263.5 308.5 2635

24. Deposits from customers

Group and Company

2019 218
£miilion Emillion
Current/dernand accounts 224 14.5
Term deposits 1,959.3 1,833.2
Individual savings accounts 384 -

2,020.3 1,847.7

25. Lease liabilities

Group
2019
£million
On transition at 1 January 2019 5.5
Payments (1.0
Interest expense 0.1 i
45
Lease liabilities - Gross
—No later than one year 10
—Later than one year and no later than five years 39 x
49
Less: Future finance expense ©0.4)
4.5
Lease liabilities — Net j
- No later than one yaar 09 !
— Later than ane year and no later than five years 14
4.5
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25. Lease liabilities continued

Company
2049
£milllon
On transition at 1 January 2019 40
Payments {0.8}
Interest expense 0.1
a3
Lease liabilities — Gross
~ No later than one year 0.7
- Later than one year and no later than five years 29
3.6
Less: Future finance expense {0.3)
Lease liabilities — Net 3.3
Lease liabilities — Gross
- No later than one year 0.7
— Later than one year and no later than five years 246
a3
26. Other liabilities
oty Son Mmoo
fmilitan imflfion £million frmillion
Other payables 272 258 255 228
Amounts due to related companies - - 55 14.1
Accruals and deferred income 137 14.3 1.0 12.2
40.9 40.1 420 49.1
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27. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group and Company
ECL allowanca on
Customer foan
redress coOmmiuments Fraud Total
Emillion Emillion £mition Emilifon
Balance at 1 January 2018 1.2 03 0.2 1.7
{Credited)/charged to income statement 0.4 a1 {0.1) {0.4)
Balance at 31 December 2018 0.8 0.4 0.1 1.3
Credited to income statement 0.6) - - (0.6)
Balance at 31 December 2019 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.7

Customer redress provision

The Group provides for its best estimate of redress payable in respect of cutstanding claims relating to historical sales of accident,
sickness and unemployment insurance, by considering the likely future uphold rate for claims, in the context of confirmed issues and
historical experience. The accuracy of these estimates would be affected, were there to be a significant change in the incidence of
claims upheld by the Financial Ombudsman Senvice.

The Financial Conduct Authority announced a deadline for making these customer redress claims, which gave consumers until
29 August 2019 to make a claim, so no further claims were accepted after this date.

Fraud
The fraud provision relates to cases where the Bank has reasanable evidence of suspected fraud, but further investigation is required
before tha cases can be dealt with appropriately.

ECL allowance on loan commitments

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 the Group holds an ECL allowance against loans it has committed to lend but have not
yet been drawn. For the Real Estate Finance and Commercial Finance porticlios, where a loan fadility is agreed that indudes both
drawn and undrawn elements and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment separately, a combined loss allowance
for both drawn and undrawn components of the loan is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component, with any excess of the loss allowance over the grass drawn amount presented as a provision. At 31 December 2019 no
provision was held for losses in excess of drawn amounts.

The Directors expect all provisions to be fully utilised within the next 12 months.
28, Subordinated liabilities

2019 14

£miliion £milion

Notes at par value 500 50.0
Unamortised issue costs {0.4) {0.8)
Accrued interest 1.2 1.2
50.6 50.4

Subordinated lisbilities comprises two tranches of 6.75% Fixed Rate Reset Callable Subordinated Notes due 2028 ('the Notes'} issued
in 2018, The Notes mature in 2028 but the issuer may at its discretion redeem the Notes in 2023. The Notes are listed on the Global
Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange plc trading as Euronext Dublin.

The Notes are treated as Tier 2 regulatory capital which is used to support the continuing growth of the business taking into account
increases in requlatory capital buffers. The issue of the Notes is part of an ongoing programmie to diversify and expand the capital
base of the Group.
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29. Contingent liabilities and commitments
29.1 Contingent liabilities

As a financial services business, the Group must cornply with numerous laws and regulations, which significantly affect the way it does
business, Whilst the Group believes there are no material unidentified areas of failure to comply with these laws and regulations,

there can be no guarantee that all issues have been identified.
29.2 Capital commitments

At 31 Decernber 2019, the Group had no capital commitments {(2018; £nil).

The Company had no capital commitments (2018: £nil).

29.3 Cradit commitments
Commitments to extend credit to customers were as follows:

Graug

Group

Company
2017

Company

2019 2018 2018
£miillon Emition fmilon Emillion
Business Finance
Real Estate Finance 1209 173.4 1209 173.4
Commercial Finance 48.7 456 48.7 454
Consumer Finance
Retail Finance 33.2 28.3 332 283
Motor Finance 05 0.5 05 0.5
Consumer Mortgages - 15.3 - 15.3
203.3 263.1 203.3 263.1
30. Share capital
Numbasr Emillion
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 18,475,229 14
Issued during 2019 22N -
At 31 December 2019 18,477,500 7.4

Share capital comprises ordinary shares with a par value of 40 pence each.
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31, Share-based payments

At 31 December 2019, the Group had five share-based payment schemes in operation:
« Share option Scheme

+ 2017 long term incentive plan

* 2017 sharesave plan

e 2017 deferred bonus plan

* ‘Phantom’ share option scheme

A summary of the movements in share options during the year is set out below;

Weighted Weighted
average Bverage
Vasted exercisaprica  axeecise price:
Forfatted and exercisabla of options of options
Inpsnd and Outstanding at o autstanding st outstanding st
Outstandiing at  Granted dwing cancellad during Exorciied 1 Owcamber 31 Dacember 31 Decamber 31 December
{ January 2019 the year the year  during the year 2019 09 Vesting 2018 2019
Numbaer Nambar Number Mumber Number Numbear dates £ £
Equity settled
Share option scheme 177,084 - (35417) - 141,667 141,687 2016 7.20 7.20
2017 long term incentive
pian 161,597 134,044 {32,549 - 263,094 — 2020-2024 0.40 0.40
2017 sharesave plan 145,009 65789 (46,284) (872) 163642 — 2020-2022 13.39 12.28
2017 deferred bonus
plan 14,6590 28,775 {12,404 (1,399 29,662 3497 2019-2022 040 0.40
498,380 228,610 (126,654} (2,271) 598,085 145,144 6.60 5.26
Cash settled
‘Phantom’ share option
scheme 312,917 - {31,250) - 281,667 281,647 2019 25,00
Group Group Company Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Emiliion £million Emillon Estilkon
Expense incurred in refation to share-based payments 1.2 0.8 1.0 0.6

31.1. Share option scheme
The share option scheme was established on 17 October 2011,

On 2 November 2011, 934,998 share options were granted at an exercise price of £7,20 per share, entitfing three Directors and certain
senior employees to purchase shares in the Company. Approximately half of the share options vested and were exercised on

2 Novemboer 2014, with the remainder vesting and becoming exercisable on 2 November 2014, The bulk of the remainder were
axercised on 7 November 2016, and 35,417 were cancelled during 2019 leaving 141,667 share options unexercised. Vested options are

exercisable for a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The intrinsic value of unexercisad options is £1.2 million (2018: £0.8 million).
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31. Share-based payments continued
31.2. Long term incentive plan
The long term incentive plan was established on 3 May 2017.

Awards under this plan are subject to three performance conditions, which are based on:

¢ annual compound growth in earnings per share (EPS') over the performance period

* rank of the total shareholder return (TSR’ over the performance period against the TSR of the comparator group of peer
group companies

* maintaining appropriate risk practices over the performance period reflecting the jonger-term strategic risk management of
the Group

The awards will vest on the date on which the Board determines that these conditions have been met.

The awards have a performance term of three years, Those awards granted to the Executive Directors are subject to a helding period
of twa years following the vesting date. Those awards not subject to a holding period will be released to the participants on the
vesting date. Vested options are exerasable for a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The following awards have been granted under the plan, entitling two Executive Directors and certain other key senior employees to
purchase shares in the Company:

Subjact to & Subject to no

hddfn% ﬁ:bm):; holdinglp“uiﬂ;o: N u:;::
At 1 January 2018 33,467 34,525 67,992
Granted ' 30,429 64,075 94,504
Forfeited, lapsed and cancelied - {899) 899
At 31 December 2018 63,896 97,701 161,597
Granted 54,312 79,734 134,046
Forfeited, lapsed and cancelled (32,549) - {32,549
At 31 December 2019 85,659 177,435 263,094

The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model for the EPS and risk management tranches, and a
Monte Carlo medel for the TSR tranche, Measurement inputs and assumptions used for the grant date valuation were as follows:
Granted 2019 Guanted 2019 Granted 2018 Granted 2018

Subject to » Subject 16 no Subjectio s Subjed 1o mo
holdingpariod  holding period holdingperiod  hokding period

Share price at grant date £15.20 £15.20 £20.85 £20.85
Exercise price £0.40 £040 £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 6.18% 6.18% 4.05% 4.05%
Expected stock price volatility 259% 29.1% 25.2% 259%
Risk free interest rate 0.86% 0.72% 1.15% 0.89%
Average expected life (years) 5.00 300 5.00 300
Discount for lack of marketability during holding period 10.0% N/A 10.0% N/A
Original grant date valuation £9.02 £10.48 £14.26 £15.47
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31. Share-based payments continued

31.3. Sharesave plan
The sharesave plan was established on 3 May 2017,

This plan aliows all employees with more than 12 months' service to save for three years, subject to a maximurn monthly amount of
£500, with the option to buy shares in Secure Trust Bank PLC when the plan matures. Participants cannot change the amount that they
have agreed to save aach month but they can suspend payments for up to six months. Participants can withdraw their savings at any
time but, if they do this before the completion date, they fose the option to buy shares at the Option Price, and if participants cease to
hold plan-related employment before the third anniversary of the grant date, then the options are also lost. The options crdinarily vest
approximately three years after grant date, and are exerdsable for a period of six months following vesting.

The ariginal grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and assumptions used were
as follows:

Awarded during  Avarded during

2019 2018
Share price at grant date £13.00 £17.53
Fxercise price £10.64 £14.03
Expected stock price volatility 2834%  28.14%
Expected dividend yield 677% 4.57%
Risk free interest rate 0.46% 0.89%
Average expected life (years) 3.00 3.35
Original grant date valuation £2.10 £3.67

31.4. Deferred bonus plan
The deferred bonus plan was established on 3 May 2017.

Sinca 2017, 50% of the bonus eamed by two Executive Directors, amounting to £450,000 {2018: £280,000}, is deferred into shares under
the deferred bonus plan. The awards vest in three equal tranches after one, two and three years following defemral. One of the
Executive Directors resigned during the year, leaving only one Executive Director remaining in the plan. Accordingly, the following
awards remain outstanding under the plan, entitling one Executive Director to purchase shares in the Company:

Awarck granted  Awarcla granted  Awards granied
attar Vesting after Vatting sfter

| yoar | Zyears (JSyeus ““"d’g"“;'o‘:f:
At 1 January 2018 - - - -
Granted 4,8% 4,896 4,898 14,690
At 31 December 2018 4,896 4,896 4,898 14,690
Granted 2,591 92,591 9,593 28,775
Exercised {1,399 - - (1,399
Cancelled {3,202 {4,601) {4,601} {12,404)
At 1 Dacembar 2019 9,886 9,886 9,890 29,662
Vested and exercisable 3,497 - - 3,497
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31. Share-based payments continued

The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and assumptions used were

as follows:
oM S Semui Suome ms o
after ona year  after two years  after thres years feronaysar  aftertwoyears  sfterthres years
Share price at grant date £11.90 £11.90 £11.90 £20.85 £20.85 £20.85
Exercise price £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 7.06% 7.06% 7.06% 396% 3.96% 396%
Expected stock price volatility 27.34% 24.79% 28.82% 25.25% 30.90% 27.68%
Risk free interest rate 0.74% 0.74% 0.746% 0.49% 0.77% 0.82%
Average expected life {years) 1.00 2.00 3.00 1.00 2.00 3.00
Original grant date valuation £10.69 £9.94 £9.59 £19.64 £18.87 £18.12

31.5. Cash settled share-based payments

On 16 March 2015, a four-year ‘phantom’ share option scheme was established in order to provide effective long-term incentive to
senior management of the Group. Under the scheme, no actual shares would be issued by the Company, but those granted awards
under the scharme would be entitled to a cash payment. The amount of the award is calculated by reference to the increase in the
value of an ordinary share in the Company over an initial value set at £25 per ordinary share, being the price at which the shares
resulting from the exarcise of the first tranche of share options under the share option scheme were sold in November 2014,

As at 31 December 2019, 281,667 (2018; 312,917) share options remained outstanding. The options vested during 2019 and are

exercisable for a period of 10 years after grant date.

As at 31 December 2019, the estimated fair value has been prepared using the Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and

assurnptions used were as follows:

2019 2018

Share price at reporting date £16.00 £11.80

Expected stock price volatility 30.34% 24.76%

Expected dividend yield 5.5% 7.12%

Risk free interest rate 0.60% 0.76%

Average expected life (years) 2.60 N

Fair value £0.53 £0.05
This resulted in the following being recognised in the financial statements:

2019 2018

£milllon Fmillion

0.2 0.2

Liability

The fair value at Decernber 2018 was not used to calculate the liability, as management condluded that it was appropriate to hold the
acerual at the same level as 2017 because the options can be exercised at any point during the seven years after vesting, and given

high levels of share price volatility at that date.

For each award granted during the year, expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share
price over the period equivalent to the expected 1erm of the options being granted. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,

and behavioural considerations.
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32. Cash flow statement

32.1. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition.

Group Group Company Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Limiilion fnillion £miilion Emifion

Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7 105.8 1497
Loans and advances to banks (Note 11) 48.4 14.8 452 1.9
154.2 214.5 151.0 211.6

32.2, Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

All changes in liabilities arising from financing activities arise from changes in cash flows, apart from £0.1 million of lease liabilities
imerest expense, as shown in Nate 25, and £0.2 million amortisation of issue costs on subordinated liabilities, as shown in Note 28.

33. Financial risk management strategy

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the use of finandal instrumants. The Direclors and senior management
of the Group have formally adopted a Group risk appetite statement which sets out the Board's attitude to risk and internal controls.
Key tisks identified by the Directors are formally reviewed and assessed at least once a year by the Board, in addition to which key
business risks are identified, evaluated and managed by operating management on an ongoing basis by means of procedures such as
physical controls, credit and cther authorisation limits and segregation of duties, The Board alsa receives regular reports an any risk
matters that need to be brought ta its attention. Significant risks identified in connection with the development of new activities are
subject to consideration by the Board. There are budgeting procedures in place and reports are presented regularly to the Board
datailing the results of each principal business unit, variances against budget and prior year, and other performance data.

A more detailed description of the risk governance structure is contained in the Strategic Report beginning on page 2,

The principal financial risks inherent in the Group's business are credit risk (Note 34), market risk (Note 35), liquidity risk (Note 38),
and capital risk {Note 37).

34. Credit risk

The Company and Group take on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full
when due, A formal Credit Risk Policy has been agreed by the Board whilst credit risk is monitored on a monthly basis by the Credit
Risk Committees which review performance of key portfolios including new business volumes, collections performance, provisioning
levels and provisioning methodology. A credit risk department within the Group monitors adherence to the Credit Risk Policy,
implements risk 100ls to manage credit risk and evaluates business opportunities and the risks and opportunities they present to the
Group whilst ensuring the performance of the Group's existing portfolios is in line with expectations.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to individual
borrowers or groups of borawers. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review.

The lirnits on the level of credit risk are approved periodically by the Board of Directors and actual exposures against limits

monitored daily.

Impaimment provisions are provided for expected credit losses at the statement of financial position date. Significant changes in the
economy could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the statement of finandial position date.

Management therefore carefully manages the Group's exposures to credit risk as it considers this to be the most significant risk to
the business.

Exposure to Consumer Finance and Consumer Mortgages credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers
and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where appropriate.
Exposure to credit risk for these portfolios is also managed in part by obtaining collateral, principally motor vehicles on Motor Finance
loans, residential property on Consumer Mortgages and a credit support balance providad by RentSmart. The assets underge a
scofing process to mitigate risk and are monitored by the Board.
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34, Credit risk continued

For Real Estate Finance and Commercial Finance, lending decistans are made on an individua! transaction basis, using expert

judgement and assessment against criteria set out in the lending policies. Asset Finance lending is outsourced to Haydock, who
operate in line with the Group's credit policies and risk appetite, and is currently closed to new business. The loans are secured against
the assets lent against {real estate, trade receivables and commerdal plant and equipment, respectively). Disdosures relating to
collateral and arrears on inans and advances to customers are disclosed in Notes 12 and 14 respectively.

The Board monitors the ratings of the counterparties in relztion to the Group’s loans and advances to banks. Disclosures of these at
the year-end are contained in Note 34.1. There is no direct expasure to the Eurozone and peripheral Eurozone countries.

Group

With the exception of loans and advances to customers, the carrying amount of financial assets represents the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk, The Group's maximum exposure 1o credit risk for loans and advances to customers by portfolio and IFRS ¢
stage without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached was as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totat
<= 30 days > 30 days Excl. purchased Purchased
_ Emillen Fouion  “eoition don e ion craion o
31 December 2019
Business Finance
Real Estate Finance 210.2 337 28 365 14.1 - 16.1 962.8
Asset Finance 238 36 03 3.9 1.8 - 18 29.5
Commercial Finance 245.0 70 - 7.0 0.6 - 0.6 2524
Consumer Finance
Retail Finance 624.1 803 45 848 55 - 55 7144
Motor Finance 240.5 959 27 9.6 17.2 - 17.2 3573
Debt Management - - - ~ 10.3 70.0 80.3 80.3
Consumer Mortgages 105.6 - 3 03 03 - 03 106.2
Other 7.6 - - - - - - 7.6
'—l';tai drawn exposure 2,154.8 221.5 10.6 232 51.8 70.0 121.8 2,510.7
Off balance sheet
Loan commitments 203.3 - - - - - - 203.3
Total gross exposure 2,360.1 2215 10.6 232.1 51.8 70.0 121.8 2,714.0
Less:
Impairment allowance {21.6) {19.8) {4.3) (24.1) (17.0) 21 {14.9) 60.8)
Provision for loan
commitments 04) - - - - - - {0.4)
Total net exposure 2,338.1 201.7 63 208.0 348 72.1 106.9 2,653.0
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34. Credit risk continued

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
<-p3a2:?uy: >p::3I‘:;J,: Total %&ﬂﬁ:&ﬁ mmﬁ Total
) Emiflian Emiflion £milion £milficn fmifiion fmillion f£enillion fmibion
31 December 2018
Business Finance
Real Estate Finance 7233 47.1 - 47.1 - - - 7704
Asset Finance 556 6.5 65 7.0 32 - 3.2 45.8
Commercial Finance 186.1 a8 - 838 0.6 -~ 0.6 195.5
Consumer Finance
Retail Finance 537.1 741 3.9 78.0 49 - 49 620.0
Motor Finance 200.2 927 24 951 20.5 - 20.5 315.8
Debt Management - - - - 23 230 323 323
Consumer Mortgages 849 - - - - - - 849
Gther 11.3 - - - - — - 1.3
Total drawn exposure 1,798.5 229.2 6.8 236.0 38.5 23.0 615 2,096.0
Off balance sheet
Loan commitments 2631 - - - - - - 2631
Total gross exposure 2,061.6 229.2 4.8 236.0 38.5 23.0 415 2,359.1
Less:
Impairment allowance (20.3) {19.9) 4.0) (23.9) (22.9) - (22.9) (67.1)
Provision for loan
commitments : {0.4) - - - - - - {0.4)
Total net exposure 2,040.9 209.3 2.8 2124 15.6 23.0 38.6 2,291.6

A reconciliation of opening to closing impairmant allowance for bosses on loans and advances to customers is presented in Note 14,
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' 34. Credit risk continued

Company

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and advances to customers by portfolio and IFRS 9 stage without taking
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached was as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
<= 30 days > 20 days Exnd. purchassd Purchased
mithon Foniton omillon riien e T et Fion filion

31 December 2019
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 910.2 337 28 3565 16.1 - 161 9628

Asset Finance 238 346 03 3.9 18 - 18 295

Commerciz! Finance 2440 7.0 - 7.0 0.6 - 06 251.4
Censumer Finance

Retail Finance 6241 80.3 45 84.8 55 - 55 7144

Motor Finance 240.5 96,9 27 92.6 172 - 7.2 357.3

Consumer Martgages 105.6 - 03 03 03 - 0.3 106.2
Other 05 - - - - - 05
Total drawn exposure 2,148.7 221.5 10.6 2321 415 - 41.5 2,422.3
Off balance sheat

Loan commitments 2033 - - - - - - 203.3
Total gross exposure 2,352,0 2215 10.6 23241 415 - 41.5 2,625.6
Less:
Impairment allowance (22.8) {22.1) 4.8) (269 {19.0) - {19.0} (68.7)
Pravision for loan
commitments {0.4) - - - - - - 0.4
Total net exposure 2,328.8 199.4 5.8 205.2 225 - 225 2,556.5
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34. Credit risk continued

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 TFotal
<= 30 days > dpyx Excl. purchased Purchased
Emiion pfa::ig: mﬁ: £rr;;‘o'n' c‘m-:ﬁlu-so.: o s‘-iulum m?i'f':ar: Emilion

31 December 2018
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 7233 471 - 47.1 - - - 770.4

Asset Finance 55.6 45 05 7.0 32 - 32 658

Commercial Finance 182.0 88 - 88 0.4 - 0.6 191.4
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 537.1 741 39 78.0 49 - 49 620.0

Motor Finance 200.2 927 24 951 20.5 - 20.5 3158

Consumer Mortgages 849 - - - - - - 849
Other 0.6 - - - - - - 0.6
Total drawn exposure 1,783.7 229.2 6.8 236.0 29.2 - 29.2 2,048.9
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 2631 - - - - - - 263.1
Total gross exposure 2,0446.8 229.2 4.8 236.0 29.2 - 29.2 2,312.0
Less:
Impairment allowance {20.7) {20.2) 4.1} {24.3} {23.6) - (23.6) {68.6)
Provision for loan
commitments {0.4} -~ - - - - - 0.4}
Total net exposure 2,025.7 209.0 2.7 211.7 5.6 - 5.6 2,243.0

34.1. Concentration risk

Management assesses the potential concentration risk from geographic, product and individual loan concentration. Due to the nature
of the Group’s lending operations the Directors consider the lending operations of the Group as a whole to be well diversified.
Details of the Group’s loans and advances to customers and loan commitments by product is provided in Note 3.

Geographical concentration

The Group's Real Estate Finance and Consumer Mortgages are secured against UK property only. The geographical concentration of
these business loans and advances to customers, by location of the security is as follows:

Group and Company
Real Entate Consumar
Finance Mortgages
E£milion Emillion
31 December 2019
Central England 127.1 199
Greater London 401.8 135
Northern England 48.5 21.2
South East England (excl. Greater Lendon) 160.8 353
South Weast England 12.8 1.0
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 118 53
Gross loans and receivables 962.8 106.2
Allowance for impairment 0.6) {©.3)
Total 962.2 105.9
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34. Credit risk continued

Rual Extate Cansumer
4 Mortgages
frmittion fmiffion

31 December 2018

Central England 35.1 16,2
Greater London 4515 12.2
Northern England 376 16.6
South East England (exdl. Greater London) 200 263
South West England @6 @3
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 276 4.3
Gross loans and receivables 7704 849
Allowance for impairment {0.1) {0.2)
Total 770.3 84.7

34.2, Forbearance

Atyear-end, all bar an insignificant number of customers within the Group's Consumer Mortgage business were up to date with their
monthly payments. Should customers face finandal difficulties, the Group may, depending on individual circumstances, offer customers
one of a2 number of forbearance options. The types of forbearance the Group was prepared to offer in 2019 included the following:

« Ternporary interest only concessions are offered to customers in finandial difficulty on a temporary basis with formal periodic review.
The concessicn allows the customer to reduce monthly payments to cover interest only, and if made, the arrears status will
not increase

* Arrangement payment plans are agreed to enable customers to reduce their arrears balances by an agreed amount per month
which is paid in addition to their standard monthiy repayment

* Payment concessions can be agreed on a temporary basis whereby the customer may pay less than the contractual monthiy
payment, in line with their individual affordability. If a customer is within this type of concession, their arrears position will increase

¢ in exceptional circumstances, capitalisations of arrears may ocour or an interest rate acjustment may be applied. These are used
under strict controls, explicitly where the customer circumstances offer no other opticn

All farbearance arrangements are formally discussed and agreed with the customer. By offering customers in financial difficulty the
option of forbearance the Group potentially exposes itself to an increased level of risk thraugh prolonging the period of non-
contractual payment and/or potentially placing the customer into a detrimental position at the end of the forbearance period.

SusLWlRS jRIoURLYY

All forbearance amangements are reviewed and monitored regularly to assess the ongoing potential risk, suitability and sustainability
to the Group.
Where forbearance measures are not possible or are considered not 1o be in the customer’s best interests, or where such measures

have baen tried and the customer has not adhered to the forbearance terms that have been agreed, the Group will consider realising
its security and taking possession of the property in order to sell it and clear the outstanding debt.

No forbearance arrangements are currently in place in respect of Consumer Mortgages.

Other than Consumer Mottgages, throughout 2019 the Group did not routinely reschedule contractual arrangements where
custorners default on their repayments, In cases where it offered the customer the option to reduce or defer payments for a short
pariod, the loans retained the normal contractual payment due dates and were treated the same as any other defaulting cases for
impairment purposes. Arrears tracking would continue on the account with any impairment charge being based on the original
contractual due dates for all products.
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35. Market risk

Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate and currency products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements. There are no significant exposures to foreign currencies and therefore there is no significant currency risk. The Group does
not operate a trading book.

Interast rate risk

Group and Company

Interest rate risk is the risk of potential loss through unhedged or mismatched asset and liability positions, which are sensitive to
changes in interest rates, When interest rates change, the present value and timing of future cash flows change. This in tum changes
the underlying value of the Group’s assets, fiabilities and off-balance sheet instruments and hence its economic value, Changes in
interest rates also affect the Group's earnings by altering interest sensitive income and expenses, affecting its net interest income.

The Group seeks to ‘match’ interest rate risk on either side of the statement of financial position. Howevar, this is not a perfect match
and interest rate risk is present on the mismatch between fixed rate loans and savings products and variable rate assets and liabilities.

The Group monitors the interest rate mismatch on at least a monthly basis using market value sensitivity and earnings at risk.
At 31 December 2019 thess were as follows:

2019 08
£miiflon Emilion
Market value sensitivity
+200bps parallel shift in yield curve 24 0.2
-200bps parallel shift in yield curve (1.0 -
Earnings at risk sensitivity
+100bps parallel shift in yield curve 0.6 1.0

The Directors consider that 200bps in the case of Market value sensitivity and 100bps in the case of Earnings at risk are a reasonable
approximation of possible changes.

The Group maintained such exposures within the risk appetite set by the Board throughout the year.

Interest rate risks inherent in new products or through changes to the terms and conditions of existing products were assessed over
the course of the year.

This potential exposure is rnanaged by the Group Treasury function and overseen by ALCO. The policy is not to take significant
unmatched positions.

36. Liquidity risk
Liquidity Fisk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation. The liquidity requirements of the Group are met through withdrawing funds from its Bark of England Reserve
Account to cover any short-term fluctuations and longer-term funding to address any structural liquidity requirements.

The Group has a formal governance structure in place to manage and mitigate liquidity risk on a day-to-day basis. The Board sets and
approves the Group's liquidity risk management strategy. The ALCO, comprising senior executives of the Company, monitors liquidity
risk. Key liquidity risk management infarmation s reported by the Treasury function and monitored by the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer on a daily basis. The ALCO meets maonthly to review liquidity risk against set thresholds and risk indicators
including early warning indicators, liquidity risk tolerance levels and ILAAP metrics.
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36. Liquidity risk continued
The Group raised new fixed rate deposits during the year as set out below:

2019 2018

Emillion Ervidion

Fixed rate bonds 192.4 448 .4
Notice accounts 3290 247.6
individual Savings Accounts 35.2 -
Total 559.6 696.0

The terms of the deposits ranged from 1 to 7 years, and were issued to broadly match the term lending by the Group.

The PRA requires a firm to maintain at all times liquidity resources which are adequate, both as to amount and quality, to ensure that
there is no significant risk that its liabilities cannot be met as they fall due. There is also a requirement that a firn ensures its liquidity
resources contain an adequate buffer of high quality, unencumbered assets fi.e. Government Securities in the liquidity asset buffer),
and it maintains a conservative funding profile. The liquidity assets buffer is a poo! of highly liquid assets that can ba called upon to
create sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities on demand, particularly in a period of liquidity stress. The liquidity resources outside the
buffer must either be marketable assets with a demonstrable secondary market that the firm can access, or a credit facility that can be
activated in times of stress. '

The Group has a Board apptoved ILAAP. The ILAAP rules require the Group to identify, measure, manage and monitor liquidity and
{funding risks across different time horizons and stress scenarios, consistent with the Group's risk appetite as established by the Board.
The ILAAP seeks to dacument the Group’s approach to liquidity and funding, and demonstrate that it complies with the Overall
Liquidity Adequacy Rule. The PRA's approach to liquidity supervision is based on the principle that a fimn must have adequate levels of
liquidity resources and a conservative funding profile, and that it comprehensively manages and controls liquidity and funding risks.
The liquidity buffer required by the ILAAP has been put in place and maintained since that time, Liquidity resources outside of the
buffer are made up of deposits placed at the Bank of England. The ILAAP is updated annually.

The primary measure used by management to assess the adequacy of liquidity is the Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule, which is the
Board’s own view of the Groups liquidity needs as set out in the Board approved LAAP. The Group maintained liquidity in excess of
the Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule throughout the year ended 31 December 2019,

The LCR regime has applied to the Group from 1 October 2016, requiring management of net 30-day cash outflows as a proportion of
High Quality Liquid Assets. The Group has set a more conservative intemnal imit. The actual LCR has significantly exceeded both limits
throughout the year.

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from maturing depasits and loan draw-downs. The Group maintains
significant cash resources 10 meet all of these needs as they fall due.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the
management of the Group. it is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted business is often of uncertain term and of
different types.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes in interest rates,
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36. Liquidity risk continued

The tables below analyse the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings:

More than Mare then
Gross nominal Not more Imonthsbut 1 yearbut Jess More than
i on o ton P ndion " etlon frkian
At 31 December 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilitias
Due to banks 308.5 3121 0.5 446.7 2649 -
Depaosits from customers 20203 208564 262.3 1,055.0 7068 323
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 618 09 25 584 -
Other finandal liabilities 7.2 27.2 27.2 - - -
2,406.6 2,A87.5 320.9 1,104.2 1,030.1 323
Derivative financial liabilities
Daerivative financial instruments a6 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.4 -
0.4 07 0.1 0.2 04 -
2,407.2 2,488.2 321.0 1,104.4 1,030.5 32.3
Mora than More than
Gross nominal Notmore 3monthsbutless 1 year but hess Mo than
e ion pos il ivod A sl o4 o criion
At 31 December 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 2635 263.5 2635 - - -
Deposits from customers 1,847.7 1,916.3 644.3 4047 855.8 11.5
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 66.9 0.8 25 634 -
Other financial liahilities 243 26.3 263 - - -
2,187.9 2,273.0 934.9 407.2 919.4 11.5
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36. Liquidity risk continued

Company
Mare than Mara than
Gross nominal Not more Imonthsbut 1 ywar but bess Mors than
o o ol o i Emion odiion
At 31 December 2019
Non-derivative financial Rabilities )
Due to banks 308.5 3121 05 46.7 2649 -
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 20864 2923 10550 7068 323
Subordinated lizbilities 50.6 5618 09 25 58.4 -
Other financial liabilities 310 310 310 - - -
2,410.4 2,491.3 324.7 1,104.2 1,030.1 32.3
Derivative financial liabflitles
Derivative financial instruments 0.4 07 0.1 0.2 0.4 -
0.6 07 0.1 02 04 -
24110 2,492.0 324.8 1,104.4 1,080.5 32.3
Mors than More than
Gross nominal Notmors 3 mantha but less 1 year but less More than
Emiion b e mion
At 31 Decamber 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bue to banks 2635 2635 2635 - - -
Deposits from customers 1,842.7 1.916.3 644.3 404.7 B55.8 115
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 569 03 25 636 -
Other financial liabilities 374 374 374 - - -
2,199.0 2,284.1 946.0 407.2 919.4 11.5

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest bearing finandial liabilities as they
mature are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Company and Group and its exposure to changes in interest rates and
exchange rates.

Other financial liabilities, as shown above, do notindude non-interest accruals as these are not classed as financial Habilities.

37. Capital risk

The Group' capitat management policy is foaused on aptimising shareholder value, in a safe and sustainable manner. There is a clear
focus oh delivering organic growth and ensuring capital resources are sufficient to support planned levels of growth. The Board
regularly reviews the capital position.

In accordance with CRD IV and the required parameters set out in the Capital Requirements Regulation, the Group’s ICAAP is
embedded in the risk management framework of the Group and is subject to ongoing updates and revisions when necessary.
However, as a minimum, the ICAAF is updated annually as part of the business planning process. The ICAAP is & process that brings
together the management framewark {i.e. the policies, procedures, strategies, and systems that the Group has implemented to
identify, manage and mitigate its risks) and the financial disciplines of business planning and capital management.

Not all material risks can be mitigated by capital, but where capital is appropriate the Board has adopted a ‘Pillar 1 plus’ approach to
determine the leve! of capital the Group needs to hold. This method takes the Fillar 1 capital formula calculations (standardised
approach for credit, market and operational risk) as a starting point, and then considers whether each of the calculations delivers a
sufficient capital sum adequate 1o cover management’s view of anticipated risks. Where it is considered that the Pillar 1 calculations do
not

reflect the risk, an additional capital add-on in Pillar 2 should be applied, in line with the Total Capital Requirement issued by the PRA.
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37. Capital risk continued

Pillar 3 complements the minimum capital requirements (Pillar 1) and the supervisory review process (Pillar 2). its aim is to encourage
market discipline by developing a set of disclosure requirements which would allow market participants to assess key pieces of
information on a firm’s capital, risk exposures and risk assessment processes. Pillar 3 disdlosures for the Group for the year ended

31 December 2019 are published as a separate document on the Group's website.

The following table, which is unaudited and therefore not in scope of the independent auditor’s report, shows tha regulatory capital
resources for the Group. The Group has adopted the IFRS 9 transitional rules. For 2019 this allowed 85% {2018 95%) of the initial {FRS 9
transition adjustment, net of attributable deferred tax, to be added back to eligible Tier t capital. Tier 2 capital comprises solely
subordinated

debt issued during the year net of unamortised issue costs and excluding accrued interest, capped at 25% of the capital requirement.

2019 2018
£million Enllian
{uraudived) {unauditad)
Tier 1
Share capital 74 7.4
Share premium B1.2 B1.2
Retained earnings ‘ 164.4 147.4
Revaluaticn reserve 1.1 1.1
IFRS 9 transition adjustment 228 245
Goodwill .o (1.0
Intangible assets net of atiributable deferred tax 7.9 (8.8)
CET1 capital bafore foreseen dividend 268.0 251.8
Proposed dividend - (11.8)
CET1 capital 268.0 240.0
Tier 2
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 50.4
Less ineligible portion . 0.8) 4.7
Total Tier 2 capital 50.0 45.7
Own Funds 318.0 285,7
Reconcllietion to total equity:
IFRS ¢ transition adjustment (22.8) (24.5)
Eligible subordinated liabilities {50.0) (45.7)
Goodwill and other intangible assets net of attributable deferred tax 8.9 o8
Proposed dividend ' - 1.8
Total equity 254.1 237.1

The Group ICAAP includes a summary of the capital required to mitigate the identified risks in its regulated entities and the amount of
capital that the Group has available. The: PRA sets a Total Capital Raquirement (TCR') for each UK bank calibrated by reference to its
Capital Resources Requirement, which is broadly equivalent to 8% of risk weighted assets and thus representing the capital required
under Pillar 1 of the Basel il framework. The ICAAP is a key input into the PRAs TCR setting process, which addresses the requirements
of Pillar 2 of the Basel |l framework. The PRA's approach is to monitor the available capital resources in relation to the TCR. The Group
maintains an extra internal buffer and capital ratios are reviewed on a monthly basis to ensure that extemnal and internal requirements
are adhered to. The PRA reviewed the Group's ICAAP in 2018 and issued its updated TCR in March 2019.

The Group is also subject to further capital requirements imposed by the PRA on all financiat services firms. During the periods, the
Group complied with these requirements,

The Group raised Tier 2 capital in 2018. Further details of the capital issuance are given in Note 28.

1 80 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019




38. Maturity analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities

Group
Duswithin  Dus after mors  No contractual

ot et e o £malion
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 - - 105.8
Loans and advances to banks 48.4 - - 48.4
Loans and advances to customers 1,080.6 1,341.3 28.2 2,450.1
Debt securities 250 - - 250
Fair value adjustment for portfolic hedged risk - - 0.9 0.9
Derivative financial instruments - 08 0.1 09
Other assets - - 535 53.5
Total assets 1,259.8 1,342.1 80.9 2,682.8
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 455 2630 - 308.5
Deposits from customers 1,355.6 664.7 - 20203
Fair value adjustment for portfalio hedged risk - - @©.7) ©.2)
Derivative financial instruments 0.1 ' 0.5 - 0.6
Current tax liabilities i3 - - 33
Lease liabilities 08 37 - 45
Other liabilities - - 41.6 416
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 50.0 (0.6} 50.6
Total liabilities 1,4046.5 981.9 40.3 2,428.7

Due within  Cus after mote Mo contractual

ONe year than one year maturity Total

£miltion Emiltion £miftion £million
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 - - 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 44.8 - - 448
Loans and advances to customers 1,0351 0.2 338 2,028
Debt securities 1497 - - 1497
Other assets - - 51.2 51.2
Total assets 1,399.3 960.2 8438 2,444.3
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 2635 - - 2635
Deposits from customers 1,016.6 831.1 - 1,847.7
Current tax liabilities 4.2 - - 4.2
Other liabilities - - 414 414
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 50.0 0.8 504
Total liabflities 1,285.5 881.1 404 2,207.2

The Directars have reviewed behavioural maturity of the loan book and have concluded that it would not significantly affect the
analysis above,
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38. Maturity analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities continued

Company
Dus within  Due aftermara  No contractual

N yaar than one year maturity Totat

Emillion £million £milbon Emillion
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 - - 105.8
Loans and advances to banks 452 - - 45.2
Loans and advances to customers 994.5 1,338.7 204 2,353.6
Debt securities 250 - - 250
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk - - 0.9 0.9
Derivative financial instruments 0.1 0.8 - 0.9
Other assets - - 137.2 137.2
Total assets 1,170.6 1,339.5 156.7 2.6646.8
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 455 2430 - 308.5
Deposits from customers 1,355.6 &64.7 - 2,020.3
Fair value adjustment for portiolio hedged risk - - 0.7 on
Derivative financial instruments 0.1 0.5 - 0.6
Current tax liabilities 22 - - 22
Lease fiabilities 07 2.6 - 3.3
Other lizbifities - - 427 427
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 500 (0.6 506
Total Habilities 1,405.3 980.8 41.4 2,427.5

Duewithin  Duu aftar more No contractuel

et ey v Emilion Elion
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 - - 169.7
Loans and advances to banks M9 - - 419
l.oans and advances to customers 1,028.5 953.8 - 1,980.3
Debt sacurities 149.7 - - 149.7
Other assets - - 9.4 N.4
Total assets 1,387.8 953.8 91.4 2,433.0
LIABILITIES
Due ta barks 263.5 - - 2635
Deposits from customers 1,016.6 831.1 - 18477
Current tax liabilities 346 - - 3146
Other liabilities - - 50.4 50.4
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 500 (0.8) 50.4
Total liabilities 1,284.9 881.1 49.6 2,215.6

The Directors have reviewed behavioural maturity of the loan book and have concluded that it would not significantly affect the
analysis above

182 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019




39. Classification of financial assets and liabilities
Group

Total carrying

senount Fair value Fair valua
£mifion £millian  Kerarchy lavel
At 31 December 2019
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 105.8 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 484 484 Level 2
Loans and advances to customers 2,450.1 24162 Level 3
Debt securities 250 250 Level 1
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 09 0.9 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 09 Level 2
Other financial assets 52 5.2 Level 3
2,634.5 2,600.6
Due to banks 3085 3085 Level 2
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 20169 Level 3
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.7 {0.7) Level 3
Derivative finandial instruments 06 06 Level 2
Other financial abilities 27.2 27.2 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 50.6 Level 2
2,406.5 2,403.1
Total carrying
amoum Fair value Fair valua
Emillion £milion  hinrarchy level
At 31 December 2018
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 149.7 Level i
Loans and advances to banks 448 448 Leval 2
Loans and advances to customers 20289 20325 tevel 3
Debt securities 1497 149.7 Level 1
Other financial assets 16.2 16.2 Level 3
2,409.3 2,412.9
Due to banks 2635 2435 Levet 2
Deposits from customers 1,847.7 1,859.7 Level 3
Other financial Labilities 263 263 Level 3
Subordihated liabilities 50.4 504 Level 2
2,187.9 2,199.9

All financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 were carried at amortised ¢ost, except for derivative
financial instruments which are value at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore for these assets and liabilities, the fair value

hierarchy noted above relates to the disclosure in this note only.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 1 83

QuewnRg [BURUL




Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

39. Classification of financial assets and liabilities continued
Company

Total catrying
smount Fair vahee Falr salue
£million Emillion  hlersrchy level
At 31 December 2019
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 105.8 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 452 45,2 Level 2
Loans and advances to custorners 2,353.6 2,319.7 Level 3
Debt securities 250 250 Level 1
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.9 0.9 Level 3
Derivative finandal instrurments 09 09 Leval 2
Other financial assets 930 93.0 Level 3
2,622.6 2,588.7
Due to banks 308.5 308.5 Level 2
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 20169 Level 3
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk {ch 07 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments 04 0.6 Level 2
Cther financial liabilities 310 310 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 50.6 Level 2
2,410.3 2,406.9
Total carying
amount Fair valua Fair valua
£rvilian frilion  hararchy level
At 31 December 2018
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 169.7 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 419 419 Level 2
Loans and advances {0 customers 1,5803 19839 Level 3
Debt securities 149.7 149.7 Level 1
Other financial assets 0.6 0.4 Level 3
2,402,2 2,405.8
Due to banks 2635 2635 Level 2
Deposits from customers 1,847.7 1,859.7 Level 3
Other financial liabilities 374 374 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 504 504 Level 2
2,199.0  2,211.0

All finandal assets and Habilities at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 were carried at amortised cost except for derivative
financial instrument which are value at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore for these assets, the fair value hierarchy noted above

relates to the disddosure in this note only.

Fair value classification

The tables above include the fair values and fair value hierarchies of the Group and Company's financial assets and liabilities.
The Group measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in

making measurements:
« Level 1; Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets o liabilities

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices induded within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability, either directly

{i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

+ Level 3: Inputs for the asset or iability that are not based on cbservable market data {uncbservable inputs)
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39. Classification of financial assets and liabilities continued

Cash and balances at central banks

The fair value of cash and balances at central banks was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

At the end of each year, the fair value of cash and balances at central banks was calculated to be equivalent to their carrying value.

Loans and advances to banks .

The fair value of loans and advances to banks was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Loans and advances to customers

The fair value of loans and advancas to customers was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date, and the same
assumptions regarding the risk of default were applied as those used to derive the carrying value,

Dabt securities
The fair value of debt seaurities is based an the quoted mid-market share price.

At the end of December 2019 the fair value of debt securities was caleulated to be equivalent to their carrying value.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments was calculated based on the present value of the expected future cash flows of the
instruments. The rate used to discount the cash fiows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Due to banks
The fair value of amounts due to banks was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and interest cash
flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the batance sheet date.

At the end of each year, the fair value of amounts due to banks was calculated to be equivatent to their carrying value due to the short
maturity term of the amounts due,

Deposits from customers

The fair value of deposits from customers was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and interest
cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date for the notice deposits
and deposit bonds. The fair value of instant access deposits is equal to book value as they are repayable on demand.

Dividends and othar financial liabilities

The fair value of dividends and other financial liabilities was catculated based upon the present value of the expected future princpal
cash flows.

At the end of each year, the fair value of dividends and other financial liabilities was calculated to be equivalent to their canrying value
due to their short maturity. The other financial lizbilities include afl other liabilities other than nor-interest accruals.

Subordinated liabilities
The fair value of subordinated labilities was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal cash flows.

40. Related party transactions

Related parties of the Company snd Group inchude subsidiaries, Key Management Personnel, dose family members of Key
Management Personnel and entities which are controlied, jointly controlled or significantly influenced, or for which significant voting
power is held, by Key Management Personnel or their dlose family membaers.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business on normal commercial terms.
These include loans and deposits as set out below. The tables on the following page relate to Key Management Personnel, members
of their close family and related entities as described above.
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40. Related party transactions continued

2m9 2018
£million gmilion
Lloans
{oans outstanding at 1 January 4.2 a7
Loans achvanced 13 04
Loan repayments {1.3) -
Interest applied 0.2 0.1
Loans outstanding at 31 December 4.4 4.2
Deposits
Deposits outstanding at 1 January a4 04
Change in related parties during the year 0.2 -
0.2 0.4

Deposits outstanding at 31 December

The loans outstanding above comprise the following:

* A f0.4million advance {2018: £0.4 million) as part of a £2.5 million facility agreed with a company in which a member of the Key
Management Personnel of the Company holds 50% of the voting shares, which is secured by proparty and personal guarantees

+ A £4.0 million advance {2018: £3.8 million) as part of a revised £4.4 million fadlity agreed with 2 member of the Key Management

Personnel of the Company, which is secured by property and certain other undertakings

Both of these transactions were agreed by the Group's Real Estate Finance business and arose during the normal course of business,
Both loans were subject to the usual Board govemnance and Credit Committee approval procedures and are on substantially the same

terms as for comparable transactions with third parties.

The Company undertock the following transactions with other companies in the Secure Trust Bank Group:

2019 2018
£milfion Emillion
Debt Managers (Services) Limited — income from sale of debt portfolio (0.2) 0.2)
Debt Managers {Services) Limited - interest charged 1.1} -
Debt Managers {Services) Limited — debt collection services 0.4 1.0
Secure Homes Services Limited — building rental paid 04 04
STB Leasing Limited — interest charged 0.2 -
V12 Finance Group Limited ~ dividend received (15.1) -
V12 Retail Finance Limited ~ fees and commission
Loan management services 16.2 14.9
Sales commission 73 65
7.9 22.6
The loans and advances with, and amounts receivable and payable to, related companies are noted betow:
R~ A 1
£miliion Seniftion
Amounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings 88.5 4.5
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - {5.5 {14.1)
: 83.0 30.4

All amounts above are repayable on demand and interest is charged at a variable rate.
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40, Related party transactions continued

Directors’ remuneration
The Directors' emoluments {including pension contributions and benefits in kind) for the year are disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report beginning on page 82.

At the year-end the ordinary shares held by the Directors are disclosed in the Directors report beginning on page 106. Details of the
Directors’ holdings of share options, as well as details of those share options exercised during the year, are also disclosed in the
Directors’ report.

41. Immediate parent company and ultimate controlling party
The Company has had no immediate parent company or ultimate contralling party.

42. Country-by-Country reporting

The Capital Requirements {Country-by-Country Reporting) Regulations 2013 introduced reporting obligations for institutions within the
scope of CRD M The requirements aim to give increased transparency regarding the activities of institutions.

The Country-by-Country Information is set out below:

Nature Ternover MNumber of FTE Profit bafore tax :;“;:ﬂdt
Namas of activity Location £million mployess £mithon Emillion
31 December 2019
Banking
Secure Trust Bank PLC services UK 2123 979 387 7.6
Tax paid
Nature Tomover  Numberal FTE  Prokit bedore tax on profit
Name of sctivity Locsion Emition amplayass Emillion £million
31 Dacember 2018
Banking
Secure Trust Bank PLC services UK 188.6 861 347 6.4

43, Post balance sheet event — COVID-19

The outhreak of COVID-19 and its impact on the global and UK economies is considered to be a non-adjusting event as, at the
balance sheet date, the scale of the outbreak remained limited and therefore there was not sufficient information available to have
caused changes to the assumptions applied to the finandial position as at 3t December 2019. The full impact of the outbreak is
currently uncertain and therefore the financial impact on the Group, which will depend upon the extent of the economic downturn
and duration of the aurrent lockdown, cannot be reliably estimated.

The most significant financial impacts of the COVID-19 «isis on the Group are expected to be in respect of significantly reduced
demand for the Group's Consumer Finance products while the UK Govemment restricts movements, particularly for Motor Finance
while the UK used car market remains effectively closed, and on the level of impairment provisioning required. Contraction of the
lending portfolio started to become evident after 31 March 2020, with demand for Mator Finance lending dropping to almast zero,
Retail Finance volumes falling to approximately 50% of expectations and Business Finance new business falling significantly from this
point. The impact on impairments is not yet clear though charges are expected to increase, and the sensitivity analysis in Note 2.2
indicates the potential magnitude of this increase in the evert of material changes to loan book performance or economic factors.
As at 31 March 2020, 0.5% of Retail Finance customers and 2.1% of Motor Finance customers had been granted payment holidays,
these being the portfolios where the most materiat impacts onh impalment ate expected.

In assessing its viability, the Group has undertaken specific stress testing which considers the potential impact of the outbreak on
profitability, capital and liquidity levels. These tests considered two core scenarios, whereby tha economy shows a significant falt in
GDP and increase in unemployment prior to recovery. The more severe scenario assumed unemployment to peak at aver 10%.
The scenarios were subject to a range of sensitivities, including even higher unemployment rates and a more prolonged period of
poor economic conditions prior to recovery. The Group considers that the results of the stress tests demonstrate that the Group
continues 1o be viable and a going concemn in both scenarios.

The ability to operate effectively is also impacted and steps have been taken in crder to mitigate the operational impact on the
business, The senior leadership team is closely monitoring the guidance provided by the UK Government and making changes to
operationa! practices in order to continue to provide services and support for customers, whilst also maintaining the health and safety

of amployees.
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Five year summary (unaudited)

emilon Erition o o Emion
Profit for the year
Interest and similar incoma 191.4 169.2 1493 1411 139.7
Interest expense and similar charges {46.0) (35.5) (26.7) {26.3) {21.6)
Net interest income 145.4 133.7 122.6 114.8 118.1
Nat fee and commission income 201 179 149 14.5 14.4
Operating income 165.5 151.6 137.5 129.3 132.5
Impairment losses on loans and advances (32.6) (32.4) (36.9) (30.3) (24.3)
Arbuthnot Banking Group recharges - - - - 0.8)
Operating expenses {94.2) {84.5) (71.8) (71.5) (70.9)
Profit on sale of equity instruments available-for-sale - - 03 - -
Profit before income tax 38.7 34.7 29.3 27.5 34.5

2019 018 2017 2016 2015

£milon £rallion Emillion Emillion fmilion
Earnings per share for profit sttributable to the equity holders
of the Group during the year
(expressed in pence per share) - basic 168.3 153.2 128.8 754.1 157.8

201 2018 2017 016 2015

Emdliion Emillion £million Emittion Emillion
Financial position
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7 226.1 1120 131.8
Loans and advances to banks 484 448 343 18.2 11.5
L.oans and advances to customers 24501 20289 15983 13210 10749
Debt securities 250 149.7 50 2.0 18
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk ((eR} - = - -
Derivative financial instruments 09 - - - -
Other assets 535 51.2 279 388 254
Total assets 2,682.8 2,444.3 1,891.6 1,510.0 1,247.4
Due to banks 308.5 2635 1130 700 350
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 1,847.7 1,483.2 1,151.8 1,033
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.7 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 04 - - - -
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 50.4 - - -
Other liabilities 494 45.6 46.3 52.2 361
Total shareholders’ equity 254.1 237.1 249.1 2360 141.2
Total liabilities and shareholders’ aquity 2,682.8 2,444.3 1,891.6 1,510.0 1,247.4
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Appendix to the Annual Report (unaudited)

Key performance indicators
(i Margin ratios

Net interest margin is calculated as interest income and similar income less interest expense and similar charges for the financial
period as a percentage of the average loan book, net revenue margin is calculated as operating income for the financial period as a
percentage of the average loan book and gross revenue margin is calculated as interest income and similar income plus fee and
commission income for the financial period as a percentage of the average loan book. The calculation of the average loan book is the
average of the monthly balance of loans and advances to customers, net of provisions, over 13 months:

2019 208
Emillion £million
Net interest margin
Interest income and simifar income 191.4 169.2
Interest expense and similar charges (46.0} {35.5)
Net interest income 145.4 133.7
Net revenue margin
Net intarast income 1454 133.7
Net fee and commission income 20.1 17.9
Operating income 1655 151.6
Gross revenue margin
interest income and similar income 191.4 169.2
Fee and commission income 209 194
Gross revenue 212.3 188.6

Opening loan book
Closing loan book

20289 1,564.5
2,450 2,028.9

Average loan book

2,2524 1,818.2

Net interest margin

6.5% 7.4%

Net revenue margin

7.3% 8.3%

Grass ravenue margin

?.4% 10.4%

The margin ratios all measure the yield of the loan book,

Areconciliation of the opening loan book at 1 January 2018 to the balance sheet is as foliows:

1 Jaruary
2013
Emifion

Loan book
IFRS 9 transition adjustment

1,598.3
(31.9)

1.566.5
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Key performance indicators continued

{ii} Cost ratios

Cost of risk is calculated as impaiment losses on loans and advances to customers for the finandial period as a percentage of the
average loan book, cost of funds is calculated at interest expense for the financial period as a percantage of average loan book and
cost

to income ratio is calculated as operating expenses for the financial period as a percentage of operating income for the

financial pariod:

2019 08

£milllon Emiltion

Net impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 3246 324
Average loan book 2,2524 18182
Cost of risk 1.4% 1.8%
Interest expense 46.0 55
Average loan book 2,2524 1,818.2
Cost of funds 2.0% 2.0%
Operating expenses 94.2 845
Operating income 145.5 151.6
Cost to income ratlo 56.9% 55.7%

The cost of risk measures how effective the Group has been in managing its impairment losses. The cost of funds measures the cost of
money being lent to customers. The cost to incomne ratio measures how effidently the Group is utilising its cost base in
producing income.

{ili} Return ratios .
Annualised adjusted retum on average assets is calculated as the adjusted profit after tax for the previous 12 months as a percentage
of average assets, annualised adiusted retumn on average equity is calculated as the adjusted profit sfter tax for the previous 12 months
as a percentage of average equity and annualised adjusted return on required equity is calculated as the adjusted profit after tax for
the previous 12 months as a percentage of average required equity.

Adjusted profit after tax is profit after tax, adjusted for items that are non-controllable items or other items that fall outside of the
Group's core business activities. A reconciliation of adjusted profit after tax to statutory profit aftar tax is provided on page 20

Average assets is calculated as the average of the monthly assets balances, average equity is calculated as the average of the monthly
equity balances and average required equity is calculated as the average of the monthly balances of total required equity.
Total required equity is calculated as the equity required to achieve a CET1 ratio of 12%:

2019 2018
L E£million forifiion
Adjusted profit after tax ' 330 299
Opening assets (after IFRS 16/IFRS 9 transition adjustments - see following page} 2448.6 1,866.1
Closing assets 2,6828 2,444 3
‘Alarage assets 2,554.9 2,182.4
Opening equity (after IFRS 14/IFRS 9 transition adjustments — see following page) 237.0 2233
Closing equity 254.1 2374
Average equity 2436 2289
Opening required equity 217.8 1733
Closing required equity 2518 2209
Avarage required equity 2345 2017
Arnmualised adjusted return on average assets 1.3% 1.4%
Annualised adjusted return on average equity 13.5% 13.1%
Annualised adjusted return on required equity 14.1% 14.8%
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Key performance indicators continued
A recondiliation of assets to the balance sheet is as follows:

2019 008

{opening {opening

balance) balencel

Emilion Fmillion

Balance sheet assets 24443 1,891.6
IFRS ¥ transition adjustment - {25.5)
[FRS 14 transition adjustment 43 -

2.,448.6 1,866.1

A recondliation of equity to the balance sheet Is as follows:

2014 208

{apaning {opening

balanca) balance)

Lenllllon Errillion

Equity 23741 2491
IFRS 9 transition adjustment - {25.8)
IFRS 14 transition adjustment 0.1) -
237.0 223.3

Retumn on average assets demonstrates how profitable the Group's assets are in generating revenue. Return on average equityisa
measure of the Group's ability to generate profit from the equity available to it. Return on required equity relates profitability to the
capital that the Group is required to hold.

{iv) Funding ratios

The loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the loan book at the year-end, divided by deposits from customers st the year-end, and the
total funding ratio is calculated as the total funding at the year-end, being the sum of deposits from custormers, borrowings under
liquidity support operations and the Term Funding Scheme, and equity, divided by the loan bocok at the year-end:

2019 2018

£milion Emitiion

toan book 2,450.1 20289
Depasits from customers 2,020.3 1,847.7
Borrowings under liquidity support operations and the Term Funding Scheme 3085 2535
Tier 2 capital (including accrued interest) 50.6 50.4
Equity 254.1 2371
Total funding 26335 2,398.7
Loan to deposit ratio 121.3% 109.8%
Total funding ratio 107.5% 118.2%

The funding ratios measure the Group's liquidity.

(v} Adjusted earnings per share
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the adjusted profit attdbutable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares as follows:

2019 208
Adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (Emillion) 330 299
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 18,476,280 18,475,229
Adjusted earnings per shara {pence) 178.6 161.8
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Appendix to the Annual Report (unaudited)
continued

Key performance indicators continued

{vi) Adjusted profit and effective adjusted tax rate

Adjusted profit before tax was £41.1 million {2018: £35.7 million). Adjusted profit after tax was £33.0 million (2018: £29.9 milkion).

The Group uses adjusted profit for planning and reporting purposes, as it improves the comparability of information between
reporting periods. The adiustments to profit relate to non-controllable items or ather iterns that falt outside of the Group’s core
business activities.

Fair value amortisation relates to the acquisition of Vi2 Firiance Group. The acquisition accounting required identifiable assets and
liabilities to be adjusted to their fair value, and thase adjustments are subject to amortisation.

Transformation costs comprise principally costs of the Motor Transformation Programme and treasury development {31 December
2018: camprised principally costs of closing the unsecured personal lending product, the cost of potential corporate acquisition work
and treasury development).

Bonus paymants of £0.1 milfion {2018: £1.3 million} relate to a long term incentive plan that was set up for a small number of employees
on the creation of the Commercial Finance business. The scheme is based on profits earned by that business up to the end of 2019,
and is payable in 2020.

The revaluation deficit of £1.1 million {2018: £nil) relates to stamp duty and irrecoverable VAT incurred on the acquisition of a freehold
property during the year.
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Glossary

Term Explanatiols

AiM The Alternative Investment Market is the London Stock Exchange's intemationalt market for smaller
growing companies. A wide range of businesses including early stage, venture capital badked as well
as more established companies join AIM seeking access to growth capital.

ALCO The Assets and Liabilities Committee. The remit of the Cammittee can be found on the Group'’s
website: www.securetrustbank.com/our-corparate-information/risk-management.

Bank of England The Bank of England promotes the good of the people of the United Kingdom by maintaining
monetary and financial stability. It also performs a supervisory role of the banking system via the
Prudential Regulation Authority.

CET1 capital Common Equity Tier 1 capital comprises a bank’s core capital and includes common shares, stock

surpluses resulting from the issue of common shares, retained earnings, common shares issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties, and accumutated other comprehensive income.

CET1 capital ratio

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio is the ratio of the bank’s CET1 capital to its Total Risk
Exposure. This signifies a bank’s financial strength. The CET1 capital ratic is utilised by regulators and
investors because it shows how well a bank can withstand financial stress and remain solvent.

CRD IV

Capital Requirerents Directive IV is intended to implement the Basel lll agreement in the EU. This
includes enhanced requirements for the quality and quantity of capital; a basis for new liquidity and
leverage requirements; new rules for counterparty risk; and new macroprudential standards induding a
countercyclical capital buffer and capital buffers for systemically important institutions.

Credit impaired assets

Finandial assets that are considered to be in default or ‘stage 3’ assets. There are no material differences
in the Group's definition of ‘stage 3, credit-impaired or default assets.

Financial assets are considered to be stage 3 when an event or events have occurred that have 2
detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows. Evidence may include initiation of banknuptey
proceedings,

notification of bereavement, loan meeting debt sale criteria or initiation of repossessions proceedings.

As a backstop a loan that is 90 days or more past due is considered credit-impaired for all portiolios.

Capital Requirement

The EU regulation implementing CRD 1V directly across the EU.

Regulation

bDBP Deferred Bonus Pian.

Default Refer to definition of credit-impaired assets above.

DMS Debt Managers (Setvices) Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of Secure Trust Bank PLC, responsible

for carrying out market leading debt recovery services to the credit industry.

Expected credit loss (ECL)

ECLs are probability weighted estimates of credit losses which are measured as the present value of al!
cash shortfalls. Specifically this is the difference between the cantractual cash flows due and the cash
flows expected to be received, discounted at the original effective interest rate or, for portfolios
purchased outside of the Group by DMS, the credit adjusted effective interest rate.

EU

European Union.

Feefo

The Feedback Forum collects independent reviews from the customers of over 2,500 businesses.

Financial Conduct Autharity The Financial Conduct Authority is the conduct regulator for 58,000 financial services firms and

financial markets in the UK. lts aims are to protect consumers, enhance market integrity and
promote competition.

The Financial Ombudsman

Service

Set up by Parliament, the Financial Ombudsman Service settles individual disputes between
consumers and businesses that provide financial services fairly and impartially, and have the power to
put things right.

Financial Services
Compensation Scheme

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme protects consumers when authorised financial services
firms fail.
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continued

Term Explanation

General Data Protection The General Data Protection Regulation {Regulation (EU) 2016/679) is a regulation by which the

Regulation or GDPR European Parliament, the European Council and the European Commission intend to strengthen and
unify data protection for individuals within the European Union. It also addresses export of personal
data outside the Eurcpean Union.

High Quality Liquid Assets  High Quality Liquid Assets are assets with a high potential to be converted easily and quickly inte cash.
This is comprised of cash and balances at central banks and treasury bills that are the subject of a
repurchase agreement (see below),

1AS International Accounting Standard.

ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process. A firm must cany out an ICAAP in accordance with the
PRA’s ICAAP rules. These include requirements on the firm to undertake a regular assessment of the
amounts, types and distribution of capital that it considers adequate to cover the level and nature of

_ the risks to which it is or might be exposed.

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard,

ILAAP The Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process allows firms to assess the level of liquidity and
funding that adequately supports all relevant current and future liquidity risks in their business.

In undertaking this process, a fim should be able to ensure that it has appropriate processes in place
to ensure compliance with the CRD IV This requires firms to develop and use appropriate risk and
liquidity management techniques.

iOR The Bank of England’s Indexed Long Term Repo operations are a component of the Bank’s liquidity
insurance as part of its Sterling Monetary Framework. It is designed to provide predictable and regular
liquidity to banks and other participants.

LCR The Liquidity Coverage Ratio regime requires management of net 30-day cash outflows as a
propertion of High Quality Liquid Assets. The Group has set a more prudent internal fimit than that
proposed in guidance from the regulator.

TP Long term incentive plan.

MREL Minimum Requirement for Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities regime.

OCLAR The Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule is the Board’s own view of the Group’s liquidity needs as set out

in the Board approved ILAAP.

Pillar 1, Pillar 2 and Pillar 3

Basel )l uses a ‘three pillars” concept — (1} Piliar 1 — minimum capital requirements (addressing risk)
using a standardised approach for credit, market and operational risk, (2) Pillar 2 - supervisory review
process and (3) Pillar 3 -~ market discipline and enhanced disclosures. Basel Il is the second of the Basel
Accords, {now extended and partially superseded by Basel H1), which are recommendations on
banking laws and regulations issued by the Basel Comimittee on Banking Supervision.

PRA

The Prudential Regulation Authority was created as a part of the Bank of England by the Financial
Services Act (2012) and is responsible for the prudential requlation and supervision of around 1,700
banks. The PRA's objectives are set out in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, but the main
objective is to promote the safety and soundness of the firms it regulates.

Repurchase agreement

A repurchase agreement is a form of short-term borrowing for dealers in government securitias.
The dealer sells the government securities ta investors, and buys them back at an agreed point in
the future.

SME

Small to medium sized enterprises.

Stage 1 assets

Financial assets which have:

* been determined to be low credit risk at the reporting date
* not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition; or

» have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but have since met the
Group's cure policy (refer to Note 1 for the Group’s cure policy.

Credit losses for such assets are measured as an amount equal to 12 months’ ECL.
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Term

Explanation

Stage 2 assets

Financial assats that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition
and have not subsequently met the Group’s cura policy {refer to Note 1 for further detail).

As a backstop, the Group considers a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an
asset is more than 30 days past due for all portfolios.

Credit losses for such assets are measUred as an amount aqua! to lifetime ECL, as defined in Note 1.

Stage 3 assets

Refer to definition of credit-impaired assets above.

Term Funding Scheme

The Term Funding Scheme is designed to reinforce the transmission of Bank Rate cuts to those
interest rates actually faced by households and businesses by providing term funding to barks at rates
close to Bank Rate. The Term Funding Scheme allows participants to borrow central bank reserves in
exchange for eligible collateral.

Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital is the secondary component of bank capital, in addition to Tier 1 capital, that makes up a
bank's required reserves. Tier 2 capital is designated as supplementary capital, and is composed of
subordinated liabilities, net of issue costs.

Total Capital Requirement

Guidance given to a firm about the amount and quality of capital resources that the PRA considers
that firm should hold at all times under the overall financial adequacy rule as it applies on a solo level
ar a consolidated level.

Total Risk Exposure

Total Risk Exposure is the total of the Group's risk-weighted assets.
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